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CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

MHHE

2022 2021
—g-— T —4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FHET
(Restated)
(&5)
RESULTS 3
Revenue g A 1,504,439 1,714,549
Profit attributable to owners of the Company AR Az A A FEATE Fl 74,844 131,139
EBITDA REFFE BB HER
Bigai &N 183,767 248,716
PER SHARE DATA srEs
Basic earnings per share (HK cent(s)) BREKRRF CEM) 8.37 14.67
Total dividends per share (HK cent(s)) BRBIR S CEL) 2.3 4.0
— Interim dividend paid per share (HK cent(s) — BAERTEARE C&ML) 0.3 1.0
— Proposed final dividend per share — BERERKRBRE CE)
(HK cent(s)) 2.0 3.0
Dividend payout ratio K B b & 27.5% 27.3%
Revenue (Hk$ million) Profit attributable to owners of the Company (+«$ milion)
WA (5&57T) RACIERSE ARBGRN (584571)
1,715 131
1,504
I | :
2022 2021 2022 2021
Basic earnings per share (HK cent(s)) Total dividends per share (HK cent(s))
BRERRF s SRR BR B cEl
14.67 4.0
8.37 2.3|
2022 2021 2022 2021
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS (CONTINUED)

MBME(E)

Revenue percentage by business segments

REBOBHKAERE

3.7% 2.8%
8.4%

12.7%
8.3%

6.6%

30.0%
24.2%

2022 2021

Magnesium alloy Plastic Zinc alloy
E8eEE BREE #52EE
Aluminium alloy Others
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Chairman;
EE FE
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors of Ka Shui
International Holdings Limited (the “Company” or “Ka
Shui”), | am pleased to present you the audited annual
results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2022 (the
“Year”).

In 2022, the global business environment faced
considerable turbulence and challenges. The outbreak of
the COVID-19 pandemic prompted major economies to
adopt highly accommodative fiscal and monetary policies
since 2020, leading to persistent inflationary pressures in
2022. Furthermore, ongoing geopolitical conflicts
contributed to significant fluctuations in energy and
commodity prices and the rising cost of living, resulting in
weakened consumer demand. Despite these challenges,
Ka Shui remained vigilant and adaptable to the changing
market conditions to mitigate operational risks.

CHAIRMAN’S
STATEMENT

HERBOR
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

EEHRE (R)

For the Year, the Group recorded revenue of
HK$1,504,439,000 (2021: HK$1,714,549,000) and profit
attributable to owners of the Company was
HK$74,844,000 (2021: HK$131,139,000). The Board of
Directors recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HK2.0 cents (2021: HK3.0 cents) per share for the Year
after careful consideration of our Group’s future business
development as well as our financials. Taking into account
the interim dividend of HK0.3 cent (2021: HK1.0 cent) per
share, the dividend pay-out ratio for the Year would be
approximately 27.5% (2021: 27.3%).

With the common goal of reducing global carbon
emissions, the demand for material lightweighting has
become even more acute. The Group has been providing
various lightweighting solutions (including die casting and
plastic injection molding) for many years. The Group’s
business segments have broadened to cover a wide range
of products and services, including communication devices
and accessories, automotive components, personal care
and smart home products. Our innovative and advanced
technologies in lightweight materials and intelligent
production and management has enabled us to secure
long-term and in-depth partnerships with leading brands in
the personal computer and automobile sectors. Our
long-term business strategy focuses on deepening the
application of the lightweight material solutions. Our
self-developed low-floor LPG extended-range minibus
launched in 2022 can diversify our business on the one
hand, and more importantly, it demonstrates the
application of lightweight materials in the new energy
vehicle parts. The whole vehicle implements low-carbon
travel from materials to fuels.

Ka Shui is determined to collaborate with industry leaders
to establish a leading R&D and production development
platform of lightweight solutions in the world. This move
will allow us to cater to a wider range of industries, to
deepen our penetration in the existing industries and
peripheral markets, as well as to quickly establish our
presence in emerging markets, thereby maximizing our
scale in a short period of time. In addition to the horizontal
expansion, we recognize the importance of vertical
upstream integration to ensure raw material supply and
quality in this increasingly unpredictable business
environment, thus seeking to make further investments
along the supply chain.

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Risk management is critical in the ongoing geopolitical
conflicts, potential global supply chain disruptions, and the
trend of deglobalization. To mitigate these risks, Ka Shui
has strategically decided to expand its manufacturing base
and operation outside of China, to stay close to
customers. This move will not only allow us to take
advantage of regional benefits, such as lower energy and
raw material, costs and government incentives, but it will
also expand our capacity to support growth of purchase
orders from different parts of the world.

As the industrial sector continues to adopt energy
conservation and green manufacturing practices, Ka Shui is
committed to minimizing our environmental footprint,
conserving energy and natural resources, and enhancing
the safety of our employees, community, and products.
Our focus on sustainable business growth through
renewable production processes and environmentally
friendly practices demonstrates our commitment to creating
a better world.

Finally, 1 would like to express my heartfelt gratitude to our
shareholders, business partners, and customers for their
unwavering support during these challenging times. We
thank our fellow directors and all employees for their
commitment to delivering our promise and driving
innovation. With these strategies in place, Ka Shui is
well-positioned to achieve sustainable growth in the
coming years.

Lee Yuen Fat
Chairman of the Group

Hong Kong, 28 March 2023
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(A)

EEEN®R D

FINANCIAL REVIEW

During the year under review, the emergence of
COVID-19 new variants around the world, soaring
inflation and contractionary policies adopted in the
West had led to a decline in both local and global
consumption markets. In view of this, the Group’s
overall revenue for the year ended 31 December
2022 (the “Year”) recorded a year-on-year decrease
of approximately 12.3% to HK$1,504,439,000 (2021:
HK$1,714,549,000). This is primarily attributed to the
unsatisfactory performance in the sales of plastic and
zinc alloy business. As a result, the consolidated
profit attributable to owners of the Company reduced
to approximately HK$74,844,000 (2021:
HK$131,139,000), representing a drop of 42.9%
when compared with that of last year. The Group’s
gross profit for the Year also decreased by
approximately 28.2% to HK$335,334,000 (2021:
HK$467,235,000 (Restated)) and gross profit margin
was approximately 22.3% (2021: 27.3% (Restated)).

The Group’s EBITDA, computed as profit before tax,
depreciation, amortisation and finance costs,
amounted to approximately HK$183,767,000 (2021:
HK$248,716,000).

BUSINESS REVIEW

Plastic business

The revenue of plastic business was affected by the
decline of consumption around the world due to
COVID-19 pandemic, high inflation and
contractionary policies in the West. In this relation,
the revenue of plastic business segment had
decreased by approximately 26.7% to
HK$706,584,000 (2021: HK$964,538,000), which
accounted for approximately 47.0% (2021: 56.3%) of
the Group’s overall revenue. The Group will continue
to attempt to acquire more orders from different
customers by providing the varieties of products and
enhancing quality of our products and services for
plastic injection and precision products.

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Magnesium alloy business

In light of the satisfactory performance in new energy
vehicles in 2022, the revenue of the magnesium alloy
business slightly increased by approximately 8.6% to
HK$451,100,000 (2021: HK$415,207,000),
accounting for approximately 30.0% of the Group’s
overall revenue (2021: 24.2%). The focus of the
Group on magnesium alloy business will remain on
exploring new applications of magnesium alloy in
new energy vehicles in the hope of improving the
sales performance of magnesium alloy business in
the forthcoming future.

Aluminium alloy business

Driven by the rising sales in new energy vehicles, the
revenue of the aluminium alloy business for the Year
increased by approximately 31.8% to
HK$190,367,000 (2021: HK$144,417,000) when
compared with that of the previous year. The
segment’s contribution to the Group’s overall revenue
had also grown from approximately 8.4% in 2021 to
approximately 12.7% in 2022. In view of the
increasing awareness of people and government in
relation to environmental protection and sustainable
development, the new energy vehicle market has
substantial growth potential. The Group will strive to
expand diversified applications of aluminum alloy in
new energy vehicles to enhance the profitability of
this segment in the forthcoming future.

Zinc alloy business

The persistence of COVID-19 pandemic greatly
weakened the consumption in household products. A
such, the revenue of the zinc alloy business for the
year ended 31 December 2022 was approximately
HK$99,327,000 (2021: HK$142,537,000),
representing a decrease of approximately 30.3%
when compared with that of 2021. This business
segment accounted for approximately 6.6% of the
Group’s overall revenue (2021: 8.3%).
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BEEE w2 (&)

Others

The revenue of other businesses (trading of lighting
products, production of smart home products and
provision of new energy vehicle power systems)
increased by approximately 19.2% to
HK$57,061,000 (2021: HK$47,850,000) when
compared with that of the previous year.

PROSPECTS

The global business landscape in 2023 remains
uncertain due to ongoing economic and political
turbulence. Ongoing geopolitical conflicts, coupled
with the cycle of rising interest rates, are expected
to persist in the foreseeable future. Nonetheless, the
Group has noted positive developments such as the
recent deceleration of inflation in the West and the
revival of supply chains, as well as deflationary
tendencies in the goods sector. Furthermore, the
reopening of China, following its exit from disease
prevention policy, is anticipated to spur global
economic growth. Ka Shui will remain vigilant and
agile in response to the ever-changing market
conditions while consolidating its competitive edge in
innovation, especially in lightweight material
application and precision mould development. The
Group is prepared to respond to the economic cycle

promptly.

Ka Shui is committed to the provision of diversified
magnesium industry chain related professional
services, with the following “Four New” strategy
(“New Materials, New Business, New Markets, New
Opportunities”) being the Group’s long-term
development.

New Materials

After years of research and development, Ka Shui’'s
magnesium alloy of high thermal conductivity and its
complete production process (including mould
making, die-casting, post-machining and surface
treatment) have finally been developed. The current
thermal conductivity of the material is 100W/(m e K),
which doubles that of the conventional magnesium
alloy. The main application for this material is in
high-end notebooks, AR/VR wearable electronic
products and automotive electronic components,
which solves the heat dissipation problem.

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Besides, the Group has been cooperating with
domestic and foreign technology research and
development institutions for other magnesium alloy
materials including high strength, high toughness and
high flow magnesium alloy, which can be widely
used in automotive instrument parts, car body
structure parts, chassis parts and triboelectric
system, etc.

In addition to new materials for magnesium alloys, Ka
Shui has also been developing the market for new
materials for germ-repelling plastics.

Recently, the American Society for Testing and
Materials (“ASTM”) E35.15 Committee recently
recognized Ka Shui as an active participant and key
technical contact in the development of the ASTM
E3371-22 antimicrobial standard. Like traditional
antimicrobial materials, germ repellent materials are
difficult to demonstrate technically through visual and
other means, and require a test report based on the
appropriate test standard. With the latest ASTM
E3371-22 standard, it will help to promote the
Group’s new materials and increase the recognition
of our products by our customers. In addition to the
international standards, Ka Shui also actively
participates in the establishment of the Chinese
National Standard Committee on Plastic Aging
Branch (TC15/SC5) regarding the establishment of
germ-repelling test standards, in anticipation of
further promoting the internal circulation business.

New Business
Lightweight solutions for new energy vehicles have
always been a focus of the Group’s development.

Lightweight technology has become increasingly
crucial in the automotive industry, both for traditional
and new energy vehicles, in the pursuit of enhanced
energy efficiency and reduced environmental impact.
According to a research report, the global automotive
lightweight materials market attained a size of
US$67.2 billion in 2021, with an expected compound
annual growth rate of 8.1% from 2021 to 2027,
reaching US$107.0 billion by 2027.
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Ka Shui currently provides lightweight products and
solutions for various types of vehicles, including
electric, plug-in, and hybrid electric vehicles in China.
In addition to decorative auto parts, the Group is
directing its efforts towards developing various large
magnesium alloy components such as cross car
beam, seat skeleton, battery pack case, electric
control box, dashboard LCD screen skeleton and
commercial vehicle hydrogen storage bottle holder,
etc., as well as the components of other integrated
electronic systems, including autopilot system,
intelligent display system, intelligent control system
and heat dissipation system, so as to improve the
energy saving of vehicles.

With its large-scale die casting system and
machining capacity, the Group possesses a
competitive advantage to design and produce
massive automotive components in one piece. The
Group is optimistic about the growth prospects of
the automotive lightweight market and s
well-positioned to leverage its product knowledge,
innovation, production capacity, and industry
experience to increase its market share in the near
term.

At present, the self-developed low-floor LPG
extended-range minibus launched by the Group can
diversify its business on the one hand, and more
importantly, it demonstrates the application of
lightweight materials in the new energy vehicle parts.
The whole vehicle implements low-carbon travel from
materials to fuels.

As it is well known, apart from the new energy
vehicle business, the sustainable energy and energy
storage sector also has great potential for future
development. The Group has plans for the
development of related products and components
and expects that this business can bring new growth
momentum to the Group.

New Markets

On July 21, 2020, Chinese President Xi Jinping
emphasized the need to smooth out the dual
domestic and international circulation. In addition to
consolidating the internal circulation business, Ka
Shui has to actively explore new international
markets.

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

In response to the country’s “One Belt, One Road”
and “Go Global” strategies, the Group is actively
exploring the expansion of its business in Central
Asia, the Middle East and North America to meet
local and neighboring demands and hedge against
risks arising from geopolitics.

New Opportunities

With over 40 years of rich experience in the metal
manufacturing industry and the backbone of our
Industry 4.0 establishment, the Group is actively
developing extended businesses. For example, the
vertical development of the whole magnesium
industry chain and the export of professional services
of intelligent manufacturing solutions, in order to
leverage our research and development, innovation
and manufacturing experience to bring new growth
drivers for the Group.

In addition, intelligent products are the general trend.
Ka Shui has already accumulated sufficient
experience in moving from components to intelligent
products, for instance, its smart home products have
been sold to overseas markets. The Group will
continue to invest in this sector and expects to
participate in the development and manufacture of
intelligent products in different fields.

Apart from the traditional manufacturing business, the
Group has also been actively developing the
application of 3D printing in recent years. We are
now working closely with the National Intelligent
Foundry Industry Light Alloy Innovation Center to
promote “rapid casting”, cultural creation and
conservation areas by mean of 3D sand printing
services and solutions.

Rapid casting refers the use of 3D printing
technology to quickly build sand mould and use the
traditional casting process to shape the metal
prototype and subsequently finish the final product
with a small amount of finishing. This process is
particularly suitable for small batches and also saves
a lot of time and money compared to conventional
full machining.

EEEWR DN (E)

ERER—F—BIRIED X8I
FEELRGMEETE  PREILEE
FRER - WhEEMWREARER LRSS
S A B 7 R D LR o

A

BERBRIOFHNLEESEVNEELR K
THEAWMER SELEGHAABMRIEE
ol HEE£BENEEER LS
REFREXERBOBL  BRINBE S
RRFES - BIET M EVEES - AT
BRI -

I BRRACEMEAZ S - BRIETE
HERERICERCEBE -—ENER W
BRACAERXEEREREIN - £EE
HEEEHHEHNRA ITHEHSEL2ETF
BEMEERLCERNRERRE -

BT BRBEERI  IFREEDER
FIZ3DITHIR M - AR R BIREE
BEXRADAFPOIETAE LR
HIBE — R XBRIRRESREAID
RO RVFTEN AR A5 M T 58

PR35 BE 2 B 3% B2 F) A 3DT BBy bRk i
UHREA  WHNREREITTE  BES
BRE BRBLENEIMI TR -
HTEFRES/ MENER LB
MENTHE T PRELEM -

CECCEER ERERERERLF

15



16

BEEE w2 (&)

The extension from rapid casting to sand-based
cultural and conservation products has also opened
the way for 3D business diversification. Since the
main raw material for 3D sand printing is ordinary
sand and the whole product life cycle is
environmentally friendly, the service has started to be
welcomed by customers who value environmental,
social and governance (“ESG”) in Hong Kong and the
Mainland, and the 3D printed products have started
to be displayed in different places for long or short
term.

Ka Shui sees this project not only as a new business
opportunity, but also a highlight of the value and
position that it places on ESG for the Group’s
sustainable development.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES
The Group has adopted a prudent policy in financial
resources management, maintaining an appropriate
level of cash and cash equivalents as well as
adequate facilities to meet the requirements of
day-to-day operations and business development, at
the same time controlling borrowings at a healthy
level.

The principal sources of working capital of the Group
during the Year was from cash flows generated from
operating activities and bank borrowings. As at
31 December 2022, the Group had restricted bank
balances as well as bank and cash balances of
approximately HK$246,013,000 (2021:
HK$282,712,000), most of which were denominated
in either US dollars, Renminbi or Hong Kong dollars.

The interest-bearing borrowings of the Group as at
31 December 2022 were bank loans and loan from
non-controlling interests with an aggregate amount of
approximately HK$69,806,000 (2021:
HK$144,161,000). All of these borrowings were
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Euros (2021:
Hong Kong dollars and Euros) and which were
primarily subject to floating interest rates. The
borrowings with maturities falling due within one year,
in the second to fifth year with repayment on
demand clause and in the second to fifth year

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

without repayment on demand clause amounted to
HK$60,502,000, HK$8,333,000 and HK$971,000
respectively (2021: HK$36,000,000, HK$96,858,000
and HK$11,303,000 respectively).

As at 31 December 2022, the net gearing ratio (a
ratio of the sum of the total bank borrowings and
loan from non-controlling interests less restricted
bank balances (if any) and bank and cash balances
divided by the total equity) of the Group was not
applicable since the Group had net cash (restricted
bank balances (if any) and bank and cash balances
less total borrowings) of HK$176,207,000 (2021: net
cash of HK$138,551,000).

As at 31 December 2022, the net current assets of
the Group were approximately HK533,429,000 (2021:
HK$520,446,000), which consisted of current assets
of approximately HK$906,171,000 (2021:
HK$1,010,572,000) and current liabilities of
approximately HK$372,742,000 (2021:
HK$490,126,000), representing a current ratio of
approximately 2.4 (2021: 2.1).

EXPOSURE TO FOREIGN EXCHANGE
RISK

Most of the Group’s transactions were conducted in
US dollars, Hong Kong dollars or Renminbi. As such,
the Group is aware of the potential foreign currency
risk that may arise from the fluctuation of exchange
rates between US dollars, Renminbi and Hong Kong
dollars. Currently, the Group has not entered into any
financial instrument for hedging purposes. However,
the Group will closely monitor its overall foreign
exchange exposure and take appropriate measures
to mitigate the risks that the Group faces from
exchange rate fluctuations.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2022, the Group had no material
contingent liabilities.

CHARGE ON ASSETS
As at 31 December 2022, none of the assets of the
Group were pledged.
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS,

ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSAL

On 19 December 2022, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company (the “Purchaser”) entered
into the sale and purchase agreement with Mr. Lee
Yuen Fat (“Mr. Lee”) and Ms. Chan So Wah
(“Ms. Chan”) as vendors, pursuant to which the
Purchaser has agreed to acquire the entire issued
share capital of Bestgrand Enterprises Limited
(“Bestgrand”) at a consideration of HK$7,534,000
(“Acquisition”). Bestgrand is the sole legal and
beneficial owner of the properties of Room 403 and
404, Block A, Guanlan Garden, Golf Avenue,
Guanlan Town, Baoan District, Shenzhen, the PRC.

As vendors are Mr. Lee (being the chairman of the
Board, an executive director and controlling
shareholder of the Company) and Ms. Chan (being
the executive director of the Company), vendors are
connected persons of the Company and the
Acquisition constituted a connected transaction for
the Company. As one or more of the applicable
percentage ratios in respect of the Acquisition under
the aforesaid sale and purchase agreement exceeds
0.1% but is less than 5%, the Acquisition is subject
to reporting and announcement requirements but is
exempt from the circular and independent
Shareholders’ approval under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

Details of the above Acquisition are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 19 December
2022. As at the date of this report, the Acquisition
has completed.

Save for the above, during the Year, the Group did
not have any significant investments, acquisitions or
disposals.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had
approximately 3,750 full-time employees
(81 December 2021: 4,200). The Group attributes its
success to the hard work and dedication of all staff,
therefore, they are deemed to be the most valuable
assets of the Group. In order to attract and retain
high caliber staff, the Group provides a competitive
salary package, including retirement schemes,
medical benefits and bonuses. The Group’s
remuneration policy and structure are determined
based on market trends, the performance of
individual staff as well as the financial performance of
the Group. The Group has also adopted a share
option scheme and a share award scheme as
incentives and rewards for those qualifying staff who
have made contributions to the Group. The aforesaid
share award scheme was expired on 9 January
2023.

The Group provides regular training courses for
different levels of staff and holds various training
programs together with PRC institutes and external
training bodies. Apart from academic and technical
training, the Group also organises different kinds of
recreational activities, including New Year gathering,
various sports competitions and interest groups. The
aim is to promote interaction among staff, establish a
harmonious team spirit and promote a healthy
lifestyle.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESREREEAE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lee Yuen Fat, aged 67, founded the Group in 1980
and is the Chairman of the Group. Mr. Lee was appointed
as an Executive Director of the Company since 2 June
2007 and is a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. He is also a director of Precisefull Limited,
which is the controlling shareholder of the Company. Mr.
Lee is responsible for the formulation of the overall
business strategies of the Group. He has over 40 years of
experience in the die casting industry. Mr. Lee holds a
Master of Science Degree in Materials Engineering from the
Yanshan University in the PRC. Mr. Lee was conferred the
“China Foundry Lifetime Achievement Award” by the China
Foundry Association, an award of Honorary Fellowship and
Fellowship of Management and Business Administration by
the Professional Validation Council of Hong Kong Industries
and is the Vice Chairman of the Professional Validation
Council of Hong Kong Industries. Mr. Lee has been
appointed by the Foundry Industry Association,
Guangdong Province as an Expert of the Casting Industry
and is selected for its Expert Database. He has been
appointed by the Shenzhen Longgang District Municipal
People’s Government as an excellent expert of Longgang
District, Shenzhen and is the Professorate Senior Engineer
conferred by the Human Resources and Social Security
Department of Guangdong Province of China.

Mr. Lee was one of the founding members and was the
Chairman of the Hong Kong Diecasting Association (now
become the Hong Kong Foundry Association (the “HKFA”))
in 1989. He was elected as the first Chairman of the
HKFA and Hong Kong Federation of Innovative
Technologies and Manufacturing Industries (formerly known
as Federation of Hong Kong Machinery and Metal
Industries) in 2008 and 2011 respectively. Mr. Lee is
currently the Chairman of Hong Kong Federation of
Innovation Technologies and Manufacturing Industries, Vice
Chairman of the PRD Council of Federation of Hong Kong
Industries, Shenzhen Division, a member of the Fifth
Industry Training Advisory Committee of Manufacturing
Technology (Tooling, Metals & Plastics) of Hong Kong
Quialifications Framework and a member of Vocational
Training Council Manufacturing Technology Training Board.
Mr. Lee currently continues to be the Rotating Chairman of
Die Casting Branch of the China Foundry Association,
Executive Director of the China Foundry Association, the
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IREGTURS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Managing Vice Chairman of the Fifth General Committee of
the Guangdong Foundry Industry Association and the Vice
Director General of Foundry Branch of the Guangdong
Mechanical Engineering Association. Mr. Lee is also
currently Deputy Director of the Domestic Technical
Correspondence Working Group Expert of the International
Organization for Standardization Foundry Machinery
Technical Committee ISO/TC306, and a member of the
Light Alloy Industry Technology Innovative Alliance Expert
Committee of Guangdong Province. Mr. Lee is the
brother-in-law of Ms. Chan So Wah, the executive director
of the Company.

Mr. Wong Wing Chuen, aged 61, joined the Group in
1988 and was appointed as an Executive Director and Vice
Chairman of the Company on 2 June 2007 and 1 January
2017 respectively. He is a director of certain subsidiaries
of the Company. Mr. Wong is also currently the director of
manufacturing of the Group and is responsible for the
Group’s manufacturing activities. Mr. Wong has over 38
years of experience in die design and manufacturing and
the die casting industry. He is an Associate of the
Professional Validation Council of Hong Kong Industries.

Mr. Chu Weiman, aged 66, joined the Group in February
2021 and is currently the Chief Executive Officer of the
Group. He was appointed as an Executive Director, a
member of the renumeration committee and nomination
committee of the Company on 1 September 2021. He is
primarily responsible for the overall management and
supervision of the execution of the overall business
strategies of the Group. Mr. Chu holds a master’s degree
of business administration from the University of Southern
California, USA, a master’'s degree of science in
engineering from the University of California, Los Angeles,
USA and a bachelor’'s degree in power mechanical
engineering from National Tsing Hua University, Taiwan. He
is a licensed professional engineer of California, USA. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. Chu was an executive director
and the chief executive officer of trading division of
Leeport (Holdings) Limited (Stock code: 387), a company
listed on the main board of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange, from February 2015 to December 2020 and
from September 2016 to December 2020 respectively. Mr.
Chu has held various senior positions in multi-national
companies with operations in Hong Kong and mainland
China and worked as the branch director for Innovation

EENEAEEAE(E)

= F%%%ﬁ“%TE%E EEGRERIE

REMMTESERENEEER - FRARN
BEEBERFEARSERM RN E & 8150/

T%%lmﬁmﬁulﬁﬂi%ﬂzﬁ B RE
RERACEXERNAFHBEEREZERELE -
TREABARNBNITESREZELR LT ZRA -

BAKBRE 615 R NAN\NFEMAKRER -
WTHRR—_EZELFAAA=_ZT—+F—HA
—BEZERARAMITEEREIERF - BAXR
RAETHEBRARIZES - BAERKTEARE
EHERERBEARRE BUEER - EX4H
BEBFEARFEYENBBRLR  REE
ITXREXFTERNERL -

mﬁﬁﬁi 66 M -_E-—FE - AMAK
CHARNSETHEBH R T Z—F
jlﬂ HEZERRARNTES  HWNEE
EhRHVEEEKE - BHTEZEHEEAEENE
BEENEBREEERRBEONIT VLR
BXBEEMNASETIHEERELTSM - XM
FEEGTREZCHIRIEBETIZEMRASE
BV EEREYNIRBAEZTEM - FAER
MAER N M E 2 T2 - EDD)\$$
Elbwdy-i ?ﬂf‘ﬁi /DJUEA_‘EE _:qu )EJ
‘f’:ﬂ%‘Eﬁ%ﬁ’éﬁ?&ﬁﬁi’fﬁtﬁﬁ@@ﬂﬁ%(%
B)BRAR (BRERS : 387) W ITESRE
SEITHBE - IEEEELZHRE B A
N EEBNBER AR EETTR S RBA -

CECCEER ERERERERLF

21



22

Process and Automation Branch and branch director for
Manufacturing Productivity Branch of Hong Kong
Productivity Council during the years between 2000 and
2007. He is currently a general committee member of the
Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong.

Ms. Chan So Wah, aged 64, joined the Group in 1999
and was appointed as an Executive Director of the
Company on 1 April 2019. She is a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Chan is currently the
director of planning and management of the Group and is
primarily responsible for overseeing the Group’s business
development as well as planning and management. She
has over 35 years of experience in sales, marketing and
management. She holds a master’s degree in business
administration obtained through distance learning education
from the Centenary College in New Jersey, USA and she
is a Fellow of the Professional Validation Council of Hong
Kong Industries (Die Casting and Foundry Industry). Ms.
Chan was awarded Asian Outstanding Leadership Award
for Women in September 2019 by Asian College of
Knowledge Management. She is the sister-in-law of Mr.
Lee Yuen Fat, the Chairman and the Executive Director of
the Company.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Professor Sun Kai Lit Cliff BBs, vp, aged 69, was
appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company on 2 June 2007. He is the chairman of the
remuneration committee as well as the nomination
committee of the Company and a member of the audit
committee of the Company. Professor Sun has over 40
years of experience in the household products
manufacturing industry. Professor Sun was appointed by
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region Government
(the “HKSAR Government”) as Justice of the Peace in July
2003 and was awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star by the
HKSAR Government in July 2006. He had been a member
of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference
of Shenzhen, Ningbo and Zhejiang Committee for over 20
years. He is currently the Honorary President of the
Federation of Hong Kong Industries, Honorary Chairman of
The Hong Kong Exporters’ Association, Honorary Chairman
of the Hong Kong Q Mark Council, the Honorary President
of the Hong Kong Plastics Manufacturers Association, the
Supervising President of Guangdong Overseas Chinese
Enterprises Association and an Adjunct Professor of the
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IREGTURS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

City University of Hong Kong. Professor Sun is currently an
independent non-executive director of Wisdom Education
International Holdings Company Limited (Stock code:
6068), which is listed on the main board of the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange.

Ir Dr. Lo Wai Kwok GBs, MH, Jr, aged 70, was appointed
as an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
on 2 June 2007. He is the member of the audit
committee, nomination committee and remuneration
committee of the Company. Ir Dr. Lo holds a doctoral
degree in engineering, master’s degrees in engineering and
in business administration respectively and a bachelor’'s
degree in engineering. He is a Chartered Engineer and
Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Engineers. Ir Dr. Lo
was awarded the “Young Industrial Awards of Hong Kong”
and the “Ten Outstanding Young Persons Selection” in
1992, the Medal of Honour of the HKSAR Government in
July 2001, and was appointed as Justice of the Peace by
the HKSAR Government in July 2004. Ir Dr. Lo was also
awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star, the Silver Bauhinia Star
and the Gold Bauhinia Star in July 2009, July 2015 and
July 2021 by the HKSAR Government respectively. Ir Dr.
Lo is currently a member of the Legislative Council of
Hong Kong, representing the Engineering functional
constituency. He has over 40 years of experience in the
electronic and power supply industry and is an Adjunct
Professor of the City University of Hong Kong. Ir Dr. Lo
was an independent non-executive director of China United
Venture Investment Limited (formerly known as Glory Mark
Hi-Tech (Holdings) Limited and its change of company
name took effect from 11 April 2022) (Stock code: 8159)
from November 2016 to June 2020, a company listed on
the GEM board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

Mr. Andrew Look, aged 58, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company on 16
December 2009. He is the member of the audit
committee, nomination committee and remuneration
committee of the Company. Mr. Look holds a bachelor’s
degree in commerce from the University of Toronto,
Canada and has over 30 years of experience in the equity
investment analysis of Hong Kong and China stock
markets. From 2000 to 2008, Mr. Look served in Union
Bank of Switzerland (“UBS”) as the head of Hong Kong
research, strategy and product. He was rated as the best
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Hong Kong strategist and best analyst by the Asiamoney
magazine, a leading monthly financial and capital markets
publication for corporate and finance readers and
investors, in 2001, 2002, 2003, 2005, 2006 and 2007. Mr.
Look is currently an independent non-executive director of
Hung Fook Tong Group Holdings Limited (Stock code:
1446), CITIC Resources Holdings Limited (Stock code:
1205), EC Healthcare (Stock code: 2138) and L.K.
Technology Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 558), all of
which are listed on the main board of the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange.

Mr. Kong Kai Chuen, Frankie (formerly known as Kong
To Yeung, Frankie), aged 59, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company on 11
May 2015. He is the chairman of the audit committee of
the Company and the member of the nomination
committee and remuneration committee of the Company.
Mr. Kong is an associate member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow
member of the Chartered Association of Certified
Accountants (the United Kingdom). He has accumulated
approximately 30 years’ experience in accounting, auditing,
corporate finance and project administration mostly from
Hong Kong listed companies and multinational business
conglomerates. Mr. Kong is currently a consultant of a
company providing company secretarial, risk management
and financial advisory services and is an independent non-
executive director of Auto lItalia Holdings Limited (Stock
code: 720), a company listed on the main board of the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

Save as disclosed, there is no other information of the
Directors which has to be disclosed pursuant to Rule
13.51(2) of the Listing Rules.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ir Chan Sin Wing, aged 50, joined the Group in 2004 and
is the director of enterprise development of the Group. He
is primarily responsible for overseeing the research and
development as well as new business development of the
Group. Mr. Chan holds a master’s degree in industrial
engineering and industrial management and a bachelor
degree in engineering from the University of Hong Kong.
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IREGTURS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

He is currently a Fellow and the Chairman of the
Manufacturing, Industrial and Systems Division of the Hong
Kong Institution of Engineers. He is also the Professorate
Senior Engineer conferred by the Human Resources and
Social Security Department of Guangdong Province of
China. Prior to joining the Group, he worked as a senior
consultant of the Hong Kong Productivity Council for over
nine years.

Mr. Seto Sai Cheong Paul, aged 61, joined the Group in
August 2022 and is currently the chief financial officer of
the Company. Mr. Seto is a fellow of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, and a
fellow of The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong (“TIHK”). Mr.
Seto is also a chartered tax adviser of TIHK. He holds a
professional diploma in accountancy from Hong Kong
Polytechnic (now known as Hong Kong Polytechnic
University). Mr. Seto has over 30 years of experience in
finance, accounting and taxation, and has held senior
management positions in multi-national corporations and
several main board listed companies in Hong Kong. Prior
to joining the Company, Mr. Seto was (i) the chief financial
officer of Perennial International Limited (stock code:725)
from September 2018 to November 2021, and (i) the
director of accounting of China Healthwise Holdings
Limited (formerly known as Lung Cheong International
Holdings Limited and Haier Healthwise Holdings Limited
respectively) (stock code:348) from December 2000 to
August 2008, all of which are listed on the main board of
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

Mr. Chan Man Fu, aged 51, joined the Group in 2016 and
is currently the financial controller of the Company. Prior to
joining the Company, Mr. Chan has held senior financial
positions in different listed companies in Hong Kong and
has over 25 years of experience in the areas of audit,
finance and treasury management. He holds a master’'s
degree in business administration from the Hong Kong
Baptist University and is a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

EEEHS

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) have
the pleasure in submitting its report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of Ka Shui
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and
sale of zinc, magnesium and aluminium alloy and plastic
products and components, which are mainly sold to
customers engaging in the household products, 3C
(communication, computer and consumer electronics)
products, automotive parts and precision components. The
principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 24
to the financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Group, together with a
description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing by
the Company, as well as indication of likely future
developments in the business of the Group are set out in
the sections “Business Review” on pages 10 to 12,
“Principal Risks and Uncertainties facing the Company” on
pages 63 to 64 and “Prospects” on pages 12 to 16 of
this report respectively. An analysis using financial key
performance indicators is set out in the sections “Segment
Information” on pages 235 to 239 and “Five-Year Financial
Summary” on page 304 in this report.

As an innovative high-tech enterprise, the Group is
committed to offering one-stop solutions and professional
services to meet the various needs of our customers, while
building an environmentally-friendly corporation that pays
close attention to conserving natural resources. The
management will review the Group’s environmental
practices from time to time and will consider implementing
further ecology friendly measures and practices in the
operation to enhance environmental protection and
sustainability.

During the year, as far as the Board is aware, there was
no material non-compliance with applicable laws and
regulations by the Group that has a significant impact on
the Group’s business and operations.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)

The Board recognises that our employees are invaluable
assets contributing to the Group’s future success. The
Group provides competitive remuneration packages to
attract, motivate and retain our employees. The Board also
regularly reviews the remuneration packages of our
employees and makes necessary adjustments to bring
them in-line with the prevailing market practices. The Board
also recognises that maintaining good relationships with our
customers and suppliers is vital to achieve the Group’s
long-term goals.

[t is the Group’s environment policy to (i) observe all
applicable national and local laws and regulations strictly;
(i) establish, implement and strengthen our environmental
management system, as well as setting of goals for
environment achievements; (iiij progressively introduce
cleaner production and striving to conserve resource
consumption and reduce waste or effluent discharges; (iv)
provide training and education to promote the idea of
sustainable development across our supply chain; and (v)
provide means for relevant interested parties and the
public to get access to our environmental performance.

The Board considers that the Group has conducted its
operations in accordance with the environmental policy in
all material respects during the year ended 31 December
2022. Details of the environmental performance of the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2022 are set
out in the section “Environmental, Social and Governance
Report” on pages 69 to 138.

The Group’s business has complied with the relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the
Group as a whole.

The Group aims at conducting business activities in
accordance with the highest standards of business ethics
and integrating environmentally and socially responsible
management practices across the entire organization. The
approaches adopted by our Group mainly focus on four
key areas. Within each of these four areas, we have
solicited opinions from our stakeholders and have
identified 27 corporate social responsibility-related topics
and have adopted numerous specific targeted policies and
goals. Detailed discussions on the environmental policies
and performance, compliance with the relevant local laws
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and regulations that have a significant impact on the
Group and the account of the key relationships of the
Group with employees, customers and suppliers are set
out in the section headed “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” on pages 69 to 138 of this report.

EMOLUMENT POLICY AND RETIREMENT
BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group’s emolument policy, including salaries and
bonuses, is in line with the local practices where the
Company and its subsidiaries operate. The Group has also
put in place a share option scheme and share award
scheme as incentive and reward for those qualifying staff
who have made contribution to the Group. The aforesaid
share award scheme was expired on 9 January 2023. The
Remuneration Committee of the Company makes
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure for the remuneration of directors and senior
management and the grant of share options. It also
reviews and determines the terms of remuneration
packages, the award of bonuses and other compensation
payable to directors and senior management of the Group,
having regard to the Group’s financial performance,
individual performance and comparable market statistics.

The Group has joined a mandatory provident fund scheme
(“MPF Scheme”) for all employees (including the executive
directors of the Company) in Hong Kong. The MPF
Scheme is registered with the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Authority under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance. Under the MPF Scheme, the
employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the MPF Scheme at rates specified in the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The employees of the
Company’s subsidiaries established in the PRC are
members of a state-managed retirement scheme operated
by the PRC government. These subsidiaries are required to
contribute certain percentage of payroll costs to the
retirement benefit scheme. No forfeited contribution is
available to reduce the contribution payable under the
above schemes.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for the year are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 148.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)

INTERIM AND FINAL DIVIDEND

An interim dividend of HKO.3 cent was declared and paid
during the vyear. The Board had recommended the
payment of a final dividend of HK2.0 cents per share for
the year ended 31 December 2022 to the shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members of the
Company on Monday, 12 June 2023. Subject to the
approval of the shareholders of the Company at the
forthcoming annual general meeting to be held on
Tuesday, 30 May 2023, the final dividend will be paid on
or about Monday, 19 June 2023.

The register of members of the Company will be closed
from Wednesday, 24 May 2023 to Tuesday, 30 May
2023, both days inclusive, during which no transfer of
shares will be registered. In order to be eligible to attend
and vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company, all share transfer documents accompanied by
the relevant share certificates and transfer forms must be
lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar and
transfer office in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited, at 17M Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for
registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 23 May
2023.

The register of members will be closed from Wednesday,
7 June 2023 to Monday, 12 June 2023, both days
inclusive, during which no transfer of shares will be
registered. In order to qualify for the final dividend, all
share transfer documents accompanied by the relevant
share certificates and transfer forms must be lodged with
the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in
Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, at 17M Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration not later
than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 6 June 2023.

IMPORTANT EVENTS AFFECTING THE
GROUP SINCE THE END OF THE YEAR

No significant events affecting the Group that require
additional disclosures or adjustments occurred after the
financial year ended 31 December 2022.

RESERVES
Movements in reserves during the year are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 152.
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As at 31 December 2022, the Company’s reserve available
for distribution amounted to approximately
HK$211,233,000 (2021: HK$209,117,000).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the year are set out in note 19 to the
consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the percentage of the Group’s major
customers and suppliers attributable to the Group’s total
sales and total purchases was as follows:

Sales

—  the largest customer 31.7%
—  five largest customers combined 61.1%
Purchase

—  the largest supplier 3.82%
—  five largest suppliers combined 18.27%

None of the directors, their close associates or any
shareholders (which to the knowledge of the directors
owns more than 5% of the number of issued shares of the
Company) had an interest in the Group’s five largest
customers and suppliers.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results of the Group for the past five
financial years ended 31 December 2022 and assets and
liabilities of the Group as at 31 December 2018, 2019,
2020, 2021 and 2022 are set out on page 304.

SHARE CAPITAL
There was no movement in the Company’s issued share
capital during the year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share option scheme and share award
scheme described below, the Group has not entered into
any equity-linked agreements during the year.
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DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other
donations amounting to approximately HK$154,000 (2021:
HK$322,000).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association and the Companies Act
of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to the shareholders of the Company by reason of
their holding of the Company’s securities.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY
During the year, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities of the Company.

THE BOARD
The directors of the Company during the year and up to
the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lee Yuen Fat (“Mr. Lee”) (Chairman)
Mr. Wong Wing Chuen (Vice Chairman)
Mr. Chu Weiman (Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Chan So Wah

Independent non-executive directors
Professor Sun Kai Lit, Cliff B8s, uP
Ir Dr. Lo Wai Kwok GBS, MH, JP
Mr. Andrew Look
Mr. Kong Kai Chuen, Frankie
(formerly known as Kong To Yeung, Frankie)

The biographical details of the directors are set out on
pages 20 to 24 of this report.

During the year under review, no director resigned from
his/her office or refused to stand for re-election to his/her
office due to reasons relating to the affairs of the
Company.
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In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association,
Mr. Lee, Professor Sun Kai Lit, Cliff and Ir. Dr. Lo Wai
Kwok will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the
directors is currently in force and was in force throughout
the financial year.

The Company has taken out and maintained directors’
liability insurance throughout the year, which provides
appropriate cover for the directors of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting do not have any
service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER’S INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save for the connected transaction as set out in the
section “Connected Transaction And Related Party
Transactions” on pages 46 to 47 of this report, there were
no transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance
(inclusive of provision of services to the Company or any of
its subsidiaries), which is significant in relation to the
Company’s business, to which the Company, its holding
company, any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was
a party and in which a director (including entity connected
with a director) and the controlling shareholder of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted during or at the end of the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 13.21 OF
THE LISTING RULES

In accordance with the requirements under Rule 13.21 of
the Listing Rules, the Board reported the following details
of loan facilities which exist at any time during the year
ended 31 December 2022 and up to the date of this
report and include covenants requiring specific
performance obligations of the controlling shareholder of
the Company.

On 21 December 2018, Ka Shui Manufactory Co., Limited
(the “Borrower”), the indirect wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company, entered into a facility agreement with a
bank, under which a term loan facility for an aggregate
amount of up to HK$100 milion was extended to the
Borrower (the “2018 Facility Agreement”). Any draw-down
of the loan under the said facility would be repayable by
eight quarterly instalments commencing the 15th month
after its own draw-down date. The Borrower may
drawdown the 2018 Facility Agreement for a period of 18
months from the date of the 2018 Facility Agreement. As
at 31 December 2022, the loan under the said facility had
been drawn down in full, with the last drawn down date
on 8 June 2020. The 2018 Facility Agreement contains a
specific performance obligation that Mr. Lee, a controlling
shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) and an
executive director of the Company, shall at all times
beneficially own (whether directly or indirectly) not less
than 50% of the shareholding and equity interest in the
Borrower and the Company and maintain management
control over both the Borrower and the Company. A
breach of the aforesaid specific performance obligation will
constitute an event of default under the 2018 Facility
Agreement. If an event of default under the 2018 Facility
Agreement occurs and is not remedied in accordance with
the terms of the 2018 Facility Agreement, the bank may
(among other things) cancel its further commitments under
the 2018 Facility Agreement, and/or declare that all or part
of the loans together with accrued interests under the
2018 Facility Agreement would become immediately due
and payable.
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Save as disclosed above, the directors are not aware of
any circumstances which would give rise to a disclosure
obligation pursuant to the requirements under Rule 13.18
of the Listing Rules as at 31 December 2022 and as at
the date of this report.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the directors and the top five
highest paid individuals of the Group are set out in notes
16(a) and 15(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions
of the directors and chief executives of the Company in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFQ”)) which were required to be notified
to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 to
9 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions in which they are taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO); or were required,
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein; or were required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022
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Listed Companies (the “Model Code”) in the Rules
Governing the Listing on Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”) were as follows:

(A) Long and Short Positions in the Shares of (A) FATBRGBZEIERKE
the Company

Approximate
percentage of
issued voting
shares in the

Company
EEATE BT
RRER

L EOI=R 7 4

Number of ordinary
class of shares

Capacity

FALER
5 izt 8 E

Executive Directors

WITES
Mr. Lee Interest in controlled 440,000,000 49.23%
company!” (long position &)
FHAE ZPEH A AR
Founder of a discretionary 127,980,000 14.32%
trust who can influence (long position &)
how the trustee exercise
his discretion®
AR EZFEANEITER
BIEENEREETZ
VNG
Mr. Wong Wing Chuen Beneficial owner 11,050,000 1.24%
(long position #F&)
BEokEEE ERBAA
Ms. Chan So Wah Beneficial owner 668,000 0.07%
(long position #F &)
PREFEL L+ BEHEEAA
Independent Non-Executive
Directors
BIUFPITES
Mr. Andrew Look Beneficial owner 8,800,000 0.98%
(long position ¥ &)
B SR ST A& BEmEAA
Ir Dr. Lo Wai Kwok GBs, mH, JP Beneficial owner 1,000,000 0.11%

EEEE 128 0 GBS, MH, JP

BEmEEAA

(long position #F &)
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Notes: HaE -

7= 5 £ #5 B Precisefull Limited ([ Precisefull]) &
BEETRA -Al  ThERBERES
Precisefull {945 #l M #Ess - SR LM R AES
Precisefull R RN A RIFTi5 A 2 i ©

1. Mr. Lee holds the entire issued share capital of Precisefull 1.
Limited (“Precisefull”). As such, Mr. Lee is deemed to have a
controlling interest in Precisefull and is therefore deemed to
be interested in the interests of Precisefull in the Company.

2. The 127,980,000 shares, in which 77,980,000 shares and 2.
50,000,000 shares are held by Beautiful Crystal
Development Limited (“Beautiful Crystal”) and Beautiful Beautiful Colour Assets Limited ([Beautiful
Colour Assets Limited (“Beautiful Colour”) respectively (both Colour ) # 77,980,000 50,000,000 f& A%
companies are wholly-owned by YF Lee Family Trust). YF % L EATIHYF Lee Family Trust2 &% A -
Lee Family Trust is a discretionary trust set up by Mr. Lee YF Lee Family Trust /Yl ZSLAEERETETA
as settlor and UBS TC (Jersey) Limited (“UBS TC”) as N UBS TC (Jersey) Limited ([UBS TCJ) tE &%
trustee on 20 February 2014. The discretionary objects are AARZZE-—ME-AZ+AKIZ2RET
family members of Mr. Lee. Mr. Lee is the settlor of YF Lee HIZHHRATREZRKEKE - TREHRA
Family Trust and is deemed to be interested in the YF Lee Family Trust Z{55E LA @ REFESH &

#%127,980,000% f% {7 9 5l Beautiful Crystal
Development  Limited ([ Beautiful Crystall) &

127,980,000 shares held by Beautiful Crystal and Beautiful HIE 0 - 1% % R A M Beautiful Crystal &
Colour under the SFO. Beautlful ColourfiT# 5 2 127,980,0000% & 15
B iR -
(B) Long position in underlying Shares of the (B) MRAEATHFAKRKBIFE — BV
Company — physically settled unlisted FEEHBRASGTETR

equity derivatives

Number of

Approximate

underlying ordinary
class of shares in
respect of the share

percentage of
issued voting
shares in the

Capacity options granted (et Company
CIRHERER HXATEHET
i R 14 48 A 3 38 45 Rl RRER
4% % 15 8 B e BsE Rt
Mr. Lee Beneficial owner 2,000,000 0.22%
(long position)
TEAE E=HEEA (7 2)
Mr. Wong Wing Chuen Beneficial owner 2,000,000 0.22%
(long position)
EoKEEE E=HEEA (7 2)
Ms. Chan So Wah Beneficial owner 2,000,000 0.22%
(long position)
fR=FEL+ E=HEEA (7 E)
Note: Details of the above share options granted by the Company BiaF - ERAARERLOEREFERNARE B
are set out in the section headed “Share Option Scheme” in ARIERT &I ] —& -
this report.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022,
none of the directors and chief executives of the
Company had any interests or short positions in
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 to 9 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests and short positions in
which they are taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO); or were required, pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein; or were required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange, pursuant to
the Model Code in the Listing Rules. In addition,
save as disclosed above, at no time during the year
ended 31 December 2022 was the Company or any
of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to
enable the directors of the Company or any of their
spouses or children under the age of 18 to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company or any other body
corporate.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND
OTHERS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND
ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2022, the following persons (being
substantial shareholders and other persons), other than the
directors or chief executives of the Company, who had
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 to 5 of
Part XV of the SFO or, who were, directly or indirectly,
interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class
of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances
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at general meetings of the Company, or which were
required, pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein, were as follows:

Long Positions in the Shares

Capacity

St

Substantial shareholders

EERE
Precisefull Beneficial owner
EmEAAD
UBS TC Trustee®
FHAC
Other persons
Hi AL
Beautiful Crystal Beneficial owner®
EmEA A
Beautiful Colour Beneficial owner®
EmEA A
Notes:
1. Mr. Lee holds the entire issued share capital of Precisefull. As such,

Mr. Lee is deemed to have a controlling interest in Precisefull and is
therefore deemed to be interested in the interests of Precisefull in
the Company.

2. 77,980,000 shares and 50,000,000 shares are held by Beautiful
Crystal and Beautiful Colour respectively (both companies are wholly
owned by YF Lee Family Trust). The YF Lee Family Trust is a
discretionary trust set up by Mr. Lee as settlor and UBS TC as
trustee on 20 February 2014.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year, the
directors and the chief executive of the Company were
aware of any other persons (other than the directors or
chief executives of the Company) who had interests or
short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
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Approximate
percentage of
issued voting
shares in the

Company
EERATF
EEITRRAER
BHAERL

Number of
ordinary class
of shares
(Long position)

Tl EE
(52)

440,000,000 49.23%
127,980,000 14.32%
77,980,000 8.73%
50,000,000 5.59%
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Precisefull FT#5 A B 7R A Bl 25 ©
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Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 to 5 of Part
XV of the SFO, or, who were, directly or indirectly,
interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class
of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances
at general meetings of the Company, or which were
required, pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) was
adopted by ordinary resolution of shareholders of the
Company at the annual general meeting of the Company
held on 19 May 2017.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide
incentives and rewards to selected eligible persons for their
contributions to the Group. The Share Option Scheme will
remain valid until 18 May 2027 and the options granted to
a grantee will be accepted through payment of HK$10 as
consideration for acceptance.

The participants of the Share Option Scheme may include
directors, employees, consultants, professionals,
customers, suppliers, agents, partners, advisors and
contractors of the Group or a company in which the
Group holds an interest or a subsidiary of such company.

An option shall be deemed to have been granted and
accepted, when the Company, within 30 days from the
date on which an option is offered to an eligible
participant, receives, among others, a non-refundable
payment of HK$10 (or such other sum in any currency as
the Board may determine) as consideration for the grant.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon the exercise of all options to be granted under the
Share Option Scheme and under any other share option
scheme(s) adopted by the Company must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the shares in issue as at the date of
approval of the Share Option Scheme. In addition, the
maximum number of shares which may be issued upon the
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other
schemes involving the issue or grant of share options by
the Company must not, in aggregate, exceed 30% of the
shares in issue from time to time.
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The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options already granted or to be granted to
each participant under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option scheme(s) of the Company (including
exercised and outstanding share options) in any 12-month
period up to and including the date of such grant should
not exceed 1% aggregate of the shares in issue as at the
date of such grant. Any grant of further options above this
1% limit shall be subject to approval of the shareholders of
the Company at general meetings, with such participant
and his associates abstaining from voting.

The period within which the options must be exercised will
be specified by the Board at the time of the offer of grant,
and must expire no later than 10 years from the date of
grant. There is no general requirement on the minimum
period for which an option must be held or the
performance targets which must be achieved before an
option can be exercised under the terms of the Share
Option Scheme.

The subscription price for any share under the Share
Option Scheme will be a price determined by the Board
and will be not less than the highest of:

(i) the closing price of a share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of
grant of the relevant option, which must be a
business day;

(i) an amount equivalent to the average closing price of
a share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant of the
relevant option; and

(i) the nominal value of a share on the date of the grant.

The total number of ordinary shares available for issue
under the Share Option Scheme as of the effective date of
the scheme was 89,376,140, representing 10.0% of the
issued share capital of 893,761,400 Shares as at the date
of this report.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)

On 31 October 2022, an aggregate of 40,210,000 share
options of the Company was granted under the Share
Option Scheme to subscribe for up to an aggregate of
40,210,000 ordinary shares, representing approximately
4.50% of the existing issued share capital of the
Company.

As at 1 January 2022 and 31 December 2022, the
number of options available for grant under the currently
in-place scheme mandate for the Share Option Scheme
was 89,376,140 options and 49,166,140 options,
respectively, representing approximately 10.0% and 5.5%
of the total issued share capital of the Company as at the
date of this report.

As at 1 January 2022 and 31 December 2022, the total
number of ordinary shares available for issue (less those
exercised, cancelled and lapsed) under the Share Option
Scheme was 89,376,140 and 89,376,140, representing
10.0% and 10.0% of the issued share capital of
893,761,400 Shares as at the date of this report
respectively.

Details of the share options granted to () each of the
Directors, chief executive or substantial shareholders of the
Company, or their respective associates, (i) each related
entity participant or service provider with options granted
and to be granted in any 12-month period exceeding
0.1% of the ordinary shares in issue; and (i) other
employee participants, related entity participants and
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service providers by category, and remained outstanding BomEMETLEE - HEAE R HEE MRS
as at 31 December 2022 under the Share Option Scheme HERBEEMERITECEBREZFBOT

are as follows:

Outstanding Outstanding
as at Granted Lapsed  Cancelled  Exercised as at
1 January during the  during the  during the  during the 31 December
Date of Grant Exercise Price  Exercise period 2022 year year year

k- Sonfent -

-A-8 RER
RHBH i fTieM HETE  FARE  FARY Bi#  FRTE i RATE
HK$
&

(A) Directors, chief executive or substantial shareholders of the Company (and their respective associates)

EZ TRARIIERF (RESEENHRA)

Directors

3

Mr. Lee Yuen Fat 31 October 2022 0.39 (Note 1) 31 October 2023 to - 2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000
31 October 2027 (Note 2)

TRERE ZEZZETAST-A 0 039(MEH1)  ZEZ=FTA=T-H
BEZE-tF+A=1-H
(M2)

Mr. Wong Wing Chuen 31 October 2022 0.39 (Note 1) 31 October 2023 to 31 — 2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000
QOctober 2027 (Note 2)

EkEE ZTZCFTAZT-A 0 039(ME) ZFZ=FTA=T-AR
BECRCLETAST-H
(5x2)

Ms. Chan So Wah 31 October 2022 0.39 (Note 1) 31 October 2023 to 31 — 2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000
QOctober 2027 (Note 2)

RzERL ZECZEHAST-8 0 0301 ZEZZETAST-H
FTCHETAZT-H
(MizE2)

Directors’ associate

ESZHEA

Mr. Li Yuen Wah 31 October 2022 0.39 (Note 1) 31 October 2023 to 31 - 600,000 - - - 600,000
October 2027 (Note 2)

TEERE ZZZZEFAZT-B 030(ftit) ZFZZE+AZ=+-H
B tETAZT-H
(Mizk2)
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EEEWmE(E)

Outstanding
as at Granted Lapsed
1 January  during the  during the
Date of Grant Exercise Price  Exercise period 2022 year year
k- et
-A-8
RHinH fTE Ty BRITE  FARE AKX
HK$
EL

(B) Each related entity participant or service provider with options granted and to be granted in any 12-month period exceeding 0.1% of the

ERA12ERREERFRRRFRAEETLER 0.1% NERENZANERLREIRBHES

Outstanding

Cancelled  Exercised as at

during the  during the 31 December
year year

RERM +ZR=+
Bt FATR i AT

ordinary shares in issue

Mr. Keung Wing Ching 31 October 2022 0.39 (Note 1) 31 October 2023 to 31 - 2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000
QOctober 2027 (Note 2)
FKERE ZEZZEFAZT-B 0%0(fitit) ZEZZETAZT-H
ECRCLETAST-H
(WizE2)
Mr. Au Yeung Kai Chor 31 October 2022 0.39 (Note 1) 31 October 2023 to 31 - 2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000
QOctober 2027 (Note 2)
EBAEE ZECCEHAST-8 0 03T ZEZZETAST-RB
[l o S I =
(Bizk2)
(C) Other service providers
H AR5 L RERS
Other service providers 31 October 2022 0.39 (Note 1) 31 October 2023 to 31 - 1,800,000 - - - 1,800,000
QOctober 2027 (Note 2) (Note 3) (Note 3)
bR ER ZTZZFTAZT-A 0 039(ME) ZZZ=FfTA=1-RH (GE)) (Mizk3)
2R tETA=T-H
(M3E2)
(D) Employee participants
ET2HE
Employee participants 31 October 2022 0.39 (Note 1) 31 October 2023 to 31 - 27,810,000 - - - 27,810,000
QOctober 2027 (Note 2)
BI4H% ZECETAZT-B 0%9(fitit) ZEZZETAZT-H
ECRCLETAST-H
(WizE2)
Total &% 0 40,210,000 0 0 0 40,210,000
Notes: Hiat -
1. The closing price immediately before the date of grant (ie. 31 1. SERHYEBEI —E-—F+A=+—R)Frkm
October 2022) was HK$0.385. {8 40.385/8 T °
2. All options granted are vested in two tranches within a period of two 2. FrE B 0 BE AR 55 8 B R 1250% K 50% Lt 7 /9 B 5%
years in proportions of 50% and 50% of the share options granted, HERERME R WIS - B150% M B 5 i ik
i.e. 50% of the share options granted shall vest on the st EARLBESMNE —ERF (W2 _=F+A=+—
anniversary of the grant (i.e. 31 October 2023) and the remaining H)RE - ek T50%r C 5 H B AR e A 1% 1 B B/
50% of the share options granted shall vest on the 2nd anniversary FEARAF (B —ZE-—mOF+A=F+—HB)BE-

of the grant (i.e. 31 October 2024).

CECCEER ERERERERLF
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ESEHE (A

3. It refers to the aggregate options granted to other service providers
and remained outstanding as at 31 December 2022, without taking
in account 2,000,000 and 2,000,000 options granted to service
providers, Mr. Keung Wing Ching and Mr. Au Yeung Kai Chor,

respectively, as separately disclosed under “(B) Each related entity
participant or service provider with options granted and to be
granted in any 12-month period exceeding 0.1% of the ordinary
shares in issue” in the table above.

4. There was no performance target for all options granted on 31
October 2022.

5. Since there was no exercise of options during the year ended 31
December 2022, therefore this report is not required to disclose the
weighted average closing prices of the Shares immediately before
the dates on which the options were exercised during the year.

The share options granted are recognised in the financial
statements. The information on measurement of the fair
value of share options is set out in note 39(a) to the
financial statements.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On 10 January 2013 (the “Adoption Date”), the Board
adopted a share award scheme (the “Share Award
Scheme”) under which the ordinary shares of the Company
(the “Awarded Shares”) may be awarded to selected
persons to recognise the contributions by certain
employees and persons to the Group and to provide them
with incentives in order to retain them for the continual
operation and development of the Group and to attract
suitable personnel for further development of the Group.
The Share Award Scheme was valid and effective for a
term of ten years commencing on the Adoption Date until
9 January 2023.

The participants of the Share Award Scheme included
executives, officers, employees, directors of the Company
or any of its subsidiary, any business or joint venture
partner, investor, consultant, adviser or agent of any
member of the Group.

The Share Award Scheme shall be subject to the
administration of the Administration Committee in
accordance with the rules of the Share Award Scheme
and the terms of the trust deed.
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Pursuant to the Share Award Scheme, the Board shall
select the eligible persons for participation in the Share
Award Scheme and determine the number of shares to be
awarded. Shares shall be acquired by an independent
trustee at the cost of the Company or shares will be
allotted to the independent trustee under the general
mandate granted or to be granted by the shareholders of
the Company at general meetings from time to time and
be held in trust for the awarded persons until the end of
each vesting period. Vested shares shall be transferred at
no cost to the awarded persons. No money shall be
payable on the Awarded Shares granted under the Share
Award Scheme.

Where any Awarded Shares are proposed to be offered to
a connected person of the Company (as defined under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules), such offer of Awarded
Shares has to be first approved by the independent
non-executive directors of the Company and the Company
shall comply with the applicable requirements of Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules in respect of such offer (including
but not limited to the obtaining of independent
Shareholders’ approval if necessary).

Based on the 890,435,400 Shares in issue as at the
Adoption Date, the maximum number of Awarded Shares
under the Share Award Scheme would be 44,521,770
shares, representing approximately 4.98% of the issued
share capital of the Company as at 31 December 2022
and as at the date of this report, and the maximum
number of shares which may be awarded to an awarded
person under the Share Award Scheme would be
8,904,354 shares.

Any awarded shares and the related income thereof which
are referable to a selected person shall vest in that
selected person in accordance with the timetable and
conditions as imposed by the Board at its absolute
discretion.

Since the Adoption Date and up to 31 December 2022
(the “Relevant Period”), only 210,000 award has been
granted during the year ended 31 December 2014, all of
which have been vested, and as a result there was no
unvested award as at 1 January 2022 and up to 31
December 2022.

EEEHE(A)

RBR D ZBTE  EFERIRAERALS
B SRRt 8 WEE T A RRE R 2 BB -
B BRBLZEABA  KABARRB N
B BIRIBRIRAE LA AR B BRI
TEHETO—REESETHELZEA - B
SROAREEBMALIRE EEERBHTHE
- BEEOHEEERTRERAL - REK
0 B2 EY T 8 By BB A 10 B 7 ST (T RIR0R »

HERARR ZBEAL (EER EMRANE14A
B)RTEMBRED  ZETEBRD 2EZ
AELERARNRBBLIFRTESIE - BART]
BREERET ETRUF VAT ZERRE
(BREETRNER2RIUSBIBRRLLAE) -

RE R4 B BAT 2£17890,435,400 I AL D51 & -
o REFTEAIRL 2 HEROEE LRA
44,521,770 ((h A RRIR T ZZF +=
A=+ —HERARE BB 71 4.98%) &
IR tr SEENET I A SRE) T B R EREA T 2 RDE
B R A8,904,354 i 1p -

EAAT AR R L AT T8 E A T RARRUMA
EIRBEF S 2 EBIBIRTE N ER LGRS
RZEEAL -

MR RAEEEEE -+ -_A=+—H
(IEEHBME])  ERE8EE_F—NF+ = A
—+—HIEFERE210,0001E 22 E) - 1A H£E)
BEFE At RZT_—F—HF—AkEZE
CE I CF+ AT —HUEFETERKRES
K52 o
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EEEHE(HE)

For the year ended 31 December 2022, no Awarded
Share was granted, vested, lapsed or cancelled pursuant
to the Share Award Scheme.

As at 1 January 2022 and 31 December 2022,
44,311,770 ordinary shares remains available for future
grants of the awards, representing approximately 5.0% of
the total issued share capital of the Company as at the
date of this report.

The number of shares that may be issued in respect of
options and awards granted under the Share Option
Scheme and the Share Award Scheme during the Year
divided by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue for the Year is 0.045.

The Share Award Scheme expired on 9 January 2023.

COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the directors of the Company had any interest in
any business, which competes or is likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries during the year under review. Each of Mr. Lee
and Precisefull (the controlling shareholders (within the
meaning of the Listing Rules) of the Company) has
provided a written confirmation, which has been reviewed
and confirmed by the independent non-executive directors
of the Company, confirming that they have complied with
the terms of a Deed of Non-competition entered into
between them and the Company for the year ended
31 December 2022.

PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, the Company has maintained
the prescribed public float required under the Listing Rules,
based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION AND RELATED
PARTY TRANSACTIONS

On 19 December 2022, Good Hero Development Limited
(EEZR AR A F]), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company (the “Purchaser”) entered into the sale and
purchase agreement with Mr. Lee Yuen Fat (“Mr. Lee”) and
Ms. Chan So Wah (“Ms. Chan”) as vendors, pursuant to
which the Purchaser has agreed to acquire the entire
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issued share capital of Bestgrand Enterprises Limited
(“Bestgrand”) at a consideration of HK$7,534,000
(“Acquisition”). Bestgrand is the sole legal and beneficial
owner of the properties of Room 403 and 404, Block A,
Guanlan Garden, Golf Avenue, Guanlan Town, Baoan
District, Shenzhen, the PRC.

As vendors are Mr. Lee (being the chairman of the Board,
an executive director and controlling shareholder of the
Company) and Ms. Chan (being the executive director of
the Company), vendors are connected persons of the
Company and the Acquisition constituted a connected
transaction for the Company. As one or more of the
applicable percentage ratios in respect of the Acquisition
under the aforesaid sale and purchase agreement exceeds
0.1% but is less than 5%, the Acquisition is subject to
reporting and announcement requirements but is exempt
from the circular and independent Shareholders’ approval
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Company has
complied with the requirement under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules in respect of the Acquisition. The Acquisition
also constituted a related party transaction for the
Company.

Details of the above Acquisition are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 19 December 2022. As
at the date of this Report, the Acquisition has completed.
The Acquisition was also set out in the section headed
“Significant Investments, Acquisitions and Disposal” in the
Management Discussion and Analysis in this report.

Save as disclosed above, there was no other
non-exempted connected transaction entered into by the
Company during the year. The related party transactions
as disclosed in note 43 to the consolidated financial
statements, save as disclosed above, do not fall within the
definition of connected transactions under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

The Company confirms that it has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules in respect of the above connected
transaction.

EEEHE(A)

SENMBRARBN—HEERS - AF /RF
BARINHEZRERES BN EERNREAR
403  AAEMEEMENE —EAERESHEA
}\ o

HRFARE(BIARARANEESEE HITES
RERBRER) ERZ L (AARRINRITES) B
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0.1%1BEMN5% » MARE EHRANE14AE - W
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DRI IR SRS e
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 28 March 2023, the Board has recommended the
payment of a final dividend of HK2.0 cents per share
(2021: HK3.0 cents per share) for the year ended
31 December 2022 to the shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on
Monday, 12 June 2023. Subject to the approval of the
shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming annual
general meeting to be held on Tuesday, 30 May 2023, the
final dividend will be paid on or about Monday, 19 June
2028.

AUDITOR

At the last annual general meeting of the Company, RSM
Hong Kong was re-appointed as the auditor of the
Company.

The consolidated financial statement has been audited by
RSM Hong Kong who will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment.

The Company will propose a resolution in relation to the
re-appointment of RSM Hong Kong and to set its
remuneration at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

OTHER CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’ AND
CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INFORMATION

Other changes in directors’ and chief executive’s
information for the year ended 31 December 2022 are set
out below:

Mr. Lee Yuen Fat, an executive director of the Company,
was conferred the “China Foundry Lifetime Achievement
Award” by the China Foundry Association in September
2022.

Save as the information disclosed above, there is no
change in directors’ and chief executive’s information
required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the
Listing Rules during the year ended 31 December 2022.

By order of the Board
Lee Yuen Fat
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2023
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The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”)
believes that good corporate governance practices are
essential for promoting investors’ confidence and
maximising shareholders’ returns. The Board is committed
to maintaining a high standard of corporate governance
and reviews its corporate governance practices on a
regular basis.

With the above in mind, the Company has applied the
principles and adopted corporate governance practices as
set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) in
its corporate governance. In accordance with the
requirements of the Listing Rules and also to enhance its
corporate governance practices, the Company has also
adopted a number of corporate governance policies,
including but not limited the board diversity policy, director
nomination policy, shareholders’ communication policy,
dividend policy, risk management policy, inside information
policy, anti-corruption policy and whistleblowing policy.

For the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to the date
of this report, the Board is of the view that Company has
been in compliance with all the applicable code provisions
of the CG Code, the details of which are explained in the
relevant paragraphs below.

THE BOARD

The members of the Board are collectively responsible for
formulating the Group’s overall business strategies,
monitoring and evaluating its operating and financial
performance and reviewing the corporate governance
standard of the Company. The day-to-day management,
administration and operation of the Company are all led by
the chief executive officer of the Company. The Board has
delegated a series of responsibilities to the senior
management of the Company, which include the
implementation of decisions of the Board, the coordination
and direction of day-to-day operation and management of
the Company in accordance with the management
strategies and plans approved by the Board, formulating
and monitoring the production and operating plans and
budgets, and supervising and monitoring the control
systems. The Board has the full support of the senior
management to discharge its responsibilities.
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% ﬁﬂ:(n\ﬁ)

As at 31 December 2022, the Board comprises eight
members as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lee Yuen Fat (Chairman)

Mr. Wong Wing Chuen (Vice Chairman)
Mr. Chu Weiman (Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Chan So Wah

Independent Non-executive Directors
Professor Sun Kai Lit, Cliff 88s, JP
Ir Dr. Lo Wai Kwok, GBS, MH, JP
Mr. Andrew Look
Mr. Kong Kai Chuen, Frankie
(formerly known as Kong To Yeung, Frankie)

Biographical details of the directors of the Company
(“Directors”) as at the date of this report are set out on
pages 20 to 24 of this report.

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Directors and
Senior Management” in this report, the Board members
have no financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationships with each other as at 31 December
2022.

In accordance with the Company’s articles of association,
a person may be appointed as a Director either by the
shareholders in general meeting or by the Board. Any
Directors appointed by the Board as additional Directors or
to fill casual vacancies shall only hold office until the next
annual general meeting after that director’s appointment,
and are eligible for re-election at that annual general
meeting by the shareholders. In addition, all directors
(including independent non-executive Directors) are subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual
general meetings of the Company in accordance with the
provisions of the Articles of Association of the Company
and should be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years.

The Board conducts four regular scheduled meetings a
year on a quarterly basis generally and ad hoc meetings
are convened when circumstances require. Notice of at
least 14 days is given to all Directors for all regular Board
meetings and all Directors are given opportunity to include
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matters for discussion in the agenda. Draft minutes of
Board meetings are circulated to all Directors for
comments. Minutes of Board meetings with details of
matters considered by the Board and decisions reached
are kept by the Company Secretary and open for
inspection by the Directors.

During the vyear, five Board meetings and one annual
general meeting were held and details of attendance of
Directors are set out in the table on page 60 of this
report.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Pursuant to Code Provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the
roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”)
should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual. The roles of chairman and CEO of the
Company are separate and are not performed by the
same individual. Mr. Lee Yuen Fat, the Chairman and an
executive director of the Company, is responsible for the
leadership and effective running of the Board while Mr.
Chu Weiman, the CEO, is responsible for the overall
management and supervision of the execution of the
overall business strategies of the Group.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
All the independent non-executive Directors were
appointed for a term of two years. To further strengthen
the standard of corporate governance, the Company
follows the CG Code and requires any re-appointment of
an independent non-executive Director who has served on
the Board for over nine years to be subject to a separate
resolution to be approved by shareholders. In such cases,
the Board will set out in the annual report or circular the
reasons why it considers such Director to continue to be
independent and should be re-elected.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has
confirmed in writing his independence from the Company
in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. On this
basis, the Company considers all such Directors to be
independent.
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With their different experiences and expertises, the
independent non-executive Directors supervise and provide
independent judgement to the Board on strategic and
significant matters. The Board seeks to develop an
effective working environment for the executive and
independent non-executive Directors so as to improve the
quality of the decisions made by the Board without
constraining the independent views of the independent
non-executive Directors. Regular Board meetings were held
during the year with open discussions between the
executive Directors and the independent non-executive
Directors to enhance communication and effective working
relationship. The Board had reviewed the effectiveness of
the Group’s mechanism to ensure independent views and
inputs being available to the Board for the year ended 31
December 2022, and considered it effective.

LIABILITY INSURANCE FOR THE DIRECTORS
The Company has in force appropriate insurance coverage
on Directors’ and officers’ liabilities arising from the
Group’s business. The Company reviews the extent of
insurance coverage on an annual basis.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

The Directors are regularly briefed on the amendments to
or updates on the Listing Rules, corporate governance
practices, applicable regulatory regimes and the business
development of the Group. To keep abreast of the
responsibilities of the Directors and infuse them with new
knowledge, an in-house seminar was conducted during the
year and all Directors attended the seminar and complied
with code provision C.1.4 of the CG code. Apart from
what the Company had arranged, some of the Directors
also attended other external training seminars.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board is supported by a number of committees,
including the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Risk Management
Committee. Each Board Committee has its defined and
written terms of reference approved by the Board covering
its duties, powers and functions. Their terms of reference
are available on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange. All Board Committees are provided with
sufficient resources to discharge their duties, including
access to management or professional advice if considered
necessary.
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Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee in June
2007. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to
review the Company’s financial reports, make
recommendations on the appointment, removal and
remuneration of independent auditor, approve audit
services, develop, implement and review a policy on
engaging independent auditors to supply non-audit
services, approve the scopes and fees for non-audit
assignments, supervise the Company’s internal financial
reporting procedures and management policies, review the
Company’s risk management and internal control systems
as well as the internal audit function, and other duties
under the CG code. RSM Hong Kong will confirm its
independence before accepting the engagement of
non-audit services. The Audit Committee comprises four
independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Kong Kai
Chuen, Frankie (formerly known as Kong To Yeung,
Frankie), Professor Sun Kai Lit, Cliff B8s, Jp, Ir Dr. Lo Wai
Kwok GBs, mH, up and Mr. Andrew Look and is chaired by
Mr. Kong Kai Chuen, Frankie (formerly known as Kong To
Yeung, Frankie), a qualified accountant with extensive
experience in financial reporting and controls.

During 2022, the Audit Committee held three meetings.
Major work completed by the Audit Committee during the
year included: (i) reviewed the interim and annual results of
the Group: (i) reviewed significant accounting and audit
issues of the Company; (i) reviewed the internal audit
report and advised on the material risks facing the Group;
(iv) reviewed the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group; (v) assisted the Board to evaluate
the effectiveness of the Company’s internal audit function;
and (v made recommendation to the Board on the
re-appointment of the auditors of the Company.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was set up in June 2007 and
is mainly responsible for reviewing the structure, size and
the composition of the Board and making
recommendations on any proposed change to the Board
to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;
assessing the independence of independent non-executive
Directors; making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors. The Nomination Committee consists of (i) four
independent non-executive Directors, namely Professor Sun
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Kai Lit, Cliff BBs, Jp, Ir Dr. Lo Wai Kwok GBS, MmH, JP,
Mr. Andrew Look and Mr. Kong Kai Chuen, Frankie
(formerly known as Kong To Yeung, Frankie), and (i) one
executive Director, Mr. Chu Weiman. Professor Sun Kai Lit,
Cliff B8s, yp is the Chairman of the Nomination Committee.

During 2022, the Nomination Committee held one meeting.
Major work completed by the Nomination Committee
during the year included: (i) recommended the directors to
be re-elected at annual general meeting; (i) assessed the
independence of independent non-executive directors of
the Company; and (i) reviewed the structure, size and the
composition of the Board.

Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee in
June 2007. The major duties of the Remuneration
Committee are to make recommendations to the Board on
the Company’s policy and structure for the remuneration of
directors and senior management, including the review
and/or approval of matters relating to share schemes
under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules. It also reviews and
determines the terms of remuneration packages, the award
of bonuses and other compensation payable to individual
Directors and senior management with reference to the
Board’s corporate goals and objectives. The Remuneration
Committee consists of (i) four independent non-executive
Directors, namely Professor Sun Kai Lit, Cliff 88s, Jp, Ir
Dr. Lo Wai Kwok GBS MH, Jp, Mr. Andrew Look and
Mr. Kong Kai Chuen, Frankie (formerly known as Kong To
Yeung, Frankie); and (iij one executive Director, Mr. Chu
Weiman. The Chairman of the Remuneration Committee is
Professor Sun Kai Lit, Cliff B8s, Jp, an independent
non-executive director.

During 2022, the Remuneration Committee held one
meeting. Major work completed by the Remuneration
Committee during the year included: (i) determined and
approved the remuneration and bonus payable to executive
directors of the Company; and (iij recommended the grant
of share options. In recommending the grant of share
options, the Remuneration Committee had taken into
account factors such as the prevailing market price of the
shares, the fact that the grant of the share options to
employees and directors would provide incentives and
motivate them to perform their best and contribute to the
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success of the Company, while grants that were provided
to the five consultants as service providers were as service
fees for such consultants, which would also provide
motivations for them to create value for the Company going
forward without affecting the operating cost of the
Company. Options granted to consultants with diversified
experience were incentives for helping the Group expand
and explore new business projects and opportunities,
details of their services provided were set out in the
announcement dated 31 October 2022.

The Remuneration Committee was of the view that the
grants were appropriate and no performance target and
clawback mechanism was necessary as (i) the primary
reason for the grants were to recognize the satisfactory
performance and contributions made by the grantees
before the grant, (ii) the exercise price of the share options
represents a certain premium over the market price of the
Shares preceding the date of grant, (i) the share options
would be vested in two tranches within a period of two
years in proportions of 50% and 50% of the share options
granted and (iv) it was the Company’s general practice to
grant share options without any performance target and
clawback mechanism.

The terms of reference of Remuneration Committee were
amended by the written resolutions of all directors of the
Company taking effect on 1 January 2023. The amended
terms of reference incorporated amendments to the Listing
Rules which took effect on the same date and includes the
duty of reviewing and/or approving matters relating to the
share schemes under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.
Updated terms of reference of Remuneration Committee
are disclosed in full on the websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange.
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The remuneration of the members of senior management
(except directors) who were employed by the Group during
the year ended 31 December 2022, shown by band, is set
out below:

RBE-FT-__F+-A=1—HZFE @A
SEEFNRAEEAR (EERIN) OFH - 12
AR D - T

Number of individuals
A

HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7T 2= 1,500,000/% 7T 1
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7% 7T 2 2,000,0007% 7T 2
Risk Management Committee BREREESE
The Company has set up the Risk Management RARERZEZEFTANLAREREZE
Committee with terms of reference in October 2020. The g UHTEREDSE RREEZESTER

main responsibilities of the Risk Management Committee
include monitor and review the process of the risk
management and internal control, and advise the Board on
the appropriateness, effectiveness of and the proposed
improvements to be made to the existing risk management
and internal control systems; provide recommendations to
the management on risk management and internal control,
and set up procedures to unveil, assess and manage
material risk factors and ensure that management
discharges its responsibility to implement effective risk
management and internal control systems; and review with
the Group’s management, external auditor and the internal
audit function, the adequacy of the Group’s policies and
procedures regarding risk management and internal control
systems and any relevant statement by the directors to be
included in the annual accounts prior to their endorsement
by the Board. The Risk Management Committee currently
comprises (i) the Chief Executive Officer of the Company
(namely Mr. Chu Weiman) as its chairman, (ii) Director of
Manufacturing (namely Mr. Wong Wing Chuen), (iii) Director
of Planning and Management (namely Ms. Chan So Wah),
all of whom are executive Directors, as well as (iv) the
Director of Sales and Marketing (namely Mr. Wong Wai
Cheung, Peter) and (v) the Chief Financial Officer (namely
Mr. Seto Sai Cheong Paul).

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022

BEEREEEkipRERERRAREZENBIE
&;Tiﬁﬁfﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ&lﬁ*ﬁﬁ*%ﬂ? THRENE A
MMENEZBZFIENTAEESREER [
EEEREREIERABERREMER  RFIE
HR AR EEERARRERNER - LR
EREERTREERAMNEREE KA
R MEAANEEERE - IMNEREE R AT
ZHRERSAREEHEAREERAREZERGR
WBREEFRRCANNERRESSHEAN
ENENEFHRERNFERBANBEEZHE - A
BREEZEEHRFKANARRTRARNERE
E({’EF%IF‘) (i) B EARBE B K 8B 58 4 - (i) 381 o

BRERXELL(REZMLANTES) V)
%fﬁi@%ﬁi{ﬂﬂﬂ A RVEREMBREREY
Bt



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

\'M\Aﬁﬁl (nﬁ)

During 2022, the Risk Management Committee held two
meetings. Major work completed by the Risk Management
Committee during the year included: () discussed and
reviewed the potential risks exposed to the Group in its
operations; (i) reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control procedures and the Group’s internal audit
function; and (iii) assessed the adequacy of the Group’s
policies and procedures regarding risk management and
internal control systems.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION
The Board is responsible for the corporate governance
functions with the following duties:

° to develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations on changes and updating;

. to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

o to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

o to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to
employees and Directors; and

o to review the Company’s compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report.

DIRECTOR NOMINATION POLICY

The Board has adopted a director nomination policy (the
“Director Nomination Policy”) as required by the CG Code
which sets out selection criteria in evaluating and selecting
candidates for directorships. The Nomination Committee
shall consider various factors, including but not limited to
objectives of nomination committee, the character and
integrity, qualifications, ability and independency
requirements of the selecting candidates, the board
diversity policy and the needs of the Company.
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The Nomination Committee shall evaluate and assess
whether such candidate is qualified for directorship based
on the selection criteria upon receipt of the proposal on
appointment of new director. It may engage external
service provider(s) as it considers appropriate in making the
determination and recommend to the Board to appoint the
appropriate candidate for directorship. The Nomination
Committee shall also evaluate candidates based on the
selection criteria to determine whether such candidate that
is nominated by a shareholder is qualified and appropriate
for election as a director at the general meeting of the
Company.

The Nomination Committee shall review the overall
contribution and service to the Company of the retiring
director and determine whether the retiring director
continues to meet the selection criteria. The Board, with
the recommendation from Nomination Committee, shall
then make recommendation to shareholders in respect of
the proposed re-election of the retiring director at the
general meeting. The Board shall have the final decision on
all matters relating to its recommendation of candidates to
stand for election at any general meeting.

The Nomination Committee will continue to review the
Director Nomination Policy from time to time and may
adopt changes as appropriate at the relevant time.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the
“Board Diversity Policy”) as required by the Listing Rules
which sets out the approach to achieve diversity on the
Board. The Company recognises that increasing diversity at
the Board level will support the attainment of the
Company’s strategic objectives and sustainable
development. The Company seeks to achieve Board
diversity when selecting candidates from a number of
perspectives through the consideration of a number of
factors, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The
Company will also take into consideration its own business
model and specific needs from time to time. The ultimate
decision will be based on merit and contribution that the
selected candidates will bring to the Board.
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The Board will review the implementation and effectiveness
of the Board Diversity Policy annually.

The Board recognizes the importance and benefits of
gender diversity at the Board level and the Board does not
consider diversity to be achieved for a single gender
board. As at the date of this report, the Board has one
female member and the Board will continue to take
initiatives to identify appropriate female candidate(s) to
enhance the gender diversity among its members. The
Board has reviewed the appropriateness of an express
diversity quota or measurable objective in achieving board
diversity, and noted that currently the Board has members
of both genders. In light of the above, the Board has
concluded that selection of Board members should
continue to be based on the above said diversity
perspectives instead of setting an express quota or
objective.

In view of the business nature of the Group (i.e. the
manufacture and sale of zinc, magnesium and aluminium
alloy and plastic products and components), an industry
which is more dominant by male traditionally, as at
31 December 2022, 87.5% of Directors, all of our senior
management members and 59.4% of our total workforce
were male. However, we will continue with our endeavor to
increase female representation to a higher ratio in our
workforce in the future.
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ATTENDANCE OF MEETINGS HEEE
A summary of attendance of Board meetings, committee TEREIWR-ZE-_—_FEELEDL  ZEELH
meetings and general meetings in 2022 are detailed in the FBRRERE T HEERE -

following table:

Number of attendance/Number of meetings
HERY ERRY
Risk
Audit  Nomination Remuneration Management Annual
Board Committee Committee Committee Committee General

meeting meeting meeting meeting meeting Meeting
EHER REZEEE RREE TS

ExgEs B ZEREER BEXE

Executive Directors

BITES

Mr. Lee Yuen Fat 5/5 - - - - 11
TEELE

Mr. Wong Wing Chuen 5/5 - - - 2/2 11
Mr. Chu Weiman 5/5 - 11 1/1 2/2 11
N@EREE

Ms. Chan So Wah 5/5 — — - 2/2 11
BEELL

Independent Non-Executive Directors
BUFHITES
Professor Sun Kai Lit, Cliff ass, Jp 4/5 2/3 11 11 - 11
BRI Eess, P
Ir Dr. Lo Wai Kwok 688, mH, Jp 5/5 3/3 11 1/ - 11
ERFEE L5 ass mH, o
Mr. Andrew Look 5/5 3/3 11 11 - 11
35 e
Mr. Kong Kai Chuen, Frankie

(formerly known as Kong To Yeung, Frankie) 5/5 3/3 11 1/1 - 11
TR L4 (RITEITES)
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors (the “Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Having made specific
enquiry of all Directors, all Directors have confirmed that
they have fully complied with the required standard set out
in the Model Code throughout the year under review.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the
preparation of the financial statements of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2022. The statement of the
external auditor of the Company in relation to their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the
Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on
pages 139 and 147.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining and
reviewing the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group on an ongoing basis
in order to safeguard the Group’s assets and
shareholders’ investments. The systems of risk
management and internal control of the Group are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure
to achieve business objectives and only provide reasonable
but not absolute assurance against material misstatement
or loss.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in fulfilling its role
in reviewing the Group’s financial, operational and
compliance controls and its annual review to ensure the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Group’s
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions,
and those relating to the Group’s environmental, social and
governance performance and reporting.
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The Board has also set up the Risk Management
Committee comprising the CEO, Director of Manufacturing,
Director of Planning and Management, Director of Sales of
Marketing and Chief Financial Officer with a specific term
of reference. The Risk Management Committee will report
to the Audit Committee regularly and assist the Board and
the Audit Committee to review the Company’s risk
management and internal control systems.

The management assists the Board regularly in the
implementation of the Group’s policies, procedures and
limits within the Board’s approved risk appetite by
identifying and assessing the risks faced and monitoring
the design and operation of the relevant internal control
measures to mitigate and control these risks.

The Company has adopted an anti-corruption policy and
whistleblowing policy and the relevant systems, in
particular, a system for employees and other relevant
parties who deal with the Company to raise concerns, in
confidence and anonymity, with the Audit Committee about
possible improprieties in any matter related to the
Company, in order to strengthen its internal control.

The Group has engaged an independent professional
consultant to identify, evaluate, manage and prioritise the
significant risks exposed to the Group, through reviewing
the implemented system and procedures, including areas
covering financial, operational and legal compliance
controls and risk management functions and the Board is
satisfied with the results of the review. In addition, the
Group has adopted a risk management policy which
contains a structured approach to risk management and a
risk-based three-year internal audit plan was introduced
through restructuring of internal control system in order to
address the significant risks identified and assessed by the
Group.

In addition, the Group has engaged an external
independent professional firm during the year to carry out
the internal audit for the Group and review its internal
control system, covering all relevant financial, operational
and compliance control functions within an established
framework every six months, with audit period covering the
entire financial year. Full reports covering the material
findings with suggested measures prepared by this firm
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were submitted to the Risk Management Committee and
the Audit Committee of the Company twice a year for
review to ensure that an effective and adequate internal
control system is in place and to resolve material internal
control defects (if any).

For the year ended 31 December 2022, no significant
control failings or weakness which had, or may have a
material impact on the Company’s financial performance or
condition, have been identified. Further, the Board is of the
view that the Company’s processes for financial reporting
and Listing Rules compliance in the year was effective.

During the year, the Board, with the assistance of the
Audit Committee, Risk Management Committee and the
management, have conducted review on the effectiveness
of the risk management and internal control systems of the
Group. Such review covers all material controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board
considered that the Company’s internal control and risk
management systems were adequate and effective and the
Company had complied with the code provisions on
internal control and risk management of the CG Code.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
FACING THE COMPANY

Business Risk

The COVID-19 pandemic had continued to create
uncertainty for the global economy throughout 2022. The
unpredictability associated with the global pandemic and
any further contingent prevention and control measure that
may be implemented by governments may lead to new
challenges to the Group’s business and its operations. The
Group will closely monitor the development of the
aforesaid issues and evaluate its impact on the financial
position and operating results of the Group, and to
implement stringent cost control measures and to make
necessary adjustments to its strategies and operations so
as to mitigate their effects to the Group and our
customers.
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Foreign Exchange Risk

Most of the Group’s transactions were conducted in US
dollars, Renminbi or Hong Kong dollars. As such, the
Group is aware of the potential foreign currency risk that
may arise from the fluctuation of exchange rates between
US dollars, Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars. The Group
will closely monitor its overall foreign exchange exposure
and take appropriate measures to mitigate the risks that
the Group faces from exchange rate fluctuations.

Competition Risk

Competition risk arises from the emergence of a number of
competitors in the industry. Price cut from competitors
intensifies the risk. The Group believes that the provision
of quality products and after sales service to customers
are the only way to gain and maintain customer
confidence and loyalty.

PROCEDURES AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
FOR HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF
INSIDE INFORMATION

The handling and dissemination of inside information of the
Group is strictly controlled to avoid unauthorised use of
inside information. All staff are required to sign the
employee confidentiality agreement and access to inside
information is restricted to employees on a need to-know
basis. In addition, the Group has adopted an inside
information policy to set out the procedures of inside
information identification, reporting and disclosure. Key
procedures for handling and dissemination of inside
information include: (i) keeping the Board and Company
Secretary informed of the latest legal requirement under the
Listing Rules and conducting periodic financial and
operational reporting to the Board and Company Secretary
to enable them to assess inside information and make
timely disclosures, if necessary; (i) controlling the access to
inside information by employees on a need-to-know basis,
and safeguarding the confidentiality of the inside
information before it is properly disclosed to public; and (i)
disclosing the inside information in a manner that provides
the public with an equal, timely and effective access to the
inside information in ways which are in compliance with the
Listing Rules. The Group will review the effectiveness of
the policy from time to time to ensure the compliance of
the relevant regulatory requirements.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The total auditor’'s remuneration in relation to statutory
audit work and non-audit services of the Group payable to
the Company’s external independent auditor, RSM Hong
Kong, is set out as follows:

EREREE (F)

BB 2 B &
REEEN FONEBI LB E R E R DR
P REE B RIFBRRBOLBMME T :

2022
—g-=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHETT
Statutory audit ETE B 2,180 2,080
Non-audit services" IEFZ RO 327 336
Total B 2,507 2,416
Note: HeE -
1. Non-audit services mainly included agreed-upon procedures on 1. FEZRBEFEZFPHEBEZNOTEF R BHE AR
interim results and tax advisory services. % e
COMPANY SECRETARY NEWE

Ms. Yam Suk Yee, Celia had been the Company Secretary
of the Company before her resignation with effect from 24
August 2022, with Ms. Leung Lai Seung (“Ms. Leung”)
being appointed as the Company Secretary of the
Company with effect from the same date. Both Company
Secretaries had been or is a full time employee of the
Company and have day-to-day knowledge of the
Company’s affairs. For the year ended 31 December
2022, Ms. Leung has duly complied with the relevant
professional training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

Dividend Policy

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (the
“Dividend Policy”), pursuant to which the Company may
declare and distribute dividends to the shareholders of the
Company, provided that the declaration and payment of
dividend shall remain to be recommended by the Board
and any final dividend for the financial year will be subject
to shareholders’ approval.

ERELTR T _FN\A T HABER—
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BERR# BE_T__F+_A=1+—H1t
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In proposing any dividend payout, the Board shall take into
account, among other things, the Company’s current and
future operations, corporate development plans, liquidity
position, capital requirements and future expected capital
needs, as well as dividends received from the Company’s
subsidiaries and associates. Any payment of the dividend
by the Company is also subject to any requirements under
the Cayman Islands law, the Listing Rules and the
Company’s Articles of Association.

The Board will continue to review the Dividend Policy from
time to time and may adopt changes as appropriate at the
relevant time as part of its commitment to maximizing
shareholders’ value, taking into consideration the financial
performance of the Company and market conditions.

The Board is not aware of any shareholders who have
waived or agreed to waive any dividends.

Shareholders’ Communication Policy

The Company has adopted a shareholders’ communication
policy (the “Shareholders’ Communication Policy”) to
enable shareholders to engage actively with the Company
and exercise their rights as shareholders in an informed
manner. The Board is responsible for maintaining an
on-going dialogue with shareholders and in particular for
communicating with them and encouraging their
participation, through annual general meetings or other
general meetings, financial reports and other publications
and communications of the Company.

The Company will assign dedicated management personnel
to be in charge of ensuring effective and timely
dissemination of information to shareholders. Information
shall be communicated to shareholders mainly through the
Company’s financial reports (interim and annual reports),
annual general meetings and other general meetings that
may be convened, as well as by making available all the
disclosures submitted to the Stock Exchange, its corporate
communications and other corporate publications on the
Company’s website. Effective and timely dissemination of
information to shareholders shall be ensured at all times.
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The contact details of the Company Secretary and its
Registrar are set out in the Company’s website in order to
enable the Shareholders to make any query that they may
have with respect to the Company. Shareholders should
direct their questions about their shareholdings to the
Company’s Registrar. Shareholders may at any time make
a request for the Company’s information to the extent such
information is publicly available and the Company shall
make a reasonable effort in addressing those requests. In
addition, shareholders are, at any time, welcome to raise
questions to the Board and management by writing to the
Company Secretary.

Upon reviewing the Group’s communication strategies with
shareholders and the various channels for shareholders to
express their views to the Company, the Board is of the
view that the Shareholders’ Communication Policy is
implemented properly and effectively.

Constitutional Documents

For the purpose of (i) providing flexibility to the Company in
relation to the conduct of general meetings, (ii) bringing the
existing Memorandum of Association and Articles of
Association in line with amendments made to the
applicable laws of the Cayman Islands and the Listing
Rules and (iii) incorporating certain housekeeping
amendments, the Company’s shareholders passed a
special resolution on 31 May 2022 to adopt a new set of
amended and restated memorandum of association and
articles of association (the “Amended and Restated
Memorandum and Articles of Association”). Details of the
adoption of the Amended and Restated Memorandum and
Articles of Association are set out in the Company’s
circular dated 26 April 2022. The Amended and Restated
Memorandum and Articles of Association is available on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for convening extraordinary general
meeting on requisition

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, an extraordinary general meeting may be
convened on the requisition of one or more shareholders
holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition, not less
than one tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
having the right of voting at general meetings. Such
requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the
Company Secretary for the purpose of requiring an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition. Such meeting shall be held within two months
after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of
such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so
in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred
by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the
Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

Procedure for putting forward proposals at
general meeting

A shareholder shall make a written requisition to the Board
or the Company Secretary at the Company’s Hong Kong
office at Room A, 29th Floor, Tower B, Billion Centre, 1
Wang Kwong Road, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong,
specifying the shareholding information of the shareholder,
contact details and the proposal he/she intends to put
forward at the general meeting regarding any specified
business and its supporting documents.

Shareholders’ enquiries

The Shareholders’ Communication Policy sets out,
amongst other things, shareholders should direct their
questions in relation to their shareholdings to the
Company’s share registrar. Shareholders may make a
request by writing to the Company Secretary for the
Company’s information to the extent that such information
is publicly available. Shareholders may also send written
enquiries to the Board by writing to the Company
Secretary at the Company’s Hong Kong office at Room A,
29th Floor, Tower B, Billion Centre, 1 Wang Kwong Road,
Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong.
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VIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ABOUT THE REPORT

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited (hereinafter referred
to as the “Company”, “we”, “our”) is a leading enterprise
on product solutions, notably in the magnesium, aluminium
and zinc alloy and plastic industry, with a number of
production bases in Guangdong Province of the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC” or “China”). Having a deep
ambition to construct long-term trusted ties with our
stakeholders in the industry and community, the Company
together with our subsidiaries (collectively, the “Ka Shui” or
the “Group”) is pleased to publish our 2022 environmental,
social and governance (“ESG”) report (the “Report”)
summarising our ESG performance and initiatives.

Scope of the Report

The Report examines the Group’s ESG management
approaches, and corresponding performance of the
Group’s major manufacturing facilities in Huizhou, China
during the period from 1 January 2022 to 31 December
2022 (the “Reporting Period” or “2022”). It includes the key
businesses of the Company — metal alloy and plastic.
Unless otherwise specified, the data includes the following
subsidiaries and the scope of the Report remains the same
as last year. The operations covered are listed below:

Ka Shui International
Holdings Limited (“Ka Shui”)
B hnBpR s A
BRAT ([FEhal)

Ka Yi Technology (Huizhou)
Co., Ltd. (“Ka Yi”)
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Ka Fung Industrial Technology
(Huizhou) Co., Ltd. (“Ka Fung”)

RETERE (BM) ARAT
(r&=21)

Ka Shui Technology (Huizhou)
Co., Ltd. (“Ka Shui Technology”)

RImEHE (M) BRAE
(ME=EmRHE )
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Reporting Standard A

The ESG Reporting Guide (‘ESG Reporting Guide”), which ARETDREERHAERIAER QA ([HR
is outlined in Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing the Frl) &S LA (T LR RN Wk =+ Frak
Listing of Securities (“Listing Rules”) on the Stock RIRIE A EERWMERSI([RR el E
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“HKEx”), has been AWMEESIDMERER - EEOWED - HM
followed in the preparation of the Report. We adhere to BT THHREER - EE2MH 2 FER—H
the following reporting criteria throughout the Report: [

materiality, quantitative, balance, and consistency:

Reporting Principles Descriptions

HERA -

Materiality By engaging with the main stakeholders and holding internal
B5E1% discussions, we have identified the relevant subjects. The section

titled Materiality Assessment provides a summary of the results.
BMBEREFEROENBRRADN REE THBZEE - FEE
REEHREEMIE & -

Quantitative We disclose our ESG performance in accordance with the ESG

21 Reporting Guide using reliable methodologies and environmental
and social key performance indicators (“KPIs”) so that the
effectiveness of our ESG policies and management systems can be
evaluated and validated.
BBRE HHEBRWMERS BMKAAIRAENRERR R
THREMEERBERMAORE HEHEEBRE  EMERMY
BRI HEREERBERRER RGN AE BILF AT M ERE -

Balance In accordance with the ESG Reporting Guide, we calculate and

T 7 present the environmental and social KPls. As shown in the
relevant sections of the Report, robust methodologies are utilised.
To occasionally compare the performance of our ESG, we provide
data comparisons over a variety of years.
HABREBRE HEREQ/BEES  ABEL 2R RE SR
BRER WA REEBEEDHMT  KASKARENTE - BT
iR M RE e REBRTETLE  HMRHESZFRY

BB -
Consistency In comparison to the prior year, the Report adopts the same
— B methodologies, standards, and reporting scope to retain
consistency.
HEREF  ARESERMERNTE  RERBREHE - URE
_ﬁ(qg ®
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The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”)
acknowledges its overall responsibility for the Company’s
ESG strategy and reporting. The Report has been reviewed
and approved by the Board.

Contact and Feedback

The Group puts great efforts to establish enduring
relationships with the key stakeholders and the community.
We value your feedback on the ESG Report and our
sustainability performance since we formulate our ESG
strategy with the interests of our stakeholders in mind.
Please feel free to send your written enquiries or feedback
to the Group by email at enquiry@kashui.com if you have
any suggestions or comments.

VALUES AND MISSIONS

As a leading enterprise on product solutions, notably in
magnesium, aluminium and zinc alloy, and plastic industry
for over 40 years, the Group recognises corporate social
responsibility (“CSR”) as an integral part of our business
sustainability and success. We are dedicated to fostering
the well-being of our stakeholders, including our
employees, customers, environment, and community to be
in line with our core values:

Pursuit of
Excellence
ECREHE

Unity and
Mutual Trust
EB%E(E

Green
Production
HBEedE

RE #HEREREE ()
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The Group is committed to developing a strategic AEEB IR EREBBMEDEESIALEE - @B
corporate governance framework. Through utilising our FRABEMe M - Bl RFEME - REE R
technology, innovation, and expertise, the Group intends to REomEEREERARERTE  WEEEH
conduct business activities in accordance with the highest BHRmALSEEERED - mERMeEHE
standards of business ethics, and to integrate socially fHE IRBERFENEEERRNTE - AEEX
responsible management practices across the entire rEASETFm RIESIRABELT

organisation. This will enable us to have a beneficial
impact on the community, environment, and stakeholders.
The Group’s CSR missions and guiding principles can be
summed up as follows:

Upholding Protecting Upholding
Labour Rights Employees’ Health Business Ethics
HoES TR REEENRE 23S THE L
Fulfilling Minimizing the
Regulatory Impact on the
Requirements Environment
mEEREEK BRI E
The Group’s long-term goals are set in these four key AEENRAEEREAATHEEEZTHE :

areas:

Employee Satisfaction
Customer Satisfaction (Personal Development

ERRRE and Welfares)
ESREE (BEAEREERN)

Reasonable Profit Society Benefits
BT HEAE
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SEEEMEEHESERREN

The Group aims at conducting business activities in AEBEAUNGRNBAEEEEERRELE
accordance with the highest standards of business ethics, B WEERRAHTANARERTEETEERE
and integrating socially responsible management practices Bl o PEERRPEMSETABNBREIELRE
across the entire organisation. The strategic framework in FHRMENATRE RERFNETRERY
corporate governance and CSR committed will enable us ZomnWhbEdeRATERREFEEHRE
to bring positive impacts on the community, environment, AT EEZESE

and stakeholders. The CSR approaches and principles of
Ka Shui mainly focus on the following four key areas:

Sustainable Operations TJ ###5%&E

Upholding the highest standard of ethical business values in our business operations, including compliance,
fairness, integrity and anti-corruption

ERMNEBLETRRESEENHXEREES  BEAHR AL #AEARE

Integrating sustainability concepts into our product designs

BAHEERBSMARMOERRTH

Investing in new technology research and development (“R&D”)

A& R R I K B EE (TH 32 )

Taking into account environmental and social responsibility in supply chain management
EHERERRZRRREREGEML

Creating the best values for our stakeholders

REMANFNEEREEE

Caring for Our People FAZ#HHES

Developing and providing a supportive, dynamic and safe workplace for our employees
REMONESERY MRE —EXHMN - BENNRLEEHNITIESAH

Complying with SA8000 Social Accountability international standard, laws and regulations in our employment
practices

FERMREEEET - B TSAS000H & B T REBIZEE « SK2 KIAR

Supporting the well-being of employees and their family obligations
XHEEREIRERE

Ensuring all our people are fairly treated, without any discrimination
BREMAMENEESIATEHT  TEMER

Offering a variety of programmes to support the employees’ growth and development
REZEAEAIHEENRKERER

CECCEER ERERERERLF
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Protecting Our Environment {R:#$ 9IRS

e Carrying on improving and refining our environmental management system, approaches and production
chain processes so as to minimise emissions and maximise efficiency of energy and natural resources
BEMERTERMNRBEERRR  FEREERRE [SERDER  FERSERLARERYEG

e Continually achieving low-carbon production that minimises negative environmental impacts
REEREREE  [SERIHURRENEELE

e Participating in environmental conservation activities

2NRRFRELH

Supporting Our Community Z# % 8 4t E

3
=
o
0|

e Making positive contributions to the community where we work and live in with our competency and
knowledge
FMAHRMOENRABREMIEREEMBLEELERER
e Supporting local education initiatives for youth development
X R RE FERNHBE B
° Supporting the poverty and disaster initiatives of local charities
X EMAERBERE L EE
o Suppornng the development of a sustainable and harmonious community

XFFA R R M R E R

This policy will be clearly communicated with all Ka Shui
staff and implemented at all levels of the organisation. This
policy is also conveyed to our suppliers and services
providers for joint efforts in developing and promoting CSR
in their own operations. The management will review the
effectiveness, suitability and adequacy of this policy
periodically and amend it when necessary.

BOARD OVERSIGHT

The Board has a primary role in overseeing the
management of the Group’s sustainability issues. During
the year, the Board and the ESG Working Group spent
significant time on evaluating the impact of ESG-related
risks in our operation and formulating relevant policy in
dealing with the risks. The oversight of the Board is to
ensure the management to have all the right tools and
resources to oversee the ESG issues in the context of
strategy and long-term value creation.

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022
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The Board’s overall vision and strategy in managing ESG

issues:

Short and Medium-term

Achieving the environmental KPIs’ targets set before, which

are making reduction in:

RE #HEREREE ()

ERCEERNE HeUEARAEENERESR
R

B R PE]
AERBARENREFREVIEFER

The total GHG intensity
(per million pieces of products) by 41%
by 2030 from a 2019 base year
R hEREESE

R-ZB=TFi5E

B RN

(EEBHER) FiK41%

The intensity of wastewater discharge
(per million pieces of products)
by 50% by 2030 from a 2019 base year
U-B—hEREEE,
RoF=FFEEKEREE
\ (BEEHESR) BEIK50%-

The intensity of paper consumption
(per million pieces of products)
by 46% by 2030 from a 2019 base year
UZB—hFEREEE,
R-B=TERERHEEEE
K (BEEHER) FEK46%

4 The intensity of hazardous waste
disposal (per million
pieces of products) by 28% by
2030 from a 2019 base year
U-F—hEREEE,
RoB=FEREREVREEE
\_ (SEEHER) RE28%

( The intensity of total energy
consumption (per million
pieces of products) by 33% by
2030 from a 2019 base year
UZF—-hEREESE
RoF=TERERRERER

\_ (SEEHER) BEI%

(The intensity of packaging material
consumption (per million
pieces of products) by 50% by
2030 from a 2019 base year
UZB—hEREEE,
RIB=TEROEMEHEREE

(BERHESR) FEK50%

(" The intensity of non-hazardous
waste disposal (per million pieces
of products) by 42% by
2030 from a 2019 base year)
UZB—hEBEEE,
R-B=TFsREERYEETE

\_  (SEE#ES) RE42%)

CECCFFER EHERERARISE
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Long Term

Operating in line with the Group’s CSR policy statement,
specifically in the areas of “Sustainable Operations, Caring
for Our People, Protecting Our Environment, and
Supporting Our Community”.

The Board hires external expertise to determine the
materiality of different ESG risks, as well as managing
risks. The ESG working group was also formed to
communicate with service providers on ESG issues. The
Board also reviews the progress made for the achievement
of targets set by listening to the report on progress
delivered by the ESG Working Group and the delegated
Executive Director.

CSR RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group has designed a CSR risk management
framework that is applied by staff at all levels in a bid to
enhance our CSR fulfilment and better manage CSR risks.
The ESG Working Group is dedicated to monitoring the
CSR risks and they meet annually to implement the risk
monitoring.

In alignment with our core values of “Pursuit of Excellence,
Creation of Values, Unity and Mutual Trust, Harmonious
Development, Green Production and Giving Back to the
Community”, the ESG risk management framework allows
Group-wide collaboration on managing our CSR risks in
our day-to-day operation. Throughout the CSR risk
management process, we focus on the areas of
employment relations, business ethics and other significant
environmental and social responsibilities.

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022

R
BRASENGEHEETHRBARRZE
LERE[MFHELE WERMNES  FRE
BAWBRREHRMAOLRISTE -
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CSR Risk Management Framework CEHSEEREIREERELRE

The Board oversees the overall management and BEECEEBNMEH e EIRABREENEBRETER
implementation processes of CSR risk management, and BEREAE WEHEERERITHRBPETEYE
communicates closely with the management and ot AT EGEREBEMNE T M THRALEE
administrative bodies. With this approach, management is HENZEANCELSETLRAR - M FEHRM
not only better able to understand the biggest CSR risks SeME I EREEEEERR CEHSETA
that the Group faces, but is also better able to quickly BREREENEBUREENBRERE DB
address those risks. Below is a summary of the structure R

of the CSR risk management framework as well as their
roles and responsibilities:

The Board Management Administration ESfaWo;;i:gg(;?;p Operation Units
BEE EEE 1TBERFY - I 1‘;1]!\ @ ! BIEEM

Oversight Management and administration Implementation
=EE B NMITH Bt

The Board EE &

e Oversees the Group’s formulation of CSR strategy
EEAKENCEMEEEBBANGEIE

e Monitors the overall CSR risk management process of the Group
ERAEERRNCETEREEARERRE

e Maintains close communication with management on CSR issues
REEHSEEHERERERHTINESR

e Reviews and approves the Report
et R B E AR RS

Management &I [E

e Determines the risk level of the major CSR risk factors
EEtEdeREFERREZNREREZER

—ECEER ERERERERAR 7T
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Administration {TEEBFT

e Coordinates with various operation units with regard to CSR risk factors on a regular basis
HHECEHEEERBRAETRRRASLESEN
e Formulates plans on identification and evaluation of CSR risk factors
HlEH A KA B ET e R ERRE XS
e Collects and reviews the evaluation outcomes
Wk Rt =t 5Tk A
e Reviews the CSR risk classifications and management plans of operation units
B EEEMNPELSEERARERNRE RS

ESG Working Group IRiE « ## ZH &8 TE/ME

e Discusses data collection issues and significant ESG matters of the Group
AMARENEBERESEREARE HEREREH
e FEvaluates the impacts of ESG-related risks in the operating
FERE  HeREAEERRUEENTE
e Formulates policies in dealing with the ESG risks
HIERIBRE g REEREROBUR
e Monitors ESG risks
ERRE  HeRERER
* Manages compliance matters
EEARER

Operation Units % 3& 88 (i

e |dentifies and evaluates the CSR risk factors of the corresponding unit on a regular basis
ER@EA MR REAN X EREERAREE
e Proposes suggestions on making improvements on the CSR risk factors

LRt ERERRRARERLER

Compliance Management System BHREERRHG

The ESG Working Group is perceived as one of the RIE - HEEERTE J\Zﬂiﬂiiﬁﬁ$$@?}ﬁ“‘ﬁ
Group’s regulatory management and monitoring ERREBRE 2 — RARAMERAGHRIDIBEA
mechanisms. The Company Secretarial and Compliance AT 2 52 ) 9 B2 B R f R K KRR S AR A 12
Department routinely monitors the Group’s compliance SRNFESERERERNER  THERLAS
status by helping assess the overall risk tolerance level of EHEHER AREEREIHREERES
the Group and assessing various legal contracts to comply FRHEHA (FInRER) BEEI -

with relevant laws in accordance with various jurisdictions.
Training related to compliance (e.g. anti-corruption) was
also provided to the employees and the Board from time
to time as appropriate.
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CSR Risk Management Process

The Group takes proactive steps to identify CSR risks that
could affect our operating capabilities and stakeholders.
We periodically conduct a thorough review of the impacts
of numerous CSR concerns of our customers, employees,
and community. The management has prioritised these
issues so that we can respond appropriately while
formulating the CSR policy. The Group will regularly review
the findings of the CSR risk assessment to identify areas
which we could improve on.

ESG GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Board regularly monitors the Group’s ESG
performance and provides direction for ESG. A designated
Executive Director who is in charge of Operation Unit of the
Group discusses with the ESG Working Group from time
to time to understand their difficulties in handling ESG data
collection and disclosure matters.

That Executive Director is also responsible for:

RE #HEREREE ()

ﬁ%* 1*@@”*;”".&
AEBEBEG TSR TG HRMNZE
EFEMEERTENGELERETRR ﬁﬁm
HURMNE,  BEERHENNEBREELE
BEEREFYELTEEES FHARNEREEE
SIHESRRF  NERFERNEFRELCELER
EBREIELEERNEE - CEH SR ERRAT
AR R AEEEIER - LABEE R A
BT ©

RE -HEBHERNERERS
%@*%gg$%@m%a e HEERK
B/ WARE (HelERREEE - BEAE
BEEBEMMBETHTEETFERE g
ERIENMBEITH®R  THRESTEEERE
MHEEERHBRERTEESEHENRE

N

<

ZRTEENAR

Ensuring appropriate and effective
ESG risk management
and internal control systems

HREE

BMEYIRE -

HEEETOEMEERNBIEHRGR

Assessing and identifying the
ESG-related risks and opportunities
associated with the Group
24t Be ik 51l 52 A B2 B 4B ER Y
R HEREEEIEREE

ESG Working Group

The ESG Working Group holds meeting regularly to
discuss various issues and significant ESG matters of the
Group. The members of ESG Working Group comprises of
the Company Secretary, heads and supervisors of various
business units of our Group (including Human Resources
Department and Operations Management Department
under the Operation Unit, Purchasing Department and
Manufacturing Department under the Manufacturing Unit
and Finance Unit).

Setting up the ESG management
methodology, strategy, focus and

objectives of the Group

HEAREIRE HEREGERELZE

B ERRBE
R HERESIEME
R Zia,\a/uIT’EJ\iﬁmﬁsﬁﬁ%ﬁ ks
AEBZEBEEERBEARE 18 /Jﬁ/u$lﬁ °
RE - HERERTIE J\@WE@%’ATM\
AEBEREHEU(BREEENETNANE

R R e EEER  WEEM R HEMETH
REMERER)WBEAREE -

CECCEER ERERERERLF
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

We keep regular contact with our stakeholders in order to
listen to their opinions and expectations regarding the
Group’s CSR concerns and the resulting environmental
and social impacts on our business. By gathering views of
stakeholders and understanding their concerns, the Group
can adjust its policies and approaches on CSR
management and formulate its strategy for addressing the
CSR issues. This will enable the Group to continually
enhance its CSR performance.

We maintain good communication with these important
stakeholder groups through a variety of channels, as
shown in the following table, after identifying those who
may have a large impact on our business and those who
may be severely influenced by our operations.

Stakeholder Groups

KhE2H

BT TEFNEHASRECELEREERBELA
RAEBRELENHBAREIEFENERLR
HI2 - BMERERFCHER  BBRERD
ENERRTHREENEIN AKEAHEDL
EHeETEEMNBRENIE  ARGIEEEE
EHeEERENRE KMEAEBEFERS
CEHERMERA -

EEEHRMANEBEEARENTIZRNER
BLEMMNEERRHHENEATENEIRR
ERREZ  RABBMTRATHZERER
WERTRIFBA -

Communication Channels

R EHR BERE
Investors and Shareholders e Company’s website A A48k
LB ERIRE e Company’s announcements A 7] A&
e Annual general meeting A% B 8 F A&
e Annual and interim reports 4F ¥} & & BSR4

Customers

'F

Employees

=3

Suppliers and Business Partners

Company’s website A 749 u4

Customer satisfaction surveys & F i & E #4
Customer service hotline & P IR 7% 243

Social events 325 &)

Training and orientation #1148 & 35 3l
Intranet B 48 4%

Opinion box = 246

Annual appraisal £ [Z 7T i

Social events 22 )EE)
Whistleblowing system £} & &%

Regular assessments & BT i

BPETY R TS AL e Tendering and procurement processes 1B1Z & F i 712
e Social events 3 JE &

Non-governmental Organisations

Charity donations 22 =18

S T 4 Volunteering & B8 iR 7§

Communities Company’s website A 7484

HE e Company’s announcements A &l A&
Media Company’s website 2 7] 43 ufh

i B e Company’s announcements A &l A &
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

An independent consultant had been engaged to perform
a materiality assessment by conducting an online survey to
gather feedback from the Group’s various stakeholder
groups, including customers, members of top management
and employees. This was done to facilitate the
identification of the material CSR issues that are most
important to the Group and its stakeholders. We
established the framework for the Report and our CSR
management strategies based on the views and opinions
gathered from the stakeholders in order to allay their
concerns regarding CSR issues.

Based on their perspectives on the importance of each of
the 27 identified CSR-related topics, our major stakeholder
groups responded to our questionnaire and provided
feedback. The materiality assessment matrix below shows
the importance of these subjects in terms of priority to the
stakeholders and that to the Group’s business and
operation. The topics that fell in the upper-right quadrant
of the matrix were identified as the most important to the
Group’s business operations and our stakeholders.

RE #HEREREE ()

EZMRME

BPEZE—MBULAAAR  BERAREK LS
T WEAKEERNEANEEETP &5E
BEREREENER ETERMNMG KM
BREFHAEEEFNEREENEALEM
SREZE - RHRETHNENER LB
BIE T ARENER  WHETHMNEELE
BEEERE  WREREHCEHETERNE
MES -

BAWEEROEFBREBEREH27ECHFIH
RE - dHeREalESZETSEEENERN
BER EERMNAEHAELIRERE - ATE
AR IR E R BUR % F A S
MERAEEEBREENEREE - A L
ANZEERATE/EAREXBLERFNER

EEMEE -

Analysis and

Evaluation
T R s A

Identification Engagement
i 43]) 3]

« To create and « To invite
categorise a list internal and
of potential CSR external
topics based on stakeholders
HKEx Appendix to complete
27 and identify an online
key stakeholder survey.
Sl < HERHR

o« RBEBE HNEBFE(D &

PfT =77 35 AU Bf TERAR BT
i Sy s o = AV &
B EL
SETEES
B EETT
DR WHEE
FENFHE
eI

* To evaluate

» The results are

and prioritise reviewed by
the most the Group to
material ESG determine the
topics. priority of the
CHEESY ESG topics for
= P SG report
IRIE - e discl d
;ﬂ%iﬁ%% ; IfC osure an
%giﬁﬁ ir%;:gvement
f7 © '
c IAEEER
HER - DET
RIS ign
ERMEHRE
R AR IR #)
RIE - (R
ERmanE
FIRF ©

CECCEER ERERERERLF
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Medium Priority Materiality Matrix High Priority
RERIRTF EEMERE RESTIRF

I o
o

o 9

o
©
o

o
00

HisrENEEM

Significance to the Stakeholders

27)

>
»

Low Priority Significance to the Group’s Business & Operation Medium Priority
(XS N2 HAREXBREENEEN RERIRT
Social #&
. Environment ERi§ . Employment &% ‘ Operation & &
1. Air emission 9. Labour rights 18. Customer satisfaction
RETEK BT BEEREE
2. Greenhouse gas emission 10. Labour-management relations 19. Product and service quality and
BE RPN BITERRER complaints handling
3. Climate change 11. Employee retention EmkRESE RIEFEE
RIx 1t BERE 20. Customer health and safety
4. Energy efficiency 12. Diversity and equal opportunity EERREZE
BE IR MR St kTSRS 21. Marketing and product and service
5. Water and effluents 18. Non-discrimination labelling compliance
KEIFIK AR EHARERERBIEHAR
6. Use of materials 14. Occupational health and safety 22. Intellectual property
YR A BERERLZ D R
7. Waste management 15. Employee training 23. Customer privacy and data protection
R E R EE3IER BB RBBERE
8. Environmental compliance 16. Employee development 24. Responsible supply chain management
REAR EEERE BEENHEEER
17. Prevention of child labour and forced 25. Business ethics
labour E¥ER
TEET RAAST 26. Socio-economic compliance

HEEEER
. Community #E

27. Community investment

HEERE
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By understanding the most relevant ESG topics to the
Group and its stakeholders, we can formulate our business
and CSR strategies to concentrate on CSR issues of
higher priority. Materiality assessment is a key component
of our stakeholder engagement. More importantly, we can
address the expectations and concerns of the

Do REBHRE

stakeholders, as summarised below:

Key Concerns From
Stakeholders
BRENEEMER

Our Responses

# FIay Bl 8

BB TRUAKEREFNERSEBNIRE
HEEEREE  RMAAUHERMANESREE
HEEEEE UEISEENECEHEEEM
B BRUFNEERMBNELEN —BERS
BT SBnENRERRT
BEHEE BT

Section

Socio-economic
Compliance
HEEEER

Business Ethics
EEIEE

Responsible Supply Chain
Management

BERENHERERE

We comply with all legislation and voluntary
commitments that are pertinent to our business. To
highlight our efforts, various certificates or permits we
obtained are listed throughout the sections of the
Report.

BB RE MO EBEBO B ER & B RAR
REBBMANG D > BAESHNEEZERFAZET
MR EZE ©

The Group has always followed the principles of
“Law-abiding, Honesty, Fairness, and Anti-corruption”,
and takes a zero-tolerance approach to any
behaviours that violates integrity. An Anti-corruption
Policy is in place to set out anti-corruption standards.
REBMBREB/ITE -BE 2E REBIHR
8 HEMERBENHTAEDNERAEE - 2HlE
RIBBBE - RE T RBEBIRE - WERAERBEK A
REREZBHAFREAENTETRIREAY -

We strive to ensure the value chain is sustainable
and of good quality. We adopt green procurement
for the selection of suppliers. Our operation is
accredited with 1ISO28000:2007. More details of the
selection, evaluation and supplier engagement are
disclosed in this year’s Report.

BABORBERAFEREBENEERE - RMKALK&
EXBIFAZEHER BRMANEEEEA
ISO28000 : 2007 A& ° ¥ - FIAREEHLDENE
SHBEERERFENRERE -

SUSTAINABLE
OPERATIONS
AR E

SUSTAINABLE
OPERATIONS —
Business Ethics

ARERE — BEEE

SUSTAINABLE
OPERATIONS — Supply
Chain Management
AISELE — HERE
b
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Key Concerns From
Stakeholders
B ENEERERS

Environmental Compliance
RIESH

Customer Privacy and Data
Protection

BEPILEBMERRE

Customer Satisfaction

EFmEE

Our Responses

H ey Bl e

We have implemented an environmental management
system accredited with the international standard of
ISO 14001:2015. Our operations have received
official pollutant discharge permits from the Chinese
government. We also engage third parties to conduct
regular testing on air emission, noise, and
wastewater discharge to ensure the compliance.
KB EMEISO 14001 : 2015B R IZEREFERIRIE
EERBR BMNEECEFSTREBARENE S
VEETAIRE c MMM EEE=ZF EHETREHEN B
B REKGEHOAE - ATRER

We value our stakeholders’ privacy and data security.
We have implemented a robust set of procedures to
protect the stakeholders’ privacy by enhancing data
protection stewardship.
BMERFOHENLEBNEHN LS - BHMEHRT —F&
BE2NEF  BRMRENREEERREFNHED
FLEE o

We are committed to enhancing customer satisfaction
by ensuring the quality of our products. Our award-
winning quality management system is accredited by
the international standard ISO 9001:2015 and IATF
16949:2016, which demonstrates our capability in
providing goods and services that meet customer
expectations. We have also been maintaining close
communication with customers to understand their
needs, expectations and feedbacks.

BN ERERERMELRNRERREESEFME
E-BMESNREEERADESBERBEZE
ISO 9001 : 2015 R IATF 16949 : 20168327 « =& HA
BMARNBEFETPHENE R KR - KM
—EREEPRETRYER  NTHREENFR - HE
MREER -
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SUSTAINABLE OPERATIONS

Business Ethics

Core values of the Group address “Unity and Mutual
Trust”. Throughout the entire business operation, we
constantly uphold ethical standards. During the Reporting
Period, the Group was not aware of any material breach of
laws and regulations relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and
money laundering such as the “Prevention of Bribery
Ordinance” in Hong Kong, nor any concluded legal cases
regarding corrupt practices against the Group or its
employees.

Anti-corruption, Fraud and Anti-money Laundering
The Group has been consistently complying with the
principles of “Law-abiding, Honesty, Fairness and
Anti-corruption” and is stringently against bribery and
improper business conduct. We take a zero-tolerance
approach to any behaviours of bribery and unfair business
practices.

An Anti-corruption Policy is in place to set out
anti-corruption standards. This policy shall be applied to all
employees (full time and part time) of the Group and
related third parties who deal with the Group (e.g.
consultants, contractors, suppliers, agents and customers).
Any forms of corruption (such as offering or accepting any
benefits or advantages) and unfair business practices (such
as collusion) are strictly prohibited.

Employees are required to disclose any potential conflict of
interest. We also require our business partners to sign an
integrity declaration and a non-disclosure agreement to
ensure that our business relationship is built upon integrity.
If any business partner is found to violate the respective
requirements, the Group will put them on a supplier
blacklist, permanently suspend the business collaboration
with the relevant parties, inform people involved in the
business of their misconduct, and reserve the right to take
legal action.

R HBRERRE (H)

AFEEE

rERE

[BREEEIRARBENZOEER - NEBEXS

LEBIET  HFBKRBERFRE - RHREH

W CAREESTAETMEEEREEBE B
CRGE RO ER AR - BB LB

17%1 1 RAAMBEASHEAREEKERBENOE

BOTRNEEREREM -

RIEM - sEBR R ITE &
REERKERETE BE AL RIEBEERIH
RA| B MBERITARTEENEETR
BRI ARTAENEETARNET
ARBEE o

AEBECDHERBREEK  HETREBRIRE-
ZBFERRARENABREE (ZRERE) A
RERNEEEERNAREE =77 (PIEER - 4%
BE - HER KERRER) - BRELLERAE
ANBR(MREIXZEANEHRDE) TR
EMRETR (WA

BEVARBETMAEENMNEZER - HMATER
BANEBRH BRI EEARRT B - AR
REPNEBHEEELEAREERZ L - HEXE
BEHERBHELR  AEEGHEIAHRER
BRE - EBEBATKAKRLEE UEBEBTE
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We have also encouraged our employee to strengthen their
legal knowledge and awareness by joining the 2022 Public
Legal Services Awareness Week of Daya Bay Popularising
Basic Knowledge of Law.

During the Reporting Period, we offered about 2,761
hours of anti-corruption training to the Board, management
and employees through classroom training and
self-learning.

Whistleblowing and Investigation

The Group is committed to maintaining a high standard of
integrity, openness, probity and accountability. We have
adopted a Whistleblowing Policy and employees are
encouraged to report any suspected behaviours of bribery
and dishonesty, as well as other CSR issues to the Group
or the staff committee in confidence and anonymity, either
in writing or over the phone. All cases will be properly
investigated in a strict, meticulous and timely manner.
Whistle-blowers will be assured of fair treatment, including
protection against unfair dismissal, victimisation or
unwarranted disciplinary action, even if the concerns turn
out to be unsubstantiated.

The Audit Committee will assess every report received and
decide if a full investigation is necessary. If an investigation
is warranted, the Audit Committee will then review the
matter and decide how the investigation should proceed.
The actions to be taken by the Group after investigations
include disciplinary action, termination of employment or
preventive action. Cases of suspected corruption or other
criminal offences will be reported to Independent
Commission Against Corruption and other relevant
regulators or authorities.

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022

BATEE2NMATER T —_FEEEQ
LERMBEFEEREHEEE  BIEE NS

ZREPIE PSRN

BEHAN RMABERERINEERE RES
g EEEMERREMKT 2761/ KRB R

=l

ERRAE

AEBEHNINERSRENHE  AF EER
&S - B RMBRMEEK - SBEREARE
FEATANEAXEELANAIEELEESR
BeRBEMAIRNBERETHETR  UWRE
o EH e EERE - AEEKARRK - AH KL
REOTAUAARMFETES RS - RAR
BERATHEFRBRA  BEHLETAFEE 5
EREIRLER D - EERRERRELEE -

ERZBEHFHRINEO®RE  LRERST
BULBETEEHAE - WALEETHE B
ZESREESHEWRENFETHE - AEE
REBRERDNTHERELERY - KILER
BRRIEDER - PREBREMMELFENER
HHERE TRIXABMEAM AR BB A AR -



AL, SOCIAL"AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Supply Chain Management

We are dedicated to making sure that our production
process maximises value for the Group and its
stakeholders. This entails improving the efficiency of our
supply chain management whilst ensuring the quality of our
products. In order to accomplish this, we have established
an objective supplier selection system and a
well-organised supplier and product quality management
system. We also closely collaborate with our suppliers and
business partners to maintain a stable supply chain.

We consider supply chain management to be essential to
achieve sustainable operations. With this goal, we
established a sound supply chain management system to
assess the product quality and level of environmental and
social impacts and viability of all of our suppliers. During
the Reporting Period, we collaborated with 712 suppliers
from 7 countries/regions. Details of the supplier distribution
are summarised in the table below:

RE #HEREREE ()

e EE

BRI RNERERANEERESARE R AR
EFREANEE -EF2RSRMAMEEERE
B FANERIMERNEE - RERE—
B BRI TRENHEREERR Uk
TENHERRERLGEEERR - HAFEM
BRI R EBRBHBIENE  AERIRERNHEE -

BRARAHEREEHERUBELESHE
2 -REBERE-BF BAEITR2OMHER
EERE AFGERRE  REKFREEHN
TERELMBHRERANETED KREBSH
W BMERE7TEBER R 7T12RK M ERE
17T aE - TRBAHERD HEFS -

2022 2021
—g=-= —E-—%

Total Number of Suppliers fi & i 48 £X 712 686
Number of Suppliers by Geographical Region 1% [E 2l 5 Byt rEE & B
China & 677 646
Hong Kong & % 21 23
United States 3= & 6 6
Others H A 8 11
Sustainable Supply Chain oI iE L rEeE
To identify, monitor and manage environmental and social BEA - BEEREEAEEREN T SRR R

risks along the supply chain, we have been considering
the impacts to society and the environment throughout the
entire supply chain. We strive to lessen the carbon impact
and waste generation associated with the supply chain
while upholding the health and safety requirements and
working conditions of our suppliers.

Additionally, we are certified with the ISO 28000:2007
Supply Chain Security Management System which
demonstrates, among others, our efforts on securing the
supply.

MEFEEBEAHREEETERIRENTE - &
M NmEHERBENREE R EYES
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Selection on Suppliers

We prefer to collaborate with suppliers that adhere to
social and environmental standards. Before we develop the
business relationship with a new supplier, the new supplier
will go through a supplier assessment which assesses its
environmental and social impacts.

The minimum requirement for our suppliers is to pass the
ISO 9001:2015 quality management system audited by an
independent third party, whilst the obtaining of IATF
16949:2016 quality system certification would be much
encouraged. Subcontractors which work on-site are
required to comply with our workplace safety, chemical
safety, fire safety and other health and safety
requirements.

Cartficaie OIS

e g e

KA Y1 TECHNOLOGY
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o5
:!!l‘lil-ll—
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BAECEESEE MRRENNEERSIE -
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EEZLAEBRHBERAFHEREREERE -

RS EEENSREERRBEBYE = EX
#JISO 9001 : 2015 ME BRE R - AHMEE K
LHEBIATF 16949 : 2016 B E X RE - £1RI5
EENDBRMVBETRANIIESLE - &
BRLr EHMETERHMEREZZENK -

= ESGS

ISO 28000:2007
KaVi 25
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Green Procurement

Once the supplier is selected, it is required to sign an
environmental, health and safety agreement with the
Group. We also expect our suppliers to make the supplier
environmental declaration to declare compliance with the
European Union RoHS and REACH directives' of materials
supplied. These regulations address the production and
use of chemical substances, and their potential impacts on
both human health and the environment. The Production
and Planning Department of the Group will require the
materials to comply with such regulations even if our
customers do not have such specific environmental
protection requirements for the product. We will not
purchase any materials that are not environmentally friendly
in our practice.

Evaluation and Engagement with Suppliers

The evaluation of suppliers includes both annual and
occasional assessments. On-site inspections and
questionnaires are conducted annually. Apart from the
aspects such as product safety requirements, product legal
and regulatory requirements and the certification level of
the supplier’s quality management system which the
routine assessment would cover, the Production and
Planning Department may occasionally perform
assessments in special circumstances, such as, in the
event of short production capacity of the supplier or a
product return requested from customer attributable to the
supplier.

1 RoHS stands for the Restriction of Hazardous Substances, which is
a European directive restricting the use of 10 specific substances in
electronics and electrical equipment. REACH stands for the
Registration, Evaluation, Authorization, and Restriction of Chemicals.
REACH is a European regulation that restricts the use of certain
chemical substances in all parts and products manufactured, sold,
and imported.
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Save for the aforesaid environmental and social standards,
our suppliers must also meet requirements on their supply
scale, quality, and overall performance in order to meet our
production standards and customer expectations. Our
professional supplier assessment panel will assess the
performance of our suppliers based on product quality,
delivery time, customer complaint (if any), and other
environmental and CSR-related aspects, on an monthly
and annual basis, to efficiently manage the product quality
of our suppliers. Product material suppliers and processing
suppliers are required to sign the confidentiality agreement
and integrity management agreement with the Production
and Planning Department of the Group if needed.

Sub-performing suppliers will have to make prompt
improvements to keep themselves on our approved
supplier list. Additionally, we place a high value on our
suppliers’ continual advancement and that we have
developed plans to encourage them to improve their
quality management system by establishing ISO 9001:2015
and/or IATF 16949:2016 quality management system.

Enhancing Customer Satisfaction

With sincere gratitude to our customers for their trust over
the past 40 years, we strive to build and maintain their
confidence in our products. We are committed to offering
them the highest quality products, services, and support.
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Quality Management

Our ability and capacity to deliver goods and services that
satisfy customer expectations amid challenges are
evidenced by the accreditation of our quality management
system by the international standards ISO 9001:2015 and
IATF 16949:2016. By obtaining the IATF 16949
certification, we have demonstrated our dedication to
making continuous improvements and our ability to
minimize defect, variation, and waste in the supply chain
and assembly process of the automotive component
industry.

IATF 16949:2016
Ka Shui Technology
FImEHR
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Quality Control

To consistently ensure that our products meet our quality
standards and customer expectations, our rigorous quality
control system covers the entire manufacturing cycle from
raw materials to end products. Raw materials,
semi-finished products, and end products all undergo
routine quality inspections. Our skilled quality control
personnel will strictly adhere to our internal rules and
protocols regarding quality requirements. If any
non-conforming products are found, we will assess the
possibility of taking any remedial actions or proceed to
recall the non-conforming products.

During the Reporting Period, no sold or shipped products
were subject to product recalls for safety and health
reasons. There was no material breach of relevant laws
and regulations relating to health and product safety,
advertising, labelling and privacy matters in connection to
the products and services provided by the Group.

Customer Satisfaction

We have formulated the client complaint handling
procedure with reference to ISO 9000:2015 Quality
Management Systems — Fundamentals and Vocabulary,
which serves as an effective manual for our personnel to
follow in order to gather customer feedback and
complaints in a proper manner, so as to address their
concerns to enhance customer satisfaction.

To ensure that our products satisfy the expectation of the
customers, we maintain close communication with our
customers, and welcome any feedbacks and complaints
made by the customers. We also recall the relevant
products (if appropriate) and carefully investigate all
complaints and feedback for future improvements.

All feedbacks and complaints received from our customers
will be promptly handled by the corresponding
departments, including management, sales and quality
departments. In the meantime, the feedbacks and
complaints will be recorded on the customer complaint
report summary table. Our personnel will conduct statistical
analysis and generate a report regarding the table, as well
as monitoring the implementation of improvement. The
reports will be dispatched to relevant departments and
stored in the shared backup drive.

In addition to the customer satisfaction survey that we
send to our customers regularly, we also developed a
scorecard to quantify customer’s satisfaction. The
scorecard is consolidated based on the statistics of target
and related customers collected on the monthly basis,
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covering items such as information on timely delivery,
excess or additional freight, number of customer
complaints, and product return rates.

During the Reporting Period, we received 24 complaint
cases regarding our products and services, all of which
were properly handled and investigated in accordance with
our complaint handling procedures.

Product Safety

The Group attaches great importance to product safety.
We undertake a product quality audit every year to assess
our products against numerous safety criteria and
determine whether they pose any safety risks in order to
make sure that they adhere to the safety standards.

Corrective and preventive measures will be taken promptly
should we identify any non-conformity throughout the
process. Upon identification of non-conforming products,
the associated departments will mark the non-conforming
materials in accordance with the protocol of identification
and traceability process and conducted analysis on the
defect and its effect. We also maintain detailed records for
all non-conforming products including quantity, location,
date, and other applicable traceability information. We shall
seek customers’ opinion before we take any remedial
actions.

Intellectual Property

We are dedicated to safeguarding our intellectual property
rights in order to increase our competitiveness in
technological innovation. To standardise the management
of the application, acquisition, and maintenance of the
Group’s intellectual property, the Group has established a
sound management system and formulated our Intellectual
Property Protection Management Procedure, which stated
the responsibilities of associated departments on
intellectual property protection. In particular, the Expansion
Centre is responsible for gathering the intellectual property
data of the industry and industry participants from various
channels, in view of the latest projects, R&D activities of
the Company and changes in the market environment.

We will also take proactive intellectual property protection
measures with regard to products or expected products
produced by R&D projects. To minimise the related risks,
our marketing department will monitor and record the
relevant information regarding the countries and regions
where our products are sold in the preparation of the
“Product Intellectual Property Risk Monitoring Table”.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of
any non-compliance with applicable laws and regulations
relating to intellectual property regarding our products and
services.
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Data Protection

The Group understands the importance of privacy to all
stakeholders, including our customers, employees, and
business partners. Adhering to our information
management policy, we have implemented a stringent set
of procedures to protect the stakeholders’ privacy:

AEETHELBHAERNE (BERMANES
BTMEKGEBH)NEEN - RARMNE
BEEREK  BMERT —EEBHREFRFE
Frin HHFLEE -

Data protection responsibilities of
different bodies and scope of our
data protection are clearly defined
REREAERBNEEHRES ER
FMpEERESER

The documents which are classified
as confidential information are to be

clearly labelled and properly stored
BB EESHHNE
ARETNLEEZERE

Except in the following circumstances, no third party will
receive access to the personal information of associated
personnel:

The retrieval of such
information is restricted
HEEENREEZEIRE

BRIATERSN - HEAABNEAEESTERE

E =77 "R :

(" )

When no specific personal data can be
identified from the published content
RAFREPE LR EENEAER

\ J

When obtaining the consent of
the concerned individual
BEFREARE

When disclosing to a third party that is ( \
bound by the confidentiality agreement When required by the law
with the Group, for a necessary purpose EET
EHRYEEN BE=FHER ZE=H
FFEAEEIREHHROLR \_ )

Employees that disobey the private information ERALBEERERBAEANBISWES W AE

confidentiality system will be warned and immediately
removed from their current position. In the event of serious
circumstances, they might be demoted or dismissed. We
encourage employees to monitor each other on the
compliance of the information management policy. Every
employee has a responsibility to report any violation of the
policy. Employees who report violations of the privacy and
confidentiality system may receive rewards upon
verification.
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Innovation and Research
To promote industrial innovation and boost productivity, we
stay focused to create smart manufacturing facilities.

QOur production sites currently have a real-time, end-to-end
production management system in place that greatly
enhances production data authentication, lowers manual
error, and boosts quality and production efficiency while
enabling the traceability of the production of any batch of
products or individual products. The Group will accelerate
the adoption of “Industry 4.0” in its manufacturing facilities
in China to enhance the use of the Industrial Internet of
Things (“lloT”) for machine interface and to use lloT data
for additional data analysis with an aim to enhance
production efficiency over time.

PROTECTING OUR ENVIRONMENT

As part of our ongoing efforts to reduce our carbon
footprint and tackle the environmental issues we confront,
the Group continuously improves and enhances our
environmental management practises and manufacturing
process. As a result, we have put in place an
environmental management system that has been certified
to the international standard 1ISO 14001:2015. We have
appointed external consultants to conduct annual
examinations of air emissions, wastewater discharges, and
noise generation in order to assure strict compliance with
all applicable environmental laws and regulations.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of
any material non-compliance with laws and regulations
relating to air and greenhouse gas (“GHG”) emissions,
discharges into water and land, generation of waste and
use of resources, including, among others, the
“Environmental Protection Law of the PRC" and the Law
on the Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution of
the PRC. Furthermore, the Group was not aware of any
issue in sourcing water that is fit for purpose.
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During the Reporting Period, the Group’s total GHG REWEBPAN AEENRERBALERR
emission was 32,372.45 tonnes of carbon dioxide 32,372.45 0 ZE iR EE (AW |k E
equivalent (“tCO,e”), with an intensity of 44.50 tCO,e per %J) CEREREAEBMNEMI4.0NH — ALk

'*é"-E

million pieces of product.

GHG Emission? Unit 2022 2021
i = RIS HE ES{i —®= —EB-—f§

Scope 1 — Direct GHG emissions® tCOe 3,045.44 3,821.79

#HET — EEAERBHENRC A SR E =

Scope 2 — Energy indirect GHG tCOe 29,259.23 38,723.31
emissions* N = - s

FE2 — BREEEE RN

Scope 3 — Other indirect emissions® tCOe 67.78 8.23
@E3 — EmME R AW EACHEE
Total GHG emissions tCOe 32,372.45 42,553.32
REBEHER ’D\ﬂfﬁﬁ_%ﬂ:ﬁ EE
GHG Intensity tCO,e/million pieces of product 44.50 29.00
BERBEHNEE AME—ELikEE
FEEHER
2 The calculation had made reference to GHG Protocol — Emission 2 L HEE2ZRERERE — BANNRHEIAR
Factors from Cross-Sector Tools and the published emission factors BRSPS [ I R EIRE (e REAME M=
of the “How to prepare an ESG Report Appendix 2: Reporting IRIF R E SUEIZERIES| | R ATH 2 BB HERRE -
Guidance on Environmental KPIs” published by HKEx.
8 Scope 1 emissions represent direct GHG emissions generated by the 8 HE—IEETERBEREFARLE IR EENE
use of refrigerant and fuels for stationary and mobile sources. EREREEHEN
4 Scope 2 emissions represent energy indirect GHG emissions ¢ HWE —HRIEFERENRRATMEEANEREELE
generated by the use of electricity and natural gas. SEEHERR -
5 Scope 3 emissions cover other indirect emissions associated with 5 HE =B IE AR R B 58 & A0 A R B
the Group’s business operation, which include the emissions derived W HRBERME ITMEBEIRITEEMEER - B’F=
from business travel of our employees. Our 2022 Scope 3 T FNHE—ENEAR I —FMENE R
emissions is greater than that in 2021 due to the resumption of air HRIEMREIRTTIR G RIE T M= EIKTT - ZBUIR A
business travel in the light of the relaxation in travel restrictions. The M= RBIREFTIRENER(EBETHT - BERER
figure was estimated based on the mileage information provided by 20,490 B I NZE256,943 A £ ©

the air carriers. The total travel distance has increased from
20,490km to 256,943 km.
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Despite the decrease in the total GHG emissions from
42,5568.32 tCOe to 32,372.45 tCO,e in 2022, the GHG
intensity has increased in 2022 due to the considerable
decrease in our pieces of products, which is attributable to
negative impacts brought by COVID-19 on our business,
as set out in the section “Management Discussion And
Analysis” in this report.

We aim to reduce total GHG intensity (per million pieces of
products) by 41% by 2030 from a 2019 base year. With
the effective implementation of our environmental
management system, energy conservation initiatives and
energy efficiency upgrades for equipment, we are on track
of achieving this target. Compared with the intensity of
total GHG emissions in 2019 (63.25 tCO,e/million pieces of
product), we have attained a carbon abatement of 30% in
2022.

Minimising Environmental Impacts

By minimising the impacts on the environment, we
enhance sustainability at every stage of our manufacturing
processes. During our manufacturing processes of
stationary machineries and motor vehicles, including die
casting, moulding, and scrapping, wastewater and air
pollutants are the main sources of our environmental
impacts. Such emissions, discharge and noise are closely
monitored to make sure they strictly adhere to regulatory
standards.

Air Emissions

The air emission level of our manufacturing facilities strictly
adheres to Guangdong Province’s DB44/27-2001
“Emission Limits of Air Pollutants.” We engage a third party
to conduct the air quality inspection on an annual basis to
make sure compliance. The Group’s air emissions are
mainly attributable to the exhaust gas generated by the
injection moulding machines during the high-temperature
melting process and the dust generated during the
crushing process.

New initiatives and technologies are adopted to mitigate
such impacts, such as the installation of emission
reduction devices. Before emission, the dust and waste
gas generated in the process of injection moulding are
treated by UV photolysis. On top of that, real-time
monitoring system is adopted to keep track with the
emission level.

HEREREE (R)

BEREREAY K HR42,553.32 M8 — &b it
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Es BAEAEREENEENR T - _F1%
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FEERVIRERE
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RE #HERERERE(H)

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s total air RmERRN - ARENEERSMEENERE
emissions generated from production activities, stationary W2 BEMPHERE MREREMERS T ¢

fuel usage and mobile fuel usage were as follows:

Air Emissions® Unit 2022 2021
R Bl —g== —F=—%

Nitrogen Oxides’ @ &1t #)7 Kilograms (*kg”) 877.47 1,820.47
AFF
Sulphur Oxides #i &b %) kg AT 9.31 12.85
Particulate Matter Z8#14) kg AT 5,837.02 14,007.23
Benzene & kg AT 59.09 51.08
Toluene and Xylene A& —FK kg AT 63.238 749.44
Volatile Organic Compound & 3 1 B #(L A 1) kg AfF 3,149.10 4,818.10
Sulphuric Acid Mist #i B 7% kg AfF =9 30.31
Sulphur Dioxide — &b #i kg AT 156.26 896.72
Non-methane Hydrocarbons 3FFR i @b & ¥ kg AfT 1,375.14 1,112.92
Dimethylbenzene — B & kg AfF 63.23 —10

6 The air emission generated by the use of company vehicles is 6 FRAARERHEEMNERERERED BOBELER
disclosed based on available data record only. We will continue to T RMBEERSERMNBIBRKESE -
improve our data collection methodology.

7 The emission of nitrogen oxides in 2021 only covers direct emission 7 R FRECVNHREBRSEERE O EE
from production plants, whereas that in 2022 includes the direct W MRS FREEERENEETREEE &
emission from production plants and combustion of stationary and BEIRE R -
mobile fuels.

8 Our operations in 2022 did not generate xylene. 8 KM —FMELWTEE-FRE -

0 Our operations in 2022 did not generate sulphuric acid mist. g KM —FMELWTEEMES -

1 Not recorded in 2021. 10 T —FWREKS o
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Wastewater Discharge

R HBRERRE (H)

BEIK HER

TREATMENT PROCESS

BRERRE

Initial Anaerobic

Co%g;tl%on > F"’;?g%‘i";‘,ﬁj‘m Sedimentation Treatment
- - AR FREmE

The effluent produced from production and general
washing contribute to our wastewater discharge. Our
wastewater goes through a robust treatment process to
remove organic material and pollutants before discharge.
The wastewater generated is properly treated before being
recycled or discharged. Therefore, we can protect the
water sources nearby by safely returning the wastewater to
the environment.

We regularly inspect and clean our wastewater treatment
facility to ensure it functions normally. External consultants
are engaged to examine our wastewater at least once a
year following the “Discharge Standard for Pollutants from
Electroplating” (DB1597-2015) and “Environmental Quality
Standards for Surface Water” (GB 3838-2002). The
inspection ensures that the volume of organic material and
pollutants is within acceptable ranges. The results show
that the items that affect the quality of water such as
suspended solids and pH value in our discharged
wastewater are within or below the established limits.

During the Reporting Period, the intensities of our water
Consumption and discharge were 269.96 and 4.96 cubic

o Further
> Oxg?ﬂon > Sedimentation
3 BRLR

Recycled as

Greywater
G Hv K [B1 2 FI| £

BB BERN T RAREER —RBEFMESE
K)757K o BAPIAY BE K TE PE R AT A% B B R R ) JE 12
MIREBR BT E K52 - RIEERNEEKTE
BRSBTS ETEE RIE - ALt - MY
LA 38 {5 B2 /K %2 2 #h 0] 31| 3R 3% A SR AR 8 P 3 A 7K
IR ©

R TEHBREY S Z2EKERERME - AERED
BEIER - IRBC(EHFAOS LY BEUR %) (DB1597-
2015) M b RKIRIEE E 12 %) (GB  3838-
2002) * HMEZIEINIBEMSFEZE VBB — XK
PIREEK - ZBERAEREEDERSEYHE
REFEEMNEINBER - AL RRE - HM5E
B EKPNGEF Y RpHES L KENER Y
EREEREARKIAT ©

RBEHR - BRPNAKERERERE DR A
FHEMESR269.96 %4.965 7K ([T FK])

a4

meters (“m®”) per million pieces of product respectively.
Freshwater %7K m? 3775 K 196,368.90 246,423.62
Intensity %€ m?3/million pieces of product 269.96 167.93
NFKRSBEHER
Wastewater %7K m? 3 J3 oK 3,609.00 4,603.62
Intensity % & me/million pieces of product 4.96 3.14
SR/ BBHEM

Despite the decrease in the total water consumption and
total discharge of wastewater in 2022, the respective
intensities have increased in 2022 due to the considerable
decrease in our pieces of products, which is attributable to
negative impacts brought by COVID-19 on our business,
as set out in the section “Management Discussion And
Analysis” in this report.

BEBRKERBEKBFRN T __FTF%

mxamfrw_z::iﬁm RERZHL D
EmFEAERD  ERA/HLUTRESHHK

ﬁ%%%%%é@%% BRAFRERNAREE
B W] —&f

CECCEER ERERERERLF
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We aim to:

° Reduce water consumption by 5% by 2030 from a
2019 base year;

° Reduce the intensity of water consumption (per million
pieces of products) by 34% by 2030 from a 2019
base year; and

° Reduce the intensity of wastewater discharge (per
million pieces of products) by 50% by 2030 from a
2019 base year.

With the effective implementation of our water
conservation and repurposing initiatives, we are on track of
achieving the above targets. Compared with the water
consumption figures in 2019, we have reduced:

° Total water consumption by 24% (2019: 258,744.23
md)

o Water consumption intensity by 33% (2019: 401.33
m3/million pieces of product)

o Total wastewater discharge by 94% (2019:
64,300.92 md);

o Wastewater discharge intensity by 95% (2019: 99.74
m3/million pieces of product)

Noise Generation

The level of noise output of our manufacturing facilities
complies strictly with GB12348-2008, which is known as
the “Emission Standard for Industrial Enterprises Noise at
Boundary”. We choose equipment that produces less noise
and is more efficient, and by optimising the layout of the
workshop and adding solid walls, we have increased the
sound insulation of our workshop. To preserve its energy
efficiency and to decrease the amount of time and
frequency that the equipment is used, our machinery is
well-maintained and that we make use of the most of it
when it is running.

We conducted noise testing by an independent third-party
consultant under GB 12348-2008. The testing reports
show that the noise level of our operation was within the
acceptable range from all testing points one meter outside
our plants.
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R HBRERRE (H)

Environmental Performance RIEEWN

A sustainable solution to combating climate change is to 1%%?&1??{3’]E%ﬁﬁ)}ﬁ?ﬂﬁﬂlﬂ{tmTTiZ*ﬁtF
conserve our natural resources. In order to encourage a RER - ARAFHVEBRMEEEETESEMX
sense of conservation and foster a green workplace £t - BHESHEEEERERENAZLIES -

culture, we have established a set of internal guidance on
resource management.

During the Reporting Period, the intensities of energy RI|EBA - EIRBERE - RMEDERERBEME
consumption, raw material consumption and packaging BREBRESANATE & M4EMB1.95IKFL /N -
material consumption were 81.95 MWh per million pieces BEEBHEMB 26 AR EBEBMHEM1.03RMNE

of product, 8.26 tonnes per million pieces of product and
1.03 tonnes per million pieces of product respectively.

Resource Consumption Unit 2022 2021
EiRHE E5 i —

Total Energy Consumption g&JRSE &= MWh JK L /) B 59,615.01 68,731.44

Total Energy Intensity sERZE B = MWh/million pieces of product 81.95 46.84
KE/NE,/ B EBHER

Direct Energy Consumption EEBARHEFE MWh JK EL /)N 13,713.98 20,508.89

— Natural Gas KAR MWh JK ET /)N 7,905.98 11,482.03

— Diesel Oil 48 MWh JK FL /)N 3,868.91 3,850.49

— Unleaded Petrol and Gasoline MWh JK /)N 1,919.21 2,118.98

n /‘L/Hﬂ

= quueﬂed Petroleum Gas (‘LPG”)" MWh JK /) B 19.89 3,057.40
T =D =R

Indirect Energy Consumption

R BB R

— Purchased Electricity 2 E &S /) MWh JK /)N 45,901.03 48,222.55

Raw Material Consumption R #1#H5E 7 Tonnes ‘A& 6,009.90 6,999.20

— Plastic 28 Tonnes A M 2,423.73 3,681.15

— Magnesium alloy 4 & Tonnes ‘AMA 2,475.66 2,565.13

— Aluminium alloy 84 & Tonnes ‘AMA 976.13 609.52

— Zinc alloy &% Tonnes ‘A& 134.39 143.40

Total Raw Material Consumption Intensity | Tonnes/million pieces of product 8.26 4.77

BRMEEREEE NPy

" The consumption of LPG in 2021 covers the use of the fuel as mobile n —EFNRIEAOBREREREFEREABRLEE

and stationary fuel, whereas that in 2022 only includes the use of BRELRIREL - Th — 2 = —FEREFEREABRERESN
the fuel as stationary fuel. PR} o
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Resource Consumption

HiRHFE

Packaging Material Consumption
BEYEER

— Carton Boxes #%#8

— Plastic Bags 8B 4%

— Stickers Bh 4%

— Wood Boards /AR#f

— Others E b

Total Packaging Material Consumption
Intensity 488 2 Y EDE R E

Paper Consumption #% 3% 4

Paper Consumption Intensity
MIRERER R

Unit 2022 2021

B i —g=-z= —B-—f

Tonnes A 705.98 987.91

Tonnes A 550.43 617.97

Tonnes A 46.60 54.18

Tonnes A 3.31 11.44

Tonnes A 105.41 294.22

Tonnes A 0.23 10.09

Tonnes/million pieces of product 0.97 0.67
AWE BB HE SR

Tonnes A 4.39 15.42

Tonnes/million pieces of product 0.006 0.011
PNWE BB HE SR

Despite the decrease in the total energy consumption in
2022, the total energy intensity has increased in 2022 due
to the considerable decrease in our pieces of products,
which is attributable to negative impacts brought by
COVID-19 on our business, as set out in the section
“Management Discussion And Analysis” in this report.

We aim to:

o Reduce the intensity of total energy consumption (per
million pieces of products) by 33% by 2030 from a

2019 base year;

o Reduce the intensity of paper consumption (per million
pieces of products) by 46% by 2030 from a 2019

base year; and

o Reduce the intensity of packaging material
consumption (per million pieces of products) by 50%

by 2030 from a 2019 base year.

With the effective implementation of our resource
conservation initiatives, we are on track of achieving the
above targets. Compared with the figures in 2019, we

have reduced:

o Paper consumption intensity by 70% (2019: 0.02

tonne/million pieces of product)

o Packaging material consumption intensity by 11%
(2019: 1.16 tonnes/million pieces of product)
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Clean Production

Clean production is important to metal alloy die casting
and plastic injection moulding industry because it helps to
protect the environment, reduce operating costs, and
improve product quality. In the metal alloy die casting and
plastic injection moulding industries, waste such as scrap
metal, unused materials, and excess plastic can be harmful
to the environment. Clean production techniques minimise
waste, reduce pollution and environmental degradation
caused by the process. By reducing waste, it significantly
reduces operating costs and improves efficiency.

The Hong Kong — Guangdong Cleaner Production
Partners Recognition Scheme is launched by the
Environmental Protection Department of the Government of
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region, in
collaboration the then Economic and Information
Commission of Guangdong Province. It awards
commendations to those Hong Kong-owned enterprises
which demonstrate active participation in cleaner
production. Ka Shui was awarded as one of the Hong
Kong — Guangdong Cleaner Production Partners in the
manufacturing industry.

RE #HEREREE ()

AREE

BREEHRASEEMER IBRETEMS
EHEZR  RAREIRRERE B EEK
AARRBEMEE - A B MERBITEE
TENEDE ERMHLBEBHEREREYY
REAT - FREERMEARERVEREY
fREAEBETHISRERTRIL - BLBEEY
ERARERELSERANMEDRE -

BEFRITHERBITIRERES EERE QBN
ERILZBEE@AMBERBEREENF RS
RERE2EBREEENBELR - RinAKEE
BBREERH (BUER) W -
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Except for the above mentioned, Ka Shui was also fr EiEIN - RIGTAARSESNEEBRE
awarded regarding its contribution to production in various g7 FBHT
areas, with details as follows:

Value Alliance Award
fE{EH H g
This award mainly recognises our innovative ability in the collaborative
development of magnesium alloy auto parts for Proton Auto’s new
energy commercial vehicles. Previously, our research and development
team and Proton Automobile jointly developed a magnesium alloy
instrument panel beam with a weight reduction rate of 55%
compared with steel beams. The magnesium alloy instrument panel
beam is about 1.9 meters long and adopts a single-piece casting
design. It can not only meet the performance requirements of heavy
trucks but also achieve the lightweight application of magnesium alloy.
WREBEFERREEAMAE FAENERABEREERALTETH
e R ERIFEE S < LA BN BEKEE F)RBHRME
AR ERRER B MBER  REXRIESS% - ZHEA R ER
REREL1.9K - FKA B EER - Bt mE EA REA MRS
R XREBRESMHEIR -

2022 Machinery Standardisation Works — Advanced Collectives
TR CEEREHNER T ERERRE

Ka Shui actively and continuously participates in the formulation of a
number of industry standards, and implements standardised
production in all production processes.

RhEEBE2EEZRETESE  SEEREDERRELLE -
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RE #HEREREE ()

Lean Supply Chain Management Award

R e

Ka Shui was awarded by Lenovo because of our leading experience in
promoting the application of intelligent production. This is a
recognition award of our efforts in promoting data management and
automatic production. As a long-term partner of Lenovo, Ka Shui has
been upgrading our internal digital and intelligent management in order
to meet Lenovo’s high standard and high requirement through our
R&D innovation, advanced manufacturing and efficient management,
which in turn drives sustainable development of the Company.
BHEHEDEREERAHERENITE - Fin KR8 (Lenovo) 18 3
BRI o WIERKE ERTHRMEETEBCEBNE S EESEMR
THEB N - ERBEHNRPESERY - 2in— B NERHEERIBE
FIERERCERAR  AFZERR  FERERSUEBESENET
BMENERERSER EMEPEECENAIFEER -

Outstanding Contribution Award in New Energy Vehicle Industry
2022 S Rensns M E B LR, S e R B AT A 1 RS
Emﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ",ﬁ]ﬂﬂﬂ Ka Shui was accredited with “Outstanding Contribution Award in New
o0 o+ k3o Energy Vehicle Industry” by the organizing committee of the 12th New
Energy Vehicle International Forum. This award is intended to
compliment Ka Shui’s contribution in providing outstanding and stable
production services to auto parts industry.
EinRERE T BRI IERRRIEBAZEREN [ FERTET
FHRHERE] WHRBEERERERAAEZTHMHITERHMEBNIE
EEERBGFMEOER -

Supporting a Greener Community TRHGeEHE

The Group fully supports the global transition to a net zero REBE2NZTHE2HAFTLEREE - BEMY
economy. Apart from our own green initiatives, the Group WNEAEEEEIN  REBRRPUTR A XX HF
is keen on supporting the community’s sustainable projects MENHERREBER REE - NBEHE - &M
and initiatives by different means. During the Reporting ERAZRBOIFAGZETR  EESHARIER
Period, we have placed green deposits with various banks, BARIR  fERBE FERE  [HEKER
and the funds of which were deployed to support BN AERRSRUCE RE BN IFEIRR -

sustainable projects in the areas of renewable energy,
energy efficiency, green buildings, sustainable water
management, as well as the transition to an eco-efficient
economy.
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Below summarises our measures in reducing consumption UT2EMRLERBEENERENHE

of resources:

— Electricity consumption is closely monitored by a designated unit

gh B R BT SR ES A
—0— — |dle lights, machinery and air conditioners are to be turned off
- PEARE R « KR

S — Automatic lights are to be installed at common areas
2 EETE ERHEHRE S BE
Eh — Machinery is well-maintained to ensure its energy efficiency
HEELT RS - DARBEIR AL RER e

— Water consumption is closely monitored by a designated unit
H¥ETE B PIE BRI K2

— Regular analysis is conducted to identify the consumption pattern
EHADITIAREE BRER

— Water pipes are inspected regularly to avoid leakages
TR EKE LA R IR7K

— Email is preferred for document transmission
i E R

— Apart from confidential paper, all used paper is recycled
BRI STIESN - B 7 158 R 38 B0 AR SR 35 1% [ W 1| R

— Printing on both sides of paper is required
WAL FAEEE S E]

— Green procurement is adopted as far as practicable
FERITHIERN TERAA B IRAE
— Production technique is regularly reviewed to enhance efficiency

TE B AT A E BT PALR B AR
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BE HE2REARE(E)

Equipment Upgrades for Carbon Reduction 5% 4% LL iR 4 8% HE B

We have always been carrying out energy saving projects to reduce the carbon footprint of our production
process and achieve sustainable production. Apart from the retrofitting of the water-cooling system, we have
also completed the retrofitting of cooling towers and the polishing and dust removal system.
BM—BEERRERESEER  ARLRMEEBRREPNREN  WERAIFELEE - BRAKLAMESBEESN - B

TRTERK T /% B13E R B e B B B AR M BAUE

The modified cooling powers are equipped with a new temperature modulation system, which can adjust the
cooling temperature at an energy-efficient level. The retrofitted water-cooling system and polishing and dust

removal system are fitted with an energy-efficient water pump.

BUERESAMRERRB T HHRERB RS - A5 aNAE B EEEMRRE - BUER KL ARG R MR E

RO T EIREKR ©

Waste Management

The Group is conscious of the significance of reducing
waste at the source. To prevent unnecessary purchases
and waste, we demand that all operational units increase
their ability to accurately calculate the required amount of
raw materials. We are always enhancing our production
techniques to boost productivity, decrease consumption,
and minimise product failures.

One of our primary waste management strategies is to
increase waste diversion. By instaling a waste sorting
system throughout all production units, we facilitate waste
diversion. Training courses are provided to the employees
to ensure that they are familiar with waste sorting
practices.

Hazardous waste which is classified with reference to the
National Hazardous Waste Inventory of the PRC, including
waste oil residues, paints, sludge, chemicals and their
containers, are separated from non-hazardous waste, and
is properly stored for collection by licensed collectors in
accordance with local laws and regulations. As part of our
proper handling procedures, we additionally label
containers with warning signs and hazard labels to serve
as both a visual cue and a safety measure while dealing
with chemical waste. Contingency plans, such as how to
handle chemical spills, fires, and explosions, are in place to
cope with situations related to handling hazardous waste.

EEHER
AEBRAEIRE LR BEMHERE - B
THRENREIRE  RMIBERMAELESIR
SEEFEMB RV BB MNEN - RA—EE
BOER MM EERIN - ARSEERE B H
FEAEERBENHRIBRBEERE -

EMENETIENERNERREE L — o J’f
BREMBEEEMLTEBEN D BRGIRTERE
ML - RPREERMIZIIRE  BERSER
BEMDEER -

BEEY (MEmEE - Mm% 5k tBmhkE
Rem) 2R(PEARKMNBEBEREZY L) D
B EEZTEYOR  YIEERET - NEOERFT
AHREABRBEMEARLEARIE - (FRHE
fEEREREN—#n  RMERTRKELE
ERBRERRE  FARE(CEREMRNG
BRARZ2EE - LMEFIEESE - UE
HEEEETEMHERNER  MCEmRR
MK TSRS -
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We keep non-hazardous production waste with economic
values, such as leftover metals from production for the
purpose of resale, or smelted for reuse in the production
line. The collectors of the Company are required to comply
with our environmental and safety protocols to avoid
potential harm to the environment and our employees.
During the Reporting Period, the intensities of hazardous
waste and non-hazardous waste were 0.86 and 0.07
tonnes per million pieces of product respectively.

BPREABREEBENEELERY (MEE
FRBNEE)  BREE REARERBRR
HEGLEER - ARRWEAB BB TRMNER
SRLEMRTE  NERHRENESEKBLEDN
P AT E S M4 EMO0.86 AW & 0.07 AME

2022 2021
Waste Generation FEE¥E & Unit BE{if —E=-= —E-—f

Hazardous waste B &) tonnes ‘AW 627.84 963.30

Intensity % & tonnes/million pieces of product 0.86 0.66
NWE/ BENER

Non-hazardous waste #EZEFEY) tonnes A M 49.32 55.49

Intensity % & tonnes/million pieces of product 0.07 0.04
N/ BBHER

Despite the decrease in the hazardous waste generation
and non-hazardous waste generation in 2022, the
respective waste intensities have increased in 2022 due to
the considerable decrease in our pieces of products, which
is attributable to negative impacts brought by COVID-19 on
our business, as set out in the section “Management
Discussion And Analysis” in this report.

We aim to:

o Reduce the intensity of hazardous waste disposal (per
million pieces of products) by 28% by 2030 from a
2019 base year

o Reduce the intensity of non-hazardous waste disposal
(per million pieces of products) by 42% by 2030
from a 2019 base year

With the effective implementation of our waste
management initiatives, we are on track of achieving the
above targets. Compared with the figures in 2019, we
have reduced:

o Hazardous waste generation intensity by 5% (2019:
0.91 tonne/million pieces of product)

o Non-hazardous waste generation intensity by 42%
(2019: 0.12 tonne/million pieces of product)
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MEASURES ON MITIGATING CLIMATE RISK

The intensity and frequency of extreme weather events are
increasing, which is one of the most important
consequences of global warming. We are more vulnerable
to the effects of climate risk because of our business
nature. In case of extreme weather, the Group has created
a business contingency plan to minimise loss and potential
operation disruption. Following steps have been taken to

RE #HEREREE ()

AR SR AR JEL B 4 e
PHREEREBNERZ - REHRREMHOR
ERIAEEM - RONEBHEAERMEIRE
HRERRNTE - AREDHT EEHES
AHE UREROERRRFHEERMANESE
RBRRETELTE - RTRIFE  RAE
ERER AT f8 566

lessen the impact:

Risk and Impact Our Response
EpfRE My ErE

Climate Physical Risk (Acute and Chronic)
FEYIRE S (SEFBY)

Based on the regional environment and changes in
local climatic patterns at the Group’s production
bases, the Group is projected to experience
serious impacts from extreme weather events
including storms and flooding.

R R IR IR R AN 5 B A 2 AL 2 i SRR AR = )
b REBEEH KX I ERFOHLKERmRREMHG
WEREXE -

Environmental, health and safety issues could
result from the excessive rain and flooding’s
potential effects. Stormwater runoffs during a flood
may bring pollutants, such as chemicals, into the
drain. The extreme weather events can also affect
the Company’s workforce safety and supply chain
operation.
BEBRRIKNEELEAREBIRE  BER
Z2HE - KB RKERATEEHEERSE
SERYEATKE - BHAREHNEFERNRA
NRPHEERBEERES -

By performing regular inspections of drainage systems,
we can prevent drain blockage. We will arrange repairs
instantly if any needs are spotted. Our chemical safety
management system has been reinforced to minimise the
risk of chemical leakage. We frequently monitor the
drainage system throughout the rainy season to check
the degree of water quality in the rainfall being
discharged. We will actively monitor the situation and any
weather alerts in the case of a storm, and we will
evacuate the work area as necessary.

BRI AR B BEK R AT 1T E BRI A PAR IEBEKSE & -
MEBEREMFR  RMGEIRTHEE - B2 MEEK
ML EMETE2EREBR Ut ER RN R REER
K A BERBERZTERBKRES - AREFRBERA
MRKEVKEER - FLERRARE - AT GRS R
BRAREMRREAE TRV ERRBTER -
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ENVIRONIVIENTAL SOCIAL AND

?ié& ﬁi(lnﬁ)

Risk and Impact
EpEFRE

Climate Transition Risk

RIEERE M

Policy and Legal

BUR FOE R

Governments from all across the globe have

committed to limiting global warming below 2°C as

the ultimate goal. By declaring that its carbon

emissions will peak by 2030 and that it will

achieve carbon neutrality by 2060, China has also

committed to working toward the goal.

2 IREBBUT B A& 1% 2 IR B R R H FE2°C A T1E

REREER - BBASHAREE _T=2F&

lelléTE WHERZEREFERBRP M I
wENERE—BEZ-

Market and Reputation

g REE

We observed that new laws and standards are
being implemented in light of this global trend, and
that consumers are showing a higher preference
for businesses that are more ecologically and
socially responsible. Any company that is unable to
adjust to these new demands and expectations
faces the risk of suffering not only financial loss
but also reputational damage.

ENZEHRBY - RABRIFMOEREELER
Bt HEEZSELEEFALRRHERERN
¥ EAEEERZSNERRPENRFHE

REEIVBBERAAREEIENER -
Technology
53]

Eco-friendly and energy-efficient production
techniques are required when the economy starts
the transition to a lower-carbon economy. The die-
casting industry will have to devote more
resources to implementing more environmentally
friendly die-casting technology.

KB ERERSHERER - FABRRRE N
HERN - BETESARAESERNAEME R
1R B JBR $8 AT

GO

Our Response
F Fieh o &

The Group’s ESG oversight bodies, such as the Board
and the ESG Working Group, constantly monitor the
latest developments and regulations to ensure that the
Group’s direction, operations and goals remain consistent
with regulatory and industrial standards.

AEBOERE HEREAIEEMRB(WESTSRERE
i@éﬁifé/ﬁﬂﬂ\iﬁ)ﬁ%mm T R R AR Lxﬁ’éﬁ%
AEENAR  CERABREEERITERERE B -

Besides, we have implemented an environmental
management system accredited with the international
standard of ISO 14001:2015. We will maintain and keep
enhancing the environmental management system in the
interest of meeting our short, medium and long-term ESG
goals.

BEAN - FAPIE B HEZEISO 14001 : 2015B R IZE R FAIR
REERZR - ﬁfFﬁH%%&?%ﬁﬁT\ﬁﬁm?ﬁ%%#ﬂ%ﬂ% A&
WEMOEE  RHARKRERE HEEERER -
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RE #HEREREE ()

Based on the regional environment and changes in local climatic patterns
at the Group’s production bases, the Group is projected to experience
serious impacts from extreme weather events including storms and
flooding. Environmental, health, and safety issues could result from the
excessive rain and flooding’s potential effects. Stormwater runoffs during
a flood may bring pollutants, such as chemicals, into the drain. The
extreme weather events can also affect the Company’s workforce safety
and supply chain operation.
REAEELEEMMAEMNEHREREMRAGREANES) - AEH
AR EHERRARIIVKERKRRNERTE « FARR K E

TETREIIRE REMLEME - BAMRKE - FKERATRS
EERMBEATKE  BEEER - BHERREGHTELERRFES
NRERftEEEE -

Impacts
=4
5

COU nter- By performing regular inspections of drainage systems, we are able to
measures prevent blockage. We will arrange repairs instantly if any needs are
¥j’ﬁ% spotted. Our chemical safety management system have been reinforced
to minimise the risk of chemical leakage. We frequently monitor the
drainage system throughout the rainy season to check the water quality
level in the rainwater being discharged. We will actively monitor the
situation and any weather alerts in the case of a storm, and we will
evacuate the work area as necessary.
BPESREHIKRL - {MeeMTEMEE - HIREMFER - Mg
REZHEE - BPIEMRBMNEERL2EEER - UHEERHE
ROARZEERE - RPNFERKEERBKELS - UWRERFRNN
IKEKEER - HERARE - RAOBBRENERFHNBERREFMRR
TEE WM EREEETIER -

CARING FOR OUR PEOPLE AERMNES

We cherish our employees’ well-being and offer them a RMEFEEINRE ARSREMf -—FEZSMH
supportive, dynamic, fair, and safe workplace. Our B BENN REHRZERTIESH - B
employment practices adhere to the SA8000 Social KE(E T AT 6 SAB000(t B B R L « iZIFETY
Accountability Standard, which is based on a set of ERETEBRARNEBIESHERREZS
internationally recognised labour standards on workplace BIENMEENELRSAZTHETRE I
health and safety, labour rights, and the avoidance of child BETHEEMNE S ENE -

and forced labour, in addition to complying with relevant
local labour laws.

SECCFER EREBRERERAT 1M
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At the end of the Reporting Period, the Group’s three RBEER ARBH=FHETEWBRARTHEH

major subsidiaries employed 2,501 employees in China and NEBRERBT25018EE BEBEXNA
Hong Kong, with a turnover rate of about 82.70%. The 82.70% ° M & BIRM EMEBBE BT ¢

employment figures as at the end of the Reporting Period
are summarised below:

2022 2021
—g=-= —E-—%

Total Number of Employees'? {E S 421812 2,501 3,040
By gender (%) %1% 5214 (%) Male 5 59.22% 59.14%
Female % 40.78% 40.86%
By age group (%) ¥&E# 4H 2153 (%) Below 30 305%A 27.99% 35.33%
30 to 50 30&505% 59.10% 53.36%
Over 50 5058 A 12.91% 11.32%
By employment type (%) Full-time 2 8% 78.41% 66.97%
¥ 48 15 %5 5l &1 53 (%) Part-time ¥& B; 21.59% 33.03%
By geographical region (%) Hong Kong & /& 1.36% 0.23%
2 4b [ &l 53 (%) China 98.64% 99.77%
Employee Turnover Rate™ {g S #E 3=
Total 85t 82.70%"* 50.47%
By gender (%) 145l &l 45 (%) Male 5 84.09% 53.12%
Female % 80.18% 46.07%
By age group (%) ¥&E# 4215 (%) Below 30 305%A 91.71% 63.75%
30 to 50 30&E505% 69.99% 42.28%
Over 50 5058 A E 70.31% 5.75%
By geographical region (%) Hong Kong &% 19.05% 0.00%
i [ 2 53 (%) China /& 82.88% 50.53%
12 The number of employees as at the end of the Reporting Period. 12 REBARNEE AR -
1 Given the business nature of the Group, the employee turnover rate 1 RAEAEENEKEE  HRENAEREZAUS T

is calculated by dividing the number of employees of the respective
category who left employment in 2022 by the total workforce size of
the respective category. The total workforce size is the aggregate of
the number of employees who left employment and the total
number of employees at the end of the Reporting Period.

“ The increase in turnover rate in 2022 can be attributed to the high “
mobility of workers given the business nature, as well as the
downsizing of our workforce due to the decrease in production of
the factories within our reporting scope.

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022
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RE #HEREREE ()

By gender By age group
RIEHIES REHBES

13%
‘ -

41%

59%

m Male ® Female m Below 30 = 30to 50 m Over 50
Es 8 30FIA T 30E=507% 5085 A £

By geographical region
RIEEERE 5

1%

® Hong Kong = China
= t
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Employees’ Health and Safety

Providing a safe and healthy workplace, as well as
fostering an environment that supports work-life balance
and employee wellbeing, is one of our main objectives.
The Group strives to keep its workplace clean, safe, and
free of any dangers that could result in accidents,
incidents, health problems, or safety risks.

Health and Safety Risk Assessment

Under the direction of project management staff, including
the project planner, project supervisor, senior safety
engineer, and safety commissioner, the Group has a
thorough health and safety risk management system in
place.

An environmental, health, and safety risk assessment will
be performed prior to the start of each project to evaluate
any potential hazards and environmental impacts, such as
chemical safety evaluation and identification of hazardous
gases, and development of mitigating measures. In the
meantime, we will check the equipment to make sure it
operates smoothly and the work permits of the relevant
project staff to make sure they are qualified to carry out
such work.

Health and Safety Practices

Our health and safety procedures include several aspects
of hazard prevention throughout the entire production cycle
in accordance with the highest standards of occupational
health and safety.

EERRRZZ
BFNEERR - DREBRHZERERN
TESAT XA TIERIR - SARE TIREAR
ZEFEREEBMNEAL - REEZB HRE TIE
BBER  RERTFEAESHRER - F -
RERBARZZRABRNEE

2 R R 2 2 R PR AT 4
FEEEEAB(RIEHEEREAM BHEXE -
BRZETEMERLZEZEE)NEET  ~&H
BYT—H2zEAMNEREEREEZRBEEERR -

E1IEE FIEZ AT #EITIRE RBERZE

A UFBEEBENRE RYRENY
gz eEmRZ A REkREH - WHE
RRIRIETE o R WIS B R A ARRIBRE
ERMBEER AR TR A EABREENE
BAETRIE-

BERLEZHBE
REBERERRZENESFE  HAORER
ZERFRERAEERMNGEREN NS @]
ﬁo

Health and Safety Management B R T2 &

v The Safety Management Group is responsible for:
ZREBNEAE

1. planning and overseeing the safety management system

HRELEBR2EEER

2. monitoring the implementation of the safety plan of all operation units

EEMEEEENMNRZEFENER

3. coordinating the regular medical check-up of employees.

13 8 B BAETTE HEeR -
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RE #HEREREE ()

Safety Practices of Manual Handling Operations f2 1 EBIR{E2 22 H i

v To lessen the physical stress on the employees, we have evaluated the labour intensity of each function that
requires manual handling operations, set up rest periods, and changed work arrangements accordingly.
HAEHET B NREBEBESBUNSHRE  WHEBHMRERSRFERARIELZY  WREREN S
BaE-

v Work that requires manual handling operations will not be permitted for pregnant employees to perform.
TAFERBINEFTERNEERIENTE-

Emergency Preparedness FEs# i

v A subcontractor for fire safety equipment has been engaged to periodically inspect and maintain our fire
safety equipment.
BMEZERE—BENT2REDERATEHRERMONEN T2 REILEITRE -

v Regular fire safety inspections, fire hazard assessments, and fire drills are conducted.
EHREEN L2  FHALERBLETHHES -

Personal Protective Equipment (“PPE”) {El A Bh:EaR &

v We have set up a set of guidelines on proper use of PPE, to which employees must adhere. Inspections on
the compliance will be carried out by the managers and supervisors.

BAEHE —EARNEREREADNERENES - TEEEBEETZEES - EBABREBEASRKE
TAaRmE -

v A lifespan for each type of PPE has been set to ensure that the PPE is utilised with the intended safety
function. Replacement of any expired PPE will be offered accordingly.
RTHEREADERENBEREN L2 L BAAT —EEANERBERETHERS - WHHEEDE
AT 8 B (B A B s 2R 4 o

Incident Management Ei#&EHE

v A clear guidance that describes how to handle safety accidents and occupational injuries is in place.
HMBEEANEEL 2 FH R T HHNARES -

v Any injuries will be examined immediately. The injured worker will either be hospitalised or receive first aid
on-site, depending on the severity of the injury.
KR E—EE - BEXGHNEREBN  XENTABEEBREABRRERSEISN -

v All incidents will be recorded and investigated properly by the Safety Management Group.
HREMESR THLZE BB/ NEETEE MRS -

CECCEER ERERERERLF
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RE #ERERERE(H)

Chemical Safety {tZ2R%2

v Our chemical safety management system strictly complies with the Regulations on the Administration of
Precursor Chemicals of the PRC. The Precursor Chemicals Administration Group has been set up to
regulate the procurement, use, storage and disposal of precursor chemicals.

B ERT 2B RBRREET(REARANBESHSEEREREON) - BHMAEKLIHUSLERE
B ARESHRFICE2EnEE R MERERE -

Health and Safety Training @& & %213

v Before the commencement of any project, safety training is offered to all of our employees and subcontractors
to make sure they understand our standards and requirements.
RERMEEERSBE THRMNRZERERER  HMASXNSEBEE BB RRERTELEZEI -

v All relevant topics are covered by our comprehensive safety training programme such as three-tier level (i.e.
factory, department, and position levels) of safety training and 6S safety standard.
BME2EMNL2EIFEESMERBAERE =R (BIER - HPIRRECR) Z2EIIRESERIRE -

v Various topics are covered by our safety training: volunteer firefighting, fire safety and knowledge, hazardous
chemical leakage, driving safety, occupational health and safety, electrical safety, emergency response and
handling, and first-aider induction.

BMNZ2BIRESEZRE - SRED Bhx2EB8RAHE  CREERLVREE BERTD  BER
REkZ%E BRALE E2REREERSZHMEABEIE -
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RE #HEREREE ()

Safety Production Reward and Penalty &2 4 E 1878

v To promote the strict implementation of various safety management systems, encourage all employees to
abide by the rules and regulations, and achieve safe production.
REFREZZEEHENBRRAT XBE2RETESETL  BRLEEE-
v After the management’s confirmation and approval, cash rewards will be offered under the situations of:
KEBERARMAER U TEABRER S EE
1. Reporting potential safety hazards in a timely manner or taking effective measures to rectify and prevent
them
EEREBEELEBEBNEMB B EETER L6

2. Taking decisive and courageous action in the accident rescue to save lives and company property
EEHRETHRRMRGBEHNITE R ERRARME

3. Implementing modern safety management methods and carrying out technological improvements, ensuring
safe production, and improving working conditions
EmRRT2EEAE  ETRINECE - BREZ2EEWHE TIERHE

4. Contributing to the rectification and management of high-risk projects
= EBRIE B B RO EEL B R

5. No accidents (i.e. minor injuries, serious injuries, fires, etc.) happened within a year
—FRARBEEER ARG &E - AKF)

v Those who violate the safety system and rules, or cause the work-related accidents should bear corresponding
responsibilities. Verbal and written warnings may also be given to the said employees depending on the
severity of the incident.

ERZ2HERBA  SEXTEEHOASRAEREET - TARBEHNEEREMIRESZELD

BERERES -

Anti-pandemic Responses MEEL e

Considered as one of the worst public health problems in ZE-NFAEMRE (HEEHRRE]) RIEH
recent years, the coronavirus (“COVID-19”) pandemic RABRTAFTIRREN ARFERBEZ — &
posed operational difficulties to businesses. One of the TEMBEZELS - RERBENBERIEZS
Group’s top priorities during the Reporting Period is EERLFEEMRESEBERNEERETF
safeguarding the health and safety of its personnel and B AEERRERRNEEEHE 2 — -
minimising any potential COVID-19 interruptions to the

stakeholders.

—EoCEER ERERERERA7 117
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Leading Group EE/NA

In order to manage the risks related to COVID-19 and BMIRL T —EZIGREE ARG/ NE - AERERR
conduct preventive measures appropriately so as to ARARESRIEEENRR - WREGEE A
increase resilience in the pandemic, we have established a M AIREERIBEPREE D - RIS AE - 5%
pandemic response leading group. We overcame the BESTIEFERMBERENEDT Bk T
pandemic challenge with the help of the pandemic EIEHRARE -

response taskforce and all of our employees during the
Reporting Period.

Pandemic Response
Leading Group
4R /NE

Information Quarantine,
Screening and Policy Testing, Sanitation and Promotion and )
. " o Protection and
Setting Group Contingency Group Training Group

o 3 i Sk | heoml | fa = N Inspection Group
fn,%'%lﬁj’ﬂ'iéﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁaﬁ (15 Fgﬁ%:;ﬁlllj\eﬁﬁiﬁ FERENME EBE RSN

Logistics

Pandemic Response Leading Group &1 FE ¥ $5E /v 40

e Coordinates the pandemic prevention practices of the factory
18 58 Tk g = & TP T

e Formulates the pandemic prevention strategy
] 7 2 15 T8 By 58 %

Information Screening and Policy Setting Group & 8 & & Bt 5 il & /Ml

e Tracks and analyses the information of the employees
BRI ST EENES

e Formulates preventive measures in compliance with the regulations and the pandemic trend
HEREERREEBENENHEE

Quarantine, Testing, Sanitation and Contingency Group PR#t « #i8] + #AERES/MNE

e Conducts the body temperature checking
TR B8

e Manages the quarantine zones
= 160 (= ok O
& 12 R B2

e Handles emergency incidents

R EZFM
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Promotion and Training Group = {& & &3/

e Keeps abreast of the pandemic development
KT REENERBR

e QOrganises training on pandemic prevention
BBz IE TR

Logistics Protection and Inspection Group &P Rz /N E

e Checks on our pandemic prevention practices
BRERIEEHNERIBER
e Monitors all cross-border employee movements

ERMABRERNITH

COVID-19 Practices HUBRFESEBER

We have implemented the following procedures during the BTREREMBEREREZE  UREROEHHE
Reporting Period to lower the danger of a COVID-19 HIERBETE  RBEEE  RMOEHEIUAT
outbreak at work in order to safeguard the health and R LURS A ERR ST TESMEENEE -

safety of our employees and minimise potential
interruptions to our supply chain.

Protecting Our People {#:EH FIES

v Keeping all employees informed about the national and Group anti-pandemic policies, and maintaining personal
hygiene at all times
EENEES TREREAS BN TUE BRI &S S 2RSS EARGE

v/ Monitoring the global and local pandemic situation and reminding employees to avoid going to the areas with
a high risk of infection.
ERPIRRAMBEBR  TREES#2ANERLR RSO E

v Carrying out daily sanitation of the factories and workshops
HIMmMERETHSEHEFZ

v Closely monitoring the employees’ and visitors’ body temperature and examining their movement records.
FYERE B R TR 8RR IR E M 1T HE

v Providing antigen test kits for employees to do self-tests
REtRFERAIRE2EES 8 EBA

v Encouraging employees to have COVID-19 vaccines
SEEEEEFUERRSRE

v Reserving an area for quarantine purpose
B i 77 R B

v Offering training to employees for their ease to comply with pandemic prevention protocols

REBRMEI  ERREETHRRE
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Protecting the Supply Chain {R3&# & i

v Relocating employees to multiple locations so as to prevent transmission of virus
S E B BB R Z @R - AR RS ERE

v Introducing a ‘Closed-loop’ system for cross-border employees
RERS TS| AR R

v Setting up a stringent management system and working procedures for cross-border logistics
RBEYRREBRBHEEGERITIEREF

v Carrying out thorough sanitation after unloading
HERETRENHS

v Adopting a “Contactless” approach on cross-border goods transportation
HREEEMERKAIEEBR ] AN

v Closely communicating with the authorities to obtain permits for vehicles

H BT ER NGB RERT &

Our employees received training on protective gear etiquette as well as nucleic acid screening cooperation.

BZRMESEEX AR ERERZEHE S FENEI -
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During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of
any non-compliance with applicable laws and regulations
relating to provision of a safe working environment and
protection of employees from occupational hazards, such
as Law of the PRC on Prevention and Control of
Occupational Diseases and the Occupational Safety and
Health Ordinance (Cap. 509) of Hong Kong. The following
table illustrates the number of work-related fatalities
occurred in the past three years:

RE #HEREREE ()

RE|ERA - NEBE W A FBA A E T T @
FEREZEROITR  ABREHZE2TIERER
REREE EREFRLREXBERBENERNE
B KR EARKMBEBERG AL REE
(BELZE2RBEEGD)ELNE - TRETBE
“FRREMETIFARMSLTEA -

Employee Health and Safety Data 2022 2021 2020
EERRAZRZHIE —g=-= —E-—% k- Sk <1

Number of work-related injury cases
IERENHE 6 6 12
Number and rate of work-related fatalities 0 0 0
ATT ASK = (0.00%) (0.00%) (0.00%)
Number of lost days due to work injury
EHITEERNTIERR 201 253 534
Employment Conditions 1 18 1% 1

The most important and significant resource for the Group
is its employees, who are at the very core of our success.
Taking good care of employees is a top priority for us. Our
long-term strategy is to provide our employees with a
dynamic working environment and attractive compensation
and benefits which are competitive in the market.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of
any material breach of relevant laws and regulations in
China and Hong Kong that has a significant impact on the
Group relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment
and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunities, diversity, anti-discrimination, other benefits
and welfare, as well as child and forced labour, such as
the Labour Law and Labour Contract Law in the PRC, and
the Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57) in Hong Kong.

AEEREERZEANERAEE  BEFIR
IR - EEEEDRMME — 5 - K
Mo —ARABEEAESREE—EITME NN
TERBEREMS EAEHRF NN - AEREIN
B 3 B K A8 A o

RBERAA - REBY FMEFEMREERY
AEBMAEAUTERTE  HH REE - HER
EA CIERHE KERME AERE- 2T
- RIEE - Bt S REN  ARET REE
BITERFERMARERNITR - FlandF
EARAMBEEZ) R(PEARKNBELEHE
L) - ARCEBRRBIEOINESTE) -
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Promotion and Employment Relations

The Group is dedicated to establishing strong bonds with
its employees. Employees are invaluable assets of the
Group and we make every effort to retain each of them.
To ensure protection of employees’ rights as well as health
and safety, we will perform an identification check and a
medical check-up for each job applicant.

A fair and open promotion and awarding system has been
designed in order to enhance employee satisfaction and
productivity. A set of KPIs are to be used to evaluate
employees annually. Outstanding employees may be
eligible for promotion as well as rewards and discretionary
bonuses. We also reward employees to teams based on
their productivity, improvement, and creativity in an effort to
foster team spirit.

We take our employer-employee relations seriously and do
not take dismissal actions lightly.

Unless they can no longer do their duties due to various
causes, no employees would normally be laid off. Except
in cases where they have violated the law or our code of
conduct, all employees who are susceptible to dismissal
shall be given the proper notice or compensation.

Benefits

We reward our employees for their contributions with a
highly competitive remuneration package. We offer
employees the discretionary bonuses depending on
performance. We provide our staff with meal and
accommodation allowances to help lessen their cost of
living. In accordance with local laws and regulations, the
Group complies with the required minimum wage
regulation. We also contribute to the social security
system’s pension fund, medical insurance, industrial injury
insurance, unemployment insurance, and maternity
insurance for our employees.

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022
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Work-life Balance

A healthy work environment entails a work-life balance.
Unnecessary overtime work is discouraged and the
working hours of the employees are properly managed. To
avoid overtime work, management will evaluate and modify
the work roster. Employees who unavoidably work
overtime will be compensated.

Our workweek consists of five days. Employees are
entitled to additional paid annual leave, sick leave, marital
leave, maternity leave, paternity leave, and compassionate
leave in accordance with local laws and regulations, in
addition to the national statutory holidays.

Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, we followed the Chinese
Government’s direction to fight the virus. All employee
social gatherings and holiday dinner activities were
cancelled during the Reporting Period. Nevertheless, the
arrangement did not prevent us from showing our staff
care. We sent various daily necessities, health
supplements, and gift packs to take care of their needs
and well-being during the hardship of the pandemic.

RE #HEREREE ()

TR 4 ER T

RETIFIRBEFBE TIFRAIRNFE - LTS
BroERBERTHE AREEEREN TR
Bl BERERECLHBIHERE  NBRER
THE- ARTMENIEEBESHE -

BMERETIERR BREZZEHERBIN EE
REEMEIENEZIRAZAEEINETFR M
R BR ER RERIEER-

RRFEERAESRE - RAIZRTBERFNE
RMBRS - RBEME MAREMNHERE
SLEBRAREEBHEIOSE - AT - ZFLH
WREGHREMEE THHIE -  RMAERBHOR
HRZANESENSEARLTR RERKE
i AL IRFA TR R EE -

Sl pEmagiANAE, AEREE B
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Diversity, Inclusiveness and Labour Rights

We value our employees and uphold fairness and labour
laws in a people-centric approach. The Group respects
diversity and recognises its value. We prohibit all forms of
discrimination, violence, and harassment against our
employees, including those based on their race, ethnicity,
age, gender, sexual orientation, disability, religious beliefs,
political affiliation, or marital status. A whistleblowing
channel was established for employees to report violation
of our Labour Rights and Diversity Policy. Additionally, we
have established policies to safeguard the employees’
rights to collective bargaining and freedom of association.

Child and Forced Labour-free Workplace
Another essential factor regarding the protection of labour
rights is the prevention of child and forced labour. We
have established a stringent set of policy on child and
forced labour based on the international SA8000 Social
Accountability Standard. The Group takes proactive
measures to keep forced or child labour out of all of our
operations.

The Group undertakes to avoid the use of child and forced
labour across all operation units. All job applicants must be
of legal working age and provide a valid form of
identification for our verification in order to prevent
underage employment. Inspections are carried out to
ensure the compliance with the child labour policy.

We take zero-tolerance approach to any use of child
labour by our suppliers. Along with strictly adhering to our
standard of preventing child and forced labour during the
employment and operational processes, we also maintain
frequent contact with our suppliers to make sure they
uphold our standards. In case of violation, they are
required to take corrective actions promptly and we may
terminate our business relationship with them if necessary.

If we identify any event of child labour, we will handle
swiftly to ensure their health and safety. For example, we
will set up a medical check-up for the children; assign
employees to escort the children home; and provide them
the appropriate medical and living assistance.

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022
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AL, SOCIAL/AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of
any identified case regarding child and forced labour. There
was no material non-compliance with laws and regulations
relating to child and forced labour in China and Hong
Kong, including, among others, the Provisions on
Prohibition of Child Labour and the Law on the Protection
of Minors of the PRC, and the Employment Ordinance
(Cap. 57) of Hong Kong.

Training and Development

By offering employees the training courses that are most
suitable for them, we intend to provide them the chance to
gain the new skills they needed. By investing in training
and development, we help our employees to excel in their
roles and thrive in the future.

The Group’s Enterprise Academy facilitates a better
management of employee training and development by
formulating a training plan annually to address the training
needs of the employees and coordinating the hosting of
training. Our training activities offer topics on a variety of
areas, including quality management, patent development,
intellectual property, vocational skills, and management,
depending on the training needs and the roles of the
employees. The training programmes are delivered by
experienced and qualified instructors.

In the orientation training sessions, new employees will
learn about a variety of topics, including our quality and
CSR policies, production process, environmental, health,
and safety knowledge.
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In order to assist our personnel in obtaining professional AHBEMNEENSEEFZETERFEEHR
credentials and attaining their professional goals, the ¥EE bESRIRBMEKE RAKSINEE
Enterprise Academy also cooperated with external parties FEENTHRREMNEERSEEER - FEE
such as institutions and organisations to support our JIRFEMNER BT

employees to obtain professional qualifications. The data of
our training hours are summarised below:

2022 2021
—g=-= —E-—%

Total Number of Hours of Training Received by Employees 7,431.00" 27,228.50
& SR Il n e &
Average Hours of Training per Employee 2.97 (99.12%) 8.96 (100%)

(% of employees who received training'®)
SiESTFHEIEE GEZEIMNESIHE 5 ELe)
By gender %1% 5l &%

Male 5 2.80 (99.32%) 9.79 (100%)

Female X 3.23 (98.82%) 7.74 (100%)
By employment category i%1& {5 5 £l %

Senior Management = EIE A B 3.56 (76.74%) = 13.23 (100%)

Middle Management # B2 A B 3.34 (97.83%) | 13.23 (100%)

General Staff L@ T 2.92 (99.69%) 8.62 (100%)

We offered specific training like IATF 16949, topics covering statistical process control and measurement system
analysis, etc.

TR EWIATE 16949 - RMERTBEEIZEFIMAERSE ST ER BN EEE -

1 The decrease in training hours provided in 2022 can be attributed 1 _7__¢}m{ﬁE’JiEEJI|E%§5(ﬂ > Ty B R s HR R AR EE L
to the reduction of production-based training due to the decline in REEMBIEIR DB
production during the Reporting Period.

16 It is calculated by dividing the employees received training in the 16 HEEFTZER  RREEHREZ BT ERNEIIIE SRR
specified category by the number of employees in the specified LAEE R AR B B AR -

category at the end of the Reporting Period.
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We have been working with higher institutions to organise academic activities and other knowledge-exchange
events. We organised a seminar together with Shenzhen Technology University and invited eight professors this
year.

BRI RPESRAENEBSIES REMAMBRZRED - HARSFERIIZMABHREBHATE - WEH
TNR#EK -

Our management has introduced Ka Shui’s new technologies and products to them. After the presentation, the
expert team from Shenzhen Technology University visited the product exhibition hall and the new energy auto
parts exhibition hall.

BPNEBEEBERARENB T BN RMEER - BTRTKE  KERJIRMAEHNERELB TERRER
Mt RAIETEHHRE -

Through the insightful interaction, the professors gave valuable feedback and constructive suggestions on the
shape design, R&D cycle, product structure, quality system, and evaluation standards of the product. Ka Shui has
demonstrated its determination on staying itself ahead of the market trend while making constant improvements.
BERANZN  BHEREEMOIIER HEEH EnaE GEBRANTERESHTERETEEERR
ERMEE - R TESCEN R - iR MRBEELET S RAFIERL o

CECCEER ERERERERLF
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SUPPORTING OUR COMMUNITY

The Group fully supports the community where it operates
and cares about the health and well-being of the people in
the community. We work with regional non-profit
organisations to provide funding for initiatives promoting
local youth development, environmental protection, disaster
relief, and poverty alleviation.

During the Reporting Period, we contributed a total
amount of HKD154,000 to the community to support the
above initiatives. The volunteer team engaged in
volunteering work for a total of 720 hours during the
Reporting Period.

COVID-19 has brought severe impacts to the society and
its daily operation during the Reporting Period. Ka Shui’s
employees fulfilled the civic responsibility and participated
in the large-scale testing to keep the community safe.

In order to maintain a safe, healthy, harmonious, and
sustainable community, we will continue utilising our
abilities and knowledge to positively impact the
community.

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022
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OVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

RE #HEREREE ()

HKEx ESG REPORTING GUIDE INDEX BRATIRIR - HERERMEIESIH R
=]
HKEx ESG Reporting Guide General Disclosures & KPIs Explanation/
Reference Section
BERAIRIE - HERERREES | —RBERAREYER BE2EE60
Aspect A: Environment
EBEA : B35
A1 Emissions Information on: PROTECTING OUR
ATBER BRABERIOAZERBHEN  MKRLHEEEDS - BEKE | ENVIRONMENT —
EEEYMNEESH : Minimising Environmental
(@  the policies; and Impacts
B R RERE — RERPER
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that | &£
have a significant impact on the issuer relating to air
and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into
water and land, and generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous waste.
BTHRITAEEALENBMERRADIOER -
Note:
M &
Air emissions include NOx, SOx, and other pollutants regulated under
national laws and regulations.
BERIRBEREY  REYREMZEFERRROIRERSLY
Greenhouse gases include carbon dioxide, methane,
nitrous oxide, hydrofluorocarbons, perfluorocarbons and
sulphur hexafluoride.
RERBEE_S/LHK Bk ftDR  [EMEEY -
2 HEEiR RSB ©
Hazardous wastes are those defined by national
regulations.
BEEREMRBERAOIARESE -
KPI A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. PROTECTING OUR
BRBEBIERAI ERYERREEEEREE - ENVIRONMENT —
Environmental
Performance
RERE — BEEX
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HKEx ESG Reporting Guide General Disclosures & KPIs

B PTIRIE - HERESREESI —RKBREARENIES

KPI A1.2
RS IEIRIRAL2

KPI A1.3
FAREMIEIRALS

KPI A1.4
RS AL IR IRAL4

KPI A1.5
FAS RIS IRALLE

KPI A1.6
FASIEMIEIRALG

Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2)
greenhouse gas emissions (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume,
per facility).

B (BE1) RatRAEE (BE2) R EREHR (CABETE)
R(ER) ZE (MABESEN - BHERMETE) °

Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume,
per facility).

FEERZSREEWAE (UME) R (ER) B E (1A
BESEM  §EARBAE) -

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and
where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).
FEABREREYAES (UHEHE) R (ER) BE (A
BESEM  BERBTE) -

Description of emission target(s) set and steps taken to
achieve them.
IR PRET MV BE P B AR R R

25 B IR ERENA P BR

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes
are handled, and a description of reduction target(s) set
and steps taken to achieve them.
HREBESEREEEEMN L - R Fra] L6 REE
BERREIESLBZAERMA T -

Explanation/
Reference Section

fRiE 2EEME

PROTECTING OUR
ENVIRONMENT —
Environmental
Performance
RERE —

RIREN

PROTECTING OUR
ENVIRONMENT —
Environmental
Performance

IRERE —

PROTECTING OUR
ENVIRONMENT —
Environmental
Performance

REBR —

RIBEX

RIBEX

PROTECTING OUR
ENVIRONMENT —
Minimising Environmental
Impacts
REEE —
BRE

BERDIR

PROTECTING OUR

ENVIRONMENT —
Minimising Environmental
Impacts
RERE — RERIR
BEE
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RE #HEREREE ()

HKEx ESG Reporting Guide General Disclosures & KPIs

B PTIRIE - HERESREESI —RKBRARENIEES

A2 Use of Resources Policies on efficient use of resources including energy,

A2E R {E A

KPI A2.1
RS AR S 1R A2.1

KPI A2.2
AR E IR IZA2.2

KPI A2.3
RS A IEIRA2.3

KPI A2.4
RS A IR IRA2.4

KPI A2.5
FASAA IR RA2.5

water and other raw materials.

BERERER(BREER  KEEAMERERME) BB -

Note:

B EE

Resources may be used in production, in storage, transportation, in
buildings, electronic equipment, etc.

BARARAREE @7 B8 BF EFRES-

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g.
electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in’000s) and intensity
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).
REMNESMEER KEELR(WE - meloh) BFE2
(A TFETFERFE) REE (MASGESHM - §IARME
)

Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).
BEKERTE(WABESEN BERBAE) -

Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps
taken to achieve them.

HE L FTET S MY BE R 2 PR e B IR R A AE BliE t B R FTERER
2P B8R

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water
that is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and
steps taken to achieve them.

it SRER 8 A KR =PI BRI RE - DA R FATET 32 B9 A K3
m AR RAREIEL BRI TR -

Total packaging material used for finished products (in
tonnes), and, if applicable, with reference to per unit
produced.
B mATAREMENRE (LETE) X (WER) 8E£E
BRHE °

Explanation/
Reference Section

BRiE2EEM

PROTECTING OUR

ENVIRONMENT —
Minimising Environmental
Impacts

RERE — RERIR
BEe

PROTECTING OUR
ENVIRONMENT —
Environmental
Performance
REIRE — BIREN

PROTECTING OUR
ENVIRONMENT —
Environmental
Performance
REIRE — BIREX

PROTECTING OUR

ENVIRONMENT —
Minimising Environmental
Impacts

RERE — FERPR
E3 2

PROTECTING OUR

ENVIRONMENT —
Minimising Environmental
Impacts

REBHE — RERSB
BRE

PROTECTING OUR
ENVIRONMENT —
Environmental
Performance
REIRIE — BIREX
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HKEx ESG Reporting Guide General Disclosures & KPIs

B PTIRIE - HERESREESI —RKBREARENIES

A3 The Environment
and Natural
Resources
ASRIER KA ER

KPI A3.1
2 48 M FE IR A3

A4 Climate Change
AdRIREE

KPI A4.1
RASR B IR IZEA4 A

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the
environment and natural resources.

BEERTAHRERRAAEREREAZENRE

Description of the significant impacts of activities on the
environment and natural resources and the actions taken
to manage them.
HMEREHEHIRERAABERNEAZE RERNE R
BT ENTE -

Policies on identification and mitigation of significant
climate-related issues which have impacted, and those
which may impact, the issuer.
BRIREHERRAREHBEITAEETZENERNRIKE
BEEREUR -

Description of the significant climate-related issues which
have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer,
and the actions taken to manage them.

MAERE R AT HBETAEETENEARGHEBER -
N EHTTH -

Explanation/
Reference Section

fRiE 2EEME

PROTECTING OUR

ENVIRONMENT —
Minimising Environmental
Impacts

RERE — RERIR
BEE

PROTECTING OUR
ENVIRONMENT —
Minimising Environmental
Impacts
RERE —
SR E

BERIR

MEASURES ON
MITIGATING CLIMATE
RISK

RR AR SR {2\ B2 #5 E

MEASURES ON
MITIGATING CLIMATE
RISK

TR SRR BB 15 1
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RE #HEREREE ()

HKEx ESG Reporting Guide General Disclosures & KPIs

B PTIRIE - HERESREESI —RKBRARENIEES

Aspect B: Social
EEB: #E

B1 Employment
B1{E 1%

KPI B1.1
RS AR M FE1RBT A

KPI B1.2
RS AN IEIRB.2

B2 Health and Safety
B2 % &

KPI B2.1
AR B IR 1ZB2.1

Information on:

ERAEMRAFE BERSEHA TR REA - TEK

2 Zoolb c RIERAREARFS REF

(@  the policies; and
BUR &

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other
benefits and welfare.

ETFHBITABEALENAMERERAIEH -

Total workforce by gender, employment type (for example,
full- or part-time), age group and geographical region.
BRI BEED (WEBEFRE)  FiRbn Rtz 5
HiEBBE -

Employee turnover rate by gender,
geographical region.
BB FRARIRICEEDMIES RALE -

age group and

Information on:

EARMRZ2TIERERREESHE2BELEEN

(@  the policies; and
BUR - &

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
providing a safe working environment and protecting
employees from occupational hazards.
BFHBETABEAZENEREERRIINER -

Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each
of the past three years including the reporting year.
BEA=ZF (PREERFE)SFERITHAAZRRLE -

Explanation/
Reference Section

BRiE2EEM

CARING FOR OUR
PEOPLE — Employment
Conditions

BERE — BEGEM

CARING FOR OUR
PEOPLE — Employment
Conditions

HERE — EREGEMF

CARING FOR OUR
PEOPLE — Employment
Conditions

BERE — EREGF

CARING FOR OUR
PEOPLE — Employees’
Health and Safety
HEREE — EEREK
ZE

CARING FOR OUR
PEOPLE — Employees’
Health and Safety
HEES — EERRER

~
ZFE
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HKEx ESG Reporting Guide General Disclosures & KPIs

B PTIRIE - HERESREESI —RKBREARENIES

KPI B2.2
AR E N IEIZB2.2

Lost days due to work injury.

RITBBEAIIERH -

KPI B2.3
RS AE M FE1RB2.3

Description of occupational health and safety measures
adopted, how they are implemented and monitored.

AP RANBEREET 2R U RBEERTRES

T o

B3 Development and

Training discharging duties at work. Description of training
B3# & K15 activities.
BRI EERITLIEBRE N MB L EENBUR - 5
SEH o
Note: Training refers to vocational training. It may include internal and external
courses paid by the employer.
MisE : FIEBEE I REHREENENRINDRE
KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and
FABAEMIEIZB3.1  employee category (e.g. senior management, middle
management).
RURREESEMN(NERERRE PREEE)EAINT
IESB DL °
KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by
. gender and employee category.
RS2 4B IR 1EB3.2

BERIREERE D  BRERT

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for

(Sl S 25 B 2 o

Explanation/
Reference Section

fRiE 2EEME

CARING FOR OUR
PEOPLE — Employees’
Health and Safety
HEREE — BEREK
Z3

CARING FOR OUR
PEOPLE — Employees’
Health and Safety
HAERE — EERER
fogea

CARING FOR OUR
PEOPLE — Training and

Development
AEREE — BJIEERE

CARING FOR OUR
PEOPLE — Training and
Development

HEREE — BIIEEERE

CARING FOR OUR
PEOPLE — Training and
Development

BERE — HIREER

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022
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HKEx ESG Reporting Guide General Disclosures & KPIs

B PTIRIE - HERESREESI —RKBRARENIEES

B4 Labour Standards

8425 T 24

KPI B4.1
RS AR M 5 1R B4

KPI B4.2
FASRAR MR 1RB4.2

B5 Supply Chain
Management
B5 1 e i & 12

KPI B5.1
RA SR 4B IR 1EB5. 1

KPI B5.2
RS AAM FE1RB5.2

KPI B5.3
A2 4E M 1515 B5.3

Information on:

BEEP IEE T kol s TH) :

(@  the policies; and
BR - R

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
preventing child and forced labour.

BTHETAREAZENRBERZLRAGNER -

Description of measures to review employment practices
to avoid child and forced labour.
i BB R EARRET RBHIST -

Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices
when discovered.

Wil ERRER B ERAERBBERLAERNN TR -

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the
supply chain.
ERHEENRREREGRERBER -

Number of suppliers by geographical region.

wiEE S MHEEREA -

Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers,
number of suppliers where the practices are being
implemented, and how they are implemented and
monitored.

R EAERAEERNED  MERTERENNHEERS
HE URHEBEARTRERTE-

Description of practices used to identify environmental and
social risks along the supply chain, and how they are
implemented and monitored.
R BEZRHEREGERGNRERESRARKNED -
ARMEBERITRERTE -

Explanation/
Reference Section

MR 2EEHE

CARING FOR OUR
PEOPLE — Employment
Conditions

BERE — BREGEM

CARING FOR OUR
PEOPLE — Employment
Conditions

HERE — BEGHMT

CARING FOR OUR
PEOPLE — Employment
Conditions

HERE — EBEGHMT

SUSTAINABLE
OPERATIONS — Supply
Chain Management
AIREEE — HERE
b

SUSTAINABLE
OPERATIONS — Supply
Chain Management
AEEE — fHERE
b2

SUSTAINABLE
OPERATIONS — Supply
Chain Management
AEEE — HHERE
=

SUSTAINABLE
OPERATIONS — Supply
Chain Management
AFEEE — HEREE
3
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HKEx ESG Reporting Guide General Disclosures & KPIs

B PTIRIE - HERESREESI —RKBREARENIES

KPI B5.4
RS AE M 1515 B5.4

B6 Product
Responsibility
B6E m AT

KPI B6.1
RS AR M F5 15 B6.1

KPI B6.2
RS IE M 15 1RB6.2

KPI B6.3
A2 4E M 15 15B6.3

Description of practices used to promote environmentally
preferable products and services when selecting suppliers,
and how they are implemented and monitored.

R EREHRERRREZARRER RREOED - A
RAEEMITRERT A -

Information on:

BRAMRREMMBRENEREEZE  BE  RELLE

EHARBRTE
(@  the policies; and
BUR - &

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy
matters relating to products and services provided
and methods of redress.
BIFHETAREATENEBERLROINER -

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to
recalls for safety and health reasons.
EERCEXEmBHTRAT 2 EERIEAMADKN A
G lHE

Number of products and service
received and how they are dealt with.

BEERNEMIRBORFEE AREHTL -

related complaints

Description of practices relating to observing and
protecting intellectual property rights.
i REERRENBEEE @B -

Explanation/
Reference Section

fRiE 2EEME

SUSTAINABLE
OPERATIONS — Supply
Chain Management
AREEE — HEEE
b1

SUSTAINABLE
OPERATIONS —
Enhancing Customer
Satisfaction
ARFEEE — Ba%FP
RN

Due to the Group's
business nature, we do
not involve in any
advertising matters.
HRAEEEGEE®
2 BN S R AR AT B
HEH o

SUSTAINABLE
OPERATIONS —
Enhancing Customer
Satisfaction
ARELE — BRa®FP
nEE

SUSTAINABLE
OPERATIONS —
Enhancing Customer
Satisfaction
ARELE — BakFP
PN

SUSTAINABLE
OPERATIONS —
Enhancing Customer
Satisfaction
AREEE — BaE%FP
wmEE
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HKEx ESG Reporting Guide General Disclosures & KPIs

B PTIRIE - HERESREESI —RKBRARENIEES

KPI B6.4
BASRAE M F5 1R B6.4

KPI B6.5
RS2 4E M 515 B6.5

B7 Anti-corruption
BTRES

KPI B7.1
RS AR MR IRBT A

KPI B7.2
RSB B IRIEBT.2

KPI B7.3
R IR 1EBT7.3

Description of quality assurance process and recall
procedures.
HinESRERERERMBKET

Description of consumer data protection and privacy
policies, how they are implemented and monitored.
HEBEEERRERLBEE  UARBEBRITRERS
73K

Information on:

BRI B1R - BGEFRAREN

(@  the policies; and
BR R

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.
BIFHETAREAZENEBERLROIINER -

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt
practices brought against the issuer or its employees
during the reporting period and the outcomes of the
cases.
REBRAAHETAXEEERHIICELENE SHLR
HEBE RFDER -

Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing
procedures, how they are implemented and monitored.

A S R B RET  AREERTRERFTE -

Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors
and staff.

MARMEENRE I RENREISHE -

Explanation/
Reference Section

BRiE2EEM

SUSTAINABLE
OPERATIONS —
Enhancing Customer
Satisfaction

ARELE — Bea®FP
RN

SUSTAINABLE
OPERATIONS —
Enhancing Customer
Satisfaction

AREEE — Ba%FP
wnEE

SUSTAINABLE
OPERATIONS —
Business Ethics

ARELEE - AXER

SUSTAINABLE
OPERATIONS —
Business Ethics
AREEE — MEEE

SUSTAINABLE
OPERATIONS —
Business Ethics

AREEE - BAXER

SUSTAINABLE
OPERATIONS —
Business Ethics

AREEE - AXER

CECCEER ERERERERLF
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BRE-HERE

ﬁﬂ:( nﬁ)

HKEx ESG Reporting Guide General Disclosures & KPIs

B PTIRIE - HERESREESI —RKBREARENIES

B8 Community
Investment

B8t EIRE

KPI B8.1
A 4R K FE 1R B8

KPI B8.2
RS AN I51RB8.2

Policies on community engagement to understand the
needs of the communities where the issuer operates and
to ensure its activities take into consideration the
communities’ interests.
BENMAEZERTREEMTHESTEMNERLERE
gL Rt R TR BER

Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental
concerns, labour needs, health, culture, sport).
EIEREE(NHE RESEH SIFR R X
£ 858

Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus
area.

EEIERMPAER(WEERAKRH) -

Explanation/
Reference Section

fRiE 2EEME

SUPPORTING OUR
COMMUNITY
X Pt

SUPPORTING OUR
COMMUNITY
Xt R

SUPPORTING OUR
COMMUNITY
Xt R
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INDI%PENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

29th Floor, Lee Garden Two, 28 Yun Ping Road
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
KA SHUI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Ka Shui International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 148 to 303,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2022, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2022, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Companies Ordinance.

B 3 % BUE

RSM

BREERT IS

HENEER T E _1/)\5%
NEZH - +h=8

RSM Hong Kong

T +8522598 5123
F+8522598 7230

&5 +8522598 5123
HH +852 25987230

www.rsmhk.com www.rsmhk.com
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Az BED (AT BRI ) EFRINHENE 148
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—t—BZEAMBRLE  BEEZALFE
W BRRRAEABRERAEMEmEER &
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. The key audit matters we identified are:

1. Fair value measurement of lands

2. Allowance for inventories

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022
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KEY AUDIT MATTER (Continued)

Fair value measurement of lands
THAFENGE

Refer to notes 5(e), 7 and 20 to the
consolidated financial statements.
2047 & MM TES(E) ~ 7K&20 °

The Group measures its lands at fair value
using a market approach. The valuation is a
level 3 fair value measurement as it involves
adjustments to market comparables to reflect
the particular characteristics of the land,
including location and plot sizes, which are
based on unobservable inputs that are
subjective. The value of land is sensitive to
these inputs. In order to determine an
appropriate fair value of the land, the Group
appointed an independent professional valuer to
perform the assessment.

ESBEFERAMSEE  BAFEFEE M - HE
RE=ZBAVENE BRERINRETISAE
LR EREITRAE - AR T BT - 8
T R R - TAEB I BRNLEA
Bt o tih v BEUZSE2HHZX - RET%Z LT
WHtRERATE  BEXERETEVEXMGHEM
AT ©

T AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

% SR ()

BRESSEIR (F)

Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
FAREZXEIR BMEEERPHAREZEENRESX

Our procedures in relation to the fair value
measurement of lands included:

BB LA FEMNFEETHNRT B

— Understanding and evaluating the key controls
over the management’s process in determining
the fair value of lands and assessing the
inherent risk of material misstatement by
considering the degree of estimation uncertainty
and level of other inherent risk factors such as
complexity, subjectivity, changes, susceptibility
to management bias of fraud;
BEZRMAFHTHETEIRE & H i E A e E
KT (RN F8HE 2 ERERE
SRR  THRARTEEEEHET L
RN EMFTEERERERANES R EE
P22 5 e

—  Evaluating the independent external valuer’s
competence, capabilities and objectivity and
obtaining an understanding of the independent
external valuer’s scope of work and terms of
engagement;

AHEB MBI ERMERE - e REHM - A
Ko T BRPE ST HNER 14 B A B T VR %6 [ K BE AR AR K

— With the assist of independent third-party
specialists, assessing the valuation
methodologies used and the appropriateness of
the key assumptions and comparables,
checking the accuracy of the observable inputs,
reviewing the appropriateness of those
adjustments which were based on
unobservable inputs; and
EBUE="EXNHHT - FEAAMGEES
FEARETERJ[LAIELREHNRENRE &
EABE2HEEER RABRTABRE2H
FIERBERRE &

—  Assessing the adequacy of the disclosures in
respect of the fair value of lands.
SER A FEMERERET RS -

SECCEER ERERERERAA
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (C

B % SR ()

KEY AUDIT MATTER (Continued) BB EE (F)

Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

FREZSER BREERPHAREZETENEERELTRX

2. Allowance for inventories

FERE

Refer to notes 5(a) and 27 to the consolidated | Our procedures in relation to the allowance for
financial statements. inventories included:

2B E MWK M 5@ R27 - B FEREETNETEE

142

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
identifies obsolete and slow-moving inventories
items that are not probable for use in future
production or to be sold out. It also identifies
any other inventories with net realisable value
below cost. The identification is based on
forecasts of customers’ future orders and future
market conditions, and involves subjective
estimation. The allowance has impact on the
carrying amount of inventories and the profit or
loss for the year.

RB|ERAR - EXEBTAIRAERREE
HEHRAR RFHEFEIEE o RIERNTER
FEERRK AR EREMTEE o ZH3A2 AT
BEPARKETE RARRTIGRNBER - WFRE
Bt - FARBHFAFEREEREREY
2 o

—  Understanding and evaluating the key controls

over the management’'s assessment of
allowance for inventories and assessing the
inherent risk of material misstatement by
considering the degree of estimation
uncertainty and level of other inherent risk
factors such as complexity, subjectivity,
changes, susceptibility to management bias of
fraud;
BBE RGO TEERE R H 4 E A @R E
FOKF (BN - T8 2t BEREREA
SR TN THRERIEEREUTFERE
WEEMTHERERRANEER RN EE
2 B

= Evaluating the outcome of prior period
assessment of allowance for inventories to
assess the effectiveness of management’s
estimation process;
AEMPFERENENER  UTEERE
fhEHERIZR B RE

—  Reviewing inventory ageing analysis to identify
obsolete or slow-moving inventories;

EHFEREKEDN - BHBRKIBHFS

—  Testing the accuracy of inventory ageing list by
reviewing the date of purchase;
REFEHNBERY AATFEREKYI R ERE
t

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022



KEY AUDIT MATTER (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
FAREZXEIR

ENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

% SR ()

BRELER (A)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMESEEPHAREESENEERRR

Our procedures in relation to the allowance for
inventories included (Continued):

B FEREETHNREFERE (B)

—  Testing whether the net realisable value of major
items of inventories exceeded cost by reviewing
sales after the reporting date and considering
the costs of completion and sales, if
applicable;

EHREAHNRNEE  AHNTEFEEEN
A B3R R E 2 D ERA AL E B 7 TR AS M 85
ERA - WERA

—  Reviewing the appropriateness of the allowance
for inventories by reference to information about
subsequent sales or usage; and
2EFRHEBHEXEANEN  BHEER
HESKRE R

—  Checking the historical accuracy of inventory
provisioning and the level of inventories write-off
during the year.
BEBEFERBNERERFAFEMED
IRF o

CECCFER EHEBRERARIE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (C

B % SR ()

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all of the information included
in the annual report of the Company other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’'s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
and the disclosure requirements of the Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging

their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022
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T AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.

% SR ()
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT CO

B % SR ()

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE BEE B EZARE M BRRAENEE

AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL (£8)

STATEMENTS (Continued)

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use . HEERARBELE SN ERNGE EE
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based Hi#ssm o RBAERNEZRE - RERS
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material T??EEE%#&I NEBBNEXRTEEN
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that ALY BEEERELENRNIENE
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to K%ﬁ)’g MREMRRBFEERTHEEN -
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a AlBE N ERZHMMREFRIRESAE SR
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw EMBHRERPOREREENNEE - R
attention in our auditor’s report to the related EEENEEERTRE  AHEREANE
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements R -BMEmeER 8 ERHBAMERE R
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our JJ:FEEX?%E’JETZEEﬁ AT RREHHIF
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit MATEEY BEEETREBSELE -

evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’'s
report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going

concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and . FEFEUBERERNERIGK IR - &8
content of the consolidated financial statements, TDW./:.\’ PREEEER J/A&?V?E\Hﬂ%#ﬁ%%
including the disclosures, and whether the EEAARMAEBARZMER -

consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding . o BEEE W%%%ﬁ‘k%ﬁ%iﬁﬁ’]ﬁﬁ % &
the financial information of the entities or business HESTEEENEZRE  URGEEY
activities within the Group to express an opinion on BHERBERER - BMAEFIESE  EEANH
the consolidated financial statements. We are TEEMNEZIE - ZBMEAKMNETZ
responsible for the direction, supervision and BERAERHEME-

performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee, among other ZMEEZLZEeER T (HheE) St
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and EREELHEAREREZER  BERMESR

significant audit findings, including any significant 1% B 8 38 B A0 BB 4% ) A (E {r] 2 KRR 2K o
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.
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ENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Ms. Liu Fung Yi.

RSM Hong Kong
Certified Public Accountants

28 March 2023
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HRER#BR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE—ZT-_—F+-_A=+—HIEFE

2022 2021
—g-C —E-—F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt it F&T FET
(restated)
(&27))
Revenue [N 8 1,504,439 1,714,549
Cost of sales SHE B (1,169,105) (1,247,314)
Gross profit EF 335,334 467,235
Other income H A 9 31,220 30,125
(Impairment losses for trade (B 5 RUWRIBRERE
receivables)/reversals of impairment  18) & 5 & U 718
losses on trade receivables B 518 o] £ (52 242
Selling and distribution expenses HERDIHAL (33,568) (33,116)
General and administrative expenses —#& &1TH R X (246,690) (287,988)
Other operating expenses and income £ th & & F 7 &2 Uk A 11 (7,068) (22,612)
Profit from operations HERH 79,176 153,886
Finance costs A& B 12 (4,165) (3,259)
Loss on deregistration of a subsidiary =t &5 i B 2 7] 18 %k - (100)
Share of (losses)/profits of associates #7 Bf<A 7] (%),
il 25 (1,058) 45
Profit before tax B Bt A it F) 73,953 150,572
Income tax expense e R 13 (5,095) (22,835)
Profit for the year R its F 14 68,858 127,737
Attributable to LT AT REG#ER :
Owners of the Company RAEIERRB A 74,844 131,139
Non-controlling interests FE 12 IR e 7 (5,986) (3,402)
68,858 127,737
HK Cents HK Cents
Bl JE
Earnings per share BiREF 18
Basic 2R 8.37 14.67
Diluted BE N/A N/A
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.0 LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INGOME

GEESERHEMEEKEX

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HHE =T - —F+-_A=+—HBIFE

2022 2021

—g-- T4

HK$’000 HK$’000

FEiT FHET

Profit for the year FERiF 68,858 127,737
Other comprehensive income: Hih 2 mEI s

Items that will not be reclassified to BT EE P EE R 2 A
profit or loss
Surplus on revaluation of leasehold HELEBEEH A

lands 30,669 4,466
Income tax on items that will not be T EEHMHEEREZEE ZFT
reclassified to profit or loss 58 (4,573) (943)
26,096 8,528
Items that may be reclassified to AEB 7 EEBm s HE

profit or loss
Exchange differences on translating MEGINEBEE CE R ERE
foreign operations (70,286) 17,421

Other comprehensive income for FRKRFHEEGEZEKZE

the year, net of tax (44,190) 20,944
Total comprehensive income FREEWEEE
for the year 24,668 148,681
Attributable to: LT AT REG#EDR :
Owners of the Company RRARE=FBA 32,182 151,839
Non-controlling interests FET AR HE 2 (7,514) (3,158)
24,668 148,681
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 7

150

2022 2021
—®'- —E -4
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B it FEiT FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment VI - B ERE 19 492,350 547,487
Right-of-use assets FREEE 20 270,990 244,968
Goodwill BES 21 2,654 2,654
Other intangible assets HEtmpEE 22 3,382 3,835
Club membership i 23 718 718
Investment in associates REEE QT 2 "E 25 9,845 8,949
Deposits paid for acquisition of TEREEWE
property, plant and equipment WRRBB RS 20,186 13,411
Deferred tax assets EETIEE E 35 4,364 99
804,489 822,121
Current assets RENEE
Inventories FE 27 192,525 209,363
Right of return assets REEEZET 54 54
Trade and bills receivables B 5 R EBEWKIEA 28 405,432 453,082
Contract assets EHNEE 29 11,420 14,132
Prepayments, deposits and other TERFRIE - & % &
receivables E {th fiE Uk 51T 43,764 49,543
Due from an associate JE i Bt & 1 B3R IE 25 702 212
Current tax assets BNERFR A& &= 6,261 1,474
Restricted bank balances AR HIERITIFE K 30 1,860 2,029
Bank and cash balances RITRBE 4 30 244,153 280,683
906,171 1,010,572
Current liabilities i I=K
Trade payables B 5 RN RIA 31 184,897 209,935
Contract liabilities SHAR 29 8,611 7,854
Refund liabilities RRAR 241 241
Other payables and accruals b JE S BRIA R FEET
EAH 31 92,863 103,801
Due to an associate FET S & A Al FRIB 25 78 121
Derivative financial liabilities MEeRBE 26 935 3,486
Bank borrowings RITER 32 68,835 132,858
Lease liabilities HEaE 34 11,807 8,894
Current tax liabilities BENERTIE B & 4,475 22,936
372,742 490,126
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" OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)

wEMBRRR(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 R=—ZT = —F+=-A=+—H

2022 2021

—g-- T4

Note HK$’000 HK$’000

bt FET FEIT

Net current assets RBEEFE 533,429 520,446

Total assets less current liabilities & E4{HB R EN & & 1,337,918 1,342,667
Non-current liabilities EREER

Bank borrowings |ITERK 32 - 10,500

Loan from non-controlling interests ~ 3FIEPEHEZS B X 32 971 803

Lease liabilities HEBE 34 12,662 5,582

Deferred tax liabilities BERIEAE 35 34,009 31,280

47,642 48,165

NET ASSETS BHEFE 1,290,276 1,294,402
Capital and reserves BEREE

Share capital [N 36 89,376 89,376

Reserves B 38 1,194,091 1,190,703

Equity attributable to owners of AAT#EZEE AEW

the Company i 1,283,467 1,280,079
Non-controlling interests FEdERRHELS 6,809 14,323
TOTAL EQUITY i 1,290,276 1,294,402
Approved by the Board of Directors on 28 March 2023 LEEeN_T_=F=A_+/\A#LE  IH
and are signed on its behalf by: NTEEREES

Lee Yuen Fat Wong Wing Chuen
FimE =ik
Director Director

EZE EZE
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 # %=

Attributable to owners of the Company

FATRRRAABEER

Foreign
currency Land  Share-based Non-
Share Share Retained  Capital ~ Merger translation Statutory revaluation payments controlling
capital premium earnings  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve reserve Total interests
% DRBEHZ
REEH EEkE  EEE A 4y FERER

0

BAfiR  AHEE ERRE

/I

0

At 1 January 2021 R-2--%-f-H 89376 204650 681,420 2,115 (9,931) (2,507) 23004 175863 - 1,163,990 15,318 1,179,308
Total comprehensive income FR2ENGAE

for the year = - 131,139 = = 7m = 3,523 - 151,839 (3,158 148,681
Acquisttion of a subsidiary (ote 40 ‘REMBAR (H40p) = = = = = = = = = = 2,163 2,163
Transfer to statutory reserve LYy = - Iy = = - 2l - - - - -
Dividends paid frote 17) BRRE Wi 17) = - (85750 = = = = = - (35750 - (3750
Changes in equity for the year FREREY = - B = - 2,114 3523 - 116089 (995) 115,004
At 31 December 2021 and RZB--#+-A=1+-HR

1 January 2022 —E-_£-f-H 89,376 204,650 774,695 2115 (9,931) 14,670 25118 179,386 - 1,280,079 14,323 1,204,402
Total comprehensive income EREERREE

for the year - - g - - (68759 - %09 - B8 (514 24668
Share-based payments WROZHZ3E - - - - - - - - 700 700 - 700
Transfer to statutory reserve EDiTRE - - (3,188) - - - 3,188 - - - - -
Dividends paid (7ot 17) BRREHZ17) - - (20499) - - - - - - (2949) - (29499)
Changes n equty for the year ERERED - - 42162 - - (68,758 3188 26,006 700 3388 (7514 (4129)
At 31 December 2022 RZBZZf+ZA=1-R 89,376 204,650 816,857 2115 (9,931)  (54,088) 28,306 205,482 700 1,283,467 6,809 1,290,276
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ATED“STATEIVIENT OF CASH FLOWS

nv_\éiﬁ,ﬁﬁéi

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE—T-—F+-_F=+—HItFE

2022 2021
—=E=-= —E-—4F
Note HK$’000 HK$000

i FAET 7T

NET CASH GENERATED FROM BEEMBREFE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 40(a) 164,930 172,072

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING & ETHZRLRE

ACTIVITIES
Interest received 2B 952 1,042
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEEE « #2E Kk&E

plant and equipment 1,620 1,849
Purchase of property, plant and BEWE BB NEE

equipment (72,570) (84,399)
Acquisition of a subsidiary B B B8 A 7 40(b) - (7,432)
Net cash outflow from deregistration 5B A FIFER &

of a subsidiary i - (159)
Investment in an associate REE AT ZIZE (2,676) —
Purchase of right-of-use assets BERRAEAE (6,828) -
Deposits paid for the acquisition of — JEfI#2E - #22 &

property, plant and equipment Bpailkn (16,836) (8,297)
Net cash used in investing REFEBFAZ

activities R&%8E (96,338) (97,396)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING RIEFEIZIREEE

ACTIVITIES
Dividends paid B’ E (29,494) (35,750)
Loan from non-controlling interests ~ JEIZEIRHEZS E X 40(d) - 4,500
Short-term bank loans raised LR HRITE 40(a) 10,000 60,000
Short-term bank loans repaid EEEHETER 40(d) (20,000) (950)
Repayment of long-term bank loans (E&RHIRITE R 40(a) (62,074) (70,033)
Principal elements of lease payments 70 & 744 &f {7 (- 3X 40(d) (13,249) (9,388)
Net cash used in financing RLEHEIFTEEZ

activities REFHE (114,817) (51,621)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z =T = —

2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—fF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B i F#T FET
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN HeaRERBEL£EE
CASH AND CASH (W), HmiEiE
EQUIVALENTS (46,225) 23,055
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS M®—HF—HMES2R
AT 1 JANUARY %HEEQIEE 280,683 256,686
Effect of foreign exchange rate EEFH) 25
changes 9,695 942
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS W®+=-—HA=+—H#
AT 31 DECEMBER HeRERRELER 244,153 280,683
ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH R&R%XRIR£LIEH
EQUIVALENTS i
Bank and cash balances RITRIA S E 30 244,153 280,683
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IDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL INFORMATION

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. The
address of its registered office is Windward 3,
Regatta Office Park, PO Box 1350, Grand Cayman
KY1-1108, Cayman lIslands. The address of its
principal place of business is Room A, 29/F., Tower
B, Bilion Centre, 1 Wang Kwong Road, Kowloon
Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong. The Company’s shares
are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company.
The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out
in note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, as at
31 December 2022, Precisefull Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”), is the
ultimate parent and Mr. LEE Yuen Fat (“Mr. Lee”) is
the ultimate controlling party of the Company.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”). HKFRSs comprise Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”); Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS”); and
Interpretations. These consolidated financial
statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”) and with the disclosure requirements
of the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622). Significant
accounting policies adopted by the Group are
disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the
Group. Note 3 provides information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial application
of these developments to the extent that they are
relevant to the Group for the current and prior
accounting periods reflected in these consolidated
financial statements.

REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HHEZE=—T - —F+-_A=+—HIFE

1. ARER
=inEBRZERER AR ((ARR])REHA
EHERNTENFAEHEAMA L AT
RERAA - HTMFEFRMWE R
Windward 3, Regatta Office Park, PO Box
1350, Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman
Islands e H X BL ¥ M AF B NENLE
BRI E—RERPOBE2MEAE « AR
AIRNEETEBERZAMBER AR ([H
Frl) EtR £ e

ARBIBBREERAR R BARZE
ZRBHINERAMIERKRME24 -

KRR EBEERE RN_E__F+_A4
=+—H - Precisefull Limited (— R &EE
BEZHEEEMAIZAR]) BREF AT -
TRBEE([FRE]) BARR Z&KE
A

2. RBHE
hEEARBRRIBBER EESS
HE AR ((BEEEHMAR ) BEGES
R mE R ([BERBREER )R
Bl BEEIBEREEBDIESBHBERE
B FEGEAN(EBE LR R
REWERAPBRECELER B
RETEE LR ETRA]) 2 HEF
BIR A AIER (B622%) 2 HBEK - At
ERRM T ESH AN TXRE -

BERMASEEME TRARELRS
SR E R AR AT IR R RN ZHRT R
RIEEFTBEAUBHREER - EXSTHEAH
BHRERPRRZEARERZEEANEE
BRENBEMMII Bz AFRELBESH
BEFBRZEMEBFARES M HER
RMFEES
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL_ TATEIVlENTS “._
S ®RRME(E) |

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE=-T - —F+=-A=+— El.IJ:EF ’

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

(a)

Application of new and revised
HKFRSs

The Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
for the first time, which are mandatorily
effective for the annual period beginning on or
after 1 January 2022 for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to
HKAS 16

Property, Plant and
Equipment: Proceeds
before Intended Use

Onerous Contracts
— Cost of Fulfilling
a Contract

Amendments to
HKAS 37

Reference to the
Conceptual
Framework

Amendments to
HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS
16 (March 2021)

Covid-19 Related Rent
Concessions beyond
30 June 2021

Annual Improvements
Project

Annual Improvements to
HKFRS Standards
2018-2020

Amendments to
Accounting
Guideline 5

Merger Accounting for
Common Control
Combinations

None of the application of these amendments
to HKFRSs in the current year had material
impact on the Group’s financial positions and
performance for the current and prior years
and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022

3. ERMHIIREBIBBHBREE

Ll

(a)

FERMT REETEEMBRE
8|
REBRRREEVBREFDEHR
ERAUTHESEMASEMNE
IS IREERNSET A - BRI A
R —F—-A—BRZ2ERRNTF
[ BRI R I AR

EBetEEEI6 YWE BERR
SRZIERTA % BRERR
R E) P13 5008
EBEH LS BBRMEAH
SRZIERTA — BIIAHN
B
ERPBHREED  BOERREL
FIFZETAR
EEPBRELN —T-—FXA
F165E Z BRI =t+B%z
(ZZ=—F 2019 B R m =
=A) FiRERES
e
EEPBRELN BEPBREE
ZEEE AJ2018%
2020 F N EE
g
SiESI B ZE EREHIAEHZ
P BtehA

RAFERAB BT RS EER]
REAEBNAFERBEFEZH
SR R RIE RS %R A 3R
KIS ZIEEETWESATE -



FINANGIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B R Y R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HHE =T - —F+-_A=+—HBIFE

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective
The Group has not applied any amendments to
standards and interpretation that have been
issued but are not yet effective for the financial
year beginning 1 January 2022. These
amendments to standards and interpretation
include the following which may be relevant to

the Group.
Effective for
accounting
periods beginning
on or after
Amendments to HKAS 1 1 January 2024
— Classification of
Liabilities as Current
or Non-current
Amendments to HKAS 1 1 January 2024
— Non-current
Liabilities with
Covenants
Amendments to HKAS 1 1 January 2023
and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 -
Disclosure of
Accounting Policies
Amendments to HKAS 8 1 January 2023

— Definition of
Accounting Estimates

Amendments to HKAS 12 1 January 2023
— Deferred Tax Related
to Assets and Liabilities
Arising from a Single
Transaction

3.

RANFTR] KRBT BB B RELE
8l (48)

(b) ERAME R RERKZHET R EE

A EEMBRERED
N5 B 3 £ e PR AE fe] 2 AR AR B IR R R0

TECF—-A—HABRNUBRFE
RAEBNEETERRE 25K
1ERT R 2ERI R 22 F2 h AT BE ER R SR E 4R
BAENT -

RT3 B #K
ZERISHE
srHARE AN
BRGHERIF 1R —T-mEF
ZIERIR — KA —A—HR
BN ERREKIE
Pk
BREHERIF 1R —T-mEF
ZIERIAR — K% —HA—HR
LY ERBEE

- E AL A
REBUMBRELE —A—A
AIEBREF 2%

ZERIAR — &5t

BRI E

BB e ERFE8R —T-=F
ZIERTAR — @5t —A—8
Bt ER

BB g ERIE12 —E-=4F
SRZIEFTA — —A—8
B ZEANE
EXEERENE
R IE
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J?’fﬁﬁ%ﬁi&(%ﬁ)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE =% =

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

(b)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Continued)

Effective for
accounting
periods beginning
on or after

Amendments to HKFRS
16 — Lease Liability in
a Sale and Leaseback

1 January 2024

Amendments to HKFRS
10 and HKAS 28
— Sale or Contribution
of Assets between an
Investor and its
Associate or Joint
Venture

To be determined
by the HKICPA

Hong Kong Interpretation
5 (2020) Presentation of
Financial Statements —
Classification by the
Borrower of a Term
Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand
Clause

1 January 2024

The Group is in the process of making an
assessment of what the impact of these
amendments to standards and interpretation is
expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far it has concluded that the
adoption of them is unlikely to have a
significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements.
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-FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, unless
mentioned otherwise in the accounting policies below
(e.g. leasehold land and certain financial instruments
that are measured at fair value).

The preparation of consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies.
The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in note 5.

The significant accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are set out below:

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries made up to 31 December.
Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group
has control. The Group controls an entity when
it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. The Group has power over an
entity when the Group has existing rights that
give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect
the entity’s returns.

(a)

When assessing control, the Group considers
its potential voting rights as well as potential
voting rights held by other parties. A potential
voting right is considered only if the holder has
the practical ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They
are de-consolidated from the date the control
ceases.

e B R Y R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE—T-—F+-_F=+—HItFE
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

Consolidation (Continued)

The gain or loss on the disposal of a
subsidiary that results in a loss of control
represents the difference between () the fair
value of the consideration of the sale plus the
fair value of any investment retained in that
subsidiary and (i) the Company’s share of the
net assets of that subsidiary plus any remaining
goodwill and any accumulated foreign currency
translation reserve relating to that subsidiary.

Intragroup transactions, balances and
unrealised profits are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in
subsidiaries not attributable, directly or
indirectly, to the Company. Non-controlling
interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position and consolidated
statement of changes in equity within equity.
Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as an allocation of
profit or loss and total comprehensive income
for the vyear between the non-controlling
shareholders and owners of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling shareholders even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.
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INANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

Consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest
in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of
control are accounted for as equity
transactions (i.e. transactions with owners in
their capacity as owners). The carrying
amounts of the controlling and non-controlling
interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in
their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any
difference between the amount by which the
non-controlling interests are adjusted and the
fair value of the consideration paid or received
is recognised directly in equity and attributed to
the owners of the Company.

In the Company’s statement of financial
position, investments in subsidiaries are stated
at cost less impairment losses, unless the
investment is classified as held for sale (or
included in a disposal group that is classified
as held for sale).

Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investments. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received or receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving a
dividend from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the
subsidiary in the period the dividend is
declared or if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements
exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.

e B R Y R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE—T-—F+-_F=+—HItFE

4. FESFHE(E)

(a)

FERE (8)

ARRR NG BHREEFIE 2B
RAEAZEEREREDAARRR S
(BVAEBEAEDBEBERANETZR
5) o R KRR 2 BRE
BHEEHAE  URBRERHKEBLRRZ
HRAESES - FERERCRAES
BEDNHABRREZRFEMER
ZEMEREERNESER  YAA
REFEBADE

RARBZMFBIRAERA - RHER
Az R B R AR ER B -
RIFZBRERDBERFEHE (B
RERDBRFHEHEZ L EESR) -

KRABEREERBIHKA - AAF
BREW R BRI EEGHB AR
AR -

B A R EEENREEB
MBARRE RS BENEEKE
BBELMZRERNEBY B HRERADN
FHEEBREHREEFE(BRE
BE)NEEMBERERANKEE -
AR B SRR SRR % SR A
TTRER

CECCFER EHEBRERARIE

161



162

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-ZT - —F+-A=+-HILFE “
B ‘

4.

& ft % R M A (R)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b)

Business combination and goodwill
The acquisition method is used to account for
the acquisition of a subsidiary in a business
combination. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at the
acquisition-date fair value of the assets given,
equity instruments issued, liabilities incurred
and any contingent consideration. Acquisition-
related costs are recognised as expenses in the
periods in which the costs are incurred and the
services are received. ldentifiable assets and
liabilities of the subsidiary in the acquisition are,
with limited exceptions, measured at their
acquisition-date fair values.

The excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred over the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable assets
and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. Any
excess of the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
over the sum of the consideration transferred is
recognised in consolidated profit or loss as a
gain on bargain purchase which is attributed to
the Group.
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INANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b)

Business combination and goodwill
(Continued)

In a business combination achieved in stages,
the previously held equity interest in the
subsidiary is remeasured at its acquisition-date
fair value and the resulting gain or loss is
recognised in consolidated profit or loss. The
fair value is added to the sum of the
consideration transferred in a business
combination to calculate the goodwill.

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary
are initially measured at the non-controlling
shareholders’ proportionate share of the net fair
value of the subsidiary’s identifiable assets and
liabilities at the acquisition date.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at
cost less accumulated impairment losses. For
the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated
to each of the cash-generating units (“CGUs”)
or groups of CGUs that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination. Each
unit or group of units to which the goodwill is
allocated represents the lowest level within the
Group at which the goodwill is monitored for
internal management purposes. Goodwill
impairment reviews are undertaken annually or
more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate a potential impairment.
The carrying value of the CGU containing the
goodwill is compared to its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of value in use
and the fair value less costs of disposal. Any
impairment is recognised immediately as an
expense and is not subsequently reversed.

e B R Y R ()
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE=-T - —F+=-A=+— El.IJ:EF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c)

Associates

Associates are entities over which the Group
has significant influence. Significant influence is
the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of an entity but is
not control or joint control over those policies.
The existence and effect of potential voting
rights that are currently exercisable or
convertible, including potential voting rights held
by other entities, are considered when
assessing whether the Group has significant
influence. In assessing whether a potential
voting right contributes to significant influence,
the holder’s intention and financial ability to
exercise or convert that right is not
considered.

Investment in an associate is accounted for in
the consolidated financial statements by the
equity method and is initially recognised at
cost. ldentifiable assets and liabilities of the
associate in an acquisition are measured at
their fair values at the acquisition date. The
excess of the cost of the investment over the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the
associate’s identifiable assets and liabilities is
recorded as goodwill which is included in the
carrying amount of the investment. Any excess
of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of
acquisition is recognised in consolidated profit
or loss.
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INANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c)

Associates (Continued)

The Group assesses whether there is an
objective evidence that the interest in an
associate may be impaired. When any objective
evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of
the investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 as a
single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value
less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount.
Any impairment loss recognised is not allocated
to any asset, including goodwill, that forms part
of the carrying amount of the investment. Any
reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that
the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

The Group’s share of an associate’s post-
acquisition profits or losses and other
comprehensive income is recognised in
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income. When the
Group’s share of losses in an associate equals
or exceeds its interest in the associate (which
includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the associate), the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate. If the associate
subsequently reports profits, the Group
resumes recognising its share of those profits
only after its share of the profits equals the
share of losses not recognised.

e B R Y R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE—T-—F+-_F=+—HItFE

4. FESFHE(E)

(c)

Bt A S (4R)

AEEMEREATEREBERRER
BRRIMES R BEHMBARE - EFHE
TRATBREER  RENZBIREE
(BREBR)BELRE-BEREEE
SETERIEICTEITRERR - TA
ERETKRESE (BIEREERER
FEREEXRAZEREE) BEKE
EEITHE - EI SRR ERE
TePEERAREREE N
EREE (BEEE) - ZRERRZ
ERRE HIRIEEE S5 ERIFE365%
BB 2 A & B E AR IR I FERR

AEEREBE AR ZWEEREBERR
Hip 2 mE e R e Wa kB2 m
Yeat R ARER o AN SR BRI E D
AEBEBRESFNNERAERNBEZE QR Z
Ba (BRER LKA RERZB
BRRREFE My 2 E R R EE
@) AAEETEE - SHIAE
B BREAKEERBEQRAEZER
[CES IR R Gl - PNCIERE &2 8
- A AREBEREEERNER
HEERER ZBRERERRERE
2% Al -

CECCFER EHEBRERARIE

165



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCI
S8 B R W () g

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-ZF— —F+— f EWL_EI.IJ:E% ’

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. ETEETEE (#)
(Continued)
(c) Associates (Continued) (c) HEBEAT ()
The gain or loss on the disposal of an AHEBE AR MERHREERY
associate that results in a loss of significant ZBmB)HEREZAFEMNE
influence represents the difference between (i) AIRERZEE AT 2 REZ A TE
the fair value of the consideration of the sale Ky EBEGZEE AR 2BERE
plus the fair value of any investment retained in B(BEFE) MEMEBRFIELRH
that associate and (i) the Group’s entire ERMEBCERE - WRIEEE QAT 2%
carrying amount of that associate (including BRABRAELERE  AEBEE
goodwill) and any related accumulated foreign KAEREMNETTEREEE -

currency translation reserve. If an investment in
an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture, the Group continues to apply the
equity method and does not remeasure the
retained interest.

Unrealised profits on transactions between the HIEASEEARERFTEARI 2K
Group and its associates are eliminated to the IR 5 ) Th A ZN &= B RN B 2 R B 2 B
extent of the Group’s interests in the wmAR REBBEITSEE - BRIE
associates. Unrealised losses are also R 5B BERBNTEREEE LR
eliminated unless the transaction provides BRIERGR - Bt E AR 2 TR
evidence of an impairment of the asset BEEEE - DR EASEEERA
transferred. Accounting policies of associates BERER—B -

have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the

Group.
(d) Foreign currency translation (d) ShEirE

() Functional and presentation currency (i) DEREIE
ltems included in the financial statements NE B X E B Y B 75 IR 2k P AN
of each of the Group’s entities are ABIEE IR ERBEE XK
measured using the currency of the EFERBRENEE ([Tae
primary economic environment in which BEDHE e BHmEIA
the entity operates (the “functional BILES - MABTARNRA R
currency”). The consolidated financial e k25| E% -

statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$”), which is the Company’s
functional and presentation currency.
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INANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d) Foreign currency translation
(Continued)

(i)

Transactions and balances in each
entity’s financial statements
Transactions in foreign currencies are
translated into the functional currency on
initial recognition using the exchange
rates prevailing on the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign
currencies are translated at the exchange
rates at the end of each reporting period.
Gains and losses resulting from this
translation policy are recognised in profit
or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that
are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. The transaction date is
the date on which the company initially
recognises such non-monetary assets or
liabilities. Non-monetary items that are
measured at fair value in foreign
currencies are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates when the fair
values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary
item is recognised in other
comprehensive income, any exchange
component of that gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive
income. When a gain or loss on a non-
monetary item is recognised in profit or
loss, any exchange component of that
gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss.
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& ft % R M A (R)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-ZT - —F+-A=+-HILFE “
B ‘

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d) Foreign currency translation

(Continued)

(iii) Translation on consolidation
The results and financial position of all
foreign operations (none of which has the
currency of hyperinflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different
from the Company’s presentation
currency are translated into the
Company’s presentation currency as
follows:

— Assets and liabilities for each
statement of financial position
presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that
statement of financial position;

— Income and expenses are translated
at average exchange rate for the
period (unless this average rate is
not a reasonable approximation of
the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates,
in which case income and
expenses are translated at the
exchange rates on the transaction
dates); and

— All resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other
comprehensive income and
accumulated in the foreign currency
translation reserve.
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INANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d)

(e)

Foreign currency translation

(Continued)

(iii) Translation on consolidation
(Continued)
On consolidation, exchange differences
arising from the translation of monetary
items that form part of the net
investment in foreign entities are
recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the foreign
currency translation reserve. When a
foreign operation is sold, such exchange
differences are reclassified to
consolidated profit or loss as part of the
gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments
arising on the acquisition of a foreign
entity are treated as assets and liabilities
of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are held for use
in the production or supply of goods or
services, or for administrative purposes (other
than properties under construction as
described below). Property, plant and
equipment are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost, less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’'s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. All other
repairs and maintenance are recognised in
profit or loss during the period in which they
are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL_ TATEIVlENTS “._
S ®RRME(E) |

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE=-T - —F+=-A=+— El.IJ:EF ’

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
is calculated at rates sufficient to write off their
cost or revalued amounts less their residual
values over the estimated useful lives on a
straight-line basis. The principal useful lives are
as follows:

Buildings 5 to 20 years or over the
unexpired term of lease
Leasehold 2 to 5 years or over the
improvements unexpired term of lease
Plant and machinery 5 to 10 years
Computer equipment 3 to 5 years
Furniture, fixtures and 3 to 5 years
office equipment
Motor vehicles 3 to 5 years
The residual values, useful lives and

depreciation method are reviewed and
adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes
in estimate accounted for on a prospective
basis.

Construction in progress represents buildings
under construction and plant and equipment
pending installation, and is stated at cost less
impairment losses. Depreciation begins when
the relevant assets are available for use.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant
and equipment is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of
the relevant asset, and is recognised in profit or
loss.
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"FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f)

Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses
whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration. Control is
conveyed where the customer has both the
right to direct the use of the identified asset
and to obtain substantially all of the economic
benefits from that use.

(i) The Group as a lessee

Where the contract contains lease
component(s) and non-lease
component(s), the Group has elected not
to separate non-lease components and
accounts for each lease component and
any associated non-lease components as
a single lease component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the
Group recognises a right-of-use asset and
a lease liability, except for short-term
leases that have a lease term of 12
months or less and leases of low-value
assets which, for the Group are primarily
laptops and office furniture. When the
Group enters into a lease in respect of a
low-value asset, the Group decides
whether to capitalise the lease on a
lease-by-lease basis. The lease payments
associated with those leases which are
not capitalised are recognised as an
expense on a systematic basis over the
lease term.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

)

Leases (Continued)

U]

The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Where the lease is capitalised, the lease
liability is initially recognised at the
present value of the lease payments
payable over the lease term, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease
or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, using a relevant incremental
borrowing rate. Lease payments to be
made under reasonably certain extension
options are also included in the
measurement of the lease liability. After
initial recognition, the lease liability is
measured at amortised cost and interest
expense is calculated using the effective
interest method. Variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index or rate
are not included in the measurement of
the lease liability and hence are charged
to profit or loss in the accounting period
in which they are incurred.

The right-of-use assets recognised when
a lease is capitalised is initially measured
at cost, which comprises the initial
amount of the lease liability plus any
lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, and any initial
direct costs incurred. Where applicable,
the cost of the right-of-use assets also
includes an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying
asset or to restore the underlying asset or
the site on which it is located,
discounted to their present value, less
any lease incentives received. The right-
of-use asset is subsequently stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, except for the right-
of-use assets related to leasehold land
where the Group is the registered owner
of the leasehold interest are carried at fair
value.
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{E cuu‘soun"'- ED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f) Leases (Continued)

(i)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)
To determine the incremental borrowing
rate, the Group:

o where possible, uses recent third-
party financing received by the
individual lessee as a starting point,
adjusted to reflect changes in
financing conditions since third
party financing was received,

° uses a build-up approach that starts
with a risk-free interest rate
adjusted for credit risk, and

o makes adjustments specific to the
lease, eg term, country, currency
and security.

Right-of-use assets related to leasehold
land held for use in the production or
supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes, are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial
position at their revalued amounts, being
the fair value at the date of revaluation,
less any subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses.
Revaluations are performed with sufficient
regularity such that the carrying amounts
do not differ materially from those that
would be determined using fair values at
the end of each reporting period.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f)

Leases (Continued)

(i)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Any revaluation increase arising on the
revaluation of such land is recognised in
other comprehensive income and
accumulated in land revaluation reserve,
except to the extent that it reverses a
revaluation decrease for the same asset
previously recognised in profit or loss, in
which case the increase is credited to
profit or loss to the extent of the
decrease previously expensed. A
decrease in the carrying amount arising
on the revaluation of such land is
recognised in profit or loss to the extent
that it exceeds the balance, if any, held
in the land revaluation reserve relating to
a previous revaluation of that asset.

Depreciation of revalued land is
recognised in profit or loss. On the
subsequent sale or retirement of a
revalued land, the attributable revaluation
surplus remaining in the land revaluation
reserve is transferred directly to retained
earnings.
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"FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f) Leases (Continued)

(i)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Right-of-use assets in which the Group is
reasonably certain to obtain ownership of
the underlying leased assets at the end of
the lease term are depreciated from
commencement date to the end of the
useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of its estimated useful
life and the unexpired term of lease.

Refundable rental deposits paid are
accounted under HKFRS 9 and initially
measured at fair value. Adjustments to
fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments
and included in the cost of right-of-use
assets.

The lease liability is remeasured when
there is a change in future lease
payments arising from a change in an
index or rate, or there is a change in the
Group’s estimate of the amount expected
to be payable under a residual value
guarantee, or there is a change arising
from the reassessment of whether the
Group will be reasonably certain to
exercise a purchase, extension or
termination option. When the lease liability
is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset,
or is recorded in profit or loss if the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset
has been reduced to zero.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f)

(9)

Leases (Continued)

(i)

(i)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)
The lease liability is also remeasured
when there is a change in the scope of a
lease or the consideration for a lease that
is not originally provided for in the lease
contract (“lease modification”) that is not
accounted for as a separate lease. In this
case the lease liability is remeasured
based on the revised lease payments and
lease term using a revised discount rate
at the effective date of the modification.
The only exceptions are any rent
concessions which arose as a direct
consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic
and which satisfied the conditions set out
in paragraph 46B of HKFRS 16. In such
cases, the Group took advantage of the
practical expedient not to assess whether
the rent concessions are lease
modifications, and recognised the change
in consideration as negative lease
payments in profit or loss in the period in
which the event or condition that triggers
the rent concessions occurred.

The Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it
determines at lease inception whether
each lease is a finance lease or an
operating lease. A lease is classified as a
finance lease if it transfers substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to the
ownership of an underlying assets to the
lessee. If this is not the case, the lease is
classified as an operating lease.

Research and development
expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised
as an expense in the period in which it is
incurred.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)

U]

1)

Other intangible assets

Technology knowhow

Know-how is stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses.
Amortisation is calculated on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives.

Customer relationships

Customer relationships are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses. Amortisation is calculated on a straight-
line basis over their estimated useful lives.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined using
the weighted average basis. The cost of
finished goods and work in progress comprises
raw materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of all production overhead
expenditure, and where appropriate,
subcontracting charges. The costs of
purchased inventory are determined after
deducting rebates and discounts. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

Other contract costs
Other contract costs are the incremental costs
of obtaining a contract with a customer.

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are
those costs that the Group incurs to obtain a
contract with a customer that it would not
have incurred if the contract had not been
obtained. Incremental costs of obtaining a
contract are capitalised when incurred if the
costs are expected to be recovered, unless the
expected amortisation period is one year or
less from the date of initial recognition of the
asset, in which case the costs are expensed
when incurred. Other costs of obtaining a
contract are expensed when incurred.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. ETEETEE (#)
(Continued)
(k) Club membership (k) EFEE
Club membership with indefinite useful life is EERAEAFHOE M REIRKA
stated at cost less any impairment losses. BAERESEIR SMesEsF
Impairment is reviewed annually or when there REBEDRBERLRBEBEE &
is any indication that the club membership has EITRERET

suffered an impairment loss.

() Contract assets and contract liabilities ) EBHBEERESHAER
Contract asset is recognised when the Group EAEEEREGKGHMBEREZEESNE
recognises revenue before being B RIER TR R E BT ISR U -
unconditionally entitled to the consideration FEERENEE -AHNEEREN
under the payment terms set out in the HAQE I M B RTHERAEEES
contract. Contract assets are assessed for B WEREOEMNKREFGRE
expected credit losses (“ECLs”) in accordance o AEWEIE -

with the policy set out in note 4(z) and are
reclassified to receivables when the right to the
consideration has become unconditional.

A contract liability is recognised when the EEPEARE B #RMEEB AR XA
customer pays consideration before the Group RE AEBEFEeRREGNEE-&A
recognises the related revenue. A contract NEEE R B AR A A EGG
liability would also be recognised if the Group BEFWERE  ANEETTEeRRE
has an unconditional right to receive HNEE TEZZEBERAT  TEERE
consideration before the Group recognises the 28 FE W SR IE o

related revenue. In such cases, a
corresponding receivable would also be

recognised.

For a single contract with the customer, either MEREFPIIVMNE—EHAME * K2
a net contract asset or a net contract liability is TEHNEEFEXRSHEEFHE -5t
presented. For multiple contracts, contract ZIEMEHME * THEGONELD
assets and contract liabilities of unrelated BERGHNBELFIRFHEELS
contracts are not presented on a net basis. ) o

When the contract includes a significant EARBEEARERDF - AREK
financing component, the contract balance BERIERBEEBRMNERENEFE

includes interest accrued under the effective
interest method.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FTESFHE(H&)

(Continued)

(m) ERBRZILEIESMIR

(m) Recognition and derecognition of

financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position when the Group becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets
and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL") are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises a financial asset only
when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its
retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to
pay. If the Group retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred
financial asset, the Group continues to
recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the
proceeds received.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. ETEETEE (#)

(Continued)

(m) Recognition and derecognition of (m) WERRZILFEDREMTA(E)
financial instruments (Continued)
The Group derecognises financial liabilities REBELERBCER  BUBER
when, and only when, the Group’s obligations BARIEEReREE - RIEERD
are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The tRHBERMESBEED N REND
difference between the carrying amount of the REBEAANEEZNIERCEE
financial liability derecognised and the FERENEB)ONER  ARERSP
consideration paid and payable, including any R o

non-cash assets transferred or liabilities
assumed, is recognised in profit or loss.

(n) Financial assets (n) &RIEE

All regular way purchases or sales of financial FBELEEARELHNEREEER
assets are recognised and derecognised on a RS BHAERARKILER - BT
trade date basis. Regular way purchases or FREERBLEMSRGIFIEREL
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets MERARNEENCREERE -
that require delivery of assets within the time FIEERRNESHEERLRZAZ IR
frame established by regulation or convention BEXNAKATERFE  BTEmE
in the marketplace. All recognised financial ERDEMIE °

assets are measured subsequently in their
entirety at either amortised cost or fair value,
depending on the classification of the financial

assets.

Debt instruments BHRE

Debt instruments held by the Group are AEERFENEBRE D ELE TS
classified into one of the following H—IBir=285

measurement categories:

—  amortised cost, if the instrument is held — MEREREFBERESNIR
for the collection of contractual cash 2 MzSHEREERLTE
flows which represent solely payments of K F B FIE - Bl BEESHRA -
principal and interest. Interest income JERTEWA TR EERF
from the instrument is calculated using KEFE - B REBEEWNK
the effective interest method. Typically, IH - H U ERIA - Re kiR
trade and bills receivables, other TSRO EERILER -

receivables, cash and bank balances are
classified in this category.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n) Financial assets (Continued)
Debt instruments (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”)
recycling, if the contractual cash flows of
the instruments comprise solely payments
of principal and interest and the
instrument is held within a business
model whose objective is achieved by
both the collection of contractual cash
flows and sale. Changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive
income, except for the recognition in
profit or loss of ECLs, interest income
(calculated using the effective interest
method) and foreign exchange gains and
losses. When the instrument is
derecognised, the amount accumulated in
other comprehensive income is recycled
from equity to profit or loss.

FVTPL if the instrument does not meet the
criteria for being measured at amortised
cost or FVTOCI (recycling). Changes in
the fair value of the instrument (including
interest) are recognised in profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n)

(o)

Financial assets (Continued)

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified
as FVTPL unless the equity investment is not
held for trading purposes and on initial
recognition of the investment the Group makes
an election to designate the investment at
FVTOCI (non-recycling) such that subsequent
changes in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income. Such elections are
made on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but
may only be made if the investment meets the
definition of equity from the issuer’s
perspective. Where such an election is made,
the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income remains in the fair value
reserve (non-recycling) until the investment is
disposed of. At the time of disposal, the
amount accumulated in the fair value reserve
(non-recycling) is transferred to retained
earnings but not recycled through profit or
loss. Dividends from an investment in equity
securities, irrespective of whether classified as
at FVTPL or FVTOCI, are recognised in profit or
loss as other income.

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has
an unconditional right to receive consideration.
A right to receive consideration is unconditional
if only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due. If
revenue has been recognised before the Group
has an unconditional right to receive
consideration, the amount is presented as a
contract asset.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the
amount of consideration that is unconditional
unless they contain significant financing
components, when they are recognised at fair
value. The Group holds the trade receivables
with the objective of collecting the contractual
cash flows and therefore measures them
subsequently at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less allowance for
credit losses.
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D FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(p)

(q)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at
bank and on hand, demand deposits with
banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, having been within three
months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management are also included as a
component of cash and cash equivalents for
the purpose of the consolidated cash flow
statement. Cash and cash equivalents are
assessed for ECL.

Financial liabilities and equity
instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are
classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument under HKFRSs. An equity
instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group
after deducting all of its liabilities. The
accounting policies adopted for specific
financial liabilities and equity instruments are set
out below.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE=-T - —F+=-A=+— El.IJ:EF ’

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(q)

Financial liabilities and equity
instruments (Continued)

(i)

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value, net of transaction costs incurred,
and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.
Any difference between the proceeds (net
of transaction costs) and the redemption
amount is recognised in profit or loss
over the period of the borrowings using
the effective interest method. Fees paid
on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the
loan to the extent that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn
down. In this case, the fee is deferred
until the draw-down occurs. To the
extent there is no evidence that it is
probable that some or all of the facility
will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised
as a prepayment for liquidity services and
amortised over the period of the facility
to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current
liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after
the reporting period.
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{E cuu‘soun"'- ED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(g) Financial liabilities and equity
instruments (Continued)

(i)

Financial guarantee contracts
Financial guarantee contracts are
recognised as a financial liability at the
time the guarantee is issued. The liability
is initially measured at fair value and
subsequently at the higher of:

= the amount determined in
accordance with the ECL model
under HKFRS 9; and

—  the amount initially recognised less,
where appropriate, the cumulative
amount of income recognised in
accordance with the principles of
HKFRS 15.

The fair value of financial guarantees is
determined based on the present value of
the difference in cash flows between the
contractual payments required under the
debt instrument and the payments that
would be required without the guarantee,
or the estimated amount that would be
payable to a third party for assuming the
obligations.

Where guarantees in relation to loans or
other payables of associates are provided
for no compensation, the fair values are
accounted for as contributions and
recognised as part of the cost of the
investment.

IIV

BB wR M (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #{Z—T - —F+_-_A=+—RHIFE

4, FEEFHBE

(na)

() =HEBERERERAIAER)

(i)

MERRESHER
Eﬁ%{%u FIR B - B RS HE R
BRERR-—BEETHMAE %

Eﬁﬁﬁﬂiﬁﬂﬁﬁi*ﬁ
BARATRERRSEFE

- REBYBHREERE
A EMEREEREARE
ENEE R

— FHEINEERE (A
ER)RBEERBREE
A 155 R Ay R 5t U
AO

MBEROXFERERER
TATHEMNANIMNEER
HEBARBH N S RELEIE
REERBNGEE =T M
TR AMNREREEENER
BIRRE °

= B N A RO {8 K R

ﬁ %ATmmﬁTkﬁﬁﬁ
RN ERESKAIKRA

ﬁ%%&ﬁﬁﬁﬂ—%ﬁ

-

CECCFER EHEBRERARIE

185



186

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL_ TATEIVlENTS “._
S ®RRME(E) |

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE=-T - —F+=-A=+— El.IJ:EF ’

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(q)

(r)

(s)

Financial liabilities and equity

instruments (Continued)

(iii) Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are recognised
initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method unless
the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated
at cost.

(iv) Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets
of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Derivative financial instruments
Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value
at the date a derivative contract is entered into
and are subsequently remeasured to their fair
value at the end of each reporting period.

Revenue and other income

Revenue is recognised when control over a
product or service is transferred to the
customer, at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected
to be entitled, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes
and is after deduction of any trade discounts.
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{E cuu‘soun"'- ED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s)

Revenue and other income (Continued)
For OEM Products that have no alternative use
to the Group and when the Group has an
enforceable right to payment from the
customers for performance completed to date,
the Group recognises revenue from the sales of
such OEM Products as the performance
obligation is satisfied over time in accordance
with the input method, by reference to the
costs incurred to date over the total expected
costs. Otherwise, sales are recognised when
control of the products has been transferred,
being when the products are delivered to the
customers. Delivery occurs when the products
have been delivered to the designated location
prescribed by the customer. Payment for
goods is not due from the customer until the
OEM Products are delivered to the customer
and therefore a contract asset is recognised
over the period in which the goods are
produced, representing the entity’s right to
consideration for the services performed to
date.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s)

Revenue and other income (Continued)
Revenue from the sales of non-OEM Products
is recognised when control of the goods has
transferred, being when the goods have been
shipped to the customer’s specific location
(delivery). Following delivery, the customer has
full discretion over the manner of distribution
and price to sell the goods, has the primary
responsibility when on selling the goods and
bears the risks of obsolescence and loss in
relation to the goods. A receivable is
recognised by the Group when the goods are
delivered to the customer as this represents
the point in time at which the right to
consideration becomes unconditional, as only
the passage of time is required before payment
is due. A refund liability and a corresponding
adjustment to revenue is recognised for those
products expected to be returned. At the same
time, the Group has a right to recover the
product when customers exercise their right of
return so consequently recognises a right to
returned goods asset and a corresponding
adjustment to cost of sales. The Group uses its
accumulated historical experience to estimate
the number of returns on a portfolio level using
the expected value method. It is considered
highly probable that a significant reversal in the
cumulative revenue recognised will not occur
given the consistent level of returns over
previous years.

Revenue from sales of moulds is recognised
when the quality of moulds are accepted by
the customers, and the customers have the
legal title to the moulds and can direct the
Group to use them for production.
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NANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s)

®

Revenue and other income (Continued)
Interest income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method. For financial
assets measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI
(recycling) that are not credit-impaired, the
effective interest rate is applied to the gross
carrying amount of the asset. For credit
impaired financial assets, the effective interest
rate is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross
carrying amount net of loss allowance) of the
asset.

Rental income receivable under operating
leases is recognised in profit or loss in equal
instalments over the periods covered by the
lease term, except where an alternative basis is
more representative of the pattern of benefits
to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in
profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments receivable.
Variable lease payments that do not depend on
an index or a rate are recognised as income in
the accounting period in which they are
earned.

Employee benefits

(i) Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave
and long service leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service
leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting
period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until
the time of leave.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

®

(u)

Employee benefits (Continued)

(ii) Pension obligations
The Group contributes to defined
contribution retirement schemes which
are available to all employees.
Contributions to the schemes by the
Group and employees are calculated as a
percentage of employees’ basic salaries.
The retirement benefit scheme cost
charged to profit or loss represents
contributions payable by the Group to the
funds.

(iii) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised at the
earlier of the dates when the Group can
no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits, and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs and involves the
payment of termination benefits.

Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settled share-based
payments to certain directors, employees and
consultants.

Equity-settled share-based payments to
directors and employees are measured at the
fair value (excluding the effect of non-market
based vesting conditions) of the equity
instruments at the date of grant. The fair value
determined at the grant date of the equity-
settled share-based payments is expensed on
a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
based on the Group’s estimate of shares that
will eventually vest and adjusted for the effect
of non-market based vesting conditions.

Equity-settled share-based payments to
consultants are measured at the fair value of
the services rendered or, if the fair value of the
services rendered cannot be reliably measured,
at the fair value of the equity instruments
granted. The fair value is measured at the date
the Group receives the services and is
recognised as an expense.
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"FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(v)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets,
until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure
on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed
generally and wused for the purpose of
obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount of
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is
determined by applying a capitalisation rate to
the expenditures on that asset. The
capitalisation rate is the weighted average of
the borrowing costs applicable to the
borrowings of the Group that are outstanding
during the period, other than borrowings made
specifically for the purpose of obtaining a
qualifying assets. Any specific borrowing that
remain outstanding after the related asset is
ready for its intended use or sale is included in
the general borrowing pool for calculation of
capitalisation rate on general borrowings.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they are
incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL_ TATEIVlENTS “._
S ®RRME(E) |

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE=-T - —F+=-A=+— El.IJ:EF ’

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(w) Government grants

(x)

A government grant is recognised when there
is reasonable assurance that the Group will
comply with the conditions attaching to it and
that the grant will be received.

Government grants relating to income are
deferred and recognised in profit or loss over
the period to match them with the costs they
are intended to compensate.

Government grants that become receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already
incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate
financial support to the Group with no future
related costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they become receivable.

Taxation
Income tax represents the sum of the current
tax and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
profit recognised in profit or loss because of
items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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INANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(x)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases
used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised
for all taxable temporary differences and
deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which deductible temporary
differences, unused tax losses or unused tax
credits can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for
taxable temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries and associates,
except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINA
S ®RRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-ZF— —F+— f EWL—EIJJ:ii

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(x)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period when the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based
on tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised in
profit or loss, except when it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the deferred
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and
liabilities reflects the tax consequences that
would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting
period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
investment properties that are measured using
the fair value model, the carrying amounts of
such properties are presumed to be recovered
through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when
the investment property is depreciable and is
held within a business model of the Group
whose business objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment property over time,
rather than through sale. If the presumption is
rebutted, deferred tax for such investment
properties are measured based on the
expected manner as to how the properties will
be recovered.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
leasing transactions in which the Group
recognises the right-of-use assets and the
related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are
attributable to the right-of-use assets or the
lease liabilities.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(x)

(v)

Taxation (Continued)

For leasing transactions in which the tax
deductions are attributable to the lease
liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12
requirements to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities separately. Temporary differences
relating to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities are not recognised at initial
recognition and over the lease terms due to
application of the initial recognition exemption.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to set
off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the
Group intends either to settle its current tax
assets and liabilities on a net basis, or to
realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Impairment of non-financial assets
The carrying amounts of non-financial assets
are reviewed at each reporting date for
indications of impairment and where an asset is
impaired, it is written down as an expense
through the consolidated statement of profit or
loss to its estimated recoverable amount unless
the relevant asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the impairment loss is
treated as a revaluation decrease. The
recoverable amount is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets. If this is the case,
recoverable amount is determined for the CGU
to which the asset belongs. Recoverable
amount is the higher of value in use and the
fair value less costs of disposal of the
individual asset or the CGU.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FIN
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 # %=

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(v)

3]

Impairment of non-financial assets
(Continued)

Value in use is the present value of the
estimated future cash flows of the asset/CGU.
Present values are computed using pre-tax
discount rates that reflect the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset/CGU
whose impairment is being measured.

Impairment losses for CGUs are allocated first
against the goodwill of the unit and then pro
rata amongst the other assets of the CGU.
Subsequent increases in the recoverable
amount caused by changes in estimates are
credited to profit or loss to the extent that they
reverse the impairment unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which
case the reversal of the impairment loss is
treated as a revaluation increase.

Impairment of financial assets and
contract assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for
ECLs on trade and bills receivables, contract
assets, deposits and other receivables, due
from an associate, bank balances as well as on
financial guarantee contracts. The amount of
ECLs is updated at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition of the respective financial
instrument.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for
trade and bills receivables, contract assets and
lease receivables. The ECLs on these financial
assets are estimated using a provision matrix
based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the
current as well as the forecast direction of
conditions at the reporting date, including time
value of money where appropriate.
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-FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(2)

Impairment of financial assets and
contract assets (Continued)

For all other financial instruments, the Group
recognises lifetime ECL when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. However, if the credit risk on the
financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
measures the loss allowance for that financial
instrument at an amount equal to 12-month
ECL.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result
from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument. In
contrast, 12-month ECL represents the portion
of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from
default events on a financial instrument that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting
date.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a
financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument at the reporting date with the risk of
a default occurring on the financial instrument
at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that
is available without undue cost or effort.
Forward-looking information considered includes
the future prospects of the industries in which
the Group’s debtors operate, obtained from
economic expert reports, financial analysts,
governmental bodies, relevant think-tanks and
other similar organisations, as well as
consideration of various external sources of
actual and forecast economic information that
relate to the Group’s core operations.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE—ZT-_—F+-_A=+—HIEFE “
B ‘

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(z) Impairment of financial assets and
contract assets (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk
(Continued)
In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit risk
has increased significantly since initial
recognition:

— an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial instrument’s
external (if available) or internal credit
rating;

—  significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk for a particular
financial instrument;

—  existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic
conditions that are expected to cause a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability
to meet its debt obligations;

— an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of
the debtor;

—  significant increases in credit risk on other
financial instruments of the same debtor;
and

— an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic or
technological environment of the debtor
that results in a significant decrease in
the debtor’'s ability to meet its debt
obligations.
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INANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(2)

Impairment of financial assets and
contract assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk
(Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the
credit risk on a financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition when
contractual payments are more than 30 days
past due, unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information that demonstrates
otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that
the credit risk on a financial instrument has not
increased significantly since initial recognition if
the financial instrument is determined to have
low credit risk at the reporting date. A financial
instrument is determined to have low credit risk
if:

(i) the financial instrument has a low risk of
default;

(i) the debtor has a strong capacity to meet
its contractual cash flow obligations in the
near term; and

(i)  adverse changes in economic and
business conditions in the longer term
may, but will not necessarily, reduce the
ability of the borrower to fulfil its
contractual cash flow obligations.

The Group considers a financial asset to have
low credit risk when the asset has external
credit rating of ‘“investment grade” in
accordance with the globally understood
definition or if an external rating is not
available, the asset has an internal rating of
“performing”. Performing means that the
counterparty has a strong financial position and
there is no past due amounts.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE=-T - —F+=-A=+— El.IJ:EF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(2)

Impairment of financial assets and
contract assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk
(Continued)

For financial guarantee contracts, the date that
the Group becomes a party to the irrevocable
commitment is considered to be the date of
initial recognition for the purposes of assessing
the financial instrument for impairment. In
assessing whether there has been a significant
increase in the credit risk since initial
recognition of a financial guarantee contracts,
the Group considers the changes in the risk
that the specified debtor will default on the
contract.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness
of the criteria used to identify whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk
and revises them as appropriate to ensure that
the criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount
becomes past due.

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as
constituting an event of default for internal
credit risk management purposes as historical
experience indicates that receivables that meet
either of the following criteria are generally not
recoverable.

— when there is a breach of financial
covenants by the counterparty; or

— information developed internally or
obtained from external sources indicates
that the debtor is unlikely to pay its
creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any
collaterals held by the Group).
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INANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(2)

Impairment of financial assets and
contract assets (Continued)

Definition of default (Continued)
Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group
considers that default has occurred when a
financial asset is more than 90 days past due
unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a
more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of that financial
asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial
asset is credit-impaired includes observable
data about the following events:

— significant financial difficulty of the issuer
or the counterparty;

= a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;

— the lender(s) of the counterparty, for
economic or contractual reasons relating
to the counterparty’s financial difficulty,
having granted to the counterparty a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider;

— it is becoming probable that the
counterparty will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation; or

—  the disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(2)

Impairment of financial assets and
contract assets (Continued)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when
there is information indicating that the debtor is
in severe financial difficulty and there is no
realistic prospect of recovery, including when
the debtor has been placed under liquidation
or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or
in the case of trade and bills receivables, when
the amounts are over two years past due,
whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets
written off may still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. Any recoveries made are
recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECLs is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is
based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information as described above.
As for the exposure at default, for financial
assets, this is represented by the assets’ gross
carrying amount at the reporting date.

For financial assets, the ECL is estimated as
the difference between all contractual cash
flows that are due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
original effective interest rate. For a lease
receivable, the cash flows used for determining
the ECLs is consistent with the cash flows
used in measuring the lease receivable in
accordance with HKFRS 16.

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022

4.

(2)

SETEER ()

EHMEERAVEERER)

55 L 3R

AEBEEEENBREBARARE
MR BEERKCIEEREL
R(BEREFABRBERADEAR
ERF  HEE S REBRERFIAN

ERT AEREBRANBERF
(NRBHEERE) BEMHE TR

BE HEERZERER (WMEE)®% -
EMEeREEDIRBAEENK
B2 7 B 1E 5% H ST/ B - (EfARE
BERBmTHER -

FrEREERAEEESE

BHEEBRENERENHE 2
HWBAX (BENRNBERIEE) RE
KRB AR KB - FHERAOBE R
EHNBRRARNKBETBERR YR
EXFA e AT L AR A o BEOA
BAESE  cREENHREERR
S EHMREAERS -

RERMEEMS  BHEEBRRR
BROENTAKENMEANRSE
MEEAREBHKRBNABRER
BZHEMERME - ARRANER
FMEER - pHERUKEMS @ R
BEBM GRS ERF 165 BIEETE
EHEEEENRSREERESE
HERUFENRERE K -



-FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(2)

(aa)

Impairment of financial assets and
contract assets (Continued)
Measurement and recognition of ECL
(Continued)

If the Group has measured the loss allowance
for a financial instrument at an amount equal to
lifetime ECL in the previous reporting period,
but determines at the current reporting date
that the conditions for lifetime ECL are no
longer met, the Group measures the loss
allowance at an amount equal to 12-month
ECL at the current reporting date, except for
assets for which simplified approach was used.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or
loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments
with a corresponding adjustment to their
carrying amount through a loss allowance
account, except for investments in debt
instruments that are measured at FVTOCI, for
which the loss allowance is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the
investment revaluation reserve, and does not
reduce the carrying amount of the financial
asset in the statement of financial position.

Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised for liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group
has a present legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditures
expected to settle the obligation. The discount
rate used to determine the present value is a
pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the liability. The increase in
the provision due to the passage of time is
recognised as interest expense.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINA

& ft % R M A (R)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-ZF— —F+— f EWL—EIJJ:ii

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(aa) Provisions and contingent liabilities

(Continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow is remote.
Possible obligations, whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow is remote.

(ab) Events after the reporting period
Events after the reporting period that provide
additional information about the Group’s
position at the end of the reporting period are
adjusting events and are reflected in the
consolidated financial statements. Events after
the reporting period that are not adjusting
events are disclosed in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements when
material.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES

In applying the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 4, the directors are required to
make judgements (other than those involving
estimations) that have a significant impact on the
amounts recognised and to make estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors
that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.
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-FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies,
the directors have made the following judgements
that have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements
(apart from those involving estimations, which are
dealt with below).

Significant increase in credit risk

ECL is measured as an allowance equal to
12-month ECL for stage 1 assets, or lifetime ECL for
stage 2 or stage 3 assets. An asset moves to stage
2 when its credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition. HKFRS 9 does not define
what constitutes a significant increase in credit risk.
In assessing whether the credit risk of an asset has
significantly increased the Group takes into account
qualitative and quantitative reasonable and
supportable forward-looking information.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
end of the reporting period, that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year, are discussed below.

Allowance for inventories

The directors identify obsolete and slow-
moving inventory items that are no longer
probable for use in production or to be sold
out at the end of each reporting period. The
directors estimate the net realisable value for
such inventories based primarily on the latest
selling prices and costs of completion and
selling expenses estimated at current operation
conditions. The directors carry out an inventory
review on a product-by-product basis at the
end of each reporting period and makes
allowance for obsolete items.

(a)
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5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY 5. BERHEREEME (E)
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty st REARE R EERIR (&)

(Continued)

(a) Allowance for inventories (Continued) (a) “EEEE@E)
Where the actual outcome in future is different WHEERERAREGHTEEE -
from the original estimate, such difference will AZE =2 BT EREERZA
impact the carrying value of inventories and T AR M BB EE -

allowance charge/write-back in the period in
which such estimates have been changed.

The allowance on inventories as at 31 RZEZZF+=ZA=+—H FE
December 2022 was approximately B B #967,720,0008 T (—ZF = —
HK$67,720,000 (2021: HK$70,613,000). % : 70,613,000/ L) °

(b) Impairment of property, plant and (b) % #BERBEUREREESENR
equipment and right-of-use assets %
Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use Y2 WRREEUREREEER
assets are stated at cost less accumulated AR R2EHITE ROBE (0B ) 518 -
depreciation and impairment, if any. In RETEESRBERER  A%E
determining whether an asset is impaired, the LT H BN B R - BRI RET
Group has to exercise judgement and make B REBHEN T EEEBENS
estimation, particularly in assessing: (1) whether IR EREETER : QB ERT
an event has occurred or any indicators that EEREUA BB CEERE &4
may affect the asset value; (2) whether the FHEME  BARBFEFHREER
carrying value of an asset can be supported by AEEMARKRRERENFRE &
the recoverable amount, in the case of value in @) hsrA Rl cEITANASEEER
use, the net present value of future cash flows R(BERSREEAIRAENITE
which are estimated based upon the continued x) o WA EANEE (BREFEH
use of the asset; and (3) the appropriate key HEE)MANE 5 AEESH
assumptions to be applied in estimating the SR EEFBRSEAEMMNIIKE
recoverable amounts including cash flow TR EMBE ARG (BERESR
projections and an appropriate discount rate. ETER AR MITIRKRFIERK) T[]
When it is not possible to estimate the WESBEEXEATE -

recoverable amount of an individual asset
(including right-of-use assets), the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.
Changing the assumptions and estimates,
including the discount rates or the growth rate
in the cash flow projections, could materially
affect the recoverable amounts.

The carrying amount of property, plant and RZE-_—_F+=-_A=+—8'%
equipment and right-of-use assets as at 31 ¥ BRBERREUARERAEEER®T
December 2022 were approximately 8 &5 7l £9492,350,000/ 7t (= &
HK$492,350,000 (2021: HK$547,487,000) and — — % 547,487,000 ) &
HK$270,990,000 (2021: HK$244,968,000) 270,990,000 Tt (=& = —F :
respectively. 244,968,000/ 7T ) °
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D FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(c)

Impairment of trade and bills receivables
and contract assets

The management of the Group estimates the
amount of impairment loss for ECL on trade
and bills receivables and contract assets based
on the credit risk of trade and bills receivables
and contract assets. The amount of the
impairment loss based on ECL model is
measured as the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition. Where the
future cash flows are less than expected, or
being revised downward due to changes in
facts and circumstances, a material impairment
loss may arise.

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying
amounts of trade and bills receivables and
contract assets are approximately
HK$405,432,000 (2021: HK$453,082,000) (net
of allowance for doubtful debts of
approximately HK$385,000 (2021:
HK$353,000)), and HK$11,420,000 (2021:
HK$14,132,000) respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANC

A B R B ()

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY

ESTIMATES (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(d)

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in
several jurisdictions. Significant estimates are
required in determining the provision for income
taxes. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the period in which
such determination is made. During the vyear,
approximately HK$5,095,000 (2021:
HK$22,835,000) of income tax was charged to
profit or loss based on the estimated profit
from operations.

Recognition of deferred tax assets, which
principally relates to deductible temporary
differences and tax losses, depends on
whether it is probable that future taxable profits
or taxable temporary differences will be
available against which deferred tax assets can
be utilised. In cases where the actual future
taxable profits or taxable temporary differences
generated are less than expected, a reversal of
deferred tax assets may arise, which will be
recognised in profit or loss for the period in
which such a reversal takes place. The
directors considered that, based on the profit
forecast of the group companies with tax
losses, it is probable that the tax losses can be
utilised in the foreseeable future. The profit
forecast required the use of judgement and
estimates.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets
with respect to tax losses as at 31 December
2022 was approximately HK$4,323,000 (2021:
HK$961,000).
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NANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(e)

f

Fair value of leasehold lands

The Group appointed an independent
professional valuer to assess the fair value of
the leasehold lands. In determining the fair
value, the valuer has utilised a method of
valuation which involves certain estimates. The
directors have exercised their judgement and
are satisfied that the method of valuation and
inputs used are reflective of the current market
conditions.

The carrying amount of leasehold lands as at
31 December 2022 was approximately
HK$247,468,000 (2021: HK$231,080,000).

Fair value of derivative component

As disclosed in note 26 to the consolidated
financial statements, the fair value of the
derivative financial instruments at the end of the
reporting period was determined using mark-
to-market approach and discounted cash flow
method. Application of discounted cash flow
method requires the Group to estimate the
prominent factors affecting the fair value,
including but not limited to, the assigned value
based on the current price of that instrument
and expected rate of return. Where the
estimation on these factors is different from
those previously estimated, such differences will
impact the fair value gain or loss of the
derivative financial instrument in the period in
which such determination is made.

The carrying amount of the derivative financial
liabilities as at 31 December 2022 was
approximately HK$935,000 (2021:
HK$3,486,000).
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE =% =

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(9)

Revenue and profit recognition

As explained in policy note 4(s), revenue from
sales of moulds is recognised when the quality
of moulds is accepted by the customers and
the customers can direct the Group to use
them for production. Certain contracts with
customers may include moulds and products,
and the Group only charges the customers for
the products and recovers the costs of moulds
through the sales of products. Since moulds
and products are distinct performance
obligations, transaction price of a contract
should be allocated to moulds and products
separately. In the allocation of the transaction
price to moulds, the Group has to make
estimation of the stand-alone price of moulds
and the products, and the quantity of the
products that the moulds can be ultimately
manufactured. Actual outcomes of revenue may
be higher or lower than estimated at the end of
the reporting period, which would affect the
revenue and profit recognised in future years as
an adjustment to the amounts recorded to
date.

During the vyear, approximately
HK$106,130,000 (2021: HK$140,637,000) of
revenue from moulds was recognised.
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NANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(h)

U]

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired
requires an estimation of the value in use of
the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has
been allocated. The value in use calculation
requires the Group to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the cash-
generating unit and a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value. Where the
actual future cash flows are less than the
expected, or change in facts and
circumstances which results in downward
revision of future cash flows or upward revision
of discount rate, a material impairment loss or
further impairment loss may arise.

The carrying amount of goodwill at the end of
the reporting period was HK$2,654,000 (2021:
HK$2,654,000) (net of accumulated impairment
losses of approximately HK$Nil (2021: HKSNIl)).

Impairment of other intangible assets
Determining whether other intangible assets are
impaired requires an estimation of the value in
use of the CGU to which other intangible
assets have been allocated. The value in use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the
future cash flows expected to arise from the
CGU and a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value.

The carrying amount of other intangible assets
as at 31 December 2022 was approximately
HK$3,382,000 (2021: HK$3,835,000) (net of
accumulated impairment losses of
approximately HK$Nil (2021: HK$NIl)).
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fImEmREE FEEREEZRA
SEENBEHREZASELEMN
BRASRENAENITRERELG
it ARtERE-

EMmEBEREER_S__F+_A
= +t—BHMEREE A 43,382,000
7T (=F = —4 : 3,835,000 7T) (1
BREFRESBENTSAEL(ZTE=_—
&) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINA
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)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE—-T - —F+— f EﬂL—EIJJ:iﬁ

6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of

financial risks:

foreign currency risk, credit risk,

liquidity risk and interest rate risk. The Group’s
overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance.

(a)

Foreign currency risk

The Company’s functional currency is the HKD
and the functional currencies of majority of the
subsidiaries are the HKD, Renminbi (“RMB”)
and United States dollars (“USD”). The Group’s
transactions, trade receivables and trade
payables are mainly denominated in these
currencies. As the exchange rate of the USD
and HKD is pegged, management considers
the foreign exchange risk in this respect is not
significant.

The Group periodically reviews monetary assets
and liabilities held in currencies other than the
USD and HKD in particular RMB to ensure that
net exposure is kept at an acceptable level,
and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise. The
following table demonstrates the sensitivity at
the end of the reporting period to a reasonably
possible change in RMB exchange rate, with all
other variables held constant, of the Group’s
profit after tax due to changes in the fair value
of monetary assets and liabilities.

M ERE?

$§%@IZ& %i‘“ﬁﬁ%xylﬁﬁﬁ‘kﬂﬁ

SNERRR - EERR - REIE SRR KRR
“°$%@m ﬁ@@mﬁ%%%¢ﬁ

\,ﬁﬂm%ﬁ’]T—H‘E B OSSR E AN

EMBEREARINEEEETLE -

() ShEER Pz

ARBHYEEERET  BBKRS
BMBARNINEEEGR/ET A
R (TAR%E ] RET(TET)) - &
KENRS BHREGAREHE
NHRBEEEUZEEEE - BRE
TR B TERA - EEER R
mEHIMNERBILTERX -

AEBEERBRHAERTIET  LHZ
ARBIINEEAFHAENNEREE

REE - RO RERFER K
RKF  WRBEREERHHPEKX

SNEE WA Tﬁﬂﬁﬁiﬁiﬁxg
BRI ERRERTE S
T h%é%&ﬁ%@?ﬁﬁ@%ﬁ
AEEBRBAENHARBERSE
AL E) 2 R

2022 2021
—g=-= —E-—4F
Increase/

(decrease) Increase/ Increase/

in foreign (s CLIGERT:)] (decrease)

currency in profit in profit

rate after tax after tax

SNEERE R Wt RbaE I BR A AT R A

RS L)) )1

(~B&E) (iBD) OR4)

% HK$’000 HK$'000

% TFET FET
If HKD strengthens against RMB {745 7T 3 A R #5858 5 (1,487) (3,751)
If HKD weakens against RMB {8 7T 3 A R #5855 (5) 1,487 3,751
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6.

e

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(b)

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will
not meet its obligations under a financial
instrument or customer contract, leading to a
financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit
risk from its operating activities (primarily trade
and bills receivables and contract assets) and
from its financing activities, including deposits
with banks and financial institutions, foreign
exchange transactions and other financial
instruments. The Group’s exposure to credit
risk arising from cash and cash equivalents is
limited because the counterparties are banks
and financial institutions with high credit-rating
assigned by international credit-rating agencies,
for which the Group considers to have low
credit risk.

Trade and bills receivables and contract
assets

Customer credit risk is managed by each
business unit subject to the Group’s
established policy, procedures and control
relating to customer credit risk management.
Individual credit evaluations are performed on
all customers requiring credit over a certain
amount. These evaluations focus on the
customer’s past history of making payments
when due and current ability to pay, and take
into account information specific to the
customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates.
Trade and bills receivables are due within 30
to 120 days from the date of biling. Generally,
debtors with balances that are more than 30
days past due or exceeding the credit limit
granted are requested to settle all outstanding
balances before any further credit is granted.
Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral
from customers.

e B R Y R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE—T-—F+-_F=+—HItFE

s ERERE (&)

(b)

EEEE

EERBRRRXSHTF I TRETERT
HAXFEPAEHNMEL  BHUBKRERX
BERR - AEEEEELEEE (X
EREFREBRUFARADE
E)REREED (BERTRERE
BEX IEXZREMESRBTAR)
MEERR AKEEHRARERE
RAESEEMELNEERREAR -
ARXSHF T HHBERESFRE
B EHASEETRNRITRE R
#iE AEERLEEFERRERE -

BEORERBURERSHEE

BEEEERMASEFEMEE
BEBRALEBEZFEERRERESR
FMBEEER - IR RIZHI 81T o @
FIEEFEEHMATERREE TS
ENEENREPETT - 251 HAIE
REFBEMNE A KL SR ERIA
SN UEERRFHEERARS
KEMBREEREEENER - B 5
FEERWKRIANEE A BRI0E
120 REIH - — R s @ %8
BRI A NBAEERENEBEAS
WERTEREWE S EERNES
A AR&EEREE - EHE KRG  REBR
SREFEIERM -
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6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

Trade and bills receivables and contract
assets (Continued)

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
and bills receivables and contract assets at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is
calculated using a provision matrix. As the
Group’s historical credit loss experience does
not indicate significantly different loss patterns
for different customer segments, the loss
allowance based on past due status is not
further distinguished between the Group’s
different customer bases.

The following table provides information about
the Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs
for trade receivables as at 31 December 2022:

6.

s ERERE (&)

(b)

EEERE (8)
BESRERERRERSHEE (&)

AEERBSFNE2HMBEHREEEERN
SHABEIRERBREFELER
BEMBERRE  LiEMARERRE
Ho-mRAKRENBEEEBRLR
I EBER AR R P AR e ERENF
EREZR  WERBARRENER
BBEYTEEASENTREFEZHE
E—FED

TRIEHEBAEEE 5 ERFIER
TR+ -A=+—HHNEER
S RBHEEBENER

Expected carrying Loss

loss rate amount allowance

AR EE ARE421E E5iEEE

% HK$’000 HK$’000

=074 FEIT FEIT

Current (not past due) IR (AR H) 0.02% 333,791 67
1-80 days past due #EI1Z=30H 0.14% 50,516 70
31-90 days past due #EI31E90H 0.54% 12,065 65
91-180 days past due wWHI91 =180 H 3.77% 1,804 68
More than 180 days past due  # Hi#E:8180H 13.29% 865 115
399,041 385
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1E CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B R Y ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HHE =T - —F+-_A=+—HBIFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. BIEEMERE (&)
(Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EERKEE)
Trade and bills receivables and contract BESREREKRBERSHEE (B)
assets (Continued)
2021
==
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance

AR EEX fREAaE R
% HK$'000 HK$'000

Bk FET FET
Current (not past due) W (CR@E) 0.02% 434,224 86
1-80 days past due ®HI1E30H 0.54% 8,344 45
31-90 days past due #EA31 2900 1.83% 2,078 38
91-180 days past due wWHI91 =180 H 4.58% 1,005 46
More than 180 days past due  #EfEBiE180H 20.81% 663 138
446,314 858
Expected loss rates are based on actual loss TEHEEXRDERBEIFHNERE
experience over the past 3 years. These rates B - ZELL X ’ATF%]ﬂ%L}UiBRHﬁZ
are adjusted to reflect differences between SRE L EIRBARNLEAMRN - AR
economic conditions during the period over RE@$%@EB§H&ME?§E@¢§HE’M¥
which the historical data has been collected, BERAMEBEZHNER -

current conditions and the Group’s view of
economic conditions over the expected lives of
the receivables.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

Trade and bills receivables and contract
assets (Continued)

Movement in the loss allowance account in
respect of trade and bills receivables during the
year is as follows:

6. MBERERE (&)

(b)

EEmEbE (&)
BESREREWRERSHEE (8)

FRERE S MEBRREFANER
BERBEEHMT

2022 2021
—g-= —E-—F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
At 1 January Rn—A—H 353 590
Impairment losses recognised for 4 & R KL (B 5 18,
the year/(reversals of CRIEBER#)
impairment losses) 52 (242)
Exchange difference & N =5 (20) 5
At 31 December R+=ZHA=+—H 385 353
Other financial assets at amortised cost BREBHERATEN R EREE

The Group’s other financial assets at amortised
cost are considered to have low credit risk,
and the loss allowance recognised during the
period was therefore limited to 12-month
expected losses.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its
liquidity requirements, its compliance with
lending covenants and its relationship with its
bankers to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and readily realisable
marketable securities and adequate committed
lines of funding from major financial institutions
to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and longer term.

The maturity analysis based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows of the Group’s non-
derivative financial liabilities is as follows:

e B R Y R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HHE =T - —F+-_A=+—HBIFE

6. MBEREREE)

(c)

A & E S
AEEZBRREHNERERDES
FE HETHERIELHEARTZ
BAR - AREORE 445 B A JE (S RS HA 2
BRRECHETEZRSHBLAMKE
RERFEEFALATEPBHE
B EREE

BASBITESRBENE KRN
BRERENINHESNAOT :
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. HEEMRERE(E)

(Continued)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) mBELEME(E)
On demand More than More than
or within 1 year but less 2 years but less More than
1year than2years than 5 years 5 years Total
BREX —Fl L RENL
B—EfH BLRRE BOREE RENE o
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
At 31 December 2022 RZB-Z§
+ZA=t-H
Trade payables BHRNTE 184,897 - - - 184,897
Refund liabilties ERAfR 24 - - - 241
Other payables and accruals EtERTER
fetER 56,998 - - - 56,998
Bank borrowings RITEH 69,047 - - - 69,047
Loan from non-controlling interests ~ JEEREREH - 1,500 - - 1,500
Due to an associate B E ARIE 78 - - - 78
Lease liabilties HEEE 13,708 9,797 3,203 - 26,708
324,969 11,297 3,203 - 339,469
At 31 December 2021 RZZ=—F
+ZA=1-H
Trade payables BHERTE 209,935 = = = 209,935
Refund liabilties EHEE 241 = = = 241
Other payables and accruals HiEMNFER
fEst &R 72,637 = = = 72,687
Bank borrowings RITET 133,631 10,596 = - 144,227
Loan from non-controling interests ~ FFZREREH = = 1,500 = 1,500
Due to an associate FERBENRRE 121 = = = 121
Lease liabilties HERE 9,422 4,538 1,286 = 15,246
425,987 15,134 2,786 - 443,907

218  Ka Shui International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022



1E CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Bank loans with a repayment on demand
clause are included in the “on demand or less
than 1 year” time band in the above maturity
analysis. As at 31 December 2022 and 31
December 2021, the aggregate undiscounted
principal amounts of these bank loans
amounted to HK$58,335,000 and
HK$96,858,000 respectively. Taking into
account the Group’s financial position, the
directors do not believe that it is probable that
the banks will exercise their discretionary rights
to demand immediate repayment. The directors
believe that such bank loans will be repaid
within two years (2021: three years) after the
end of the reporting period in accordance with
the scheduled repayment dates set out in the
loan agreements. At that time, the aggregate
principal and interest cash outflows will amount
to HK$59,488,000 (2021: HK$98,236,000).

e B R Y ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #{Z—T - —F+_-_A=+—RHIFE

6. MBEREREE)

(c)

RENE B (8)
FELA EREIDHTHR - IR ESKEE
BRABITERIWATREKRK L DR
1¢JH%F'%E?J|J RoEBE-—FE+=H4
_+ AR —F+=—RA=+—
CRRERITERNRITRA S BT
/E'J|J2%58,335,0005%T_E)SZ96,858,OOO
BT ERNAEBIM BRI EF
%L%fEﬁTﬁT“bﬁﬁﬁWﬁﬁégi
BB - EFREBBRITENRS
BB s Fﬁ%@ﬁ‘]%mﬁmaﬂﬂﬁi&
EHREME(ZTE-_—F: =F)KN
B - B A3 8RS RHMN
4AFE % 559,488,000 L (ZE = —
£ : 98,236,000/ 7T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINA
B B R MY R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE—-T - —F+— f EﬂL—EIJJ:iﬁ

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The liquidity analysis for the Group’s derivative
financial instruments are prepared on agreed
scheduled settlements set out in the
agreements as the management of the Group
considers that the settlement dates are
essential for an understanding of the timing of
the cash flows of derivatives. The table has
been drawn up based on the undiscounted
contractual net cash inflows and outflows on

6. MBERERE (&)

(c) RENEREE(E)
AEETESRIAENRBESTT
$E'<TJ§T5%E%%$%§T£%EE’\J%EE%§§%

2 RARAEEERERBA

%qﬁiiﬁﬁ?jilﬂﬁiuwimHTF?:!:

BEE - ARASIRDRBRFALLE

EENTETAENARTBEALFRS

MARREMARR - WEMNSERS

BMUFETE  RESBDHSEREH

9 5 4 B LKL 22 €ty AR PIT 7S B0 FEDBI ) =

derivative instruments that settle on a net
basis. When the amount payable or receivable
is not fixed, the amount disclosed has been
determined by reference to the projected
interest rates as illustrative by the yield curves
at the end of the reporting period.

MEE °

Less than Between Between Over
1 year 1 and 2 years 2 and 5 years 5 years

—5EME WMEELF

PR-% ZH ZH

EENE

HK$'000
T

HK$'000
T

HK$'000

e
-+ BT
7/8/L

HK$'000

At 31 December 2022 WN=F-_F
+-HA=+-H
Derivative — net fTETH - FRd
outflow
Cross currency interest & X & ¥ F| & 5 1
rate swaps (1,099) - - - (1,099)
At 31 December 2021  MZT=-—F
TZA=t-H
Derivative — net fT4ETHE — Erd
outflow
Cross currency interest 23 X & B | 5k 45 ]
rate swaps (436) (583) = = (1,019)
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1E CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(d)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s loan from non-controlling interests
bear interests at fixed interest rate and
therefore are subject to fair value interest rate
risks.

The Group’s exposure to cash flow interest
rate risk arises from its bank deposits, short
term and long term borrowings. These deposits
and borrowings bear interests at variable rates
varied with the then prevailing market
condition.

The Group used interest rate swaps in order to
mitigate its exposure associated with
fluctuations relating to interest cash flows.

At 31 December 2022,
date had been 100 basis points (2021: 100
basis points) higher/lower with all other
variables held constant, consolidated profit after
tax for the year would have been
approximately HK$1,555,000 (2021:
HK$1,483,000) higher/lower.

if interest rates at that

e B R Y ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #{Z—T - —F+_-_A=+—RHIFE

6. MBEREREE)

(d)

I = 2 B

AEE R B IR s B KT % E
ENEREFE - FHtEERAFENER
B o

AEENRES R RERRKEHIRT

R IR ERBER - ZFERR
1B FRIR BRBE B T 350 T Z 2 Ao T
MRS -

ZRER 18 ) A R 2R 4 B DARIE B B RE 7
ERERFDHRR -

RZZ-_—F+=-A=+—8H " 7
R EFTFHI0EEZ (T = —
& 100EE ) - MEMATE &84

BIE - AERBRRESRE mﬂﬂ%i
w4 #91,555,00008 T (=B = —
£F 11,483,000 7T) ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE—ZT-_—F+-_A=+—HIEFE “
B ‘

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. HXKREREE(E)
(Continued)
(e) Categories of financial instruments at e R+=-HA=+—H&@IAZH

(f)

31 December

B

2022 2021
—g=-= T4
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FET
Financial assets: SRIEE:
Financial assets measured at HHEKATENSREE
amortised cost 685,425 762,916
Financial liabilities: SRAaRE
Financial liabilities at FVTPL RATE :HrMa S B € Bl
afE
— Derivative financial — TEERmT A
instruments 935 3,486
— Loan from non-controlling — FERERENK
interests 971 803
Financial liabilities at amortised — ZEEKATEN SR EE
cost 311,049 426,292
Lease liabilities HEAE 24,469 14,476
Fair values ) AFE

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
assets and financial liabilities as reflected in the
consolidated statement of financial position
approximate their respective fair values.

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022

AEE2CREERSRBBENLGS
MBIMR R RIRZ BREERERED
BEEZRAFE-

%U>



1E CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B R Y ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & = = H=—HNEE

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 7. LAY EF=E

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell AFEEMS2EE ARG EAHES
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly FREZFPEHEEEKKRMIEREEEES
transaction between market participants at the HHERE TNRBEERAAFTESRTE
measurement date. The following disclosures of fair MAFE: BETEAFENHBES A2
value measurements use a fair value hierarchy that ELD B =ELR

categorises into three levels the inputs to valuation
techniques used to measure fair value:

Level 1 inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active F1EZ2E: AEBURFIEEHESZ
markets for identical assets or HREESBEBERERTS
liabilities that the Group can access ZHRE CREHAE) -

at the measurement date.

Level 2 inputs: inputs other than quoted prices FoE2H: FEAEERBRENAIN
included within Level 1 that are EENBBEEESIBEEER
observable for the asset or liability, BHEZ2H -

either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs: unobservable inputs for the asset or FEIELRY: BEIBBETAUERILEY -
liability.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and AEBRERAEREEEHFKE A 5

transfers out of any of the three levels as of the date EE N = ERFEARE LB

of the event or change in circumstances that caused
the transfer.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE=-T - —F+=-A=+— El.IJ:EF

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 7. AVEFE (&)
(Continued)
(a) Disclosures of level in fair value (a) AFEFREEMWE :
hierarchy:
Fair value measurement using: Total
AFEFEFA : o
Description IEH Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2022

F1E H20E $3E —¥T-C

HK$°000  HK$’000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FET FET FET FET

224

Recurring fair value TEMAFETE:
measurements:
Non-financial assets FEBEE
Leasehold lands: HELH
Commercial — Hong Kong [SESy> - - 45,140 45,140
Commercial — the PRC BHE — FHE - - 202,328 202,328
Total A&t - - 247,468 247,468
Financial liabilities ERBRE
Loan from non-controlling FERERE N
interest - - 971 971
Cross currency interest rate R X EHF| =
swap contracts HHEY - 935 - 935
Total &% - 935 971 1,906
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1E CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B R Y ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HHE =T - —F+-_A=+—HBIFE

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

7. DFEEE A

(Continued)
(a) Disclosures of level in fair value (@) AFEZFREEBWE: (B)
hierarchy: (Continued)
Fair value measurement using: Total
REEEF A HE
Description HH Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2021
F1E F2E BIE —T-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FET FHET
Recurring fair value EEMAFEE:
measurements:
Non-financial assets FEMEE
Leasehold lands: HELH:
Commercial — Hong Kong EE - B = = 48,880 48,880
Commercial — the PRC BE — FH = = 182,200 182,200
Total =L = = 231,080 231,080
Financial liabilities ERaRE
Loan from non-controlling FERERER
interest - — 803 803
Cross currency interest rate R X EHBF| %=
swap contracts HHEHD = 3,486 = 3,486
Total &t - 3,486 803 4,289
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE=-T - —F+=-A=+— El.IJ:E

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 7. AFEFE(E)
(Continued)
(b) Reconciliation of assets/(liability) (b) REBE=ELFEHIAENEE
measured at fair value based on (BfR) #ER :
level 3:

Properties held

for own use Loan from
— Leasehold non-controlling
lands interests
HIEBRAYE FEIERR AR
— HE1H =N
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
2022 —E-=
At beginning of year F4) 231,080 (803)
Additions NE 6,828 -
Recognised in profit or loss: RIEEFRER -
Depreciation charge for the FRRBEEXEAR —HB K
year recognised in cost of ﬁﬁf’fﬂﬁqﬂﬁ%mZ?ﬁ&
sales and general and X
administrative expenses (6,828) —
Loss on revaluation of METHEESENZEE
leasehold lands (10) -
Fair value loss NFEEE - (168)
Recognised in other R E A 2 W e R
comprehensive income:
Exchange differences on BREBINEBEEZER
translating foreign =5
operations (14,271) -
Surplus on revaluation of HELIHEBESEH 2B
leasehold lands 30,669 -
At end of year FR 247,468 (971)
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7.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
(Continued)

"FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B R Y R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HHE =T - —F+-_A=+—HBIFE

7. DFEEE A

(b) Reconciliation of assets/(liability) (b) REBE=ELFEHIAENEE
measured at fair value based on (BfE) HER : (8)

level 3: (Continued)

Properties held

for own use Loan from non-
— Leasehold controlling
lands interests
BIEEBRWE FEFE AR HE o
— &+ B
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FHET
2021 —E-—%5
At beginning of year F4) 230,480 =
Addition NE — (803)
Recognised in profit or loss: R8P ER
Depreciation charge for the FARBER TR —R K
year recognised in cost of TBRZAERZITE
sales and general and 53
administrative expenses (7,078) -
Loss on revaluation of METHEEEN BB
leasehold lands (708) -
Recognised in other RE A2 e R
comprehensive income:
Exchange differences on BREBIEBELEZER
translating foreign =5
operations 3,920 =
Surplus on revaluation of HELHEBESEH B
leasehold lands 4,466 -
At end of year FR 231,080 (803)

The total gains or loss recognised in other
comprehensive income are presented in surplus
on revaluation of leasehold lands and exchange
differences on translating foreign operations in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

The total gains or loss recognised in profit or
loss are presented in cost of sales, general
and administrative expenses and other
operating expenses and income in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

All the gains or loss recognised in profit or loss
for the year were attributable to the unrealised
loss of the leasehold lands and fair value loss
of loan from non-controlling interests held at
the end of the reporting period.

P E At 2 ET Yl a5 P FE R 2 B U 2 3 S
BIREEEakEMEEKRERT
ZHETHEEER BB RIRES
INRBEEZEREZRES

A8 28 ERR 2 M W el S BT 18 T AR
EEARPZHERD - —BREITR
X hHEMEERS REEE7 -

FIAERFERIEE AR KRERER
BHRBERRAF 2AE L2 R
ERERMEERESERZAFE
EIRPTER
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7.

& ft % R M A (R)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE=-T - —F+=-A=+— El.IJ:EF

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
(Continued)

(c)

Disclosure of valuation process used
by the Group and valuation techniques
and inputs used in fair value
measurements at 31 December 2022:
The Group’s financial controller is responsible
for the fair value measurements of assets and
liabilities required for financial reporting
purposes, including Level 2 and Level 3 fair
value measurements. The financial controller
reports directly to the Board of Directors for
these fair value measurements. Discussions of
valuation processes and results are held
between the financial controller and the Board
of Directors at least twice a year.

Level 2 fair value measurements:

7. DFEEE (A

(c) R=FT=-ZF+=-A=+—H=%F
KEFRFRANGEEFRATE
SFEFRANGES ZRSHH
Wz -
AEENPBEERERM B REE
THRFENEERAEN R FEFE
(BEF2REIBLTEFTE) - M
%%ﬁ%%@$@ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ%$A
Eﬁo%ﬁ@%ﬁi%ﬁtiﬁd
;'A_%“ tjum”ﬁﬁ%fr_&ﬁg‘g:m

B_EAFENE:

Liabilities
Bfs
Valuation

Description technique Inputs 2022 2021
I5H HERZE 2% k- e —T_—F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET
Financial liabilities
eRAE
Cross currency interest Discounted Interest rate 935 3,486
rate swap contracts cash flows Discount rate

RXBEENEIEHREH FIRBR LN PR A=
For Level 3 fair value measurements, the Group MEZEAFEF=EME ' ASRE—

will normally engage external valuation experts
with the recognised professional qualifications
and recent experience to perform the
valuations.
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{E cuu‘soun"'- ED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B R Y ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & & SIS F INFEE

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 7. AFEFE(E)

(Continued)

(c) Disclosure of valuation process used (c) R=ZFB=-Z=Z&#+=-H=+—HBZXK
by the Group and valuation techniques SEMRANGEEFRAFE
and inputs used in fair value FFEMEANGEEAERZ2ED
measurements at 31 December 2022: WEE - (&)

(Continued)
Level 3 fair value measurements: E=EBAFENE:
Fair value
AFE
Effect on fair
value for
Valuation increase of
Description technique Unobservable inputs Range of comparables inputs 2022 2021
SymH
EH ER & TIRENSY T EEE AFENHE Bl l —T-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Land use rights in Direct comparison ~ Adjusted accommodation ~ RMB578/square metre — Increase 12,100 13,600
Egongling Village, approach value per square metre RMB843/square metre (2021:
Pinghu Town, taking into account the RMB598/square metre
Shenzhen City, the differences from the — RMB2,854/square metre)
PRC comparables with
respect to location,
size, tenure and yield
rate
RERITEAEEL  EELEE GERMERTH I BYARKARBSBRESTAA £
BN THERE % oEE RRFER  ARKSR(ZZ=-£:8
Kaxz208THKk  TARARKSBTZETA
EREREER KARB2,8547T)
Land use rights in Direct comparison  Adjusted price per square  RMBB00/square metre — Increase 173,800 158,000
Western District of approach metre taking into RMB1,041/ square metre
Daya Bay, Huizhou account the differences (2021: RMB600/square metre
City, the PRC from the comparables — RMB960/square metre)

with respect to
location, size, tenure
and yield rate
PEEMTARERRE ERLEE BERANB T BEARARKEOTESTAKR

Lo R AR ¥ omE FRTHR ARE1OHTL(ZE=—F:
BHEZENETAK  STHKARKCOTEST
EARER AAARE0TT)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 &% — =2

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 7. AY¥EFEGE)

(Continued)

(c) Disclosure of valuation process used (c) R=F=-Z=Z&#+=-H=+—HBZXK
by the Group and valuation techniques ESEMRANGEEFRAFE
and inputs used in fair value FFEMEANGEAERZ2ED
measurements at 31 December 2022: . (88
(Continued)

Level 3 fair value measurements: EZEAFEE : (8)
(Continued)
Fair value
AFE
Effect on fair
value for
Valuation increase of
Description technique Unobservable inputs Range of comparables inputs 2022 2021
SyEmy
EH h{ER & TURENEY i EEE AFEHHE et et —T-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET AT
Land use rights in Wuhu  Direct comparison  Adjusted price per square  RMB267/ square metre Increase 9,600 10,600
City, Anhui Province, approach metre taking into (2021: RMB144/square metre
the PRC account the differences — RMB1,158/square metre)

from the comparables
with respect to
location, size, tenure
and yield rate
PEZHEEATSHLT  BERNEE FERULBIH N BEARAREGIT(ZEZ-

B R % omE FRFER  F: tJFHJr)\E%Mmil
baxz2m8ThK  TARAREL158T)
BAEER
Land use rights in Direct comparison  Adjusted price per square  HK$34,000/square metre Increase 6,828 -
Baoan District, approach metre taking into
Shenzhen City, the account the differences
PRC from the comparables
with respect to location
and size
FERYTERES  EENEE BRIk Rtz nERE  BFHK34,0008T b=}l
TifE R BEZNGTAAEH
BER
Land use rights in Bilion  Direct comparison  Adjusted price per square  HK$10,067/square fest Increase 33,860 37,080
Centre, Kowloon approach feet taking into — HK$11,678/square feet
Bay, Hong Kong account the differences (2021: HK$11,114/square feet
from the comparables — HK$11,678/square feet)
with respect to location
and size
BENEEERTLON  BEREUEE BBtz nSRE  SFARI0067TETEEEAR
TifRAE BERNETHREA 1 BI8AT(ZE=—F: 5T
BER ARI4BETEGTFHR
11,6787 7L)
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1E CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
(Continued)

(c)

Disclosure of valuation process used

by the Group and valuation techniques

and inputs used in fair value

e B R Y ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #{Z—T - —F+_-_A=+—RHIFE

7. DFEEE A

(c)

R-BZ-Z-F+=-A=+—HB%K
SEMERANGEEEFRAEE
sStEMERNGELERZHB

measurements at 31 December 2022: WEE - (&)
(Continued)
Level 3 fair value measurements: EZEAFEE : (8)
(Continued)
Fair value
AFE
Effect on fair
value for
Valuation increase of
Description technique Unobservable inputs Range of comparables inputs 2022 2021
SyEmy
EH h{ER & FIRENSY L EEE ATENYE Petdeletl —T-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET AT
Land use rights in Direct comparison  Adjusted price per square  HK$4,831/ square feet — Increase 11,280 11,800
Kinetic Industrial approach feet taking into HK$4,974/ square feet
Centre, Kowloon account the differences (2021: HK$4,928/square feet
Bay, Hong Kong from the comparables — HK$5,170/square feet)
with respect to location
and size
BEEAEERNIRT EENHRA gapRtonEkE STAR4BIBTZETAR  EN
DELIERE BERMSTAREE  AOMEL(CR-—F: §T
BER R498ETZET AR
51707 7)
Loan from non- Discounted cash  Discount rate 24% (2021: 23%) Decrease T4l 803
controlling interests flows method ~ HEH % 24%(ZF=—% : 23%) B
FERERER RRALREA
Probability of meeting 0% (2021: 0%) Increase
profit target 0%(ZF=—%:0%) &1
EIFE B R E

CECCFER EHEBRERARIE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL_ TATEIVlENTS “._
S ®RRME(E) |

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE=-T - —F+=-A=+— El.IJ:EF ’

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
(Continued)

(c)

Disclosure of valuation process used
by the Group and valuation techniques
and inputs used in fair value
measurements at 31 December 2022:
(Continued)

Level 3 fair value measurements:
(Continued)

The fair value of leasehold lands held for own
use located in the PRC and Hong Kong is
determined using direct comparison approach
by reference to recent sales price of
comparable leasehold lands on an
accommodation value per metre or price per
square metre/square feet basis, adjusted for a
premium or a discount specific to the quality of
the Group’s leasehold lands compared to the
recent sales. Higher premium for higher quality
land will result in a higher fair value
measurement.

During the two years, there were no changes in
the valuation techniques used.

8. REVENUE

(a)

Disaggregation of revenue

The Group is principally engaged in the
manufacture and sale of zinc, magnesium and
aluminium alloy and plastic products and
components, trading of lighting products,
production of smart home products, provision
of motor vehicle repairing services, sales of
special purpose vehicles and provision of new
energy vehicle power systems.

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022

7. DFEEE (A

(c)

8. WA

(a)

R-ZE-Z-f+=-A=+—8B%
SEMERANGEEEFRAEE
sFEMERANGELERZEHB
W - (&)

BZEAFENE : (8)

NRFEEREEFBIFEANEEL
W RFEDNERERLEEAEE
ERE2EALBHEE I BHE
&I REEERKE T IR F
TRER  UERAKEHEELHOE
B 8 R 3 S L BT Bl B R B
FELPE -2HELHAZTARS
HE - WAEERRHNRFEFER
8o

RRESFE - FEANGEETT AL &
e

WA 533
REBFTERELEERBEET - H#R
meeER  ZRBEMNZ0MG R
PERES  SESEREER &
HRBERERS  HERHBEER
FIREHER BB N EEL -



D FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B R Y R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HHE =T - —F+-_A=+—HBIFE

8. REVENUE (Continued) 8. WA (&)
(a) Disaggregation of revenue (Continued) (a) WA ¥R (4E)
Disaggregation of revenue derived from the AEFERR —BRERRNRE —FEHE
5

transfer of goods and services over time and at %
a point in time is as follows:

2021
Timing of revenue recognition W\ &% B & —E-—fF —E—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#&iT FET
Products transferred at a point A —EFBi#E 2 E H
in time 1,325,777 1,506,950
Products transferred over time R —RIEBEZE R 178,662 207,599
1,504,439 1,714,549
Disaggregation of revenue from major products REEZEGZBASHFEAT
are as follows:
2022 2021
Types of products EmfEE —®-C —E—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#T FET
Die casting products BEE M 663,082 674,263
Plastic products BRE W 678,378 851,799
Moulds BA 106,130 140,637
Others H A 56,849 47,850
1,504,439 1,714,549
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE=-T - —F+=-A=+— El.IJ:EF

8. REVENUE (Continued) 8. WA (&)

(b) Transaction price allocated to the (b) PEEEFSHNFGBOSE
remaining performance obligation for B3 5 Eg
contracts with customers
The transaction price allocated to the remaining RZEBZZF+—A=+—HoHEk=
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially FIHRBHOET (RETHRIBMHARETT)
unsatisfied) as at 31 December 2022 and the B 32 5 (B8 I e R U B T8 HA R e am
expected timing of recognising revenue as N
follows:

Sales of goods
ﬁﬁ‘b =]

=8 on
2022 2021
ol - —E -
HK$’000 HK$' 000
F#EIT FET
Within one year —F A 3,458 1,645
9. OTHER INCOME 9. Hfttlr A
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEIT FET
Interest income on bank deposits SRITIE R B A 952 1,042
Rental income e WA 838 1,111
Reimbursement from customers B PR EKE 4,875 6,231
Compensation from suppliers HERIE 253 1,361
Sales of scrap materials FERLSH & 4,578 7,748
Government grants (note) BFweh e (i) 14,775 9,863
Others EHAh 4,949 2,769
31,220 30,125
Note: HaF -
Government grants recognised during the year are mainly related to FARRNBAFE € E EREPBEMEBRNNEE
various employment support schemes from PRC and Hong Kong MESIFAENEH (T =—F  TEHEEREZER
governments (2021: mainly related to unconditional support for EBZHBEZENER) - AEBER-_T=_—_F+=
subsidising the Group’s research and development). The Group has A=+—HAIFEMENEGEE-

complied all attached conditions before 31 December 2022.
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10.

INANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group’s operation is
currently categorised into seven (2021: seven)
operating divisions — zinc, magnesium, aluminium
alloy, plastic products and components, trading of
lighting products, production of smart home
products, provision of motor vehicle repairing
services, sales of special purpose vehicles and
provision of new energy vehicles power systems.
These divisions are the basis of the Group’s five
reportable segments. The Group’s reportable
segments are strategic business units that offer
different products. They are managed separately
because each business requires different technology
and different cost measurement.

The Group’s other operating segments include
trading of lighting products, production of smart
home products, provision of motor vehicle repairing
services, sales of special purpose vehicles and
provision of new energy vehicle power systems.
None of these segments meets any of the
quantitative thresholds for determining reportable
segments. The information of these other operating
segments is included in the ‘Others’ column.

Segment profits or losses do not include interest
income, corporate income, share of profits/losses of
associates, loss on deregistration of a subsidiary, net
fair value gain/loss on derivative financial instruments,
corporate expenses, finance costs and income tax
expense.

Segment assets and liabilities are not reported or
used by the chief operating decision maker.

e B R Y R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE—T-—F+-_F=+—HItFE

2 EER

ROEER  AEEREEBD HLE(Z
T_—F: L@ EEHNP — #F &k
BEEM LBEMMTIMG RAEME
7 HLESHEFIEEM REAELHER
% HERRRAERRERERIE
BHEGR - ZFEWAZAEBELBE2RD
MERNEE - AEBZ RN A AR
TREMCHREREGEM - HRAERE
BRETRAXMEBETRKATETR
WxE N e JIBLE R o

10.

AEENEMEED MEERAER RS
EXEEMES  RETERERS - HE
KRR IR AR R V=B RS
It 2 BB RZRDRE R 28D B HE
EFE KL MM EMERNIE
fin ] — 4

DEENRERTEEN A - BRI
A BOMENREN 8K EHENEA
AEK - TEEMIANATEFKRE
BER - XA BERARASHAEX -

TERERRE IS HERD BEEM
BE-
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& ft % R M A (R)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &% — =2

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 10. P EER (H)
Information about reportable segment profit ERsBBHFEBHEZER :
or loss:

Magnesium  Aluminium
Zinc alloy alloy alloy Plastic Others

#as Y-k #ed 2 it
HK$'000 A A HK$'000

Year ended 31 December 2022 #HE-F==

+ZA= + BLEEE
Revenue from external customers R ESNEEFHMA 99,327 451,100 190,367 706,584 57,061 1,504,439
Segment profit/(loss) AEEF/(BB) 1,130 25,770 4,355 54,620 (5,435) 80,440
Depreciation and amortisation mERER 4,507 47,457 8,513 34,062 3,830 98,369
(Reversal of allowance for (FEREER),/FE
inventories)/impairment for BEREEBR
allowance for inventories (90) 1,325 6,942 (4,503) 1,460 5,134

Year ended 31 December 2021  #HZE-T-—%

+-B=1t—HLEE
Revenue from external customers R B5MEEF HBIKA 142,537 415,207 144,417 964,538 47,850 1,714,549
Segment profit/(loss) PEEF/(BB) 5,626 41,151 8,835 110,101 (2,574) 163,139
Depreciation and amortisation MEREH 4,671 42,661 6,386 29,173 4,390 87,781
(Reversal of allowance for (FEEREBEDR),/ L
inventories)/impairment for RERESR
allowance for inventories = 793 = 15,734 (2,214) 14,313
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"FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B R Y R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HHE =T - —F+-_A=+—HBIFE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 10. D EBER (&)

Reconciliation of reportable segment

revenue, profit or loss:

ERFMMN - BFINEBIRZHEER

2022 2021
—g=-= —E-—fF
HK$°000 HK$'000
F#Eir FEr
Revenue [N
Total revenue of reportable segments 2 {5 36 2 4 UL A 1,504,439 1,714,549
Unallocated amounts NHfEEE - —
Consolidated revenue RE A 1,504,439 1,714,549
2022 2021
—g=-= T4
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FEr
Profit or loss it F 5 B5 48
Total profit of reportable segments E2 D 548 % F 80,440 163,139
Unallocated amounts: THEHE -
Share of (losses)/profits of BomE AR (BX)/
associates bl (1,058) 45
Loss on deregistration of a ER il EPNEIE=ES
subsidiary - (100)
Net fair value gain/(loss) on MTESRIAENAFEEF
derivative financial instruments Wz (E518) 2,355 (3,669)
Interest income A B WA 952 1,042
Finance costs A& AR (4,165) (3,259)
Government grants nEgisEil ik 14,775 9,863
Income tax expense FriS i F sz (5,095) (22,835)
Corporate income KA - =
Corporate expenses TEMRAX (19,346) (16,493)
Consolidated profit for the year FNERE = F 68,858 127,737
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10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 10.

Reconciliation of reportable segment
revenue, profit or loss: (Continued)

2 EBER (&)

SRS ~ R FIN AR ZHER
(&)

2022 2021
—g-C —E -4
HK$’000 HK$000
F#&T FET
Other material items — HMEXIEH —
depreciation and amortisation ITE R
Total depreciation and amortisation of 2 7 & 4837 & [ 8
reportable segments 98,369 87,781
Unallocated amounts: NOEHA -
Depreciation of property, plant and ERME - BRR
equipment, right-of-use assets R ERREER
and amortisation of intangible B EEBHETE
assets for corporate use 7,280 7,104
Consolidated depreciation and A ITE R
amortisation 105,649 94,885
Geographical information: wESH :
Revenue
N
2022 2021
—g=-= —E-—fF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#&iT FET
Hong Kong BB 72,843 94,776
The PRC except Hong Kong R E (BFABBRIN 734,190 710,434
Japan H&R - 1,566
USA ES 556,930 802,710
Others H 140,476 105,063
Consolidated total RE R 1,504,439 1,714,549

In presenting the geographical information, revenue is
based on the locations of the customers.

The Group’s non-current assets by geographical
areas are not presented as the aggregate amount of
the geographical segments other than the PRC is
less than 10% (2021: less than 10%) of the
aggregate amount of all segments.
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D FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B R Y R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HHE =T - —F+-_A=+—HBIFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 10. D EBER (E)
Revenue from major customers: REEEERZEA:
2022 2021
—g-C —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEr FET
Zinc alloy segment HFaEeH
Customer a B Fa 26,934 32,666
Customer b ZFb 47,071 48,894
Magnesium alloy segment HEEe9H
Customer ¢ EFPc 46,396 73,193
Customer d =FEd 219,556 197,993
Aluminium alloy segment e
Customer a X Fa 21,987 28,862
Customer ¢ 2FEc 10,783 3,004
Plastic segment BRBROH
Customer b ZFb 70,502 66,063
Customer e ZFe 476,584 733,600
OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES AND 1. HEEMEXRIBA
INCOME
2022 2021
—E=-= — T —4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#EiT FET
Allowance for inventories, net FEERGEG 5,134 14,313
Bad debts written off 2 AR 8E 177 1,511
Net loss on disposal of property, plant HE¥EE « WM HREZ
and equipment FEE 3,392 1,237
Property, plant and equipment Y2 - Hees R i E
written off 666 1,178
Fair value loss on loan from IR RN AT EFEE
non-controlling interests 168 —
Gain on early termination of leases AR LT & W Es (124) —
Loss on revaluation of land T EEEHEE 10 708
Net fair value (gain)/loss on derivative 74 < @ T B /A FEF
financial instruments (Yezs),/ 18 (2,355) 3,665

7,068 22,612
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12. FINANCE COSTS 12.
2022 2021
—E-—fF —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Interest expenses on lease liabilites A EBERN B
(note 20) (Hia£20) 1,059 618
Interest expenses on bank borrowings 3 17 {& X F 8 X2 2,941 2,641
Other interest expenses HMFE R 165 —
4,165 3,259
13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 13. FIBHAX
2022 2021
—g=- —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
Fi#EiT FET
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax BIHATE1E — FHE S
Provision for the year NFE R 12,536 20,108
Over-provision in prior years BEFEBERE (5,049) (5,973)
Current tax — Income tax outside BVEARETE — HBLASK
Hong Kong PR %t
Provision for the year REERE 1,720 4,092
(Over)/under-provision in prior years  BEEE (FREREME),
BHETR (449) 1,150
Current tax — PRC dividend BVHARETE — ANFEHEH
withholding tax for the year I B TR 815 227
Deferred tax (note 35) EIERIE (A7 7 35) (4,478) 3,231
Income tax expense FrigfiAx 5,095 22,835
Under the two-tiered Profits Tax regime, the first EMREIFNEREET - EEBK LG
HK$2 million of profits of the qualifying group entity EREB TR B 20088 T im 7/128.25%

established in Hong Kong will be taxed at 8.25%,
and profits above that amount will be subject to the
tax rate of 16.5%. The profits of the group entities

not qualifying for the two-tiered Profit Tax rate BE -
regime will continue to be taxed at a rate of 16.5%.
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13.

NANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Under the PRC Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT”)
Law, the statutory tax rate for the Group’s
subsidiaries established and operating in Mainland
China is 25% (2021: 25%).

Three (2021: Three) of the Group’s subsidiaries
registered in the PRC are recognised as a High and
New-technology Enterprises which have been granted
tax concessions by local tax bureau and are entitled
to PRC EIT at concessionary rate of 15% during the
reporting period.

Income tax on overseas profit has been calculated
on the estimated assessable profit for the year at the
rates of taxation prevailing on the overseas countries
in which the Group operates.

According to the PRC EIT Law, withholding tax at a
rate of 10% would be imposed on dividend payment
relating to profits earned from year 2008 onwards to
foreign investors for the companies established in the
PRC. Such tax rate may be further reduced by
applicable tax treaties or arrangements. According to
the Arrangement between the Mainland of China and
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region for the
Avoidance of Double Taxation and the Prevention of
Fiscal Evasion with respect to Taxes on Income, the
withholding tax rate on dividends paid by a PRC
resident enterprise to a Hong Kong resident
enterprise is further reduced to 5% (2021: 5%) if the
Hong Kong resident enterprise holds at least 25%
equity interests in the PRC resident enterprise.

e B R Y R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE—T-—F+-_F=+—HItFE

13. FIEHLR X (/)
RIBPEMRXAEEE  AKRERFEX
PP I 8 2 B A B 2 AE B R 1325%
ZEZF 1 25%) e

SEEPEEIMN=F(ZT=_—%F: =)
MBARMRESSMBREE B
HERETHEES  ERESHATEL
EMERER15RHREREE -

8 5132 ) 2 185418 18 4F Pt ot B SR B
AR E AR SBR 2R E
5o

BIEFBRCEMBRE  IREEERZ
TENFRERPBEKY Z AR BRIFE
HEAZRE XMW EIN10%TEIRE © %
MEBREIRBEABRBGOSZEE—2
BRAR o ARFC A EF B RIITHRE R
Fri5ia o & EMFB AP IEmIRHAO T -
MREFERCEFETFEAERGEED
5% E  FEEROEXABTBERDE
EYARECENBEA®E —PEEY
(20214 : 5%) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE=-T - —F+=-A=+— El.IJ:E

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 13. Fﬁ SHEXZ (&)
The reconciliation between the income tax expense FT 1S %1 57 2 B2 BR B A s B R LA BB RIS 8L
and the product of profit before tax multiplied by the MEFEMSERNEROT

Hong Kong Profits Tax rate is as follows:

2022 2021

—g - —E-—1F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#iT FET

Profit before tax B 7 B a A 73,953 150,572

Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate at 2 & B FSHHE16.5%

16.5% (2021: 16.5%) —ZT - —1%F :16.5%)
SHENHE 12,202 24,844

Tax effect of expenses that are not ~ RAJ ARG E

deductible 6,768 7,218
Tax effect of income that is not BERBRU AR T 7 &

taxable (1,862) (3,300)
Tax effect of temporary differences not RIERE = E M%7 £

recognised (1,519) 629
Tax effect of share of loss of Tﬁ“ N A ETE 2 B

associates A (159) (7)
Tax effect of recognition of tax losses #ER-F Al EE ﬁ?’é RIS E R

not previously recognised 25 (2,715) -
Tax loss previously recognised and oA W&Tﬁ B2 B EE

reversed - 4,874
Tax effect of tax losses not REREBE MG 2

recognised 4,390 2,525
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses B LRIk EE RZIIEEE

not previously recognised 2GR E (1,285) (5,400)
Over-provision in prior years BEFEBERE (5,498) (4,823)
Under-provision for current year KEEEETIR = (488)
Tax effect of two-tiered tax rate R A% I R 2R 2 B TS R 2 (165) (165)
Tax concession W ER (5,366) (4,554)
Tax effect of withholding tax arising ~ R EM B A& X HARE

from dividend payments/ RO K M E A 2 TR

undistributed profits of PRC 2GR E

subsidiaries 815 -
Tax effect of withholding tax arising ~ F° BB B A &) St 5 Fll B &= A

from interest payment of a PRC ZHEREB IR E

subsidiary - 227
Tax effect of different tax rates of oY= NCIR N RS o1

subsidiaries o (511) 1,255
Income tax expense TS m X 5,095 22 835
In addition to the amount charged to profit or loss, BREBRRIEIN RFEFRARER 2HE
deferred tax relating to the revaluation of the Group’s THEGZEREERERFALMEE
leasehold lands during the year has been charged to IS o

other comprehensive income.
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INANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B R Y R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HHE =T - —F+-_A=+—HBIFE

14. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 14. EREF
The Group’s profit for the year is stated after REBMFRZBEFB A FOR) THE
charging/(crediting) the following: I3 -
2022 2021
—g=-= —E-—F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Allowance for inventories, net GEREFE @)

(note (a)) 5,134 14,313
Auditor’s remuneration ZEET & 2,180 2,080
Bad debts written off (note (a)) RIS (A7t (@) 177 1,511
Cost of inventories sold (note (b)) EEFERAE (A7 b)) 1,085,849 1,187,357
Loss on revaluation of land (note (a) tHBEELEIE (A1t (a) 10 708
Net fair value (gain)/loss on derivative $74 & gt T B A FEF

financial instruments (note (a)) (Was), B8 (Hit(a) (2,355) 3,665
Amortisation of intangible assets B E 453 25
Depreciation of property, plant and Y2 - W RERETE

equipment 85,391 78,156
Depreciation on right-of-use assets FREEENE 19,805 16,704
Net exchange loss b 5 )F B 18 3,565 6,426
Net loss on disposal of property, plant H&E ¥ 3E - #22 K :& 5%

and equipment (note (a)) &8 (K7 at(a) 3,392 1,237
Property, plant and equipment written 473 - #82 K 2% & 8

off (note (a)) (K17t (a) 666 1,178
Other fees paid to the auditor of the 2 fFAA B4z EhH ~ H

Company % A 327 336
Research and development 7 R 3

expenditure 51,945 58,045
Notes: Hiat -

(@) These amounts are included in other operating expenses and (@) ZEREEFARMEERSI RKAR -
Income.

(b) Cost of inventories sold includes staff costs and depreciation (b) EEFERABEEIREARNTED
of approximately HK$368,498,000 (2021: HK$377,107,000), 368,498,0003% 7T (=% = —4F : 377,107,0005%
which are included in the amounts disclosed separately 7T) REE S BRI EX KM 155 E o

above and in note 15.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ =T - —F +_ E+_Elﬂ:$i ’

ﬂ

15. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

15. EERABX

2022 2021
- —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Employee benefits expense (excluding BEERFIHSZ (TREES
directors’ emoluments): <)

Salaries, bonuses and allowances FEN - AL BOERE 372,633 397,056

Retirement benefit scheme RURAE FIFT 850
contributions 33,224 31,611
Share-based payments (note) VARRAD 2+ 2 3 IE (H1aE) 700 —
Other benefits E 48 A 30,731 40,736
437,288 469,403

Note:

(a)

Equity-settled share-based payments represents amortisation
to the profit or loss of the fair value of share options
measured at the respective grant dates, regardless the share
options could be exercised or not.

Pensions — defined contribution plans
The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement plans which are available for eligible
employees in the PRC and Hong Kong.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in
the People’s Republic of China, the Group has
joined defined contribution retirement schemes
for the employees arranged by local
government labour and security authorities (the
“PRC Retirement Schemes”). The Group makes
contributions to the PRC Retirement Schemes
at the applicable rates based on the amounts
stipulated by the local government
organisations. Upon retirement, the local
government labour and security authorities are
responsible for the payment of the retirement
benefits to the retired employees.

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022
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D FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

15. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
(Continued)

(a)

Pensions — defined contribution plans
(Continued)

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident
Fund scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
(Chapter 485 of the laws of Hong Kong) for
employees employed under the jurisdiction of
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance (Chapter
57 of the laws of Hong Kong). The MPF
Scheme is a defined contribution retirement
plan administered by independent trustees.
Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and the
employees are each required to make
contributions to the plan at 5% of the
employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap
of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000.

During the years ended 31 December 2022
and 2021, the Group had no forfeited
contributions under the PRC Retirement
Scheme and MPF Scheme and which may be
used by the Group to reduce the existing level
of contributions. There were also no forfeited
contributions available at 31 December 2022
and 2021 under the PRC Retirement Scheme
and MPF Scheme which may be used by the
Group to reduce the contribution payable in
future years.

e B R Y R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HHE =T - —F+-_A=+—HBIFE

15. EE®EFFH X (&)

(a)

Bk & E R HRRETEI (8D

AN 5 B AR 1R 58 ) 1 A FE & 5T E IS
(BEBENELSE) BEXEBRERIE
Bl (BFBENFES7TE) BB FRER
By ATEEE ([BES
2l]) -cafEetE s—BEEEEIE
hKEstE BBYERTATE - RIE
BHEeHE  BEXREERAAKE
BEBEA(BBURAZEALRA
30,0007T) Z 5% AT 5K -

HE_ZT-_—FKr-ZT-_-"F+=HA
=+—HLEFE  REBRFBRENK
SRTEI R BESFEETHEE LK
R A] AN £R B R R PR K E BT A (3R
KE-RZZEZ—FR=_F==

T A=+ BRPRERESTE R
B S RTEITE T INEE S YU R AT
7N 55 B A A BR AR R 2R 4 JE B A Y

e
NI
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE=-T - —F+=-A=+— El.IJ:E

15. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE 15. EERAEX (B)
(Continued)
(b) Five highest paid individuals (b) EEEEHFMAL
The five highest paid individuals in the Group FRNAKENAE S TMALEIE
during the year included three (2021: three) —H(ZEZ—F:=ZR)EE AH

directors whose emoluments are reflected in
the analysis presented in note 16. The
emoluments of the remaining two (2021: two)
individuals for the year ended 31 December

BN & SIS R K16 DT - RE R
R —F+A=+—HLEFEH
TRE(ZZEZ—F : WE) R &
ATHB ST -

2022 are set out below:

2022 2021

—E-= —E-—4F

HK$°000 HK$'000

F#ET FET

Basic salaries and allowances — EZN 37 &2 Bh 3,096 3,097

Discretionary bonus 1B TE 4L 354 590
Retirement benefits scheme R ORAE B FH B K

contributions 18 18

Share-based payments (note) LARR 9 2 A~ 2 SR8 (K7 at) 43 —

3,511 3,705

VAR 4 8 B DA R A7 A B RE RO R38R
nHEBRERSARLAHFEND

Note: Equity-settled share-based payments represents Kiaz
amortisation to the profit or loss of the fair value of

share options measured at the respective grant TE(TmEBREE T ETE) -
dates, regardless the share options could be
exercised or not.

The emoluments fell within the following bands: B < /T A T #B E

Number of individuals

AE
2022 2021
—Eg-= —E-—4F
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 c%&
2,000,000/ 7T 2 2

FR - AREYEAZERHHA
TXEMERINBEARERH 2R
BB SR AE R AR B A B A A
EHEEAMNBERAOBEZNE -

During the year, no emoluments were paid by
the Group to any of these highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss
of office in connection with the management of
the affairs of any member of the Group.
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.ANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B R Y R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #{iE—T -~ +_-_A=+—HBIL&FE

16. BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF 16. EEFRTHAZENRA &=
DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER
(a) Emoluments of directors (a) EEME
The emoluments of each director were as FEEEHOME2OT
follows:

Estimated
Retirement money value
benefits of other

Salaries and Discretionary scheme benefits
Fees allowances bonus  contributions (note (iii)
HibFzH
BHEH fhtedEE
Name of director EEHE e HeRER BRTEAL sHEIER (i) @it

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET

Year ended HBE-B-C
31 December 2022 +ZA=t-BLEE

Executive directors fnofe () ~ HITEE (1)

Mr. Lee T4 - 3,436 546 - 35 4,017
Mr. WONG Wing Chuen BKREE - 1,913 305 18 35 2,271
Ms. CHAN So Wah REZEn+ - 1,365 221 18 35 1,639
Mr. CHU Weiman (Chief executive ¥ R %% (775 4%)

officer) fnote (i) (W) - 1,820 204 8 - 2,122
Independent non-executive ~ BIUEHTES

directors
Professor SUN Kai Lit, Cliff 8Bs, Jo FRXZU Kess, 220 - - - - 220
Ir Dr. LO Wai Kwok s, MH, o [E{Z BIf8+ Tizefass, H, o 220 - - - - 220
Mr. KONG Kai Chuen, Frankie  JTR& &4 (AIITER)

(formerly known as Kong To

Yeung, Frankie) 220 - - - - 220
Mr. Andrew LOOK BEREE 220 - - - - 220
Total for 2022 R EMmH 880 8,534 1,366 44 105 10,929
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

,HﬁE%Bﬁ‘I( ®)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE=-T - —F+ A=+ — Elﬂ:ifg “

16. BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF 16. EERTHABEAN RN = (E)
DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER (Continued)

(a) Emoluments of directors (Continued) (a) EEM£(E)
Estimated
money value
Retirement of other
Salaries and  Discretionary benefits scheme benefts
Fees  allowances bonus  contrbutions (note i) Total
EtpFlmm
RIER R eBEE
Name of director EE3 2 we HekEd REEa TR (Bt £ i) @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000  HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TET TET

Year ended BE-S--%

31 December 2021 +ZA=+-BLEE
Executive directors (nofe ()  HITEE (7))
Mr. Lee ThHE - 3,438 928 5 = 4,366
Mr. WONG Wing Chuen EpkE — 1914 507 18 — 2,439
Ms. CHAN So Wah BzZELt - 1,365 368 18 = 1,751
Mr. CHU Weiman (Chief executive 1R %4 (7B #%)

officer) (note (i) i) = 687 490 6 - 1,183
Independent non-executive ~ BIUEHTES

directors
Professor SUN Kai Lit, Cliff sss, op ZRRZI KBS, op 211 - - - - 211
I Dr. LO Wai Kwok ass, M+, op  EfEEfE L T280BS, MH, Jp 211 - - - - 211

Mr. KONG Kai Chuen, Frankie — STEN& %4 (RITEITER)
(formerly known as Kong To

Yeung, Frankie) 212 - - - - 212
Mr. Andrew LOOK B 200 = = = = 200
Total for 2021 B —Fc 834 7,404 2,288 47 = 10,673
Note: st -

[0) Emoluments of Executive Directors shown above were 0] WMEFMTRHRITESHMES IABTEAR
for their services in connection with the management 7] R 25 B AR B B 75 T iR A 0 AR 7S o

of the affairs of the Company and the Group.

(ii) Mr. Chu was appointed as chief executive officer and (ii) WEEDIRZZE=Z—F=_A—HK=
executive director on 1 February 2021 and 1 T-—FNA—BHEZEATHREREK
September 2021 respectively. HITES -

(i) Estimated money values of other benefits represent (i) HipFles bt S BEBERRARG X
share-based payments. 2 #3IA
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{E cuu‘soun"'- ED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

16. BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF
DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & =

e B R Y ()

"+ A=T—HLFE

/

16. EBRTHAH BN R A= (&)

(a) Emoluments of directors (Continued) (a) EEM&(E)
There were no arrangements under which a EERAFABEELEMEXRER
director waived or agreed to waive any EIMHENLTHE (S _—F &) -
emoluments during the year (2021: Nil).
During the year, no emoluments were paid by FR - AEEYERTANESZNE
the Group to any of the directors as an {A] 1 7 N BR AR 5= [ Ry o 2 12 ) B2 B =X
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or ERASBEEMKE ARIMNEERE
as compensation for loss of office as a director REREBEFAKERAGNEBHER
of any member of the Group or of any other BENBERBENMS -
office in connection with the management of
the affairs of any member of the Group.

(b) Emoluments of chief executive officer (b) TTHIHEFHENE
Mr. Chu Weiman (“Mr. Chu”) was appointed as MEREE([MEEDR=_T=—%F

the chief executive officer of the Company on
1 February 2021. Mr. Lee has stepped down
as the chief executive officer since that date.
Mr. Chu was appointed as executive director
on 1 September 2021. The emoluments of Mr.
Chu as the chief executive officer from 1
February 2021 to 31 August 2021 were as
follows:

—A—BEZEARQRITERER -
THRERRF BRETHRAEE - 15K E
R-E-—FhA—BHEZTAEHNTT
B WA E-_—F=-F—H
EZT - —FNA=Z+—HEATHK
BEHMSLT

Retirement
benefits
Salaries and scheme
allowances contributions Total
RRTER
e R HE G @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T FET FHET
Year ended 31 December 2021 HE-ZT - —4F
+=A=+—H
Mr. Chu Nk 840 11 851
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE=-T - —F+=-A=+— El.IJ:E

16. BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF 16. EERTHABEAN RN = (E)
DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER (Continued)

/

(c) Information about loans, quasi-loans (c) FARAUESE -  ZTiZEABBERZ
and other dealings in favour of EEENHEERATRANE
directors, controlled bodies corporate R EERREMRTSHER
and connected entities with such
directors
During the year ended 31 December 2022, BE_ZT-__F+-A=1+—RHI1LF
there were no loans, quasi-loans and other E - RARABISENB AR (ER)#
dealings entered into by the Company or FEIIVNES  BHEEHEEREER
subsidiaries undertaking of the Company, i%Zﬁﬁ@E‘ﬁkﬁxﬁ/\E’ng pi:3
where applicable, in favor of directors, their BERREMZG (ZE=—F: &)

controlled bodies corporate and the directors’
connected entities (2021: Nil).

(d) Directors’ material interests in (d EERXS  ZHISHIHE
transactions, arrangement or KR
contracts
Save as disclosed in note 43 to the BRELDI PR ARG B TS AR TR 435 - R
consolidated financial statements, no significant FRAFANEARRE - NQFIHEET
transactions, arrangements and contracts in VEMBEAEEEBE@ENARAE
relation to the Group’s business to which the ENERBATREPEESEES
Company was a party and in which a director BEAEGZNEARS LHEEE
of the Company and the director’s connected 4 °

party had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year.

(e) Director’s termination benefits (e) EEMNFEER
None of the directors of the Company received REZZBEZZF ARRESHENUE
any payment made or benefit provided in EHMEREHAESHEUNEMNE
respect of the termination of the service of 5 o W HR A {] [ 4% t%%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ
directors, whether in the capacity of directors NHFEXRENFERERN (=
or in any other capacity during their terms of Z—F )

directorships in 2022 (2021: Nil).

() Consideration provided to third parties (Hh HERUKESRBMEE=FHIR
for making available directors’ R E
services
During the year ended 31 December 2022, the RZBZ—_F+A=+—RHILFE
Company did not pay considerations to any third A ARRWERFE=ZTHREHRES
parties for making available directors’ services in PR 75 sk B AE (3 == HA R AR fa] El At
such capacity or in any other capacity during FRERBRERE (ZZ=—%F:
their terms of directorships (2021: Nil). /) o
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e B R Y ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #{Z—T - —F+_-_A=+—RHIFE

DIVIDENDS 17. RE
2022 2021
—E-—fF —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Interim dividend of HKO0.3 cent FRHARR B J&ﬁtu&o 35%
(2021: 2021 Interim dividend of (=T =—%:
HK1.0 cent) per ordinary share :—¢¢Eﬁﬁx,%\ﬂij§
A%1.0%40) 2,682 8,938
Final dividend of HK3.0 cents RNHKRE TR EBRS.0E
(2021: 2020 Final dividend of HK3.0 fll(ZZT=—%F : —_ZT =
cents) per ordinary share THERBBREFRL B
3.0781L) 26,812 26,812
29,494 35,750

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, final
dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December
2022 of HK2.0 cents per ordinary share totaling
approximately HK$17,875,000 has been proposed by
the Board of Directors of the Company and is
subject to approval by the shareholders of the
Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

KRB EMRETHER  ARAEZTEERE
EKBE-_T-_—_F+-_A=T—HLLFE
ZAREBR B BREBER2.0/8l - lREAER
#) /317,875,000 7T ° IR BB F AR 7
BRREEBRRBFRS L4LE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL_ TATEIVlENTS “._
S ®RRME(E) |

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE=-T - —F+=-A=+— El.IJ:EF ’

18. EARNINGS PER SHARE 18. BRER
The calculation of the basic earnings per share is BRERZBFIETIEE -
based on the following:

2022 2021
—E_ —E-—4F
HK$°000 HK$'000
F#ET FET
Earnings 25
Profit attributable to owners of the AR ESRERRBF 27
Company, used in the basic NElEmEE ANEIE R
earnings per share calculation 74,844 131,139
2022 2021
—g=-= —E-—4F
Number of shares 38 E
Weighted average number of ordinary ARt EFIRERZAF ~
shares for the purpose of DA S 35 3 AR AR B
calculating basic earnings per share 893,761,400 893,761,400
No diluted earnings per share for 2022 and 2021 is ARARRRBEZE - F+=A=+—
presented as the Company did not have any dilutive Ak —F+_A=+—HIEFER
potential shares for the financial years ended 31 BEMEERD AT _—_FR_-F
December 2022 and 2021. ——FRBEZVNEGREERAN -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE—T-—F+-_F=+—HItFE

19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 19. Y15 - BERREB

Furniture,
fixtures and
Computer office Motor  Construction
equipment equipment vehicles in progress
i BERE
R RBAZRME R ERIE
( HKS: y 0 0

Plant and
machinery

Leasehold
Buildings improvements

#F HENREER
HK$000 HK'000

Cost or revaluation BAS fh{E
At 1 January 2021 R-Z--%-f-8 309,910 212,048 737,799 12,399 28,003 9,337 6,913 1,316,499
Additions RE - 16,945 74,244 54 4,697 1,691 49 98,127
Disposal/write off e /s = (1,528) (16,813) (424) (583) (1,720) - (21,068)
Exchange differences ERZEE 6,908 4,097 17,451 148 665 115 175 30,459
At 31 December 2021 and ~ R=F=—F
1 January 2022 TZA=+t-Bk
“Z--#-f-H 316,818 232,462 812,681 12,177 32,872 9,423 7,584 1,424,017
Additions RE 706 1,213 63,256 197 9,611 511 7,137 82,631
Disposal/write off e/ M - (4,291) (25,285) (132) (1,621) (152) (1,579) (33,060)
Exchange differences EizH (25,145) (17,042) (51,822) (534) (2,375) (442) (895) (99,155)
At 31 December 2022 i 3
+-h=+-H 292,379 211,442 798,830 11,708 38,487 9,340 12,247 1,374,433
Accumulated depreciation Bt ER A
and impairment
At 1 January 2021 R=Z2=-%-f-H 109,318 165,534 485,990 9,895 12,455 8,018 5473 796,683
Charge for the year ERIK 13,391 16,084 43507 1,122 3,607 445 = 78,156
Disposal/write off &/ = (1,525) (13,273) 419) (562) (1,025) - (16,804)
Exchange differences EizH 2,640 4,850 10,399 107 283 83 133 18,495
At 31 December 2021 and ~ M=E--%
1 January 2022 TZA=+-Bk
“2-—%#-f-H 125,349 184,943 526,623 10,705 15,783 7,521 5,606 876,530
Charge for the year FRMEG 14,700 12,049 47,111 873 10,181 417 - 85,391
Disposal/write off L&/ - (4,291) (20,272) (119) (1,452) (129) (1,119) (27,382
Exchange differences EizH (10,845) (12,048) (26,024) (464) (1,456) (287) (432) (52,456)
At 31 December 2022 i 3
F=E=Tr=F 129,204 179,753 527,438 10,995 23,056 7,582 4,055 882,083
Carrying amount fREfE
At 31 December 2022 WZE==F
+-A=+-8 163,175 31,689 271,392 713 15,431 1,758 8,192 492,350
At 31 December 2021 RZT-—-%
+-A=+-8 191,469 47519 286,058 1,472 17,089 1,902 1,978 547,487
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE=-T - —F+=-A=+— El.IJ:E

20. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

20. (FRAEEE

Leasehold Leased Office
lands properties equipment Total
HELH HEME BAERE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHET
At 1 January 2021 N-ZE-—fF
—HA—H 230,480 17,604 130 248,214
Additions NE = 4,636 — 4,636
Adjustment for lease HEBWAZE
modification - 894 — 894
Depreciation e (7,078) (9,582) (44) (16,704)
Surplus on revaluation REMZEKEZERNE
recognised in other HRE
comprehensive income 4,466 = = 4,466
Loss on revaluation RERERNEMEE
recognised in profit or
loss (708) — — (708)
Exchange differences M5 =5 3,920 250 — 4170
At 31 December 2021 and R-ZT——4F
1 January 2022 +TZA=+—HB8k
—ET--F—H—H 231,080 13,802 86 244,968
Additions NE 6,828 18,334 - 25,162
Adjustment for lease LR EES
modification - 9,027 - 9,027
Early termination IRAT# IE - (3,459) - (3,459)
Depreciation e (6,828) (12,934) (43) (19,805)
Surplus on revaluation REM 2 E KRR E
recognised in other HRH
comprehensive income 30,669 - - 30,669
Loss on revaluation RERERNEMEE
recognised in profit or
loss (10) - - (10)
Exchange differences fENZ=% (14,271) (1,291) - (15,562)
At 31 December 2022 RZE-——F
+-A=t+—8H 247,468 23,479 43 270,990

The Group’s leasehold lands were revalued on 31
December 2022 and 2021 using the direct
comparison approach by reference to market
evidence of recent transactions for similar properties
by independent surveyors.

AEBZHETH IR T -_—FR_-F
CCE+ZRA=t+—BEABLASMIEE
BUBEZ2ZMBEUNEZRARSE
EE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE—T-—F+-_F=+—HItFE

20. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued) 20. EREEE (&)
The carrying amount of the Group’s leasehold lands MR AR BT & RIBEEEIIER - R
would have been approximately HK$51,373,000 TE - CF+-A=+—H AEBHE
(2021: HK$48,189,000) at 31 December 2022 had it TH R BREE A %) £51,373,0008 7T (=&
been stated at cost less accumulated depreciation — —%F : 48,189,000/ 7T) °
and impairment losses.
2022 2021
—g=-C= T —F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Depreciation expenses on right-of-use f& A # & A EFIL
assets 19,805 16,704
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEBERNEMX (G AR
(included in finance cost) B A) 1,059 618
Expenses relating to short-term lease 2R HHEE B 2 (5
(included in cost of sales and ANHERAR R —MRITH
general and administrative F)
expenses) 858 767

Details of total cash outflow for leases is set out in
note 40(e).

For both years, the Group leases various offices
premises, factories, warehouses, staff quarters and
office equipment for its operations. Lease contracts
are entered into for fixed term of 1 to 5 years. Lease
terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and
conditions. In determining the lease term and
assessing the length of the non-cancellable period,
the Group applies the definition of a contract and
determines the period for which the contract is
enforceable.

In addition, the Group owns several industrial
buildings where its manufacturing facilities are
primarily located and office buildings. The Group is
the registered owner of these property interests,
including the underlying leasehold lands. Lump sum
payments were made upfront to acquire these
property interests. The leasehold land components of
these owned properties are presented separately only
if the payments made can be allocated reliably.

HERRE R AR BN EE40(e) ©

RREFE AKREHEZERLIE R
B RE BIBEERAERBANE
B -HEANIYMBEEAMA—FER
F o MEMRERRER LR - 8BRS
BAR G RIGESE - REERE R G
TR HEHENRER  AEEEAEH
MEERILEE S XA @B MITRHM

BESN - NEBEEE S HEERIGAMAIER 2
TERERRAERE - ARER/ZF
XD (BERAEEAEL ) 2EMESR
A o NEE B R ATE ) — RIE A FROAEER
SEYE RS - (EETFL AR 5
TER TEBEIRZEFEENELHEE
T AR AR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE=-T - —F+=-A=+— El.IJ:EF

21. GOODWILL 21.
2022 2021
ol - —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#T FET
Cost 5% 3
At 1 January Rn—HA—H 2,654 =
Arising on acquisition of a subsidiary Ut & —FEH B A B E L
(note 40(b)) (H7at400b)) - 2,654
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 2,654 2,654
Carrying amount REE
At 31 December W+=—A=+—H 2,654 2,654
Goodwill acquired in a business combination is REBEHPRENDERKERE S
allocated, at acquisition, to the CGU that is expected EHEHEREBEHPRENREEELS
to benefit from that business combination. The i - HEMNRABESEDELT :
carrying amount of goodwill had been allocated as
follows:

2022 2021
—g-C T -—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Others segment — new energy Hib 53— HEERSREED
vehicles power systems: R
Green Print Transportation Limited B R BERA A
(“GPTL”) (MEERE]) 2,654 2,654
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21.

| FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

GOODWILL (Continued)

The recoverable amounts of the CGU has been
determined on the basis of its value in use using
discounted cash flow method. The key assumptions
for the discounted cash flow method are those
regarding the discount rates, growth rates and
budgeted gross margin and turnover during the
period. The Group estimates discount rate that
reflect current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the CGU. The
growth rates are based on long-term average
economic growth rate of the geographical area in
which the businesses of the CGU operates.
Budgeted gross margin and turnover are based on
past practices and expectations on market
development.

The Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived from
the most recent financial budgets approved by the
directors for the next five years with the residual
period using the growth rate of 3% (2021: 3%). This
rate do not exceed the average long-term growth
rate for the relevant markets.

The pre-tax rate used to discount the forecast cash
flows from the Group’s are 24% (2021: 23%).

e B R Y R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HHE =T - —F+-_A=+—HBIFE

21. BE (@)
REeEFEMHNAIEEETERRRR
emEEZERNAFHEEETET -URRE
REBEEANTIERREERBAREX
ﬁET&ﬁﬁ%ﬂTM&%WMﬁﬁm%

o NEBHE A MR B AT 5 B E K
ﬁF@Z%ﬁ&ﬁiEi Rivapd sl
BRI R - IR KT LAIR & FE £ BALATK
EEBEMENRBATHEBEERXER
BEE -BREENERERBIABEED
MREMHERTAPR/EE-

AEBREEEFHEDRERREEY
ST BB BIEE - 3% (Z T = —4F 1 3%)
MEEEEANSFOTARELRER
B o b R A T 5 2 T 19 R
R o

7N £ (B B A BA 3R T8 ORI 3R € % 2 BT R A FI| R
B24% (ZZF = —%F : 23%) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE=-T - —F+=-A=+— El.IJ:E

22. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 22, HtEEEE
Technology Customer
knowhow relationship Total
BRATRER EREZ st
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FBET FET
Cost .
At 1 January 2021 RZZE-_—F—H—H — — —
Acquisition of a subsidiary WiE—REME R
(note 40(b)) (#t5E40)) 833 3,027 3,860

At 31 December 2021, 1 January W-_ZT - —F+_ A

2022 and 31 December 2022 =t+—H8 -ZF=—=

F-—A—HM=ZE

SE=gEy =A==

H 833 3,027 3,860
Accumulated amortisation FetiEes
At 1 January 2021 RZE——F—H—H — — —
Amortisation for the year F N 8 17 25
At 31 December 2021 and R-ZT_—%F

1 January 2022 +TZA=+—8K

—E__F—H—H 8 17 25
Amortisation for the year FANEE 142 311 453
At 31 December 2022 WRZZ_—_%+=-A

=+—H 150 328 478
Carrying amount ARE{E
At 31 December 2022 N—T -

+=—A=+—H 683 2,699 3,382
At 31 December 2021 MNIEZ—4F

+=ZA=+—H 825 3,010 3,835
Technology knowhow ¥ #isk 8%
The technology knowhow represents the HMREIEBEBEAEE - ZFEAENH
manufacturing of engine motors. The remaining BEEFHRIIF(ZEZ—F :59%F) o

amortisation period of the use right is 4.9 years
(2021: 5.9 years).
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1E CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

22. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Customer relationship

The customer relationship represents the present
value of the future cash flow attributed to
established customer base and other business
relationships built up by GPTL. The average
remaining amortisation period of the customer
relationship is 8.9 years (2021: 9.9 years).

e B R Y ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HHE =T - —F+-_A=+—HBIFE

22. HibBILEE (&)

EFRMARE
REBERIERBREBEBATE Y HRA
REERREMEBBENRRBE S RE
BE - BEFEEOFGEHEFHASIF
ZEZ—F:909%F)-

23. CLUB MEMBERSHIP 23. B
HK$’000
F#ETT
Cost A
At 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021, RZTEZ—F—A—H ZZ2=—F
1 January 2022 and 31 December 2022 +=—A=+—H8B -ZE=_—_%F—A
—BkR-_ZE-_—_F#+=-A=+—H 718

The Group’s club membership of HK$718,000 (2021:
HK$718,000) at 31 December 2022 is assessed as
having indefinite useful life because there is no time
limit that the Group can enjoy the services provided
by that club.

AEBR-_ZE-_—_F+=-_A=+—Hz®E
e EEAT180008 T (- —4 :
718,000 L) EN EAREERAFEAF
B RERAEEZHAZGATATIRERE
pd: i s3I
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

A B R B ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # %=

24.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December

2022 are as follows:

Principal country of
operation/Country
of incorporation/

24. RIBABIMKRE

ZFEBT

Percentage of ownership
interest/voting power/

Issued and fully paid up
share capital/registered

R-ZE-_—_F+-_A=+—B WERA

Name Kind of legal entity  capital profit sharing Principal activities
TEREFR/
MBI ERTRAERE/ (bR REE
Z% EABRBER HMER AERL EEEH
Direct Indirect
EE Gk
Ka Shui (Holdings) Company Limited BVI/Limited liability US$36,909 100% - Investment holding
company
EhEBERAA RERLES/ 36,909% T BREER
BREEAR
Ample Wealth Developments Limited BVI/Limited liability US$1 - 100% Investment holding
company
ELERERRA RERLES/ e REZR
BEREADA
Ka Fung Metal Manufactory Company Limited Hong Kong/Limited HK$74,487,660 - 100%  Sale of plastic injection products
liability company and components
RLSBHREARAA BA/BREMLRAR 74,487,660 HEEBTBERRTHH
Ka Shui Manufactory Co., Limited Hong Kong/Limited HK$10,000 - 100%  Sale of zinc, magnesium and
liability company aluminium alloy die casting
and plastic injection products
and components
ERERARAR B/ BREMEDA 10,0007 HEH BREASESNER
AREmRTEHH
Ka Shui Technology (Huizhou) Company The PRC/Wholly Registered capital - 100%  Sale and manufacture of
Limited* foreign-owned HK$321,105,502 magnesium alloy die casting
entity products and components
FhnEHE (EM) BRAR" HE/NRREE AR HEREEGACEEEMRT
2EMBNER 321,105,502/ 1 g
NG
Elegant Shine Investments Limited BVI/Limited liability Us$1 - 100% Investment holding
company
HEREERAA RERLES/ E REZR
EREEAR
Ample Wealth Property Developments The PRC/Wholly Registered capital - 100% Inactive
(Huizhou) Limited* foreign-owned HK$6,800,000
entity
2L2MEREEM BRAR" HE/SNEREE AR EELK
2EMBNER 6,800,000/ 7T
NG
Wing Yu (Far East) Industries Company Hong Kong/Limited HK$6,900,000 - 100% Investment holding
Limited liability company
KR CER)EXBRAR B/ BREMLDR 6,900,000 REZR
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{E cuu‘soun"'- ED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B R Y ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #{Z—T - —F+_-_A=+—RHIFE

24.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

24. RIMBRABINIRE (&)

(Continued)
Principal country of
operation/Country  Issued and fully paid up Percentage of ownership
of incorporation/ share capital/registered interest/voting power/
Name Kind of legal entity capital profit sharing Principal activities
TEBEER/
A, ERTRARRE eGSR RER/
Z% ENERNER EUI-EN MBS TEEH
Direct Indirect
E# Gk
Huizhou Wing Yu Metal and Plastic The PRC/Wholly Registered capital - 100%  Provision of surface finishing
Manufactory Company Limited* foreign-owned HK$4,500,000 treatment services and sale
entity and manufacture of zinc
alloy die casting products
and components
BMmARESERBRERAR mE/NEREE EREA REERERZRBREE REE
2EMBNER 4,500,000/ 70 HACEREMRTHN
NG
Ka Yi Technology (Huizhou) Company The PRC/Wholly Registered capital - 100%  Sale and manufacture of zinc
Limited* foreign-owned HK$20,000,000 and aluminium alloy die
entity casting products and
components
A (BN BRA HE/SNEREE ARER HEREEHREACBREER
2EMBNAR 20,000,000 7T REHH
NS
Ka Fung Industrial Technology (Huizhou) The PRC/Wholly Registered capital - 100%  Sale and manufacture of
Company Limited* foreign-owned HK$132,000,000 products and components
entity with plastic contents
RLYTEMREMNBRA RE/NEREE ARER HEREESEBHM 2 EMR
2EMBNER 132,000,000/ 7T b
yNG]
Alphalite Company Limited Hong Kong/Limited ~ HK$1 - 100%  Inactive
liability company
RRRATRAA BB/ BREEAR 18T EEEH
Ka Shui Metal Manufactory (Shenzhen) The PRC/Wholly Registered capital = 100%  Sale and manufacture of znc,
Company Limited* foreign-owned HK$40,000,000 magnesium and aluminium
entity alloy die casting products
and component
EheBR ORI BRAR RE/SNEREE AR HEREEH HZREASES
2EMBNER 40,000,0007% 7T Em R EE
NG
Alphalite Incorporation USA/Business US$100 - 100%  Trading and marketing of LED
corporation and plasma lighting
products
XB/BERGRAR  100XT RELEDREEETFRAERZE
ZRMSHE
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& ft % R M A (R)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # %=

24. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)
Principal country of
operation/Country Issued and fully paid up Percentage of ownership
of incorporation/ share capital/registered interest/voting power/
Name Kind of legal entity  capital profit sharing Principal activities
TEBEER/
M ARIE, EBRTRARRE e RER
2z EANERNER H#MEF B TEEH
Direct Indirect
B Gk
Ka Shui (USA) Incorporation USA/Business US$5,000 - 100%  Marketing of zinc, magnesium
corporation and aluminium alloy die
casting and plastic injection
products and components,
trading of LED and home
appliance products
X8 BERMNAR  5000FT e EREACBRERER
FEERRTHM 2 THE
EURLEDRZEREAZE
7
Kalok Technology Investment Limited BVI/Limited liability US$50,000 - 100%  Investment holding
company
FAMBRREBRAR REALEE/ 50,000% 70 REER
BREERA
Wuhu Lenka Technologies Company Limited ~ The PRC/Limited Registered capital - 100%  Sale and manufacture of
(“Wuhu Lenka”)* liability company RMB50,000,000 magnesium alloy die casting
products and components
BHBEIXENBARAR((EABE]) HE/EREEAR ZMEAR HEREEZSCREEMNT
AR #50,000,0007C i
Ka Shui Metal Company Limited Hong Kong/Limited ~ HK$100,000 - 100%  Sale of magnesium alloy die
liability company casting products and
components
EheBERAR &%/ BBEMERAR 10000077 HERASBEEMRTHM
Katchon Precision Holdings Company BVI/Limited liability US$1,000 - 70%  Investment holding
Limited company
EREERERAR RERZEE/AR 1000%T REER
LN
Ka Shui Plastic Technology Company Hong Kong/Limited ~ HK$1 - 100%  Research and development,
Limited liability company trading of germ repellent
plastic related product
EhEBHEERAR BB/ BEREERAR 18T REZBRBERZHERKEE
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{E cuu‘soun"'- ED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B R Y ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #{Z—T - —F+_-_A=+—RHIFE

24.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

24. RIMBRABINIRE (&)

(Continued)
Principal country of
operation/Country  Issued and fully paid up Percentage of ownership
of incorporation/ share capital/registered interest/voting power/
Name Kind of legal entity  capital profit sharing Principal activities
TEBEER/
R, EETRARRE/ FEfhiEss RER/
28 EANERNER HEMEER BHERE TEEH
Direct Indirect
B Gk
Goodly Precision Industrial Limited Hong Kong/Limited ~ HK$50,000 - 70%  Investment holding
liability company
EREEIEERAA B8/ BREMERAR  50,000% T RERR
Goodly Precision (Suzhou) Industrial Limited ~ The PRC/Wholly Registered capital = 70%  Research, manufacture and sale
(“Goodly Suzhou”)* foreign-owned US$5,000,000 of plastic injection moulding
entity and components of
car-related products
SEMEELIE EMNERAF mE/NEREE  AREX FERRERCEREE R T
(TR ARM 1) 2EMBENER 5,000,000% 70 h2HE EERHE
NG
Huizhou Ka May New Material Technology ~ The PRC/Limited Registered capital - 70% Inactive
Company Limited* liability company RMB1,000,000
BENZEHRMEBRERAR RE/EREARR FMEA EEEH
ARH1,000,0007C
Ka Shui Aluminium Technology (Shenzhen) — The PRC/Limited Registered capital - 70%  Research and development and
Company Limited* liability company RMB10,000,000 trading of aluminium related
products
=ikt ORI R AR HE/BREADA FMEX EERERLHERES
AR %10,000,0007T
Pioneer Lead Global Enterprises Limited BVI/Limited liability US$1 = 100%  Investment holding
company
BRERCEBRDTA EBERTHS/ AR 1En REER
BAERA
Nobel Development Limited Hong Kong/Limited ~ HK$1 - 100%  Investment holding
liability company
ERERERAA BB/ BREEAR 18T RERR
Shuilong Green Transport Company Limited  Hong Kong/Limited ~ HK$10,000 - 70%  Repair and maintenance of
liability company motor vehicles for
commercial use and sales of
special purpose vehicles
HEZERRAA &%/ BBREMAR 10,0005 BERREEAERHERT
BEEH
Orient World International Limited Hong Kong/Limited ~ HK$1 = 100%  Investment holding
liability company
SERRERAA BB/ BREMAR 18T REER
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24.

R EER A

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # %=

)

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

24. RIMBABINIKRE (&)

(Continued)
Principal country of
operation/Country  Issued and fully paid up Percentage of ownership
of incorporation/ share capital/registered interest/voting power/
Name Kind of legal entity capital profit sharing Principal activities
TEZEER/
R, ERTRARRE/ FElEHES RER/
&8 EANERIER HEMEF IR TEEH
Direct Indirect
B Gk
Ka Shui (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia/Private MYR1 - 100% Inactive
limited company
ERED/ AR 1ERAET EEEH
A
Innoka Trading (Huizhou) Company The PRC/Limited Registered capital - 100%  Trading of healthcare products
Limited* liability company RMB100,000
L2825 (EMER mE/EREERAR  FMERAREK100,0007T RRERERE S
Kamay New Material Technology (Yulin) The PRC/Wholly Registered capital - 100%  Sales and manufacture of
Company Limited* foreign-owned RMB10,000,000 metallic material
entity
REMIERR () BR A HE/NEREE  AMEAARE HEREESRME
2EMAENER 10,000,0007%
NG
Good Hero Development Limited Hong Kong/Limited ~ HK$1 - 100%  Investment holding
liability company
EREREBRAF BB/ BREEAR 181 RERR
Ka Shui Holdings (Macau) Company Limited ~ Macau/Limited Registered capital - 100%  Inactive
liability company MOP25,000
RER ORF) —ABBRAR R/ BEREERAR  EMER250008F T EEEH
Capital Link Holdings Limited Hong Kong/Limited ~ HK$1 - 100%  Investment holding
liability company
REEERRAR BB/ BREEAR 181 REER
Green Print Transportation Limited Hong Kong/Limited ~ HK$10,000 - 70%  Provision of new energy vehicle
liability company power systems
BERBERAR &8/ BREERR  10,000%TT REFERTEH N RS
Green Print New Energy (Huizhou) Company  The PRC/Wholly Registered capital - 70% Provision of new engine vehicle
Limited* foreign-owned RMB8,000,000 power systems
entity
SEFEREMN ERAR TE/NEREE  ERER REFERTZDNRS
2EMENER AR #8,000,0007
NG
Bestgrand Enterprises Limited Hong Kong/Limited ~ HK$10,000 - 100%  Investment holding
liability company
BT EEERAA &%/ BREERAR 10,0005 REER
Ka Shui United Industries (Huizhou) The PRC/Wholly Registered capital = 100%  Property investment

Company Limited*

FEBAEX(EMERRF

* English translation of the name is for identification purpose

only.

foreign-owned

entity
HE/SEREE

2ERENAR

27
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{E cuu‘soun"'- ED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B R Y ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & & e S VEI= S BN S

24. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 24. RIBABMERE (&)

(Continued)

As at 31 December 2022, the bank and cash RZEBEZZF+=ZA=+—H ' xEER
balances and restricted bank deposits of the Group’s FREHBRRINARBFENRITRR
subsidiaries in the PRC denominated in RMB A58 N B IR IR 17 77 5K R £993,847,000
amounted to approximately HK$93,847,000 (2021: BT (ZE=—% : 65,886,000/ 7L) ° A
HK$65,886,000). Conversion of RMB into foreign R 5 5 SN B AR 15 A B &9 COMNEE B I 1
currencies is subject to the PRC’s Foreign Exchange B RKHEETE - EERSESERTE)#ET -

Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement,
Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations.

25. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES 25.
2021
—E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Unlisted investments ELEmRE 9,845 8,949
The amounts due from/to associates are unsecured, FEU,/ FEASESE 2 2 A 1_3’7\ BAEER 28K
interest free and repayable on demand. JEIE B SRR Hﬂ%
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25. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES 25.

(Continued)
Details of the Group’s associates at 31 December
2022 are as follows:

REE QR Z2RE (F)

KoB-—f+-A=+—AAEEZH
BATERMT :

Percentage of

ownership
Place of Issued and fully paid interest/voting
incorporation/ up share capital/ power/profit
Name registration registered capital sharing Principal activities
31 3- 74
ERTRAR REE/
& it B RE/ERER mHEME  EEEH
Huizhou Intelligent Foundry The PRC Registered capital 46% Research and development,
Industry Light Alloy RMB20,000,000 manufacture and trading of
Innovation Center Company light alloy moulds
Limited*
BNAZE RS nF‘ﬁﬁl hE & AR 46% EEeBAEZHE FER
glFRLERAT AR #20,000,0007C 25
Shanxi Quality Magnesium The PRC Registered capital 22% Research and development and
Fusion Technology Company RMB20,000,000 trading of magnesium
Limited"*
REZERANMRARAR HE FRER 2% BEBERWMENES
AR #20,000,0007%
* English translation of the name is for identification purpose * B2 B EE R AR -
only.
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25.

26.

NANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES
(Continued)

The following table shows, in aggregate, the Group’s
share of the amounts of all individually immaterial
associates that are accounted for using the equity
method:

e B R Y R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE—T-—F+-_F=+—HItFE

25. REtENRIZ2RE (F&)

TRENAEBUAERGHEARZAE
ERFFERB L AR HED SREAR

2022 2021
—E¥-F T4
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FET
At 31 December: w+=BA=+—8":
Carrying amounts of interests HEmREE 9,845 8,949
Year ended 31 December: #EZ+=-A=+—H
ILEE:
(Loss)/profit from operations s (B518),Was (1,058) 45
Total comprehensive income 2 HE W= LR (1,058) 45
As at 31 December 2022, the bank and cash RZEBEZZF+ZA=+—8 ' x5£ER
balances of the Group’ associate in the PRC PR E RBIAARBEENRITRIR
denominated in RMB amounted to approximately S HEHRHL12,232,0008 L (ZE=—F ¢
HK$12,232,000 (2021: HK$1,915,000). Conversion of 1,915,000/ 7T) © B ARE LI BINE AR
RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the PRC’s B B R COMNEE FIMR D1 R CHEEE - BHE R
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and NEEEHE)HET
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations.
DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 26. PTEESRMER
2022 2021
—E-= — T —4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ETT FET
Financial liabilities SRAaRE
Fair value of cross currency interest A X & # Kl & 5 Hi )
rate swaps NEE 935 3,486

CECCFER EHEBRERARIE
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26.

27.

28.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
(Continued)

The cross currency interest rate swaps are measured
at FVTPL. The Group has entered into cross
currency interest rate swaps to sell EURO (“EUR”)
and buy RMB at fixed exchange rate and interest
rate. The fair value of the derivatives are determined
with reference to the EURIBOR plus a spread and
the market forward exchange rate at year end, and
the fixed forward rates stated in contracts.

The notional amounts of EUR cross currency interest
rate swaps are EUR2,770,000 (2021: EUR2,770,000)
and EUR2,570,000 (2021: EUR2,570,000).

26. PTESRERE (&)

RXEEN R A FEFABR
E - AKREERI VR NEEMEREE - JE
EERRMEHERT (BT REAA
RE - TETANRFEDIZSEBRTRT
RSB ZE RFERNTIHEHEX -
PAR A #I5) BR 10 [ E 3= HAEE R & E ©

B TR XNEEFREHNEEZSEA
277oooo@x(_$:—¢ 2,770,000
L) % 2,570,000 T (=T = — & :
2,570,000 7T) °

INVENTORIES 27. BE
2022 2021
—g-C —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHETT F&T
Raw materials R E 73,395 77,022

Consumables supplies and spare VB #E on e K A R T AR

parts 9,521 11,482
Work in progress &M 77,231 106,919
Finished goods BIRK o 100,098 84,553
260,245 279,976
Less: Allowance for inventories B FEEE (67,720) (70,613)
192,525 209,363

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

28. B REEEIRNAIE

2022 2021

—EC- —E-—4F

HK$’000 HK$’000

F#EiT FETT

Trade receivables = el 398,656 445,961
Bills receivables FiRE IR 6,776 7,121
405,432 453,082
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NANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

28. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

The Group’s trading terms with customers are mainly
on credit. The credit terms generally range from 30
to 120 days (2021: 30 to 120 days) after the end of
the month in which the invoices issued. Each
customer has a maximum credit limit. The Group
seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly
by the directors. The ageing analysis of trade
receivables, based on the invoice date, and net of
allowance, is stated as follows:

e B R Y R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE—T-—F+-_F=+—HItFE

28. B REBEWTIE (&)
AEFBHERFZRGEBUMEERRNET -
FEEH-—MNTHEE A&FRZI0HE120
B(ZZE-—%:30H&1208) - L &P
EEeEERME - AEERNBREEHE
KREZERYWFE AESTHBRTBHX
it - BHRWGRIA (HBRBEE) REERE
AEZ R DITANT ¢

2022 2021
—Eg-= —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#EiT FET
0 to 30 days FE30H 133,549 181,915
31 to 60 days 31HZE60H 93,066 135,361
61 to 90 days 61HZ90H 83,163 101,984
91 to 180 days 91H=180H 87,392 25,940
Over 180 days 180H M £ 1,871 1,114
399,041 446,314
Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful J& : 12 BR & % BR % %

debts (385) (853)
398,656 445,961

As at 31 December 2022, total bills received R-ZBE-_—_F+=-B=+—8 K~"EFHFE

amounted to approximately HK$6,776,000 (2021:
HK$7,121,000) are held by the Group for future
settlement of trade receivables. The Group continues
to recognise their full carrying amounts at the end of
the reporting period. All bills received by the Group
are with a maturity period of less than one year.

At 31 December 2022, an allowance was made for
estimated irrecoverable trade and bills receivables of
approximately HK$385,000 (2021: HK$358,000)
(note 6(b)).

BB WEH) E &R 4 496,776,00078 T (=
T —4%:7,121,000% 7T ) LA FREAR 2R E UL
RENGEE AEERREMREEER
HE2HKREE AEEEBROHAEREN
AR DR —F -

R-EBE-_—_F+-A=+—8 " s#Est~+
AREESREEERRBEBELEED
385,000/ 7t (==& = — 4 : 353,000/ JT)
(MfE6(D)) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE=-T - —F+=-A=+— El.IJ:EF ’

28. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 28. EZREBEEWKIE (E)
(Continued)
The carrying amount of the Group’s trade receivables REBESEWFIENREENLTIEE
are denominated in the following currencies: FIE :

2022 2021
—E- —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
HK$ BT 13,623 21,896
usD ET 262,401 320,255
RMB AR 122,719 103,825
Others EHi 298 338
399,041 446,314
Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful i : 3EBE & R 8E 7
debts (385) (353)
398,656 445,961
29. CONTRACT ASSETS/CONTRACT 20. BREE EHNERE
LIABILITIES

2022 2021

Contract assets EHEE —T=-= —E-—F

HK$°000 HK$°000
FET TAT

Arising from sales of OEM Products B R X ERIEE REEFT

EXE 11,420 14,132
Receivables from contracts with EBMIEHREERE 1555
customers within the scope of BRNEERFEZE %2 I
HKFRS 15, which are included in FE(EBEEIESHNE
“Trade and bills receivables” BEBKIEIN) 405,432 453,082
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HHE =T - —F+-_A=+—HBIFE

29. CONTRACT ASSETS/CONTRACT 29. BREE EHEE (&)
LIABILITIES (Continued)
Amounts relating to contract assets are balances due HENEERBNSBREASE Z&F
from customers under sales contracts that arise HREPWERIBE N AEEESR
when the Group’s unconditional right to receive FIERBMITEZENMEENRZHE
payments from customers is not in line with the BEEMNEET M - - RERXNEFE -
progress of the OEM Products manufactured under ﬁAH&EXEJE'E’JJ? SEREEMOTIE A
contracts in which the Group has enforceable right to EREERRRBREEEEBHM
payment. Payment for OEM Products is not due (Eﬂ$%lﬁ$§}?’ SRIERBHRERE)
from the customer until the products are delivered to FE IR o
the customer, and therefore a contract asset is
recognised over the period in which the OEM
Products are manufactured to represent the Group’s
right to consideration for the services transferred to
date.
The decrease in the contract assets balance in REEERNEEAB THRERRNWREHANRN
current year is the result of the decrease in OEM EENRSEBEREEMEBREEP R
products manufactured transfer to customers during B o
the reporting period.
None of contract assets that is expected to be MERHRER —FALRBENENEE (=
recovered after more than one vyear (2021: TE_—F:ZFF) -
approximately HK$Nil).
2022 2021
Contract liabilities aHaE —®-C —T=—
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Billings in advance of performance HERRBHREERES
obligation arising from sales of OEM B4 & T K TE U FKIB
Products 8,611 7,854

Contract liabilities relating to sales of OEM Products
and moulds are balances due to customers under
contracts with customers. They arise because
customers pay deposits for the sales contract which
exceed the revenue recognised to date.

RBBEEmMEAHERBENEH
KIE ) A& BR © 3% IR
BHRSBBESE

B R R
BERENEFPANE
DEEPZMMEES
EEHLAE’]”&A °
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29. CONTRACT ASSETS/CONTRACT 29. EREE EHEE (A)
LIABILITIES (Continued)
The increase in the contract liabilities balance in REEEHNABEEHRBIAGN  TER£H
current year is mainly due to the increase in R E U E 'J%Jf'?ﬁﬂﬂlmtﬂ'ﬁfr@l o
advances received from customers during the
reporting period.
Movements in contract liabilities: &t
2021
—_F- —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Balance at 1 January arising from HERZBREERN —A
sales of OEM Products —B#& 7,854 14,031
Decrease in contract liabilities as a ¢Wﬁ§? Hﬁl]\%ﬁ(’\i’]ﬁﬁ
result of recognising revenue during A BEET AR A L E
the year was included in the {EW
contract liabilities at the beginning of
the period (7,854) (14,031)
Increase in contract liabilities as a HERZBREERREA
result of billing in advance of sales WIBUREERE VARG
of OEM products and moulds 30 8,937 7,786
Effect of foreign exchange rate fEXS T2
changes (326) 68
Balance at 31 December R+=—A=+— 8,611 7,854
30. RESTRICTED BANK BALANCES AND 30. BRHIRTEFMERITRIRESLER

BANK AND CASH BALANCES

The Group’s restricted bank balances represent
balances of approximately RMB1,669,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$1,860,000) (2021:
RMB1,664,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$2,029,000)) to guarantee for the use of natural
gas in the PRC.

The cash at banks earned interest at floating interest

rates ranging from 0.01% to 0.75% per annum
(2021: 0.001% to 0.35% per annum).
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HHE =T - —F+-_A=+—HBIFE

30. RESTRICTED BANK BALANCES AND 30. BREIRTEFHERITRIRESLER
BANK AND CASH BALANCES (48)
(Continued)
The carrying amounts of bank and cash balances are RITRHF AR ZEEBENATIEEAE
denominated in the following currencies: fiL :
2022 2021
—g-C —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
HKS BT 36,657 37,432
UsD ETT 111,107 158,458
RMB AR 94,572 83,802
EUR BT 1,760 891
Others H A 57 100
244,153 280,683
Under the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control R 35 R B ) KON & I GBI R A BE - BB FE
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sales RINSEEERE)  AEBERTAIEAR
and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the BEMARINEZEFHIRITAARE @I
Group is permitted to exchange RMB for foreign s o

31.

currencies through the banks that are authorised to
conduct foreign exchange business.

TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES 31. BESEMNNIE - HHERNRIBERE
AND ACCRUALS FEA
The ageing analysis of trade payables, based on the B ZEMNFIBERNE BB EERER DT
date of receipt of goods, is as follows: O
2022 2021
—g-= - —F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
0 to 30 days 0230H 53,082 72,849
31 to 60 days 31Z60H 44,693 58,065
61 to 90 days 61%=90H 30,296 40,400
91 to 180 days 912 180H 40,015 32,944
Over 180 days 1808 LA E 16,811 5,677

184,897 209,935
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31. TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES
AND ACCRUALS (Continued)
The carrying amount of the Group’s trade payables
are denominated in the following currencies:

31.

B 5 R FIR -
STEH(E)
AEBEZEMAR

B

HAEANER

R IE K B

HERHEENATINEER

2022 2021
—g=-= —E-—fF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FET
HK$ BT 3,042 3,475
usb ET 19,738 29,862
RMB AR 161,793 176,598
Others Hh 324 —
184,897 209,935
Other payables and accruals comprise the following: HEENRIBEMREFERABENATSIE
2022 2021
—Eg-= —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#E T FEIT
Accrued wages Bt T & 29,630 42 556
Other accrued expenses EMETER 38,436 44,885
Other payables H h fE 5 518 24,797 16,360
92,863 103,801
The carrying amount of the Group’s other payables AEBHMENRERETERANEREE
and accruals are denominated in the following BIATE®.ZIE :
currencies:
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
HK$ BT 12,866 7,873
USD EIT 1,269 8,733
RMB ARKE 78,728 87,195
92,863 108,801
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32.

NANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

BORROWINGS
The analysis of the carrying amount of borrowings is
as follows:

e B R Y R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # &= —F+=-A=+-B8BFE

32. &R
EROEEEITOT

2022 2021
—g=-= —E-—F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current liabilities nREBAE
Portion of bank borrowings due for AR —FRIHEERTT
repayment within one year B3 E D 60,502 36,000
Portion of bank borrowings due for AR —FEZHEENBES
repayment after one year which REREEEROBRITE
contains a repayment on demand REB 1D
clause 8,333 96,858
68,835 132,858
Non-current liabilities FRENEfE
Portion of bank borrowings due for AR —FEIHHEENTE
repayment after one year which do &R ERIEE IEFKAIRTT
not contain repayment on demand B 3D
clause — 10,500
Loan from non-controlling interests SEERE R E R (A L)
(note) 971 803
971 11,303

The interest-bearing bank borrowings, including the
bank borrowings repayable on demand, are carried at
amortised cost. None of the portion of bank
borrowings due for repayment after one year which
contain a repayment on demand clause that is
classified as current liabilities is expected to be
settled within one year.

Note:

The loan from non-controlling interests requires the Group to repay
according to certain conditions are to be satisfied. Approximately
HK$971,000 (2021: HK$803,000) represents the estimated fair value
of this loan amount at 31 December 2022. The loan is unsecured
and repayable in 2025. The conditions of repayments to non-
controlling interests are based on the accumulated audited profit
before tax of GPTL for the three financial years ending 31
December 2024 are set as below:

ARRTER(BRAREREREMNRTE
) TR B AT R - AR —FRIIME
ENBESREBREEGFESBARDA
BRRITERBOERBER—FRFE -

Bt

FEFE R 5 ) B N B SR S AR IR G AR A0S TR (3
TR - 49971,00038 7T (=B = —4F : 803,000 7T) 35
ZENCER T -_—F+=-_A=1+—HmHs2a¥
H o ZERBEIEIPL BN T - AFEMEE - IR
BN RENERGEBERBBEE-_S-_NFE+=A
=+—BIL= A KEEN RHEEZRBATEF - 3
HgR
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE—T - —&+ - A=+ —HIEFE

32. BORROWINGS (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

— less than US$96,500, only HK$1,500,000 with no interest —

bearing;

— more than US$96,500 but less than US$192,300, only —
HK$3,000,000 with no interest bearing; or

- more than US$192,300, HK$4,500,000 with interest bearing -

3.5% per annum.

3 8

32. &R (F&)

Hiat - (&)

#31896,500% T B ﬁ
3,000,000 ST ~EF B

K72 96,500% 7T + {£1,500,0007 T &1 8.

$192,300% 7t -

38192,3003 7T * 4,500,000/ JT 1% F F &
3.5%&T 8 °

At 31 December 2022, interest-bearing bank loans RZEBEZZF+ZA=+—80 " ZHEE
were due for repayment as follows: RFTBRITERAT ¢
2022 2021
—g-C T —F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#EiT FET
Portion of bank borrowings due for B —FRF|HAEEETT
repayment within one year B3I H 60,502 36,000
Portion of bank borrowings due for  BR—FREIHEENE
repayment after one year which BEREZEF #J\Eﬁfﬁﬁg
contains a repayment on demand KEBD (HaE (@) -
clause (note (a)):
After 1 year but within 2 years —FZBREMFZA 8,333 88,525
After 2 years but within 5 years MEZBERFZA - 8,333
8,333 96,858
Portion of bank borrowings due for R —FZEIHHEENTE
repayment after one year which do &% EKE B IERMIRTT
not contain a repayment on B 3D
demand clause:
After 1 year but within 2 years —FZBREMFZN - 10,500
68,835 143,358
Note: iopza
(a) The amounts due are based on the scheduled repayment (@) BERREDRERGZAENETCERBAE

dates set out in the loan agreements and ignore the effect

of any repayment on demand clause.
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32.

-FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

BORROWINGS (Continued)

Six (2021: Six) of the bank facilities are subject to
the fulfilment of covenants relating to certain of the
Group’s financial ratios, as are commonly found in
lending arrangements with financial institutions.
Should the Group breach the covenants, the drawn
down facilities would become repayable on demand.
In addition, some of the Group’s bank loan
agreements contain clauses which give the lenders
the right at their sole discretion to demand
immediate repayment at any time irrespective of
whether the Group has complied with the covenants
and met the scheduled repayment obligations.

The Group regularly monitors its compliance with
these covenants, and is up to date with the
scheduled repayments of the bank borrowings.
Further details of the Group’s management of
liquidity risk are set out in note 6(c). There have been
no breaches in the financial covenants of any
interest-bearing borrowings for the years ended 31
December 2021 and 2022.

The interest rates of the Group’s bank borrowings at
31 December were as follow:

e B R Y R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE—T-—F+-_F=+—HItFE

&k (&)

ANMEA(CEZ—F: AE)RTRERES
NEBEBARBEE THMBL R 225 &%
EREBETNESBEBII L2 ERL
RHER - WARBEERBREESE - AEPA
ZREBBRERARBRER - I AEEE
TRITEFBREZGERTETERAZE
B IBEREBE i EREN S EE BNV HER
MERARERESETRERTAEEE

32.

AEBTHEENERHE BT TiRE
RITERNBETCERPELERE - ~&H
THITENE © R A E — P BE AT
) RBZE_ZE-_—FR - -__F+=
A=+—RLFE BMEERTHTEE
RIS o

AEEMRITERR+=-A=1t—B87H

KT -
2022 2021
—-_F=-= —E-—4F
% %
per annum per annum
8 (SEes

RITE;

s

Bank loans

4.6% to 6.6% 1.7% to 2.5%

Bank loans are arranged at floating rate, thus
exposing the Group to cash flow interest rate risk.
Loan from non-controlling interests is arranged at
fixed rate and exposed the Group to fair value
interest rate risk.

RITERDRFBHMEFE  AEARE
BHEHERSRENERR - REFERE
SNERDREEMNEAL  EAKERE
R EMERER
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32. BORROWINGS (Continued)
The carrying amount of the bank borrowings is
denominated in the following currencies:

32.

fa sk ()
RITIEFEREE AT S Rt H B -

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FET

HK$ BT 58,833 114,833
EUR BT 10,002 28,525
68,835 143,358

33. BANKING FACILITIES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had available
banking facilities of approximately HK$459,942,000
(2021: HK$565,260,000), which were utilised to the
extent of approximately HK$68,835,000 (2021:
HK$143,358,000). These banking facilities were
secured by corporate guarantees provided by the
Company and certain subsidiaries of the Group.
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RITEE
F_g::i-i-:ﬂ =+t—8 KA&EETA
EFAMRITEE A #4459,942,0007 T (=
T~ —4F : 565,260,000/ L) * M2 &
) #0585 4968,835,0008 T (— B = —4 ¢
143,358,000/ L) ° W FRITEEUER R
AINAEERLHBARREMNDEER
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"FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HHE =T - —F+-_A=+—HBIFE

34. LEASE LIABILITIES 34. HEEE

— = |=

Present value of
Minimum lease payments minimum lease payments

RERERE RIEEERRRE

2022 2021 2022 2021
—g-= T —g-Z B
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FET FET FET
Within one year —FR 13,708 9,422 11,807 8,894
More than one year but not ~ —&F LA EET BB MR F
exceeding two years 9,797 4,538 9,524 4,387
More than two years, but not M4 A HERNBBTE
more than five years 3,203 1,286 3,138 1,195
26,708 15,246 24,469 14,476
Less: Future finance charges il : KRR E & (2,239) (770) N/ATER NATER
Present value of lease HERERE
obligations 24,469 14,476 24,469 14,476
Less: Amount due for B T EARBEERS
settlement within 12 2B (BIRRR
months (shown under BHEEET)
current liabilities) (11,807) (8,894)

Amount due for settlement +-ERREBEMZ

after 12 months FIE 12,662 5,582
The weighted average incremental borrowing rates FERRTEE & &/ INETHEEERE
applied to lease liabilities is 4.06% (2021: 5.3%). B4.06% (B —% :53%) o
Lease payables are denominated in following ERAENZE T EEEE
currencies:

2022 2021

—g=-= — T —4F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

HK$ BT 1,900 3,666
usD E7T 952 2,929
RMB AR 21,617 7,881
24,469 14,476
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINA

A B R B ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE=F

35.

Ka Shui International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES 35.

The following is the deferred tax liabilities and assets

recognised by the Group,

thereon, during the year:

Deferred tax liabilities:

and the movements

Undistributed
earnings of
subsidiaries leasehold lands

Revaluation of

HELR
BEEf

HEAT
FARZEH
HK$'000

ELERIBEE BfE

AT RASERFACERNELEHR AR

BEREEEARED
EXHBERE

Temporary
differences Fair value
arising from the

adoption of

HKFRS 15

adjustment on
business
combination

RAABEME
REER
FIHEEL
BREH
HK$'000

ERAHN
ATERE

Others

g
HK$'000

At 1 January 2021 R-B-—%
—HA-H 5,952 28,207 373 - 78 34,610
Charge to other comprehensive RERZEZEMZERE

income for the year - 943 - - - 943
Acquisition of a subsidiary YWE-RINEAF = = = 637 = 637
Withholding tax paid BEMH (2,744) = = = - (2,744)
(Credit)/charge to profit or loss for the RER(ARK)/ZEEER

year (note 13) (Hi:£13) = (963) 877) = 23 (1,317)
Exchange differences EREH = 506 4 = = 510
At 31 December 2021 and RZZ=—%

1 January 2022 +ZA=+-BkK

“F--%-f-A 3,208 28,693 - 637 101 32,639
Charge to other comprehensive RERSRZE M2 AN

income for the year - 4,573 - - - 4,573
Credit to profit or loss for the year RERARZE&

(note 13) (H1:£13) - (816) - (79) - (895)
Exchange differences ER=E - (1,828) - - - (1,828)
At 31 December 2022 it St

+=RA=+-H 3,208 30,622 - 558 101 34,489




ANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #{Z—T - —F+_-_A=+—RHIFE

35. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES
(Continued)
Deferred tax assets:

Fair value

adjustment on

Decelerated tax business

Tax losses depreciation combination
EBEHHEY

REBE RERBRERE ATEFE
HK$'000

T —
TR

At 1 January 2021 R-E--%—f—H 5,426 381 121 5,928
(Charge)/credit to profit or loss RER (2 8),/AEZEH

for the year (note 13) (Hr##13) (4,541) 17 (24) (4,548)
Exchange differences e 76 = 2 78

At 31 December 2021 and RZZEZ-F+-A=F—H

1 January 2022 KB —F-F— 961 398 99 1,458
Credit to profit or loss for the RERARZEZE

year (note 13) (Hi##13) 3,551 32 - 3,583
Exchange differences B A (189) - ) (197)
At 31 December 2022 g Sk -2

+=A=t-8 4,323 430 91 4,844

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax RGP BRARME - EEFIELEH (K
balances (after offset) for consolidated statement of HB) 2DITAT -

financial position purposes:

2022 2021
—g=-= —E-—F
HK$°000 HK$'000
F#EiT FET
Deferred tax liabilities REFIABE 34,009 31,280
Deferred tax assets FEIEFRIBE E (4,364) (99)
29,645 31,181
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35. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES
(Continued)

At 31 December 2022, the Group had unused tax
losses of approximately HK$281,191,000 (2021:
HK$279,698,000) which are available for offset
against future profits. A deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of approximately

HK$28,820,000 (2021: HK$6,408,000) of such
losses. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of the remaining HK$252,371,000 (2021:
HK$273,290,000) due to the unpredictability of future
profit streams. The unused tax loss of the Group
have not yet been agreed by respective tax
authorities. The expiry date of unrecognised tax loss
are summarised as follows:

35.

ELEREEE BE (&)

R-E-_—_F+-_A=+—H XxEBEF
REFA R IEE1849281,191,0008 L (==
— — 1 1 279,698,000 7T ) A 4 K $5 K 2k
mA o BLEZ EE51E#28,820,000/8 T (=&
Z—%F : 6,408,000/ L) ERBIELERIEE
EE % 4 ot 3% = T #2252,371,00058 7T (=

— —%F : 273,290,000/ JT) fER A IE T
fﬁlﬁﬁﬁﬁ A A REHETERTFFREA
BRASBE 2 APHABEEESRESS
MEREBORE - AERTEEEN D
AEEET -

2022 2021
—g - —E-—1F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Year 2022 —E_-_= - 375
Year 2023 :;ﬁ::i 9,831 10,760
Year 2024 —EFE 16,374 17,911
Year 2025 —= _£¢ 2,046 8,185
Year 2026 —EREF 32,956 57,709
Year 2027 T F 136,975 143,952
Year 2029 —E-NE 773 845
Year 2031 —E=—fF 2,642 2,890
Year 2032 —E=_fF 8,626 —
Year 2036 _::7/;\¢ 115 115
Year 2037 —E=+F 1,031 1,032
Year 2042 —EN=F 1,350 —
Carried forward indefinitely IR HAAE 8 39,652 29,516
252,371 273,290

At 31 December 2022, the aggregate amount of
temporary differences associated with undistributed
earnings of subsidiaries operated in the PRC for
which deferred tax liabilities have not been
recognised is approximately HK$51,388,000 (2021:
HK$39,016,000). No liability has been recognised in
respect of these temporary differences because the
Group is in a position to control the timing of
reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that such differences will not be reversed in
the foreseeable future.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HHE =T - —F+-_A=+—HBIFE

36. SHARE CAPITAL 36. B
Number of
Shares Amount
& E ok |
HK$’000
FHET
Authorised: ERE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each FRREEC.1E A T Ak
At 1 January 2021, 31 December R-_TE-_—F—HF—H =
2021, 1 January 2022 and T _—F+_A=+—
31 December 2022 H —E-—_—A—H
—EF-—
=t+—H 5,000,000,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: BT R
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each FRREEC.1E A T AR
At 1 January 2021, 31 December A—E-_—F—HF—H- =
2021, 1 January 2022 and T _—F+A=+—
31 December 2022 H —ZE-—_f—HA—H
=+—H 893,761,400 89,376

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities
in the Group will be able to continue as a going
concern while maximising the return to stakeholders
through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains
unchanged from the previous year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of cash
and cash equivalents and total equity, comprising
issued share capital, reserves, retained earnings and
non-controlling interests. The directors of the
Company review the capital structure on a semi-
annual basis. As part of this review, the directors
consider the cost of capital and the risks associated
with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the directors, the Group will
balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends, new share issues and share
buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt or the
redemption of existing debt.

AEBEEEEANERAEEAN R
KA EEE  MBHERAIEBELE
BRIEREHDMERAE R - ARE R
ERBREEFER -

AEBENEARBERERENERAREA
BRERARE  BRCBITRA  #E K
BREMEEZERER - ARBEFTFF
W —IREARLE - RETREE - EFE
BEARARBRERERNAR - RE
EENER  ARERERRMNERE - BT
R REEROIARBETHERLERR
BEE #EATEHEBEBEARE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE=-T - —F+=-A=+— El.IJ:E

36. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

The net debt to equity ratio at the year end is as
follows:

36. KA (F]&)

RELNBEFREERLRNT

2022 2021
—g=-= —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FET
Debt (note (a)) BEWitaE) 94,275 158,637
Less: Restricted bank deposits B BREIRITER (1,860) (2,029)
Bank and cash balances RITRIR® & (244,153) (280,683)
Net debt BEFE (151,738) (124,075)
Equity (note (b)) = (K73 (b)) 1,290,276 1,294,402
Net debt to equity ratio BEFEEEREE N/AF#E A N/AZ 38 BB

Notes:

(a) Debt is defined as borrowings and lease liabilities as detailed
in notes 32 and 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

(b) Equity includes all capital and reserves of the Group.

The only externally imposed capital requirements for
the Group are (i) in order to maintain its listing on the
Stock Exchange it has to have a public float of at
least 25% of its shares, and (i) to meet financial
covenants attached to the interest-bearing
borrowings. The Group receives reports from major
shareholders and other connected persons on any
changes in shares held by them to ensure the
continuing compliance with the 25% limit throughout
the year. As at 31 December 2022, 34.04% (2021:
34.12%) of the shares were in public hands. There
have been no breaches in the financial covenants of
any interest-bearing borrowings as at 31 December
2022 and 2021.
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NANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B R Y R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HHE =T - —F+-_A=+—HBIFE

37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 37. RATHBMRRERRFEE
AND RESERVES MOVEMENT OF THE
COMPANY
(a) Statement of financial position of the (a) EATIBMBRAFE
Company
2022 2021
-_F=-= —E-—4F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
k23 F#EIT FET
Non-current assets ERENEE
Investments in subsidiaries R B R R E 467,740 467,040
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments, deposits and ERFIE  RE2 R
other receivables H b pE W FRIE 248 234
Bank and cash balances RITRB S &8 147 495
395 729
Current liabilities REBBEE
Other payables and accruals  Hfth & <t ZUBE & &
-4 14 14
Due to subsidiaries J& A<t Bf B8 A R 5K IE 166,696 165,684
Financial guarantee contracts B FEREG AR
liabilities 816 3,578
167,526 169,276
Net current liabilities RBERTFE (167,131) (168,547)
NET ASSETS HEFE 300,609 298,493
Capital and reserves BERRHEE
Share capital fig 7 36 89,376 89,376
Reserves s 37(b) 211,233 209,117
TOTAL EQUITY Wi 300,609 298,493
Approved by the Board of Directors on 28 KEEeN_T-_=F=H=+/\H
March 2023 and are signed on its behalf by: o WHUATEERRES :
Lee Yuen Fat Wong Wing Chuen
FiER ik
Director Director
EF EF
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-ZF— —F+— f EWL—EIJJ:ii

37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 37. RABHMBMRRERNFEEEE (B)
AND RESERVES MOVEMENT OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)
(b) Reserves movement of the Company (b) EATIZGEEES

Share-based

Share Retained payments
premium profits reserve Total
IV EA G d
B fn itk {8 RERN RIERE o o
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
At 1 January 2021 i S
—A—H 204,650 3,449 — 208,099
Dividends paid ERRE = (35,750) = (85,750)
Profit for the year F R F — 36,768 - 36,768
At 31 December 2021 R T~ —4
+-A=+—8H 204,650 4,467 = 209,117
At 1 January 2022 i
—H—H 204,650 4,467 - 209,117
Dividends paid BKRE - (29,494) - (29,494)
Share-based payments WA {7 X+ 2 ZE - - 700 700
Profit for the year F R - 30,910 - 30,910
At 31 December 2022 ~WMZTZZF
+=-—RA=+—H 204,650 5,883 700 211,233
38. RESERVES 38. f#fE
(a) The Group (a) *FEHE
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the NES B Y B IR R AR B BN AR
movements therein are presented in the AEEREMEEWSIR REEER
consolidated statement of profit or loss and HE)KRET -

other comprehensive income and consolidated
statements of changes in equity.
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D FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

38. RESERVES (Continued)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves

U]

(i)

(iii)

Share premium

Share premium represents premium
arising from the issue of shares at a price
in excess of their par value per share.
Under the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands, the funds in the share
premium account of the Company are
distributable to the shareholders of the
Company provided that immediately
following the date on which the dividend
is proposed to be distributed, the
Company will be in a position to pay off
its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve represents the
aggregate of (i) the nominal value of the
shares issued by Ka Fung Metal
Manufactory Company Limited on 18
January 2005 in exchange for the
business of Ka Fung Metal Manufactory,
an unincorporated partnership established
in Hong Kong and controlled by Mr. Lee;
and (i) the nominal value of the shares
issued by the Company in exchange for
the entire shareholdings of Ka Shui
(Holdings) Company Limited.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents the
amount of minority interests in Ka Fung
Metal Manufactory Company Limited and
Ka Fung Metal Manufactory acquired by
the Group.

e B R Y R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HHE =T - —F+-_A=+—HBIFE

38. f#fE (&)

(b) fEFEZHERBH
(i) EBiEE

Befn g B0 s iR m R & m
BEH BB ITRD M E L/ R
B-REFAEHEARE X
RAMBEERANE S JHA
DIRFARAWER - EZEE
REZFENIKZBR  KNRQF
BEENEENAEXRBBE
PR HMNETR

(i) EHEE

A OHEEIB AT RIBA AR : ()
RESBEMBAERARRS
TERF—A+/\HAKRESE
LoBRMEMR (—MIFRARE
MK ZNER  EHEBK
S WA 2 EEm
BITHRGEE: RiHAQE B
B EREBERARMNEI
PR BTN EE -

(i) BHAXFHE
EXfFBREARENERES
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SLmRR D BB R s RO TR o
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AR BHENE(E)
:?:,EWL:,EJEJrfEIJEEi “

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &%=

38. RESERVES (Continued)

(b)

Nature and purpose of reserves
(Continued)

(iv)

v)

Foreign currency translation reserve
The foreign currency translation reserve
comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of
the financial statements of foreign
operations. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies
set out in note 4(d)(iii) to the
consolidated financial statements.

Statutory reserve

The statutory reserve comprises the PRC
statutory reserve fund which is non-
distributable.

As stipulated by the relevant laws and
regulations for foreign investment
enterprises in the PRC, the Company’s
PRC subsidiaries are required to transfer
10% of their profit after taxation
calculated under PRC accounting rules
and regulations to the statutory reserve
fund, until the accumulated total of the
statutory reserve fund reaches 50% of
their registered capital. The statutory
surplus reserve fund can be used to
make up prior year losses or applied in
conversion into capital.
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1E CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

38. RESERVES (Continued)

(b)

Nature and purpose of reserves
(Continued)

(vi)

(vii)

Land revaluation reserve

The land revaluation reserve has been set
up and is dealt with in accordance with
the accounting policies adopted for
leasehold lands in note 4(f) to the
consolidated financial statements.

Share-based payments reserve

The share-based payment reserve
represents the fair value of the actual or
estimated number of unexercised share
options granted to employees of the
Group recognised in accordance with the
accounting policy adopted for equity-
settled share-based payments in note
4(u) to the consolidated financial
statements.

39. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

(a)

Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to a resolution passed in the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 19
May 2017, a new share option scheme (“2017
Scheme”) was adopted.

e B R Y ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HHE =T - —F+-_A=+—HBIFE

38. f#fE (&)

(b) fEEZHERBEH &)

(vi) LHbEfLGEEE
BT MBEEHEEDREBSRS
MBEBKRMEAOAEAREE
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(vii) AR ZRIARE
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39. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

(a)

Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The purpose of the 2017 Scheme is to (i)
motivate the eligible participants to optimise
their performance and efficiency for the benefit
of the Group; and (i) attract and retain or
otherwise maintain ongoing business
relationship with the eligible participants whose
contributions are, will or expected to be
beneficial to the Group. Eligible participants of
the 2017 Scheme include () any director,
employee, consultant, professional, customer,
supplier, agent, partner, adviser of or
contractor to the Group or a company in which
the Group holds an interest or a subsidiary of
such company (the “Affiliate”); or (i) the trustee
of any trust the beneficiary of which or any
discretionary trust the discretionary objects of
which include any director, employee,
consultant, professional, customer, supplier,
agent, partner, adviser of or contractor to the
Group or an Affiliate; or (i) a company
beneficially owned by any director, employee,
consultant, professional, customer, supplier,
agent, partner, adviser of or contractor to the
Group or an Affiliate. The 2017 Scheme
became effective on 19 May 2017 and, unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in
force for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share
options currently permitted to be granted under
the 2017 Scheme is an amount equivalent,
upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares of
the Company in issue at any time. The
maximum number of shares issuable under
share options to each eligible participant in the
2017 Scheme within any 12-month period is
limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time. Any further grant of share
options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.
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"FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

39. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

(a)

Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Share options granted to a director, chief
executive or substantial shareholder of the
Company, or to any of their associates, are
subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors. In
addition, any share options granted to a
substantial shareholder or an independent non-
executive director of the Company, or to any of
their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time or
with an aggregate value (based on the closing
price of the Company’s shares at the date of
the grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any
12-month period, are subject to shareholders’
approval in advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be
accepted within 30 days from the date of the
offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration
of HK$10 in total by the grantee. The exercise
period of the share options granted is
determinable by the directors, and commences
after meeting certain performance targets or
certain vesting period that may be set by the
directors, and ends on a date which is not
later than ten years from the date of the offer
of the share options or the expiry date of the
2017 Scheme, if earlier.

e B R Y R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HHE =T - —F+-_A=+—HBIFE
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39. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

(a)

Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The exercise price of the share options is
determinable by the directors, but may not be
less than the highest of (i) the Stock Exchange
closing price of the Company’s shares on the
date of the offer of the share options; (ii) the
average Stock Exchange closing price of the
Company’s shares for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of the offer;
and (i) the nominal value of the Company’s
shares on the date of the offer, when
applicable.

Share options do not confer rights on the
holder to dividends or to vote at shareholders’
meetings.

On 31 October 2022, the Group granted
40,210,000 share options with exercise price of
HK$0.39 per share to certain directors,
employees and consultants. The share options
shall be exercisable in whole or in parts from
the date of grant until 31 October 2027 and
subject to the following vesting period. 50% of
the share options will vest on each of 31
October 2023 and 2024 respectively.

Share options granted to consultants were
incentives for helping the Group expand its
business network, acquire and explore new
business projects and opportunities. The fair
value of such benefit could not be estimated
reliably and as a result, the fair value is
measured by reference to the fair value of
share options granted.
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{E cuu‘soun"'- ED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

39. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

(a)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & =

e B R Y ()

Eer=H=r— A INFE

39. BARRD Y Z2FKE (&)

Share Option Scheme (Continued) (a) REBRXHESTEI(E)
The estimated fair value of the options at the REL B EMEREGTTAFERS
date of grant on 31 October 2022 was E__F+A=Z+—-—BHA
approximately HK$5,569,000. The fair value 5,569,000 T - L EHNATFER
calculated was inherently subjective and FEAEFH B BRATIERER RATE
uncertain due to the assumptions made and RAEANBREMELE T -
the limitations of the model used.
The fair value was calculated using the NEEDRAZAA REEEERR
binomial option pricing model. The inputs into o R ASEBNAT
the model are as follows:

2022
Weighted average exercise price InHEFIITEE HK$0.397%& T
Expected volatility TE HA R B = 60.84%
Risk free rate i ) 4.142%
Expected dividend yield TE AR Bk 2 R 8.46%

Notes:

1. Expected volatility was determined by calculating the
historical volatility of the Company’s share price.

2. Expected dividend yield was based on the historical
dividend vyield of the Company.

If the options remain unexercised after a period
of 5 years from the date of grant, the options
expire. Options are forfeited if the employee
leaves the Group.

Wit -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FIN

% A B 7% 5 % W 3 () -

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # %=

39. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 39. AR+ 2 RIE (8])
(a) Share Option Scheme (Continued) (a) FEBRMESTEI(E)
Details of the movement of share options FABBREZLHFBLOT :

during the year are as follows:

2022 2021
—g=-C —EB-—4F
Weighted Weighted
Number of average Number of average
share exercise share exercise
options price options price
ntEEL IntEF 15
fER#ERE TiEE gl TREE
HK$ HK$
ET BT
Outstanding at the FREARITE
beginning of the year - - — —
Granted during the year FRBRH 40,210,000 0.39 — —

Forfeited during the year FRE %K - - - -
Exercised during the year R E{T{E - - - -
Expired during the year FRE @H - - — -

Outstanding at the end R ARITE
of the year 40,210,000 0.39 — —

Exercisable at the end of R A]{T{E

the year - —
The options outstanding at the end of the year FREARITE BB ARE 2 T8k
have a weighted average remaining contractual TEFHFRA484F (ZE=_—F:
life of 4.84 years (2021: Nil) and the exercise B)RITEEROIEB L (ZTE=Z—
prices of HK$0.39 (2021: Nil). F ) o
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-FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

39. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Share Award Scheme

The Company adopted a share award scheme
(the “Share Award Scheme”) on 10 January
2013 (“Adoption Date”) for a period of 10
years. The purpose and objective of the Share
Award Scheme are to recognise the
contributions by certain employees and persons
of the Group and to provide them with
incentives in order to retain them for the
continual operation and development of the
Group and to attract suitable personnel for
further development of the Group. The
Company has set up a Share Award Scheme
Trust. Pursuant to the Share Award Scheme,
new awarded shares may be allotted and
issued to the independent trustee under
general mandates granted or to be granted by
the shareholders at general meetings of the
Company from time to time and be held in
trust for relevant participants until such shares
are vested with the relevant participants in
accordance with the provisions of the Share
Award Scheme.

Subject to any early termination as may be
determined by the Board of the Company, the
Share Award Scheme shall be valid and
effective for a period of ten years commencing
on the Adoption Date.

The maximum number of shares awarded
under the Share Award Scheme shall not
exceed 5% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the Adoption Date.

The maximum number of shares which may be
awarded to a selected person under the Share
Award Scheme shall not exceed 1% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at the
Adoption Date.

As at 31 December 2022, the number of
awarded shares available to grant under the
Share Award Scheme was 44,311,770 (2021:
44,311,770). For the year ended 31 December
2022, no awarded shares were granted
pursuant to the Share Award Scheme (2021:
Nil).

The Share Award Scheme was expired
subsequently on 9 January 2023.
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40. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 40. mERERERMEE

OF CASH FLOWS

(@) Cash flows from operating activities (a) BEEBRZALRE
2022 2021
—F-C —T-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FH#IT FET
Profit from operations R 79,176 153,886
Adjustments for: BEL TSR :
Interest income FBUA (952) (1,042)
Impairment losses for trade (BHREWZERERSE) E5
receivables/(reversals of JFE W T R S 48 [
impairment losses on trade
receivables) 52 (242)
Bad debts written off 122 AR 41 35 177 1,511
Allowance for inventories, net GFERETFE 5,134 14,313
Net loss on disposal of property, HEME BB REREFEE
plant and equipment 3,392 1,237
Property, plant and equipment ER Y B E 6
written off 666 1,178
Loss on deregistration of a subsidiary i —REMEARIKERE - 100
Loss on revaluation of land T EEEHER 10 708
Net fair value (gain)/loss on derivative ~ $TA & B T AAFEF
financial instruments (Wez%) /BB (2,355) 3,665
Amortisation of intangible assets mR A ESH 453 25
Depreciation of property, plant and W BERBERTE
equipment 85,391 78,156
Depreciation on right-of-use assets FREEENE 19,805 16,704
Fair value losses of loan from B ERERAFEBE
non-controlling interests 168 —
Share-based payments VAR 19 32 1+ 2 5/ 78 700 —
Gain on early termination of lease RATR IETRE e (124) =
Operating profit before movements in KRt EE L EFHATHLLHEF
working capital 191,693 270,199
Increase in inventories ﬁ%’iiﬂﬂ (9,793) (39,042)
Decrease in right of return assets EREERD - 40
Increase in restricted bank balances ﬁ PR 1| 88 17 13 SR8 0 (6) @]
Decrease/(increase) in trade and bills %%&xfﬁgqﬁmlﬁxﬁw\/(i&” o)
receivables 47,421 (55,401)
Decrease/(increase) in contract assets & #EEmR D,/ (#0) 2,712 (2,860)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, TEHITAIE R& R H o & W FRIR
deposits and other receivables w (iﬁﬂﬂ) 5,779 (826)
(Increase)/decrease in due from & H&Hﬁﬁ%’& FIECEM), WA
associates (490) 53
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables ‘%%Wg 3B CRD) /B m (25,038) 15,853
Increase/(decrease) in contract liabilities & 47 Eiﬁﬂﬂ/ ) 757 (6,244)
(Decrease)/increase in other payables — H i fE < 3B K fEst & H
and accruals R,/ (11,103) 2,690
(Decrease)/increase in due to FE (B A R R G ) /00
associates (43) 119
Increase in derivative financial PTESRITERATEEM
instruments - (1,579)
Cash generated from operations KREMGRE 201,889 182,996
Income tax paid BT ERE (32,959) (7,665)
Interest paid on bank borrowings B RITERFE (2,941) (2,641)
Interest paid on lease liabilities ENHEESERNE (1,059) (618)
Net cash generated from operating REEBMEHREFHE
activities 164,930 172,072
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"FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

40. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(b)

Acquisition of a subsidiary

On 10 December 2021, the Group (through
Capital Link Holdings Limited (“CLHT”), a wholly
owned subsidiary) acquired 70% of the
registered capital of GPTL for a total
consideration of HK$7,700,000. GPTL was
engaged in trading of building materials and
engine motors during the year. The acquisition
is for the purpose of matching the Group’s
strategies to broaden its product portfolio to
engine motors.

The fair value of the identifiable assets and

e B R Y R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HHE =T - —F+-_A=+—HBIFE

40. IREBRETREBRMEE (B)

(b) WiHEMIEBAT
RZEZ—F+ZA+H ~5HE
(BR—ME2ENBRAERERE
BArl(ZB&EE])) WESZBERB
TMEANTOR  BRE A
7,700,0007% Tt © 4% B 32 8 7 F At
FEREMBREGRE S - WEB W
DEREAEEBAEREGERE
BB ARES o

Fifs B BRI A EREERAER

liabilities of GPTL acquired as at the date of WEEHBMAFEDT ¢
acquisition are as follows:
HK$'000
FET
Net assets acquired: Frig /& E -
Intangible assets ,ﬁiﬂ?éﬁﬁ 3,860
Due from CLHT =R RIE 10,500
Due from non-controlling interests FEWFETE HX%:EE?K 4,511
Other receivables H b B GR IR 13
Bank and cash balances RITRIA S E 268
Tax payables FE AT 18 3)
Loan from CLHT REEZAEBNER (10,500)
Loan from non-controlling interest (note 32) REFIERERHER
(f1a£32) (8093)
Deferred tax liabilities RETRIEEE (637)
7,209
Non-controlling interests FE 12 AR 4 2 (2,163)
Goodwill (note 21) P (HE21) 2,654
7,700
Satisfied by: ATEFA A
Cash consideration paid EMESNRE 7,700
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: WHERELEZFRESRD
Cash consideration paid BENReNRE (7,700)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired Frigii e RERBELIEER 268
(7,432)
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40. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(b)

Acquisition of a subsidiary (Continued)
The fair value of the loan from non-controlling
interests of approximately HK$803,000 was
estimated by applying the income approach.
The fair value estimates are based on an
assumed discount rate 20%.

Acquisition-related costs of approximately
HK$135,000 have been charged to general and
administrative expenses in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss for the year ended
31 December 2021.

The goodwill arising on the acquisition of GPTL
is attributable to the anticipated future
operating synergies from the combination.

GPTL contributed approximately HK$Nil and
HK$208,000 to the Group’s revenue and loss
for the year between the date of acquisition
and 31 December 2021.

If the acquisition had been completed on 1
January 2021, total Group revenue for the year
ended 31 December 2021 would have been
approximately HK$1,715,725,000, and profit for
the year ended 31 December 2021 would have
been approximately HK$127,823,000. The
proforma information is for illustrative purposes
only and is not necessarily an indication of the
revenue and results of operations of the Group
that actually would have been achieved had the
acquisition been completed on 1 January
2021, nor is intended to be a projection of
future results.
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ERERME (B)

WeRE B B2 S (4)

KEFEBEESHERNOAFELY
803,000 7T o FA Ak (b 5t - 2
FAE fh FTJ0 E R E B3R R20% 5t

st
= o
E2T

W B8 A8 BE A A8 #9135,00078 7T E2 5T A
BE_T-_—F+-_A=1+—HBLLF
ErHZEaBEaRAN—RRITHHR
I:Flo

WESBRBRELZBERBRA
DF1& B T8 HA R SR A 2 169 (R SMUE -

BREBHMEE T - —F+_H
=t—B #EXBALAKENFA
WARBBESBERMOZTETR
208,000/ 7T ©

WHEER T —F—A—HE
B AEEHEE_ZT-_—F+=-A
—t+—HLEFENRRAEZE ALY
1,715,725,0008 0 mMB =2 =%
T+ A=+—HIEFENRF
#% & #9127,823,0007% 7t © & & £
EHFBRE  ROABWEREERZ
T —F— A HEKEAREEER
BRI AREEEERNIEEZ - b
FEE R EEE R TR o



.ANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B R Y R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #{iE—T -~ +_-_A=+—HBIL&FE

40. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Major non-cash transaction

Included in the additions of property, plant and
equipment was an amount of approximately
HK$10,061,000 (2021: HK$13,728,000) which
was transferred from deposits paid for
acquisition of property, plant and equipment.

Additions of right-of-use assets during the year
of approximately HK$18,334,000 (2021:
HK$4,636,000) were financed by lease
liabilities.

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from
financing activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s
liabilities arising from financing activities,
including both cash and non-cash changes.
Liabilities arising from financing activities are
those for which cash flows were, or future
cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s
consolidated statement of cash flows as cash
flows from financing activities.

40.

mERERERWE (F)

(c)

(d)

FEHRERS

AAREYME BBERIZEARD
10,061,000 L (=& = — & :
13,728,000/ L) ' YHBENEEY
¥ BERZENRSITEA -

F N{F A i B E I I14918,334,00075
TT(ZF = — % : 4,636,000/ 7T)
mAEaFEE-

MEFSHEENBRHER

TRAMAEEREEDMELNE
EEE) (BRASMIFREES) - @
BEBMELNRBEDKABERAN
SERERERERADESRMER
PRERE -

1 January  Addition of Lease Early Cash Flows, Interest Exchange Fair value 31 December
2022 leases modification  termination  net (Nofe) expenses difference change p177]
k- et 3
k- k-3 FRER +=R
-A-H HMEHE By  RELL (#) HEREX EREE AFEZE  =t-H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET
Bank borrowings FATREH
(note 32) (H#32) 143,358 - - - (75,015) 2,941 (2,449) - 68,835
Loan from non-controling FF# AR R M E X
interests (note 32) (Hi#32) 803 - - - - - - 168 n
Lease liabilties (note 34) BERAE
(Hiit34) 14,476 18,334 9,027 (3,583) (14,308) 1,059 (536) - 24,469
158,637 18,334 9,027 (3,583) (89,323) 4,000 (2,985) 168 94,275
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE—T - —&+ - A=+ —HIEFE

.

40. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 40. mEBRERERMEE (&)
OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(d) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (d BEIFBELENEFHKRE)
financing activities (Continued)
Fair value
adjustment on
1 January  Addition of Lease Ealy  Cash Flows, Interest Exchange business 31 December
2021 leases  modificaion  termination net (Notg) expenses diference  combination 2021
—T--F
—3--% ERER #HBadn TZA

-A-B ¥EEE  HELY%  RAKL W)  MERx  EAZ® ATESE  =t-H
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00 — HKSO00  HKS000  HK$000
AT AT FET FET AT TET TET AT FET

Bank borrowings RIER
(note 32) (Hitse) 153,458 = = = (13,624) 2,641 883 = 143,358
Loan from non-controling IR ERHE R
interests (note 32) (Hit32) = = = = 4,500 = = (3,697) 803
Lease liabilities (note 34) TEBE
(Hiatsa) 18,078 4636 894 - (10,008} 618 256 - 14,476
171,536 4636 894 - (19,130} 3259 1,139 (3697) 158,637
Note: Included in cash flows was interest paid which was He - STAREREREHTALETHRET
included in cash flows from operating activities. ENERMFIE -
(e) Total cash outflow for leases (e) HERESREHEHE
Amounts included in the cash flow statements SFFARERERNEHERE TS
for leases comprise the following: #
2022 2021
—g=-= —E -4
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#iT FET
Within operating cash flows ERERESREZA 1,917 1,385
Within financing cash flows CRERSREZLA 13,249 9,388

15,166 10,773
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41.

NANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Group as lessor

The Group leases its property under operating lease
arrangements, with leases negotiated for a term of
one to five years (2021: one to five years). The terms
of the leases generally provide for periodic rent
adjustments according to the then prevailing market
conditions.

At 31 December 2022, minimum lease payments
receivable on leases are as follows:

e B R Y R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HHE =T - —F+-_A=+—HBIFE

41. REHERIE

AREEABHLAAN

AEBREEHELHHBEEYE  BY
A—FERF(ZT=—F: —FERF)-
HERHE-—MURTHEBEREEHES

B 2R

R-EBE-_—_F+-_A=+—H AEEE
WHIERESHRBEEENOT

2022 2021

—g=-C= T —F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Within one year —F A 236 122
In the second year B F 236 72
In the third year F=F 236 =
In the fourth year FHF 236 —
944 194

Operating leases relate to factory owned by the
Group leased to a retailer with lease terms of 5
years (2021: 5 years). The lessee does not have an
option to purchase the property at the expiry of the
lease period.

The Group as lessee

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for
warehouses, staff quarters and factories. As at 31
December 2022, the portfolio of short-term leases is
similar to the portfolio of short-term leases to which
the short-term lease expense disclosed in note 20.

BARAEEEENIHEETTERZIR
eHE HEHRRREF(CTE_—F: 5
F) ABEABEEHEENERSBEZY
i

FEBEEBKHEAN
AEBETEHIIYEE - BEIESMIKRE
HEE - R-_EBE-_—_F+-_A=+—8"
RHAEREAE AENF20FFENE
HASYHAUNEHHEEREAS -
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A B R B ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ =T - —F +_ E+_Elﬂ:$i ’

ﬂ

42. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
The Group’s capital commitments at the end of the
reporting period are as follows:

Commitment in respect of acquisition UXEEYEE « 22 I SR A IE

(H1:)

of property, plant and equipment
(note)

42, BIREE
RBEPRBTEH  AEBMNE R REND
N

2022 2021

—EC- —E-—4F

HK$’000 HK$'000

F# T FET

38,681 49,622

Note: The amount represents the unpaid contractual commitment
for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment after
netting off with the deposits paid for acquisition of property,
plant and equipment included in the consolidated statement
of financial position.

43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(@ In addition to those related party translations
and balances disclosed elsewhere in the
consolidated financial statements, the Group
had the following transactions with its related
party during the year:

Hiet - ZFERKBME  BRRREORNT A DOE
o WEMKR B ALE BB R R
ME BERBFHENELRSE -

43. BHARS
(@) BREABBEEREEMBHAEEN
BEBEA T 5 R8N ERAREE
o B REEE SR ITIAT RS -

2022 2021
—E®-C T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET

Rental income from an associate 2K B B & /A 7] A F & Uk A
(note (})) (H1aE(0) 295 473

Purchase from an associate ML N RIEE (Fa0)

(note (i) 43 193

Purchase of properties from
directors (note (ij)

MESBEYE (KAL)

7,534 —

Notes:

(i) The above transactions were entered with the related
parties on terms mutually agreed by individual
parties. In the opinion of the directors of the Group,
these related party transactions were conducted on
normal commercial terms and in the ordinary and
usual course of the Group’s business.
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{E cuu‘soun"'- ED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

44.

(@)

(i)

During the year,

On 19 December 2022, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company (the “Purchaser”) entered
into the sale and purchase agreement with vendors
Mr. Lee ((being the chairman of the Board of
directors, an executive director and controlling
shareholder of the Company) and Ms. Chan (being
the executive director of the Company) pursuant to
which the Purchaser has agreed to acquire the entire
issued share capital of Bestgrand Enterprises Limited
(“Bestgrand”) at a consideration of HK$7,534,000
(“Acquisition”). Mr. Lee was the sole legal and
beneficial owner of Bestgrand before the Acquisition.
As at 19 December 2022, the net asset value of
Bestgrand was HK$7,534,000, representing the
appraised value of the properties comprising of
building of HK$706,000 and right-of-use assets of
HK$6,828,000, respectively.

compensation paid by the

Group to the key management personnel,
which were the directors and chief executive
officer of the Company, was disclosed in note
16 to the consolidated financial statements.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to
conform to the current year’s presentation. The new
classification of the accounting items was considered
to provide a more appropriate presentation of the
state of affairs of the Group.

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & =

43.

44.

e B R Y ()

—iEar=EI=Tr a5

LTS (&)
@ (&)
W ()

(ii) RZZZ=ZF+=-A+AhAB AQFAZ
—REEZENBRAR(ER])BES
FhE (BARRESGERE YTES
FIERARR) RE R+ (BIARR R
TER)IVEERE Bt EFER
EUBEETFEARAR(ETDOZ
HEBEITRA - R {E R7,534,0007% 7T
(T EE]) - FEERKEEEN A
BFR—ZEEREZHEA-RZ-ZT
—ZF+ZAt+hB BFHNEEFE
77,534,000/ 7T * IHE RN ENGEE
B (E& 5 B8 $5706,000/8 THEF &
6,828,000 TTHIE A E) °

b)) FR AEBEENEIEEEAER(R
ARAEZRITHRAR) ME TIRER
B ERARME16HWE -

EEER B F
RUNBHFEETHIREUNERFED
5”#& EE+IEE E’J%ﬁ“*ﬂﬁiwﬁ—ﬂ%ﬁﬁ
B = IR AN 5 A AROR -
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUIVIMARY

LIEMEHRE

Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+—HLFE
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
—N\E ZT-NF ZTFF T —F Pkl
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET FHET FET FET

RESULTS E 3
Revenue A 1,852,329 1,554,364 1,469,237 1,714,549 1,504,439
Profit before tax F 35 Al g A 125,907 101,331 154,050 150,572 73,953
Income tax expense e R (12,505) (14,569) (31,295) (22,835) (5,095)
Profit for the year N8 113,402 86,762 122,755 127,737 68,858
Attributable to: AT AL
— Owners of the — AR a =
Company BEA 113,556 88,705 123,991 131,139 74,844
— Non-controlling — FEERER
interests (154) (1,943) (1,236) (3,402) (5,986)
113,402 86,762 122,755 127,737 68,858
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+—H
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
ZEN\F ZFENAF ZF-FF DT F bt
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000 BN EX1[i])
FET FHET FHETT FET F#T
ASSETS AND EERAHE
LIABILITIES
Total assets BEE 1,719,695 1,635,386 1,697,045 1,832,693 1,710,660
Total liabilities BEE (761,835)  (627,431)  (517,737)  (538,291)  (420,384)
Net assets HEE 957,860 1,007,955 1,179,308 1,294,402 1,290,276
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=R B ERARAR

Room A, 29th Floor, Tower B, Billion Centre, 1 Wang Kwong Road,
Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong
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Tel B : (852) 3759 8900
Fax fEH : (852) 2412 1743

Website #3t : www.kashui.com
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